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GENERAL MANAGER’S TRANSMITTAL LETTER  
 
 

December 18, 2009 
 
Dear Customers, Stakeholders and Commissioners, 

 
We are pleased to present the San Francisco Public Utilities   
Commission‘s (SFPUC) Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009.  
SFPUC staff remains committed to reach and maintain the 
highest possible standards in financial reporting now and in 
the future. 

 
This report was prepared by the SFPUC‘s Financial Services 
Bureau Accounting Department in conformance with the 
principles and standards for financial reporting set forth by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and generally accepted accounting 
principles (GAAP).  Recommended guidelines by the Government Finance Officers Association 
(GFOA) of the United States and Canada were also followed.   

 
The SFPUC‘s management is responsible for both the accuracy of the data presented and the 
completeness and fairness of its presentation, including all disclosures.  The existing 
comprehensive structure on internal controls in the City and SFPUC provides reasonable 
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.  We believe the 
report presented is accurate in all material respects, that it is presented in a manner designed to 
fairly set forth the financial position and the results of operations of the SFPUC, and that the 
included disclosures enable the reader to gain the maximum understanding of the SFPUC‘s 
financial activities.   

 
The SFPUC‘s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, a firm of licensed certified 
public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that 
the financial statements of the SFPUC for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009 are fairly 
presented in conformity with GAAP, and are free of material misstatement.  The independent 
audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  The independent 
auditor rendered an unqualified ―clean‖ opinion on the SFPUC‘s financial statements for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. The independent auditors‘ report is presented as the first 
component of the financial section of this report. 

 
Management‘s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is presented after the independent auditor‘s 
report, and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic 
financial statements.  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement MD&A and should be 
read in conjunction with it.   
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MAYOR 
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PRESIDENT 
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VICE PRESIDENT 
 
ANN MOLLER CAEN 
COMMISSIONER 

 

JULIET ELLIS 
COMMISSIONER 
 

ANSON B. MORAN 
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Key Report Sections 
 

This report (CAFR) describes the SFPUC‘s financial activities, condition and services as a whole.  As such, 
the report covers information about its history, organizational structure, and financial data.  This report is 
divided into three sections: Introductory, Financial, and Statistical. 
 
The Introductory Section, which is not audited, includes information about the organizational structure of 
the SFPUC, a list of Commission members and senior management, a history of governance and 
operations, its mission statement and strategic plan; a discussion of the City‘s economy; highlights of 
SFPUC‘s major accomplishments, financial foundation, and key initiatives; a summary of the budget 
process, and rates; and an outline of accounting standards and internal controls. 
 
The Financial Section includes the MD&A, Basic Financial Statements for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, 
notes to the Basic Financial Statements, and supplementary information.  The Basic Financial Statements 
include the financial statements that report on financial operations.  The independent auditor‘s report on 
the Basic Financial Statements is also included. 
 
The Statistical Section, which is not audited, presents selected financial and operating indicators of the 
SFPUC, and includes up to ten years of historical financial data and miscellaneous social and economic 
information that conforms to GASB standards for reporting.  This section may be of special interest to 
prospective investors in our bonds. 

 
The Reporting Entity - Profile of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 
 

Organization and Business   
 
The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is a department of the City and County of San 
Francisco (CCSF) that is responsible for the maintenance, operation, and development of three utility 
enterprises, the Water, Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.  The San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission was established in 1932.  Until August 1, 2008, the Commission consisted of five members, all 
appointed by the Mayor. Proposition E, a City and County of San Francisco Charter amendment approved 
by the voters in the June 3, 2008 election, terminated the terms of all five existing members of the 
Commission, changed the process for appointing new members, and set qualifications for all members.  
Under the amended Charter, the Mayor continues to nominate candidates to the Commission, but 
nominees do not take office until the Board of Supervisors votes to approve their appointments by a 
majority (at least six members).  The amended Charter provides for staggered four year terms for members. 
The Commission is responsible for providing operational oversight and is responsible for determining such 
matters as the rates and charges for services, approval of contracts, and organizational policy. 
 
The SFPUC has three Enterprise funds: Water, Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.  These 
funds support the operations, facilities maintenance, and capital needs of the entities. The SFPUC also 
includes the Bureaus and Infrastructure, which provide support and oversight services to the Enterprises. 
The Bureaus‘ budgets are funded through an allocation model that recovers costs of services to the 
Enterprises. Infrastructure‘s budget is funded through various capital projects. 
 
The SFPUC provides these distinct utility services: Water (both regional and local), Wastewater (local 
collection, treatment and disposal), and Power.  SFPUC supplies water to 2.5 million people in San 
Francisco and the San Francisco Bay Area.  One-third of the water is supplied directly to retail customers 
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primarily in San Francisco (including residential, industrial and commercial customers), and the remaining 
two-thirds is supplied to wholesale customers through a contractual agreement. Wastewater services are 
provided within the City of San Francisco, as well as to three neighboring districts, including the San Mateo 
Sanitation District, Bayshore Sanitary District, and the City of Brisbane. Power is primarily supplied to 
municipal customers and their tenants within the City and County of San Francisco. 
 
The Water Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of SFPUC‘s Water Enterprise.  The Water 
Enterprise is engaged in the distribution of water to the City and certain suburban areas.  The Enterprise 
collects, transmits, treats, and distributes high quality drinking water to a total population of approximately 
2.5 million people, including retail customers in the City and wholesale customers located in San Mateo, 
Santa Clara, and Alameda Counties. The Water Enterprise delivered approximately 86,986 million gallons in 
the year ended June 30, 2009. Approximately two-thirds of the water delivered by the Water Enterprise is to 
wholesale customers. Retail customers include residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental users, 
and the Enterprise recovers cost of service through user fees. Wholesale customers, totaling 27, include 
cities, water districts, one private utility, and one nonprofit university. Service to these customers is provided 
pursuant to the Master Water Sales Contract which establishes the basis for determining the costs of 
wholesale service. The current contract expired June 30, 2009 and a new agreement had been negotiated, 
commencing on July 1, 2009. 
 

The Wastewater Enterprise Fund accounts for the activities of the SFPUC‘s Wastewater Enterprise.  The 
Wastewater Enterprise was created after San Francisco voters approved a proposition in 1976 authorizing 
the city to issue $240 million in bonds for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, and financing 
improvements to the City‘s municipal sewage treatment and disposal system.  The Wastewater Enterprise 
collects, transmits, treats, and discharges sanitary and stormwater flows generated within the City for the 
protection of public health and environmental safety. In addition, the Wastewater Enterprise serves on a 
contractual basis certain municipal customers located outside of the City limits, including the North San 
Mateo County Sanitation District No. 3 (Daly City), Bayshore Sanitary District, and the City of Brisbane. 
The Wastewater Enterprise recovers cost of service through user fees based on the volume and strength of 
sanitary flow. The Wastewater Enterprise serves approximately 150,000 residential accounts, which 
discharge about 19.0 million units of sanitary flow per year (measured in hundreds of cubic feet, or ccf) and 
approximately 22,000 non-residential accounts, which discharge about 9.2 million units of sanitary flow per 
year. 
 
The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Fund accounts for the activities of SFPUC‘s Hetch Hetchy Water 
and Power.  Hetch Hetchy Water and Power was established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913, which 
granted water and power resource rights-of-way on the Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park and the 
Stanislaus National Forest to the City. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power is engaged in the collection and 
conveyance of approximately 85% of the City‘s water supply and in the generation and transmission of 
electricity from that resource. Approximately 79% of the electricity generated by Hetch Hetchy Water and 
Power is used by the City‘s municipal customers (including the San Francisco Municipal Railway, Recreation 
and Parks Department, the Port of San Francisco, San Francisco International Airport Commission, San 
Francisco General Hospital, City street lights, Moscone Center, as well as SFPUC‘s own Water and 
Wastewater Enterprises). The majority of remaining 21% of electricity generated is sold to other publicly 
owned utilities, such as the Turlock and Modesto Irrigation Districts. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
includes a system of reservoirs, hydroelectric power plants, aqueducts, pipelines, and transmission lines, 
carrying water and power more than 165 miles from the Sierra Nevada to customers in the City and 
portions of the surrounding San Francisco Bay Area. The SFPUC‘s Power Enterprise is wholly contained in 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power. 
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SFPUC Strategic Plan 
 

The Charter also requires the SFPUC to create, update, and adopt a Strategic Plan, which is a performance 
matrix designed to be used among senior managers to chart progress on four key goals: 

 Provide High Quality Services  

 Promote a Green and Sustainable City 

 Expand Outreach and Communications 

 Invest in People and Communities 
 
The Strategic Plan serves as key guidance in planning day-to-day operational deployments as well as project 
implementations. 
 

San Francisco’s Economy 

 

The City is the economic center of the nine counties contiguous to the Bay: Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, 
Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, Santa Clara, Solano and Sonoma Counties (the ―Bay Area‖). The economy 
of the Bay Area includes a wide range of industries, supplying local needs as well as the needs of national 
and international markets. Major business sectors in the Bay Area include retail and entertainment, 
conventions and tourism, service businesses, banking, professional and financial services, corporate 
headquarters, international and wholesale trade, multimedia and advertising, biotechnology, and higher 
education. 
 
According to the City‘s Economic Barometer in June 2009, signs of a leveling-off are beginning to appear in 
two segments of the City‘s economy: residential real estate and airport travel.  June 2009 data showed the 
third consecutive month of rises in median home sale prices in San Francisco, providing further evidence of 
a potential bottom in the local residential real estate market.  Domestic air traffic continued to rise in June, 
posting gains both on a month-to-month and annual basis, up 1.2% over prior year. 
 
 Employment: 
 

San Francisco has and benefits from a highly skilled, educated and professional labor force.  Key 
industries include tourism, real estate, banking and finance, retailing, apparel design and manufacturing.  
Emerging industries include multimedia and bioscience. According to the California Employment 
Development Department, the unemployment rate for the City was 9.1% for March 2009 compared 
with an unadjusted unemployment rate of 11.5% for the State.  The City‘s unemployment rate rose to 
9.9% in June 2009, continuing its rise in line with state and national trends.  According to the San 
Francisco Business Times, Book of Lists 2008, the City and County of San Francisco with its 26,657 
employees, was the largest employer in the City as of December 2008.  More recently, some Bay Area 
employers had announced layoffs, a trend consistent with the rising unemployment discussed earlier.  

 
SFPUC Major Accomplishments, Financial Foundation, and Initiatives 

 

SFPUC reached four major and inter-related financial milestones in FY 2008-09.  These included: 

 The Board of Supervisors approval of a $1.9 billion supplemental appropriation for the Water 
System Improvement Program (WSIP), which established new approved scopes and schedules for 
the program to assure a clean unfiltered water source and a reliable gravity driven system; 
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 The Water and Wastewater Enterprise Rates were reviewed and updated, and five-year rates were 
approved by the Commission; a ten-year financial plan was developed for each Enterprise in 
support of long-term capital planning and asset management priorities; 

 The Water Enterprise negotiated the terms of new Water Supply Agreement (WSA) between the 
City and County of San Francisco and the Wholesale Customers. The new Agreement has a 25-year 
term (with provisions for two, five-year extensions); and 

 A new state-of-the-art Customer Service Billing system was implemented, replacing the 20-year-old 
system allowing greater levels of customer service. 

 
These four major accomplishments together enhance the already established solid financial foundation at 
the SFPUC.  The adopted FY 2009-10 budget is based on this enhanced foundation and also supports the 
mission of the SFPUC to provide its customers with high quality, efficient and reliable water, wastewater, 
and power services in a manner that is inclusive of environmental and community interests, and that 
sustains the resources entrusted to the SFPUC‘s care.  The FY 2009-10 budget aligns with achieving the 
SFPUC‘s long-term strategic goals and objectives, outlined in the SFPUC Long-Term Strategic Plan.  The 
FY 2009-10 SFPUC budget is relatively flat compared to the prior year‘s budget.  Along with cost-cutting, 
the slight increase of only 1.1 percent adjusts funding where necessary to support the critical priorities of the 
organization.  Across the SFPUC, the key areas of focus and commitment during FY 2009-10 are 
continuous improvement of business operations and the timely and cost-effective completion of capital 
projects. 

 
Infrastructure Improvements Require Rate Increases 
 

As the Water and Wastewater Enterprises‘ infrastructure have aged, reliability and service levels have 
deteriorated.  In response, the SFPUC initiated the Water System Improvement Program (WSIP) and the 
Interim Capital Improvement Program (Interim CIP) for the wastewater collection and treatment system.  
To adequately fund these large infrastructure programs, the SFPUC approved annual retail water increases 
of 15.0%, 15.0%, 12.5%, 12.5%, and 6.5% over the next five years.  The water rate increase is required to 
fund the WSIP.  Wastewater average rates have also been approved to increase 7.0%, 7.0%, 5.0%, 5.0%, and 
5.0% over the next five years.  The wastewater rate increase approved for FY 2009-10 will expand the 
Interim CIP that began in 2005, while at the same time support planning and design work to continue on 
development of a long-term Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP). 
 

Hetch Hetchy Power, Clean and Renewable  
 

The Power Enterprise relies on power generation at the Hetch Hetchy Water and Power hydroelectric 
powerhouses, solar generation, and third-party purchases, to deliver low-cost, reliable electricity to its 
customers.  In accordance with requirements of City policies and directives relating to renewable energy and 
goals to reduce greenhouse gases, the Power Enterprise continuously researches, develops, and implements 
new electricity generation resources to provide clean, local generation where it is needed; and ensures 
reliable power services. This includes both renewable energy projects and strengthening local electric 
reliability. The Power Enterprise has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement and a corresponding lease 
for the deployment of solar energy at Sunset Reservoir.  Other sites are also being examined for larger scale 
development of solar energy at SFPUC-owned land at Tesla and Sunol.  The model for development is 
long-term power purchase agreements, where the Hetch Hetchy Power agrees to purchase power and the 
developer designs, permits, installs, owns and operates the system, thereby minimizing the upfront capital 
costs.  Also, design-build photovoltaic (PV) projects underway include the following facilities: Ways and 
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Structures, Woods Coach, Chinatown Public Health Center, City Hall (part of the Sustainable Energy 
District), and Davies Symphony Hall. 
 
Energy efficiency investments are an important component of an electric utility‘s portfolio. Energy 
efficiency reduces facility operating costs and electric bills for customers, improves system functionality, and 
reduces the environmental impact of energy use.  The Power Enterprise‘s FY 2009-10 budget includes $9.5 
million in energy efficiency programs targeting the City‘s General Fund departments, including the planning, 
design, and construction of a green energy district in Civic Center, and implementation of energy efficiency 
projects (lighting, heating, and ventilation, energy  management system and demand response projects).  The 
GoSolarSF Program was developed by the San Francisco Solar Task Force to encourage the installation of 
photovoltaic systems on residents and businesses within the City. The GoSolarSF solar incentive program 
was approved by the Commission in January 2008.  The Board of Supervisors passed ordinances 
establishing a long-term Solar Energy Incentive Program and a Solar Energy Incentive Pilot Program in 
June 2008. The program was launched on July 1, 2008. The San Francisco GoSolarSF Incentive Program is 
budgeted at $5.0 million in the FY 2009-10 budget. 
 

Asset Management Planning and Improved Performance 
 

The SFPUC is embarking on a long-term effort to improve the management of its capital assets. This effort 
is aimed at identifying and evaluating capital, repair and replacement (R&R), and maintenance needs. The 
plan includes development of asset management objectives, standards, policies and procedures. It focuses 
on continuous assessment of work processes to identify improvement opportunities, develop 
recommendations, and improve asset performance. In FY 2009-10, $1.0 million has been budgeted for this 
focused Asset Management function.  Early asset management efforts are being focused on: the upgrade to 
Maximo 7.15, the latest version of the SFPUC‘s computerized maintenance management system; integrating 
Maximo and GIS data with asset financial data; standardizing inventory control procedures; establishing 
budget policy for R&R projects; and developing a unified approach for the replacement of local water and 
wastewater pipes. 

 
Sustainability Planning 
 

Consistent with the requirements of San Francisco City Charter, Article VIII B, section 8B.123 (A) (3), the 
SFPUC has completed a comprehensive Sustainability Plan. The Plan was published in December 2008 and 
is available on the SFPUC website. Plan creation was the result of a three-year effort undertaken through a 
collaborative process involving the leadership, staff and stakeholders of the SFPUC.  The Plan provides a 
baseline assessment that scores the SFPUC‘s performance and sets out specific strategies and initiatives, 
with targets to begin improving sustainability performance in priority areas. The Plan sets in motion this 
integrated, systematic and long-term approach to sustainability at the SFPUC, whereby the SFPUC will 
continue to track and monitor performance, assess results, implement a useful reporting protocol, and take 
needed actions to improve strategic management and decision-making.  The FY 2009-10 Sustainability Plan 
budget is $0.4 million to facilitate continued work on this front. 
 

Water Enterprise: Infrastructure and Water Conservation 
 

Aging infrastructure makes the need for increased reliability the highest priority for the Water Enterprise.  
The infrastructure is not limited to the water supply and delivery infrastructure, but also to the information 
management infrastructure.  Consequently, major focus areas for the Water Enterprise include: progress on 
the WSIP; the Automated Water Meter Reading System, which allows the Water Enterprise to fully 
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understand the demand and usage of water; and the Customer Information System (CIS), which provides 
more current billing, revenue collection, and usage information, allowing more timely response to water 
conservation requests.  Three years of drought have put strain on California water agencies and have made 
the Water Conservation Program a continued, high priority for the SFPUC and our nearly 2.5 million 
customers. 
 
The major and newer initiatives are listed below, starting with the WSIP being the single largest component 
of the capital program:  

 
Water System Improvement Program (WSIP) 
 

The Water Enterprise has embarked on a $4.6 billion dollar, multi-year program to upgrade its 
Regional and Local Water Systems, known as the Water System Improvement Program (WSIP).  
The WSIP will deliver capital improvements that enhance the Enterprise‘s ability to provide reliable, 
affordable, high quality drinking water to our 27 wholesale customers and regional retail customers 
in Alameda, Santa Clara and San Mateo Counties, and to 800,000 retail customers in San Francisco, 
in an environmentally sustainable manner.  The program is structured to cost effectively meet water 
quality requirements, improve seismic and delivery reliability, and meet water supply objectives for 
the year 2030.    
 
The total estimated cost for the WSIP is $4.6 billion; this includes $4.1 billion for capital projects 
and the balance of $0.5 billion for net financing costs.  To date, $2.9 billion has been appropriated 
for the WSIP, and the program expended $743.0 million as of June 30, 2009.  The remaining 
appropriation and bond authorization requests to fund the balance of the program will be presented 
to the Commission and the Board of Supervisors during the latter part of FY 2009-10.  Additional 
details regarding the WSIP are available in the WSIP Annual Reports as well as the Quarterly 
Updates, published on the SFPUC‘s website at www.sfwater.org. 
 

Automated Water Meter Reading System 
 

Over the next three years, the SFPUC is implementing the Automated Water Meter Reading System 
that will largely eliminate manual meter reading field visits, improve customers‘ access to hourly 
usage information, facilitate the timely detection of tampering, theft, and leaks, and enhance usage 
or flow tracking.  The total estimated capital cost of this project is $58.7 million, with 
implementation beginning in FY 2009-10, and completion projected in February 2012. 
 

Customer Information System  
 

The SFPUC has relied on an outdated, mainframe-based billing system that was over 20 years old. 
The Customer Information System (CIS) replacement project replaced the mainframe system with 
state-of-the-art web-based software.  Implementation of more fully featured customer care software 
that is integrated with other SFPUC systems will enable the SFPUC to enhance customer care and 
enable features such as mobile computing, automated meter reading, and web self-service.  The 
budget for FY 2009-10 includes $0.8 million for further technical enhancements and 
implementation are planned. The new system went live early July 2009. 
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Water Conservation 
 

The SFPUC, in partnership with the 27 water agencies that purchase water from the SFPUC‘s Water 
Enterprise and that are represented by the Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency 
(BAWSCA), has requested that over 2.5 million Bay Area customers continue voluntary 
conservation efforts.  Last year, these efforts were effective in reducing water consumption by 11.0 
percent.  Continued voluntary cutbacks in water usage are again necessary through FY 2009-10 to 
help avoid mandatory consumption limits and rationing at a later time.   The Water Enterprise will 
continue to engage our customers in water conservation efforts.  For example, the Water Saving 
Hero advertising campaign highlights simple and effective steps Bay Area residents can take to 
conserve water.  San Francisco residents will continue to be eligible for rebates for water-efficient 
toilets and high-efficiency washing machines, as well as free low-flow showerheads.  The FY 2009-
10 budget, of $3.7 million for water conservation infrastructure, includes $1.2 million for a pilot 
program aimed at reducing water usage by replacing 3,500 high-use toilets with high-quality, high-
efficiency models for low-income customers will begin in FY 2009-10. 
 

Wastewater Enterprise Developing a Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP) 
 

San Francisco‘s sewer system is well operated, but aging infrastructure, funding constraints, deferred 
maintenance, and a vision for a more sustainable system are drivers for a new Sewer System Improvement 
Program (SSIP). The Program evaluates the current treatment and collection system and provides long-term 
strategies for wastewater and stormwater management. The Program determines present and future needs 
to ensure reliable service, meeting all regulatory requirements, and identifies future operational and capital 
programs to meet these needs. Currently in development through a series of public workshops, it is 
anticipated the SSIP will be formally approved by the Commission in late FY 2009-10.   The goals of the 
SSIP are to: 1) develop a long-term vision and strategy for the management of the City‘s wastewater and 
stormwater; 2) provide a detailed capital planning roadmap for improvements needed; 3) estimate the funds 
to implement these improvements; 4) address specific challenges facing the system; and 5) maximize system 
reliability and flexibility.  The Wastewater Enterprise has budgeted $44.5 million on the SSIP since its 
inception in August 2004 through FY 2009-10.  The budget for FY 2009-10 is $19.0 million.  Upon full 
completion, it is anticipated that the SSIP will cost over $3 billion to upgrade system reliably for current as 
well as the next generation of users. 

 
San Francisco’s Budgetary Process 

 

The City adopts annual budgets for all government funds on a budget basis using a current financial 
resources measurement focus and a modified accrual basis of accounting. Typically capital project funds and 
certain debt service funds adopt project-length budgets.  The budget of the City is the City‘s single largest 
policy document and is a detailed operating plan that identifies estimated costs and results in relation to 
estimated revenues.  The budget includes (1) the programs, projects, services, and activities to be provided 
during the fiscal year; (2) the estimated resources (inflows) available for appropriation; and (3) the estimated 
charges to appropriations.  The budget represents a process through which policy decisions are deliberated, 
implemented and controlled.  The City Charter prohibits expending funds for which there is no legal 
appropriation. 

 
 
 



The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 
 

9 

Next Year’s Budgets 
 

Operating Budget 
 

The SFPUC operating programs include the regular operating costs and maintenance of utility facilities and 
lands and support services, (including management, business services, planning and regulatory compliance, 
and communication) debt service and lease costs for each of the individual Enterprises. The operating 
budget is financed by both wholesale and retail rates, service charges, and other non-operating revenues, 
including rents and interest earnings. 
 

Water Enterprise 
 

The Water Enterprise‘s FY 2009-10 operating budget at $225.4 million funds the operation and 
maintenance of the SFPUC water system.  The budget also includes $70.2 million in debt service payments 
for previously issued revenue bonds to fund its capital needs.  Compared to the $220.2 million approved for 
FY 2008-09, the budget is increasing by $5.2 million.  New funding includes increases in benefit costs, 
expansion of the water conservation program and the transfer of thirteen positions from the San Francisco 
Fire Department to support the Auxiliary Water Supply System (AWSS).  These costs are offset by 
reductions in general administration primarily. 
 

Wastewater Enterprise 
 

The Wastewater Enterprise FY 2009-10 operating budget totals $205.1 million and funds the operations and 
maintenance of the SFPUC‘s sewer system.  Compared to the FY 2008-09 approved budget of $209.8 
million, the FY 2009-10 budget decreased by $4.7 million.  The budget also includes $66.8 million for 
payment of revenue bonds and State Revolving Fund loans. New funding includes increases to fund 
employee benefit costs, and new positions to support asset and project contract management and biofuel 
programs. The increases are partially offset by the reduction in general administration primarily. 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s FY 2009-10 operating budget totals $117.9 million and funds the 
operations and maintenance of the SFPUC‘s water and power systems, including all Power Enterprise 
activities.  Compared to the FY 2008-09 approved budget of $105.3 million, the FY 2009-10 budget 
increased by $12.7 million for annual power requirements, services related to rate agreements and regulatory 
requirements, as well as new positions to support maintenance, energy efficiency retrofits and power 
generation projects. 
 

Capital Budget 
 

The SFPUC capital programs are intended to reconstruct, replace, expand, repair, or improve facilities that 
are under the SFPUC‘s jurisdiction.  The annual capital budgets are supported by the multi-year Capital 
Improvement Programs (CIP) and Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP).  The issuance of revenue bonds, 
other forms of indebtedness, and the execution of governmental loans are provided for under the San 
Francisco City Charter to finance the SFPUC‘s capital programs.  The repayment of this indebtedness is 
provided for under the annual rates and revenues of the particular Enterprise that incurs the debt, 
categorized as debt service in the budgets. 
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Water Enterprise 
 

The major capital investment for the Water Enterprise is the WSIP, the $4.6 billion dollar, multi-year capital 
program to rebuild the water system. The program will enhance the SFPUC‘s ability to provide reliable, 
affordable, high-quality water to its 2.5 million customers through environmentally sustainable means.  The 
FY 2009-10 annual budget includes another $47.1 million includes $14.7 million in regional projects 
(storage, watershed, and rights of way, treatment facilities and conveyance); $26.6 million for local projects 
(conveyance and distribution; security and Treasure Island); and $5.8 million for programmatic projects.  
The additional WSIP capital appropriations will be requested from the Commission and the Board of 
Supervisors in late FY 2009-10. 
 

Wastewater Enterprise 
 

FY 2009-10 marks the fifth year of the Interim CIP to reduce the frequency and severity of flooding and to 
mitigate the environmental hazard of sewage overflow.  The Interim CIP provides funding for projects that 
address the most critical needs of the aging wastewater system, improving the capacity of sewer mains, 
upgrading treatment facilities and reducing wastewater odors. Projects included in the Interim CIP are: 
Odor Control Improvements, Electrical and Mechanical Equipment Replacement, Security Emergency 
Response Improvements, and Solids Handling and Coating Improvements.  The Wastewater Enterprise has 
budgeted $219.4 million on the Interim CIP since its inception in July 2005 to FY 2009-10, including the 
recently approved $119.8 million supplemental in August 2009.  The budget for FY 2009-10 includes an 
additional $24.3 million of capital funding. The Interim CIP is intended to address the Enterprise‘s capital 
needs until the SSIP has been implemented. 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s Annual Capital Program for FY 2009-10 is $64.9 million.  Hetch Hetchy 
Water‘s capital investment is $36.4 million in the following areas: communication and security; reservoir and 
dams; transmission and power infrastructure; roads and rights-of-way building and improvements; and 
programmatic projects.  These investments benefit the delivery of both water and power to all of its 
customers.  The core business of Hetch Hetchy Power is to provide an adequate and reliable supply of 
electric power to meet the electricity needs of its customers.  In promoting energy efficiency, Hetch Hetchy 
Power is following policy guidance for carrying on energy efficiency work in municipal facilities.  It focuses 
energy efficiency programs on the largest municipal consumers and is building a program to provide 
support to City design teams to integrate energy efficiency into municipal facilities capital projects.  The FY 
2009-10 capital investment of $53.2 million will be funded with revenues. 

 
Rates 
 

Pursuant to the City and County of San Francisco Charter section 8B.125, an independent rate study is 
performed at least once every five years.  A rate study was undertaken in the Spring of 2009 to examine the 
future revenue requirements and cost of service of both the Water and Wastewater Enterprises and was 
used to set the retail rates for the next five years, including FY 2009-10 through FY 2013-14.  SFPUC 
adopted a five-year rate proposal that includes increases sufficient to meet project costs and debt coverage 
requirements.  The average rate increases are shown below. 
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Approved Retail Rate Adjustments 
Water           FY 2010         FY 2011         FY 2012         FY 2013         FY 2014 
Annual Rate Adjustments 15.0%  15.0%  12.5%  12.5%  6.5% 
Cumulative Adjustments 15.0%  32.3%  48.8%  67.4%  78.3%  
Wastewater          FY 2010         FY 2011         FY 2012         FY 2013         FY 2014 
Annual Rate Adjustments 7.0%    7.0%    5.0%    5.0%    5.0% 
Cumulative Adjustments 7.0%   14.5%  20.2%  26.2%  32.5% 
Hetch Hetchy Power   
No future retail power rate increases have been adopted by the Commission at this time.  In FY 2008-09, 
Power Enterprise charged the General Fund departments 3.75 cent per kilowatt hour.  The other City 
enterprise departments are being charged at a rate comparable to PG&E rate for similar services.  Wholesale 
service customers, such as Modesto Irrigation District (MID) and Turlock Irrigation District (TID), are 
charged at rates pursuant to terms of power supply contracts mainly based on our power cost production.    

 

Wholesale Water Rates 
 
In the Spring of 2009, the SFPUC successfully negotiated a new Water Supply Agreement (WSA) with our 
Wholesale Water Customers.  The new contract took effect on July 1, 2009 and changes the rate basis by 
which the wholesale rates and revenues are determined from a ―utility basis‖ to a ―cash basis‖ resulting in 
the repayment of cost-of-capital over the life of the debt rather than the life of the asset.  SFPUC adopted 
the FY 2009-10 wholesale rates under the new contract in May 2009.  For FY 2009-10, the wholesale water 
rate was increased 15.7 percent, effective July 1, 2009.  Wholesale rates are reset annually to cover costs as 
mandated in the new 25-year Water Supply Agreement. 
 

Financial Policies 
 

The SFPUC has adopted a financial policy which states the purpose and source for each of its designated 
reserves within its major funds of operating, construction, debt service, and trust.  These guidelines enable 
restricting funds for future infrastructure needs; replacement of aging facilities; bond reserves; and various 
operating reserves to mitigate unexpected occurrences.  These reserves are critical to the SFPUC‘s financial 
strength and high bond ratings. 

 
Accounting Systems, Policies and Internal Controls 
 

In developing and maintaining the accounting systems, consideration is given by the administration as to the 
adequacy of internal controls.  Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, 
assurance as to the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; the reliability of 
financial records for preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles; and maintaining accountability for assets.  For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the Auditor 
noted no matters involving internal control over financial reporting and its operation that would be 
considered a material weakness. 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for providing the financial services for the utility enterprises, 
including support for financial accounting and reporting, accounts payable, billing and collection of water, 
wastewater, and power charges, and other revenues.  The SFPUC‘s financial statements and records are 
maintained on an enterprise basis using full accrual to ensure the timely matching of revenues against the 
costs of providing services.  Revenues and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis in the period in which 
the revenue is earned and the expenses are incurred. 
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The SFPUC management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls 
designed to safeguard the enterprises‘ assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate 
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles.  The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable 
assurances that these objectives are met.   
 

Conclusion 
 

In FY 2009-10, the SFPUC will continue to invest in programs and projects to support its long-term 
capability to provide high quality, efficient, and reliable water, wastewater, and power services.  Our 
direction and mandate is to continuously improve our delivery of services and develop more efficient 
procedures.  
 
In August, 2009, Water sold $412 million in 2009 Series A Bonds with a true fixed interest cost of 4.82% to 
finance a portion of the WSIP projects and refund existing commercial paper. 2009 Series B Bonds in the 
amount of $412 million were sold in September 2009, with a true fixed interest cost of 4.54%. Outstanding 
revenue bonds for Water now total $1.757 billion as of September 30, 2009. 
 
The City & County of San Francisco issued $167.67 million in fixed rate Certificates of Participation Series 
2009 C and D on September 23, 2009 to fund the future headquarters of the SFPUC at 525 Golden Gate 
Avenue. These series had a true interest cost of 4.17% after factoring in the impact of the Build America 
Bonds direct-pay subsidy. The 2009 C series were issued for $38.12 million on a tax-exempt basis, and the 
2009 D series were issued for $129.55 million as ―Build America Bonds‖ on a taxable basis under the 2009 
American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.  
 
The SFPUC is on track to complete the Wastewater Enterprise Interim CIP and begin a new multi-billion 
dollar infrastructure improvement program on a scale similar to the WSIP that will strive to leverage 
resources, talent, and lessons learned once approved by the Commission.  All of our capital programs will 
provide enhancements and new facilities that will improve the SFPUC‘s ability to provide high quality 
services at the same time as fostering environmental, economic, and social sustainability for San Francisco 
and the San Francisco Bay Region. 
 
I would like to express my appreciation to the entire SFPUC Finance Team whose professionalism, 
dedication, and efficiency are responsible for the preparation of this report.  I would also like to thank 
KPMG LLP for their invaluable professional efforts into the CAFR.  Finally, I want to thank the Mayor, the 
Board of Supervisors and the SFPUC Commission for their continued interest and support towards 
achieving excellence in financial management and planning for our utilities, customers, and stakeholders. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

Ed Harrington 
General Manager  
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Mission, Vision, and Values 
 

The mission of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission is to provide our customers with high quality, 
efficient and reliable water, power and wastewater services in a manner that values environmental and 
community interests and sustains the resources entrusted to the SFPUC‘s care.  The SFPUC is a sustainable 
utility leader, recognized for superior results in service, value, environmental stewardship and innovation.  
 

2009 San Francisco Mayor and Public Utilities Commission Members 
 

GAVIN NEWSOM   F.X. CROWLEY 
MAYOR    PRESIDENT 
 

FRANCESCA VIETOR 
VICE PRESIDENT 
 

ANN MOLLER CAEN 
COMMISSIONER 
 

JULIET ELLIS 
COMMISSIONER 
 

ANSON B. MORAN 
COMMISSIONER 

 

The SFPUC‘s values include the following: 

 Communication: Communicate honestly and openly. 

 Equal Opportunity: Provide opportunities to all staff to contribute and reach their potential. To 
achieve this, the SFPUC must be a learning organization. 

 Excellence: Strive for personal and professional excellence, and recognize exemplary performance as 
the Commission seeks continuous improvement. 

 Service: Focus on customer needs and satisfaction. 

 Inclusiveness: Provide access and transparency to stakeholders and community members. 

 Respect: Understand and appreciate the inherent value of the SFPUC staff, customers and 
community. 

 Safety: Take the health and safety of the SFPUC‘s employees, customers and communities seriously. 

 Stewardship: Be accountable for and responsibly manage and conserve the human, financial and 
environmental resources entrusted to the SFPUC‘s care. 

 Teamwork: Support a cooperative work environment; the SFPUC team is strengthened by the 
diversity and contributions of its members. 

 Trust: Act with honesty, integrity and fairness. 
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SFPUC Organization Chart 
 

 
 
 

 

San Francisco Public 

Utilities Commission

General Manager

Ed Harrington

AGM

Power Enterprise

Barbara Hale

AGM

Water Enterprise

Steve Ritchie

AGM

Business Services

Todd Rydstrom

AGM

Wastewater 

Enterprise

Tommy Moala

AGM

External Affairs

Laura Spanjian

Deputy General 

Manager

Chief Operating Officer

Michael Carlin

Real Estate

Gary Dowd

Legislative Affairs

Nathan Purkiss

Sustainability & 

Strategic Planning

Susan Wade

Communications

Tony Winnicker

Customer Services

Marge Vizcarra

Information 

Technology

Ken Salmon

Wholesale and Retail

Services

Pam Husing

Water Quality

Andrew DeGraca

Wholesale Water

David Briggs

Deputy AGM

Ellen Levin

Deputy CFO

Frances Lee

Charles Perl

Sewer Systems 

Master Plan

Jon Loiacono

Planning and 

Regulatory 

Compliance

Marla Jurosek

Water Resources 

Management

Paula Kehoe

Hetch Hetchy 

Water

Margaret Hannaford

Security & 

Emergency 

Coordination

Greg Suhr

Retail Water 

Kevin Barry

Fleet Management 

and Operations

Pope Powell

Special Projects

Angela Patane

Engineering

Brian Henderson

Collection Systems

Lewis Harrison 

(Acting)

Plant Manager

Tony Flores

 (Acting)

Field Operations, 

Planning and 

Development

Vacant

Natural Resources

Tim Ramirez

Human Resource 

Services

Michele Modena

AGM

Infrastructure 

Division

Harlan Kelly

Program Directors
Energy -  John Doyle 

(Acting)

WSIP - Julie Labonte

WWE - Karen Kubick

Project Management 

Bureau

Jeet Bajwa

Engineering 

Management Bureau 

Kathy How

Construction 

Management Bureau 

Harvey Elwin

Bureau of 

Environmental 

Management

Irina Torrey

Program Control & 

Support Bureau

Michael Quan

(Acting)

Labor Relations & 

Community Programs 

Carol Isen

Contract 

Administration Bureau

Ivy Fine

Strategic and 

Resource Planning

Camron Samii

Assurance and 

Internal Controls

Nancy Hom

Maintenance Manager

Johnson Ho

(Acting)

Operations Manager

Greg Mayer



The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission 
 

15 

Structure 
 
The SFPUC is comprised of three Enterprises, Bureaus (including the Office of the General Manger, 
Business Services, and External Affairs), along with Infrastructure that support and oversee SFPUC-wide 
operations. The three Enterprises are the Water Enterprise, Wastewater Enterprise, and Hetch Hetchy 
Water and Power. The Bureaus provide critical support services and oversight to the Enterprises and are 
comprised of the Office of the General Manager, Business Services, External Affairs, and Infrastructure. 
Business Services includes seven Bureaus: Business Services Administration, Financial Services, Information 
Technology Services (ITS), Human Resource Services, Customer Services, Assurance & Internal Control, 
and Fleet Management Operations. External Affairs includes three Bureaus: Communications, 
Governmental Affairs, and Real Estate Services. 
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SFPUC Long Term Strategic Plan 
 

Goal: Provide High Quality Services 

Strategies Action Measures 

Ensure effective water and 
wastewater quality monitoring and 
maintenance of permits 

 Manage California Department of Public Health 
permit 

 Numbers of violations; completion of water 
quality study update 

 Manage wastewater discharge permits  Number of violations 

 Treasure Island National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System permit 

 Adopted by State Water Resources Control 
Board 

 New Oceanside National Pollutant Discharge 
Elimination System permit 

 Adopted by State Water Resources Control 
Board 

 Biosolids Land Application in Solano County  Adopted by Solano County Supervisors 

Build Water System Improvement 
Program  
(WSIP) on schedule 

 Planning Design; Construction; Closeout; 
Completion 

 Quarterly report shows on-time performance 

 Coordinate/secure Board of Supervisor and other 
approvals for WSIP projects 

 All approvals secured 

 Awarding of critical professional service contracts  Meeting schedules within engineering estimates 

Prepare Sewer System 
Improvement Program (SSIP) 

 Complete written Draft Report  Complete written Draft Report 

 EIR in progress for the Digester/Solids Handling 
facility 

 EIR in progress for the Digester/Solids 
Handling facility 

Optimize Resources to meet 
municipal power needs 

 Keep apprised of and manage within electric 
regulatory marketplace changes 

 No penalties imposed by California 
Independent Systems Operator (ISO); Forecast 
of Purchase of Power accurate 

 Meet developer schedules for electric 
infrastructure and service needs 

 Construct infrastructure on time; Forecast of 
Customer Demand accurate 

 Develop/procure renewable resources  Increase development/procurement in step 
with load increase 

 Identify and implement energy efficiency 
improvements and demand reduction program 

 Municipal load decrease or reduction in 
anticipated load 

 Identify and maintain streetlight portfolio  SFPUC and Board of Supervisors approval of 
pedestrian and street lighting policy 

 Continue to improve baseline metering 
technology and Meter Data Management 
functionality 

 Positive California ISO audits of Verification, 
Edit, Estimation and Meter Data Management 
Agent functionality 

Maintain Capital Plant Assets 

 Annually update 10-Year Capital Plan for use in 
budget preparation 

 Updated Capital Plan completed on time 

 Develop and implement asset management 
control program 

 Percent of assets managed under an Asset 
Management Plan 

Update emergency plan; 
communicate plan and train 
personnel regarding their role as 
Disaster Service Workers 

 Offer mandatory Service Disaster Service Worker 
training to new and existing SFPUC employees 

 Number of employees who complete Disaster 
Service Worker training 

 Development of SFPUC tabletop exercises  Number of tabletop exercises executed 

 Ensure appropriate executive staff have 
completed TEEX disaster training courses 

 Number of executive staff who have 
completed TEEX disaster training 

 Task Orders for EOP/Field Operations Guide 
and Water Quality Emergency Response Plan 
Trainings; Request for proposal (RFP) issued for 
contract for Plan/Field Operations Guide 
training and plan updating 

 Completion of Task Order and issuance of 
Notice to Proceed; Issuance of RFP 
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Goal: Foster a Green City 

Strategies Action Measures 

Increase water efficiency and 
recycle usage 

 New recycled water plant at Golden Gate 
park; agreement with Daly City; build recycled 
water plants 

 Environment review on schedule; 
community outreach 

 Promote Green Water efforts; groundwater 
and recycled water development, WUCA, 
water conservation, bottled water ban 

 Various 

 Implement Green ordinance/moving forward 
with ―gray water‖ usage 

 Create local guidelines and standards with 
Department of Building Inspection 

 Develop and promote Third Annual ―Water 
Saving Hero‖ water conservation campaign 

 Create messages for billboards, cable TV, 
radio, print and transit ads 

 Secure  approval for ―Retrofit on Resale‖ 
legislation 

 Stakeholder and Board of Supervisors 
support for approved legislation 

Promote energy efficiency and 
conservation 

 Promote Green Power efforts: GoSolarSF 
and municipal solar development, Community 
Choice Aggregation (CCA), energy efficiency, 
light-emitting diode (LED) street lights 

 Various 

 Launch Municipal Energy Efficiency 
Campaign 

 Create outreach materials/tools; Percent of 
power saved 

 Procure and install smart electric meters at 
Hunters Point, Treasure Island/Yerba Buena 
Island, other redevelopment areas 

 Meters procured 2010; meters installed 
2011 for Hunters Point 

Avoid Wastewater flows 

 Promote Green Wastewater efforts: 
SFGreasecycle, biofuel creation, low impact 
development, rainwater harvesting 

 Various 

 Secure approval for ―Fats, Oil & Grease 
(FOG)‖ and ―Construction Site Runoff 
Control‖ ordinances 

 Stakeholder and Board of Supervisors 
support for approved legislation 

Coordinate and publicize green 
efforts 

 Promote/Coordinate Civic Center 
Sustainability District and Platinum Level 
SFPUC Headquarters 

 Various 

 Inter Agency Outreach/Education  Presentations to government and water 
agencies 

 Publicize all of the SFPUC‘s greening efforts  Create/implement press releases and 
conferences; radio, print and transit 
ads/materials; social media materials; public 
outreach events 

 
 

Goal: Expand Outreach and Communications 
Strategies Action Measures 

Develop branding plan 
 Develop new name, logo and core branding  Employee/Commission support for new 

name, logo, core branding 

Develop water/wastewater rate 
package 

 Education/Public Outreach for 2009/2010 

Rate Settling package 

 Stakeholder and Board of Supervisors 

support for approved rate package 
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Goal: Invest in People 

Strategies Action Measures 

Recruit and retain highly qualified 
people 

 Create centralized, accessible list of professional 
organization websites to ensure announcements 
are reaching targets 

 Validate list on a yearly basis; perform yearly 
research to identify new organizations 

 Implement On-Boarding software to facilitate 
hiring process 

 Survey new employees to determine level of 
engagement upon hiring 

 Launch satisfaction survey  Survey creates a baseline and provides data 
that will drive Human Resource Services  
decisions 

Facilitate employees‘ development for 
internal and external promotion 

 Create a forum in senior management to define 
the leadership qualities the SFPUC seeks 

 Create a vision statement for leadership that 
is adopted SFPUC-wide 

 Provide case study leadership training for SFPUC 
employees 

 Ensure that at least 50% of senior managers 
and supervisors attend leadership training, 
and 50% of non-supervisorial staff attend 
general leadership training 

 Launch e-learning in conjunction with training 
needs assessment 

 Additional course offerings listed through 
Learning Management System (LMS); 
attendance monitored through LMS 

Ensure employees have clear 
expectations for performance and 
understand appraisal process 

 Offer training to managers regarding effective 
performance appraisals usage and completion 

 Employee engagement surveys indicating 
higher rate of satisfaction; higher number of 
completed performance evaluations 

 Ensure managers complete appraisals as 
required 

 Number of employees for whom scheduled 
performance appraisals were completed 

 Acquire updated performance appraisal forms 
with the City‘s Department of Human 
Resources 

 90% of managers use correct form 

Ensure the well-being and continued 
professional development of staff 

 Provide high value educational opportunities 
for employees 

 Percent of employees who receive at least 
eight hours of job related training per year 

 Recognize employee contributions and ensure 
satisfaction 

 Percent of employees who rate the SFPUC 
as a good place to work 

 Facilitate employees‘ development for internal 
and external promotion 

 Percent of employees who receive internal or 
external promotions 
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SFPUC Long-Term Financial Plan   
 

The SFPUC prepares a ten-year Financial Plan as part of the budget deliberations process.  It is also 
required by the City and County of San Francisco Charter Section 8B.123.  The Plan includes a ten-year 
financial summary (FY 2009-10 through FY 2018-19) for each Enterprise, describing projected sources and 
uses, resulting fund balances and associated financial reserve ratios. Projected costs and revenues are 
estimates and subject to variations inherent in all such projections. Consequently, the estimates should not 
be viewed as precise predictions but rather as indications of expected trends given certain expenditure, 
receipt, and financing assumptions. These assumptions are based on current Board of Supervisors (BOS) 
and Commission policies, goals, and objectives representing management‘s best estimates at the time.  

 
Although each Enterprise has its own Long-Term Financial Plan, there are similarities; these are: 

 Sources reflect approved rate increases, where applicable, or are otherwise projected based on 
projected demand, and revenue requirements to ensure indenture covenants are maintained; 

 Operations and Maintenance and Repair and Replace projects are financed from rates and service 
charges; 

 Debt Service is financed from annual rates and service charges; 

 Capital programs are generally financed by debt including revenue bonds, commercial paper, State 
Revolving Loans, and lease financing; in some cases Federal or State grants may finance capital 
projects; 

 A minimum revenue bond coverage ratio of 1.25 times on an indenture basis (which includes 
available fund balances) and 1.00 times on a current operations basis (which excludes available fund 
balance) will be maintained. 

 
The Financial Plan largely assumes debt financing of capital needs over the next ten-year period for the 
Water and Wastewater Enterprises. The Water System Improvement Program (WSIP) will require 
approximately $4.6 billion in net financing for the program, authorized by the voters under Propositions A 
and E in November 2002.  The Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP), currently in development, also 
will require significant debt financing and is authorized under Proposition E. 
 
The SFPUC LTFP assumes a financing strategy that utilizes short-term financing via the existing 
Commercial Paper (CP) program to calibrate financing needs with project spending.  Long-term (30-year) 
fixed-rate debt issuance is assumed to periodically refund the CP program at an interest rate of 5.0% for the 
Water Enterprise and 5.25% for the Wastewater Enterprise. The CP program facilitates short-term 
financing typically at lower interest rates than longer term debt, which minimizes costs. The authorized CP 
program for the Water and Wastewater Enterprises are $500 million and $150 million respectively. 
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FINANCIAL AUTHORITY AND POLICIES 
 

General  
 
The City and County of San Francisco is a Charter City under the California Constitution, and as a result, the Charter 
is the guiding document for financial authority and policies for City Departments.  The SFPUC is the department of 
the City responsible for the maintenance, operation and development of three utility enterprises: the Water 
Enterprise, the Wastewater Enterprise and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.  Each of the SFPUC‘s Enterprise‘s funds 
are operated and managed as a separate financial entity and separate Enterprise funds are maintained. 
 
Below are specific sections of the Charter which pertain to the requirements and parameters of activities in which the 
SFPUC engages, including the development, content, and approvals of budgets, rates, debt, contracts and Capital 
Investment Plans (CIP). 
 

Financial Authority
*
 

 

PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION. (SEC. 8B.121.)   

 
(a) Notwithstanding Charter section 4.112, the Public Utilities Commission shall have exclusive charge of the 

construction, management, supervision, maintenance, extension, expansion, operation, use and control of all 
water, clean water and energy supplies and utilities of the City as well as the real, personal and financial assets, 
that are under the Commission's jurisdiction or assigned to the Commission under Section 4.132. 

 
(b) The Public Utilities Commission may enter into Joint Powers Agreements with other public entities in 

furtherance of the responsibilities of the Commission. 
 

(c) Except to the extent otherwise provided in this Article, the Public Utilities Commission shall be subject to 
the provisions of Charter sections 4.100 et seq. generally applicable to boards and commissions of the City 
and County. 
 

(d) The General Manager shall have the authority to organize and reorganize the department. The General 
Manager shall adopt rules and regulations governing all matters within the jurisdiction of the department 
subject to section 4.102 as applicable. 
 

(e)  Ownership or control of any public utility or any part thereof under the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities 
Commission may not be transferred or conveyed absent approval by the Public Utilities Commission and 
approval by a vote of the electors of the City at the election next ensuing not less than 90 days after the 
adoption of such ordinance, which shall not go into effect until ratified by a majority of the voters voting 
thereon. Voter approval shall not be required for sales or transfers of real property declared surplus to the 
needs of any utility by the Public Utilities Commission or to leases or permits for the use of utility real 
property approved by the Public Utilities Commission. 

 
(Added November 2002) 

 

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES RELATED TO WATER AND CLEAN WATER [WASTEWATER] (SEC. 

8B.122.)   

 
(a)  SFPUC shall develop, periodically update and implement programs to achieve goals and objectives consistent 

with the following: 
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(1) Provide water and clean water services to San Francisco and water service to its wholesale customers 
while maintaining stewardship of the system by the City; 

(2) Establish equitable rates sufficient to meet and maintain operation, maintenance and financial health 
of the system; 

(3) Provide reliable water and clean water services and optimize the systems' ability to withstand 
disasters; 

(4) Protect and manage lands and natural resources used by SFPUC to provide utility services consistent 
with applicable laws in an environ-mentally sustainable manner. Operate hydroelectric generation 
facilities in a manner that causes no reasonably anticipated adverse impacts on water service and 
habitat; 

(5) Develop and implement priority programs to increase and to monitor water conservation and 
efficiency system-wide; 

(6) Utilize state-of-the-art innovative technologies where feasible and beneficial; 
(7) Develop and implement a comprehensive set of environmental justice guidelines for use in 

connection with its operations and projects in the City; 
(8) Create opportunities for meaningful community participation in development and implementation of 

SFPUC's policies and programs; and 
(9) Improve drinking water quality with a goal of exceeding applicable drinking water standards if 

feasible. 
 
(Added November 2002) 

 

Financial Policies
*
 

 

MISSION-DRIVEN BUDGET. (SEC. 9.114.)   

 
Each departmental budget shall describe each proposed activity of that department and the cost of that activity. In 
addition, each department shall provide the Mayor and the Board of Supervisors with the following details regarding 
its budget: 

1.   The overall mission and goals of the department; 
2.   The specific programs and activities conducted by the department to accomplish its mission and goals; 
3.   The customer(s) or client(s) served by the department; 
4.   The service outcome desired by the customer(s) or client(s) of the department's programs and activities; 
5.   Strategic plans that guide each program or activity; 
6.   Productivity goals that measure progress toward strategic plans; 
7.   The total cost of carrying out each program or activity; and 
8.  The extent to which the department achieved, exceeded or failed to meet its missions, goals, productivity 

objectives, service objectives, strategic plans and spending constraints identified in subsections (1) through (6) 
during the prior year. 

 
Departmental budget estimates shall be prepared in such form as the Controller, after consulting with the Mayor, 
directs in writing. 

 

PLANNING AND REPORTING. (SEC. 8B.123.)   
 
(a)   Planning and Reporting 
The Public Utilities Commission shall annually hold public hearings to review, update and adopt: 

(1) A Long-Term Capital Improvement Program, covering projects during the next 10-year period; including 
cost estimates and schedules. 

(2) A Long-Term Financial Plan, for a 10-year period, including estimates of operation and maintenance 
expenses, repair and replacement costs, debt costs and rate increase requirements. 
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(3) A Long-Term Strategic Plan, setting forth strategic goals and objectives and establishing performance 
standards as appropriate. 

 
* From the City and County of San Francisco 1996 Charter, Codified through Ordinance 102-09, File No. 090543, approved June 23, 2009 (supplement No. 23) 

 
The Capital Improvement Program and Long-Term Financial Plan shall serve as a basis and supporting 
documentation for SFPUC's capital budget, the issuance of revenue bonds, other forms of indebtedness and 
execution of governmental loans under this Charter.  

 
 

  
(b)   Citizens' Advisory Committee 
The Board of Supervisors, in consultation with the General Manager of the Public Utilities Commission, shall 
establish by ordinance a Citizens' Advisory Committee to provide recommendations to the General Manager of the 
Public Utilities Commission, the Public Utilities Commission and the Board of Supervisors. 
 
(Added November 2002) 

 

WATER AND CLEAN WATER [WASTEWATER] REVENUE BONDS. ( SEC. 8B.124.)   
 
Notwithstanding, and in addition to, the authority granted under Charter Section 9.107, the Public Utilities 
Commission is hereby authorized to issue revenue bonds, including notes, commercial paper or other forms of 
indebtedness, when authorized by ordinance approved by a two-thirds vote of the Board of Supervisors, for the 
purpose of reconstructing, replacing, expanding, repairing or improving water facilities or clean water facilities or 
combinations of water and clean water facilities under the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission. 
 
Any legislation authorizing the issuance of revenue bonds (except for refunding bonds) under this section shall be 
subject to the referendum requirements of Section 14.102 of this Charter. The ordinance authorizing the issuance of 
such revenue bonds shall not become effective until 30 days after its adoption. 
 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Charter or of any ordinance of the City and County, the Board of 
Supervisors may take any and all actions necessary to authorize, issue and repay such bonds, including, but not limited 
to, modifying schedules of rates and charges to provide for the payment and retirement of such bonds, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 

(a)   Certification by an independent engineer retained by the Public Utilities Commission that: 
(1)  the projects to be financed by the bonds, including the prioritization, cost estimates and scheduling, 

meet utility standards; and 
(2)  that estimated net revenue after payment of operating and maintenance expenses will be sufficient to 

meet debt service coverage and other indenture or resolution requirements, including debt service on 
the bonds to be issued, and estimated repair and replacement costs. 

 
(b)  Certification by the San Francisco Planning Department that facilities under the jurisdiction of the Public 

Utilities Commission funded with such bonds will comply with applicable requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act. 

 
Except as expressly provided in this Charter, all revenue bonds may be issued and sold in accordance with state law or 
any procedure provided for by ordinance of the Board of Supervisors. 
 
(Added November 2002) 
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RATES. (SEC. 8B.125.)   

 
Notwithstanding Charter sections 2.109, 3.100 and 4.102 or any ordinance (including, without limitation, 
Administrative Code Appendix 39), the Public Utilities Commission shall set rates, fees and other charges in 
connection with providing the utility services under its jurisdiction, subject to rejection--within 30 days of submission-
-by resolution of the Board of Supervisors. If the Board of Supervisors fails to act within 30 days the rates shall 
become effective without further action. 
 
In setting retail rates, fees and charges SFPUC shall: 
 

(a) Establish rates, fees and charges at levels sufficient to improve or maintain financial condition and bond 
ratings at or above levels equivalent to highly rated utilities of each enterprise under its jurisdiction, meet 
requirements and covenants under all bond resolutions and indentures, (including, without limitation, 
increases necessary to pay for the retail water customers' share of the debt service on bonds and operating 
expenses of any state financing authority such as the Regional Water System Financing Authority), and provide 
sufficient resources for the continued financial health (including appropriate reserves), operation, maintenance 
and repair of each enterprise, consistent with good utility practice; 

 
1. Retain an independent rate consultant to conduct rate and cost of service studies for each utility at least 

every five years; 
2. Set retail rates, fees and charges based on the cost of service; 
3. Conduct all studies mandated by applicable state and federal law to consider implementing connection 

fees for water and clean water facilities servicing new development; 
4. Conduct studies of rate-based conservation incentives and/or lifeline rates and similar rate structures to 

provide assistance to low income users, and take the results of such studies into account when establishing 
rates, fees and charges, in accordance with applicable state and federal laws; 

5. Adopt annually a rolling 5-year forecast of rates, fees and other charges; and 
6. Establish a Rate Fairness Board consisting of seven members: the City Administrator or his or her 

designee; the Controller or his or her designee; the Director of the Mayor's Office of Public Finance or his 
or her designee; two residential City retail customers, consisting of one appointed by the Mayor and one 
by the Board of Supervisors; and two City retail business customers, consisting of a large business 
customer appointed by the Mayor and a small business customer appointed by the Board of Supervisors. 

 
The Rate Fairness Board may: 

i. Review the five-year rate forecast; 
ii. Hold one or more public hearings on annual rate recommendations before the Public Utilities Commission  

adopts rates; 
iii. Provide a report and recommendations to the Public Utilities Commission on the rate proposal; and 
iv. In connection with periodic rate studies, submit to the Public Utilities Commission rate policy 

recommendations for the Commission's consideration, including recommendations to reallocate costs 
among various retail utility customer classifications, subject to any outstanding bond requirements. 

 
These provisions shall be effective January 3, 2003 for the setting of retail rates, fees and charges related to the 
clean water system. If the voters approve bonds for the Public Utilities Commission's Capital Improvement 
Program at the November 5, 2002 election then the provisions of this section shall take effect on July 2, 2006 for 
the setting of retail rates, fees and charges related to the water system. If the voters do not approve such bonds 
then this section will take effect on January 3, 2003. 
 
(Added November 2002) 
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CONTRACTING AND PURCHASING. (SEC. 8B.127.)   

 
Notwithstanding Charter Section 9.118 or any ordinance, the Public Utilities Commission shall have the sole authority 
to enter into agreements for the purchase of water; the sale of water to wholesale customers; and agreements 
necessary to implement Joint Powers Agreements with any wholesale water customer. 
 
In order to promote labor stability and to ensure the Capital Improvement Program is completed expeditiously and 
efficiently, the Public Utilities Commission is authorized, to the extent legally appropriate, to enter into project labor 
agreements, with appropriate Building Construction and Trades Councils, covering significant capital projects. 
 
1
 The City and County of San Francisco 1996 Charter, Codified through Ordinance 102-09, File No. 090543, approved June 23, 2009 

(supplement No. 23) 

 

Debt Management Policies 
 

I. Scope and Application 
 

The SFPUC has established these Debt Management Policies and Procedures for debt financings for 
enterprises under the jurisdiction of the SFPUC as a department of the City and County of San Francisco, 
including for the Water and Wastewater Enterprises (which are the same for each Enterprise, unless 
otherwise noted.  The policies may be expanded to include those rate policies that may be applicable or 
unique to Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.).  These policies are intended to enable the SFPUC to more 
effectively manage its debt issuance and debt management practices.   

 
II. SFPUC’s Debt Management Mission 

 
SFPUC‘s debt management mission is to serve, within the financial objectives and parameters established by 
the Commission, the capital financing needs of the respective enterprises in a cost effective, low risk and 
flexible manner, through the implementation of sound financial decision making and the use of appropriate 
financing tools.   

 
III. Debt Management Objectives 

a. Finance capital projects of SFPUC‘s enterprises in a timely and cost-effective manner.  

b. Effectively manage debt within Commission objectives and parameters. 

c. Achieve and maintain the highest practicable credit ratings to lower the cost of SFPUC debt. 

d. Retain maximum financial flexibility. 
 

IV. Types and Purposes of Debt  
 

The SFPUC may issue revenue bond obligations to finance long-term capital projects for the respective 
enterprises.  Debt is issued to finance the acquisition and/or construction of capital improvements, unless 
otherwise decreed by court order or adjudicated settlement.  Debt financings are not used to fund SFPUC 
operating costs. 

a. SFPUC revenue bonds are secured by a pledge of net revenues of the applicable enterprise to 
generate revenues sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the bonds.  

b. The SFPUC may issue the following types of debt:  
i. Fixed rate bonds - long-term securities with serial and term maturities.  Interest rates are 

determined when the bonds are sold and are fixed to maturity. 
ii. Variable rate bonds - long-term securities that bear interest at variable rates adjusted at 

agreed upon intervals, such as daily, weekly or monthly.  The holder of the variable rate 
security may be allowed to ―put‖ the security to a liquidity provider retained by the SFPUC. 
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iii. Commercial paper - short-term (1-270 days) security with fixed interest rates.  Customarily, 
commercial paper is secured by a junior pledge of net revenues and a letter of credit.  
Commercial paper is designed to provide flexible, low-cost financing for capital projects and 
is ultimately refunded with the issuance of long-term revenue bonds. 

iv. Refunding Bonds - issued to realize debt service savings, or for other debt restructuring 
purposes.  Absent significant non-economic factors, the Commission‘s policy is that 
refunding transactions should produce net debt service savings of at least 3% of the par 
value of the refunded bonds, calculated using the refunding issue‘s true interest cost (TIC) as 
the discount rate. 

v. State Revolving Fund Loan program - managed by the State Water Resources Control 
Board, provides alternative capital financing for certain facilities of the Wastewater 
Enterprise.  Existing loans are deemed to be senior in priority of payment and future loans 
may be deemed to be on parity with or senior to outstanding revenue bond indebtedness. 
Such a loan program may be available in the future for the Water Enterprise through the 
Drinking Water Program of the State Department of Health.  

vi. Other <reserved> 
 

V. Debt Authorization 

a. Charter 
i. Section 9.107 permits the issuance of revenue bonds with approval of a majority of the 

voters and BOS approval.   

 Proposition A, approved by the voters in November 2002, authorizes the SFPUC, 
subject to BOS approval, to issue up to $1.628 billion in revenue bonds or other 
forms of indebtedness to finance the acquisition and construction of improvements 
to the City‘s water system. 

ii. Section 9.109 authorizes the issuance of refunding bonds that achieve net debt service 
savings on a present value basis without voter approval.  Refunding bonds must be 
approved by the BOS.  

iii. Section 9.111-1 authorizes the SFPUC to incur ―environmental protection‖ loans, subject to 
BOS approval. 

iv. Section 8B (Proposition E passed by the voters in November 2002) authorizes the SFPUC 
to issue revenue bonds or other forms of indebtedness for the purpose of reconstructing, 
replacing, expanding, repairing or improving water facilities or clean water facilities when 
authorized by ordinance approved by a two-thirds vote of the BOS. 

b. Commercial Paper Authorization  
i. Section 8B (Proposition E) authorizes the issuance of revenue bonds or other forms of 

indebtedness, including commercial paper, with a two-thirds vote of the BOS. 
ii. San Francisco Administrative Code – Article V of Chapter 43 of Part I enacted by 

Ordinance No. 203-98 adopted on June 8, 1998 by the BOS and signed by the Mayor on 
June 19, 1998 – establishes a procedure for the SFPUC to issue commercial paper. 

 
VI. Approval Process  

a. Commission approval in the form of a resolution is required for all SFPUC financings.   

b. Capital Improvement Advisory Committee (CIAC) – Pursuant to the City‘s Administrative Code, 
Section 3.22, all proposed new long-term (greater than one year) financing transactions for capital 
improvements shall be reviewed by the City‘s CIAC.   

c. BOS approval in the form of a resolution or ordinance is required for SFPUC financings, as follows: 
i. If pursuant to voter-approved debt (e.g., Proposition A), a resolution passed by a majority of 

the BOS is required. 
ii. If pursuant to Charter Section 8B (Proposition E), an ordinance passed by two-thirds vote 

of the BOS is required and is subject to referendum requirements of Charter Section 14.102.  
The ordinance does not become effective until 30 days after its adoption. 
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d. Voter Authorization and Ballot Procedure – SFPUC may, pursuant to Charter Section 9.107, seek 
voter approval for revenue bond issuance.  Prior to placing any measure on the ballot, the SFPUC 
must submit the item to the CIAC for its review.  Legislation requesting the submission of a 
proposal for the issuance of revenue bonds to the voters of the City must be submitted in the form 
of a resolution by the SFPUC at a regularly scheduled BOS meeting in sufficient time prior to the 
due date to the Department of Elections to account for a 30-day review period at the BOS and BOS 
Finance Committee meetings.   

e. Any financing-related item submitted to the BOS must first be reviewed and analyzed by the Budget 
Analyst who prepares a report and recommendation for the BOS. 

 
VII. Debt Limitations  

a. The Commission has adopted financial policies that effectively limit the amount of debt that can be 
issued.  These include: 

i. Debt service coverage target: net revenues equal to at least 125% of annual debt service. 
ii. O&M reserve:  an O&M reserve equal to 25% of annual O&M expenses. 
iii. Rate policy:  predictable and financially prudent rate increase policy. 

b. Current SFPUC financing documents require that net revenues plus unappropriated fund balance 
equal 1.25 times annual debt service.  From time to time, utility user rates may have to be increased 
to comply with financing document covenants. 

  

c. To issue additional bonds, SFPUC financing documents require an independent certification that 
debt coverage of 1.25 will be maintained for three years after issuance of additional bonds. 

d. The Commission and the BOS must approve any additional indebtedness. 
 

VIII. Methods of Sale 

a. General - 
i. Marketing – Bond sales shall be advertised as broadly as possible and receive a rating from at 

least one nationally recognized rating agency. The financial advisors for each transaction 
shall undertake to market the bonds to prospective bidders and investors as appropriate or 
relevant. 

ii. Amendments – Terms of the bonds shall be subject to amendment as late as practicable in 
the issuance process. 

b. Competitive – New money and refunding fixed-rate revenue bonds should be issued by competitive 
sale unless (i) there is significant deterioration in the SFPUC‘s overall credit rating or outlook, (ii) 
there are issues specific to a transaction that are outside of the SFPUC‘s customary credit profile 
including market issues such as threat of war or changes in taxation or sector risks, (iii) or other 
factors which militate against the use of the competitive sale process.  The SFPUC may take bids in 
person, by facsimile or by electronic means. 

i. Cancellation – Bond sales shall be subject to cancellation at any time prior to the time bids 
are to be received. 

1. Award – The bonds shall be awarded to the bidder whose conforming bid 
represents the lowest true interest cost (TIC) to the SFPUC.  The SFPUC‘s financial 
advisor will confirm the calculation of the TIC before any bonds are awarded.  The 
SFPUC may then restructure the bonds in accordance with the Official Notice of 
Sale. The SFPUC shall reserve the unfettered right to reject all bids or waive bid 
irregularities. 

2. The General Manager or his/her designee shall award the sale of revenue bonds. 

c. Negotiated Sale – Variable rate bonds, including variable rate demand notes, auction rate securities, 
commercial paper, etc. may be issued by negotiated sale.  The SFPUC may retain more than one 
dealer or remarketing agent for each issuance of variable rate indebtedness.  The SFPUC shall 
reserve the right to replace a dealer or remarketing agent with notice at any time for any reason in its 
sole discretion. 
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IX. Debt Structuring Policies 

a. Standard terms – The following terms will apply to the SFPUC‘s transactions, as appropriate.  
Individual terms may change as dictated by the marketplace and/or by the unique characteristics of a 
given transaction. 

i. Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds 
1. Term Up to 30 years per issue 
2. Maximum interest rate Not to exceed 12% 
3. Maximum premium or 

discount 
Case by case as recommended 
by SFPUC‘s financial advisor(s) 

4. Payment dates  Water:  November 1 for annual 
principal and semi-annual 
interest; May 1 for semi-annual 
interest 
Wastewater:  October 1 for 
annual principal and semi-
annual interest; April 1 for 
semi-annual interest 
The first payment may be 
extended beyond the first 
November or October after the 
bond sale if it is advantageous  

5. Call provisions Shortest possible optional call 
consistent with optimal pricing; 
no more than 30 days notice 

6. Structure of debt Level debt service unless an 
alternative structure is 
advantageous – principal 
payments may be serial and/or 
term bonds 

7. Reserve funds The greater of what is permitted 
pursuant to indenture 
requirements or current tax law  

8. Capitalized interest Up to three years or whatever 
else may be legally permissible 
and advantageous 

9. Good faith deposit 1% of par amount which may 
be satisfied by cash, surety or 
equivalent 

 
ii. Variable Rate Obligations – The SFPUC may elect to issue variable rate obligations, 

including variable rate demand obligations, auction rate securities and commercial paper.   
1.  Purpose Lower net borrowing costs; 

match assets and liabilities; 
diversify debt portfolio 

2.  Portfolio allocation No more than 25% of each 
enterprise‘s outstanding debt 
shall be variable rate 

3.  Term Up to 30 years per issue, except 
commercial paper which has a 
maximum maturity of 270 days 

4.  Maximum interest rate 12% 
5.  Monitoring  SFPUC will monitor all variable 
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rate bonds on a regular basis 
and shall determine, from time 
to time, whether to change 
modes, alter hedging strategies 
and/or replace a dealer or 
remarketing agent  

6.  Budgeting SFPUC will recommend an 
annual budget of debt service 
on any variable rate obligations 
at 1.5 times the rolling 3-year 
average of the Bond Market 
Association index, or other 
appropriate index over a similar 
time frame. 

7. Remarketing inventory 
obligation 

SFPUC may require that 
remarketing or dealer 
agreements contain a provision 
requiring that the dealer or 
agent, in the event of a failed 
remarketing, inventory the 
securities, at prevailing interest 
rates, for up to 30 days.   

8.  Call/Conversion provision On any date without penalty; no 
more than 10 days notice. 

9.  Liquidity A liquidity or letter of credit will 
be obtained for all variable rate 
obligations as market conditions 
may require; Liquidity or letter 
of credit providers will maintain 
the highest short-term ratings 
and long-term ratings of a least 
double A. 

10.  Mode Variable rate obligations, with 
the exception of commercial 
paper, may be issued as ―multi-
modal‖. 

   
X. Derivatives Policy – See following Derivatives Policy Section 

 
XI. Permitted Investments  

a. All investments of bond proceeds shall be limited to the City‘s Investment Policy approved 
periodically by the County Treasurer Oversight Committee.  

b. Investment of bond proceeds that are held by the Trustee must further be limited to those permitted 
in the financing documents or agreements. 

c. Investment agreements which may be entered into from time to time. Investment shall have the 
following general limitations: 

1. Purpose Maximize interest earnings 
thereby reducing net borrowing 
costs 
Match assets and liabilities, 
and/or Hedging 

2.  Counterparty Minimum rating of AA from at 
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least one major credit rating 
agency 

3.  Mandatory termination Limited to credit-related events 
and non-payment. 

4.  Cure provisions Timelines on SFPUC‘s 
obligations to cure must be 
adequate to accommodate City 
process. 

5.  Priority of payment  Termination payments shall be 
subordinate to related debt 
payments 

6.  Procurement Award based on best bid as 
defined in bid form 

7.  Term <reserved> 
 

XII. Professional Assistance  

a. Financial Advisors –SFPUC shall utilize the services of independent financial advisors in connection 
with financing-related issues.  The financial advisors shall be selected via a competitive RFP process 
and the services to be provided shall be documented by contract and compensation shall be capped. 

b. City Attorney‘s Office – SFPUC shall utilize the services of the City Attorney‘s Office (CAO) when 
appropriate for legal support on financing-related matters. 

c. Bond Counsel – SFPUC, with the CAO‘s recommendation, shall select bond counsel for each 
transaction. 

d. Dealers, Auction Agents and Remarketing Agents – Such firms shall be selected on a competitive 
Request for Proposals (RFP) basis and performance will be monitored regularly.  SFPUC shall retain 
the right to replace any such firm with due notice at any time. 

e. Trustees – Trustee shall have a combined capital and surplus of at least $50 million and be subject to 
supervision or examination by relevant federal or state regulatory bodies. 

f. Letter of credit or liquidity providers – Selected via competitive RFP and subject to negotiations of 
its terms.   

g. Investment agreement counterparties – Selected from pool approved by Mayor‘s Office of Public 
Finance and in accordance with indenture and City‘s investment policies. 

i. In general, uncollateralized investment agreements shall be executed with counterparties 
rated at least ―AAA‖ with collateral required upon a downgrade below ―AAA‖. 

ii. Repurchase agreements or forward delivery agreements shall be executed with 
counterparties rated at least ―AA‖ with downgrade provisions requiring assignment or 
collateral upon a rating downgrade below the ―A‖ level. 

h. Other professional assistance may be secured as necessary or desirable. 
 

XIII. Ongoing Debt Administration 

a. Continuing Disclosure – In connection with financings, it is SFPUC‘s goal to provide timely 
information to the marketplace. 

i. Ongoing disclosure requirements established per continuing disclosure certificates and other 
financing documents and agreements shall be promptly complied with.  See Summary of 
Disclosure Requirements Section. 

ii. Annual disclosure report – SFPUC covenants to provide its annual disclosure report no later 
than 270 days following the end of the fiscal year.  However, SFPUC shall use its best 
efforts to issue the Annual Disclosure Report as soon as practical following the issuance of 
the City‘s annual Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).  The SFPUC will use its 
best efforts to issue the Annual Disclosure Report electronically, to post it on its web site, at 
the Main Library and on file with the Commission, the Mayor‘s Office of Public Finance, 
the City Treasurer, the City Controller, and the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  The 
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report shall include CUSIPs, trustee and issuer contacts, and all other information as 
required pursuant to continuing disclosure certificates. 

iii. Material event – The SFPUC will issue a material event notice in accordance with the 
provisions of SEC Rule 15c2-12.  Prior to the issuance of any material event notice, the 
SFPUC will convene a meeting of the Commission, the Mayor‘s Office of Public Finance, 
the City Treasurer, the City Controller, the City Attorney and outside professionals as 
appropriate, to discuss the materiality of the event and the process for equal, timely and 
appropriate disclosure to the public and investment community. 

iv. Voluntary disclosure –  
1. The SFPUC will provide annual disclosure for all variable rate indebtedness with a 

stated maturity greater than 3 years.   
2. Subject to the inclusion of appropriate legal language, the SFPUC will post all 

financial statements, official statements and related documents on its web site in a 
timely manner. 

v. Official Statements – Official statements shall contain a summary of the continuing 
disclosure obligations, which may exceed obligations enumerated in SEC Rule 15c2-12.   

b. Arbitrage Rebate Compliance – The SFPUC shall calculate arbitrage annually in each year that the 
related construction fund (or equivalent) has had an outstanding balance.  Thereafter, the SFPUC 
shall calculate arbitrage on the fifth anniversary of the bond issuance in accordance with IRS 
recommended practices. 

c. Credit Ratings – SFPUC‘s policy is to secure underlying ratings on all newly issued obligations from 
at least one nationally recognized rating agency.  The SFPUC may choose to obtain ratings from 
more than one credit rating agency as appropriate and acceptable in the marketplace. 

i. Annual Meetings – The SFPUC will meet (or formally communicate) with credit rating 
agencies at least annually unless such meeting is deemed unnecessary by the rating agencies. 

ii. Reporting – The SFPUC will promptly make available to rating agency the following 
documents: 

1. Annual audited financial statements 
2. Annual adopted budgets 
3. Other relevant documents 

 
iii. Citywide Ratings Notification – Any changes in ratings will be promptly noticed to the 

Commission, the Mayor, the Mayor‘s Office of Public Finance, the Mayor‘s Finance (or 
Budget) Director and Press Secretary, the City Controller, City Treasurer, President of the 
Board of Supervisors, Chair of the Finance Committee of the Board of Supervisors, as 
relevant.   

d. Public Utilities Revenue Bond Oversight Committee (RBOC) - Pursuant to the City‘s Administrative 
Code Chapter 5A (Proposition P, passed by the voters in November 2002), the RBOC provides 
oversight to ensure that the proceeds from revenue bonds authorized by the BOS and/or the voters 
after November 2002 are expended in accordance with the authorizing bond resolution and 
applicable law.   

 
The RBOC reports at least annually to the Mayor, the BOS and the Commission regarding the 
SFPUC‘s expenditure of revenue bond proceeds.  Such reports are filed with the Commission, the 
Clerk of the BOS and the Main Library. 

 
If, after conducting all appropriate reviews and independent audit of actual expenditures of revenue 
bond proceeds, the RBOC, after consultation with the City Attorney, determines that proceeds are 
being or have been expended for purposes not authorized by the authorizing bond resolution or 
otherwise amount to an illegal expenditure of such proceeds, the RBOC may, by majority vote of all 
its members, prohibit the further issuance or sale of authorized revenue bonds which have yet to be 
issued or sold.  Any such determination by the RBOC may be appealed to the BOS within 30 days of 
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the RBOC‘s decision.  The BOS may overturn the decision of the RBOC by resolution approved by 
two-thirds vote of all its members. 

 
To the extent permitted by law, one-twentieth of one percent of revenue bond proceeds may fund 
the costs of the RBOC, except that costs associated with clerical, technical and administrative 
assistance in furtherance of its purposes and any compensation due the members are to be paid by 
the BOS.   

  
Derivatives Policy 
 

I. Derivatives (including swaps, swaptions, caps, floors and collars) – Purpose and Objectives  
a. To achieve significant savings as compared to a product available in the bond market. 
b. To prudently hedge risk in the context of a particular financing or the overall asset/liability 

management of the SFPUC‘s balance sheet. 
c. To achieve more flexibility in meeting overall financing objectives. 
d. Generate an increased net investment return. 

 
II. Derivative Approval Process 

a. Commission approval - The Commission, prior to SFPUC entering into a derivative product, shall 
approve the transaction.  If a proposed derivative product meets the objectives of the SFPUC as 
described herein, SFPUC shall provide to the Commission for their review and approval, an 
analysis and evaluation of the proposal including risk factors.   

i. Risk/benefit analysis – Identification and evaluation of proposed benefit and potential 
risks and any mitigations thereto.  Such potential risks shall include: 

1. Market or interest rate risk – Risk of exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. 
2. Tax law risk – Risk of rate adjustments, extraordinary payments, termination or 

other adverse consequences in the event of a future change in federal income tax 
policy. 

3. Termination risk – Risk of termination by the counterparty in an adverse market 
(other than at the option of the SFPUC).  Mitigation is the maintenance of 
sufficient liquidity to cover this exposure. 

4. ―Put‖ risk – Risk of a future financing that is dependent upon third party 
participation.  Mitigation is to obtain commitment that can be or have been 
secured for such participation. 

5. Legal authority risk – Risk of removal of any party‘s legal authority to participate 
in the transaction. 

6. Counterparty credit risk – Risk of credit-worthiness of the counterparty.  
Mitigation is to include provisions in the documents that protect SFPUC from 
exposure to adverse changes in counterparty‘s credit standing. 

7. Ratings risk – Risk that the transaction could impact the SFPUC‘s current credit 
ratings or its desired future ratings and that the transaction is in conflict with 
rating agency recommended practices. 

8. Basis risk – Risk that the payments that SFPUC would make or receive would not 
match the payments that it seeks to hedge. 

9. Tax-exemption of SFPUC debt risk – Risk that the transaction is not in 
compliance with all federal tax law requirements with respect to the SFPUC‘s 
outstanding tax-exempt bonds. 

10. Accounting risk – Risk that the transaction is not compatible with internal 
accounting procedures and reporting practices.  Related risk is the impact on 
SFPUC‘s rate covenant calculation or compliance. 

11. Administrative risk – Risk of SFPUC‘s failure to administer and monitor 
transactions consistent with the policies herein. 
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12. Subsequent business conditions – Risk of dependence on the continuation or 
realization of specific industry or business conditions. 

ii. Savings analysis – Independent analysis of potential savings from proposed transaction. 
iii. Rate exposure – Fixed versus variable rate and swap exposure on a project and for a 

counterparty before and after proposed transaction. 
iv. Market net termination exposure – Termination exposure on a per transaction and per 

counterparty basis for all existing and proposed transactions. 
v. Notional value – Total notional value of derivative products before and after proposed 

transaction. 
b. BOS approval – Under certain circumstances, BOS approval may be required. 

 
III. Inappropriate Use of Derivative Products – SFPUC shall never enter into a derivative transaction for the 

following purposes or if certain conditions exist. 
a. Speculative purposes, including potential trading gains. 
b. To achieve extraordinary leverage. 
c. Liquidity is insufficient to protect against early termination. 
d. Insufficient price ―transparency‖ wherein SFPUC is unable to reasonably value the instrument. 

 
IV. Methods of Soliciting and Procuring Derivatives – Regardless of the method of procurement, the SFPUC 

shall obtain an independent finding that the terms and conditions of any derivative product entered into 
reflect a fair market value as of the date of its execution. 

a. Competitive – SFPUC would pre-qualify prospective bidders and reserve the right to select one or 
more bidders for the transaction in addition to the winning bidder if deemed in SFPUC‘s best 
interest. 

b. Negotiated – SFPUC may determine that negotiating a transaction is in its best interest if: 
i. Due to size or complexity of the transaction, a negotiated process would result in the most 

favorable pricing or terms in which case an independent financial advisor would be 
assigned to assist in the process. 

ii. Doing so will advance SFPUC‘s interests by encouraging and rewarding innovation 
and/or the substantial commitment of time and resources by a counterparty. 

 
V. Counterparty Requirements  

a. Minimum rating – At least one Aa3 or AA- from one of the rating agencies or an institution 
utilizing a non-terminating AAA subsidiary 

b. Minimum capitalization –  
i. $250 million or credit enhancement in one of the following forms: 

1. Contingent credit support or enhancement. 
2. Collateral held by a 3rd party trustee and marked to market monthly. 
3. Ratings downgrade triggers. 

c. Demonstrated record – 
i. Successful track record and reputation for executing and performing derivative 

transactions. 
ii. Creating and implementing innovative ideas in the derivative market. 

 
VI. Standard Terms for Swaps and Derivatives 

a. Term – Consistent with the purpose for which the derivative product is used while taking into 
account the call dates for the related debt.  In no event shall the term extend beyond the existing 
debt (or other obligation being hedged). 

b. Events of default – An event of default by the counterparty shall lead to termination of the 
agreement with the termination payment being calculated on the side of the bid-offered spread 
most beneficial to SFPUC.  Events of default of a counterparty include: 

i. Failure to make payment when due. 
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ii. Material breach of representations and warranties. 
iii. Failure to comply with downgrade provisions. 
iv. Failure to comply with any other provision of the agreement after a specified notice 

period. 
c. Termination provisions 

i. Optional – All derivative transactions shall contain provisions granting the SFPUC the 
right to optionally terminate an agreement at any time over the term of the agreement.  

ii. Mandatory – A termination payment to or from the SFPUC may be required in the event 
of termination of an agreement ONLY in the case of credit-related and non-payment 
events.  Prior to entering into an agreement or making any such termination payment, as 
appropriate, SFPUC shall evaluate whether it would be financially advantageous for the 
SFPUC to enter into a replacement transaction as a means of offsetting any such 
termination payment or obtaining insurance to guarantee performance of the 
counterparty.  Any termination payment due from the SFPUC shall be made from 
available SFPUC monies.   

iii. Available liquidity - SFPUC shall consider the extent of the SFPUC‘s exposure to 
termination payment liability in connection with each transaction, and the availability of 
sufficient liquidity to make any such payments that may become due. 

iv. Cure provisions - Timelines on SFPUC‘s obligations to cure must provide for adequate 
time to affect the cure.  

v. Payment - Payments may be structured on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual 
basis.   

vi. Security – The agreement shall identify the security attributable to the derivative. 
vii. Collateral -    

1. Required - The SFPUC shall require collateral or other credit enhancement to be 
posted by each counterparty if the credit rating of the counterparty or its 
guarantor falls below the ―AA‖ category any of the three nationally recognized 
rating agencies (Moody‘s, Standard & Poor‘s and Fitch).   

2. Value –  
a. The amount of collateral posted shall be equal to the positive termination 

value of the agreement to the SFPUC.  
b. SFPUC will determine reasonable threshold limits for the initial deposit 

and for increments of collateral posted thereafter.  
3. Features of Collateral –  

a. Cash, U.S. Treasury securities and U.S. Agency securities.  The market 
value of the collateral shall be determined on at least a monthly basis.   

b. Deposited with a custodian, acting as agent for the SFPUC, or as 
mutually agreed upon between the SFPUC and the counterparty.   

c. The SFPUC shall determine on a case-by-case basis whether other forms 
of collateral are more beneficial to the SFPUC.   

 
VII. Monitoring and Reporting - SFPUC shall report to the Commission at least annually and as requested. 

a.  Agreements –  
i. A summary of each swap agreement, including but not limited to: the type of swap; the rates 

and dollar amounts paid by the SFPUC and received by the SFPUC; the rate and amounts that 
were required to be paid and received; and current market value.  

ii. Highlights of all material changes to the agreements or new agreements since the last report.   
iii. Sensitivity analysis with net impact to the SFPUC of a 25 basis point movement (up or down) 

in the appropriate swap index or curve.   
iv. Actual collateral posting by each counterparty, if any, under each agreement and in total by that 

counterparty.   
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v. Information concerning any default by a counterparty under a swap agreement with the 
SFPUC, and the results of the default, including but not limited to the financial impact to the 
SFPUC, if any.  

vi. A summary of any agreements that were terminated. 
vii. A summary of key terms of outstanding agreements, including notional amounts, interest rates, 

maturity and method of procurement.  
viii. Values of early termination, shortening or lengthening the term to certain benchmarks, sale or 

purchase of options.   
ix. Discussion of other risks associated with each transaction.   

b. Counterparties –  
i. Full name, description and credit ratings of each counterparty and credit enhancer insuring 

payments, if any.  
ii. For each counterparty, the SFPUC shall provide the total notional amount position, the 

average life of each agreement, the available capacity to enter into a transaction, and the 
remaining term of each agreement.   

iii. Listing of any credit enhancement, liquidity facility or reserves and accounting of all costs and 
expenses associated with the credit enhancement, liquidity facility or reserves.   

iv. Aggregate marked to market value for each counterparty and relative exposure compared to 
other counterparties.   

v. Calculation of SFPUC‘s net termination exposure for each counterparty. 
c. Future transactions - A summary of any planned transactions and the projected impact of such 

transactions on the SFPUC.  
  

VIII. Payments  
a. Budgeting - Termination payment risk shall be determined annually and offset by a hedge or reserve 

to a predetermined limit.   
b. Priority of payment –  

i. Swap payments - no greater than parity 
ii. Termination payments - subordinate to related debt payments 

c. Swap counterparty termination exposure limit –  
i. AAA Counterparties:  $40 million maximum collateralized net termination exposure; $40 

million maximum uncollateralized net termination exposure; $40 million maximum total net 
termination exposure  

ii. AA Counterparties:  $40 million maximum collateralized net termination exposure; $10 million 
maximum uncollateralized net termination exposure; $40 million maximum total net 
termination exposure  

iii. Counterparties Below AA:  $30 million maximum collateralized net termination exposure; $0 
million maximum uncollateralized net termination exposure; $40 million maximum total net 
termination exposure  

iv. Disclosure and documentation – 
1. Disclosure - Derivatives will be disclosed in the related Official Statement, if relevant, 

and in the SFPUC‘s annual financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and in the Annual Disclosure Report. 

2. Documentation – International Swaps and Derivative Association approved documents. 
3.  <reserved> 

 

(Last updated and approved, March 2004) 
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Independent Auditors’ Report  

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Supervisors 
City and County of San Francisco  

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of 
the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), a department of the City and County of San Francisco, 
California, (the City), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, which collectively comprise the 

SFPUC‘s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the SFPUC‘s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial 

statements based on our audits.  

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 

consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
SFPUC‘s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 

includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 

overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.  

As discussed in note 1, the financial statements of SFPUC are intended to present the financial position, and the 
changes in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the City that is attributable to the 

transactions of the SFPUC. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City 
as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, the cash flows for the 
years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.  

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund of the San Francisco Public Utilities 

Commission, as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the respective changes in financial position, and where 
applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 

principles.   

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 18, 2009, on 
our consideration of the SFPUC's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or  

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is the U.S. 
member firm of KPMG International, a swiss cooperative. 
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on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.  

The management‘s discussion and analysis on pages 37 through 70 is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements but is supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We have 
applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the 

methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not 
audit the information and express no opinion on it.  

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the SFPUC‘s basic financial statements. The introductory section and statistical section are presented 

for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The 
supplementary information included on pages 129 through 131 has been subjected to the auditing procedures 

applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical section have 

not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, 

accordingly, we express no opinion on them.  

 

December 18, 2009  



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Management‘s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

 37   

This section presents management‘s analysis of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission‘s (SFPUC) financial 
condition and activities as of and for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. Management‘s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A) is intended to serve as an introduction to SFPUC‘s financial statements. This information should be read in 
conjunction with the audited financial statements that follow this section. All amounts, unless otherwise noted, are 
expressed in thousands of dollars. 
 
The information in this MD&A is presented under the following headings: 
 

 Organization and Business 

 Overview of the Financial Statements 

 Financial Analysis 

 Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

 Economic Factors 

 Request for Information 

Organization and Business  

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is a department of the City and County of San Francisco 
(the City) that is responsible for the maintenance, operation, and development of three utility enterprises, Water, 
Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power. 
  
The Water Enterprise (Water) collects, transmits, treats, and distributes high-quality drinking water to a total 
population of approximately 2.5 million people, including retail customers in the City and wholesale customers 
located in San Mateo, Santa Clara, and Alameda Counties. Approximately 86,986 million gallons were delivered in the 
year ended June 30, 2009. Approximately two-thirds of the water delivered is to wholesale customers. Retail 
customers include residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental users, and the costs of service are recovered 
through user fees. Wholesale customers include cities, water districts, one private utility, and one nonprofit university. 
Service to these customers is provided pursuant to the Master Water Sales Contract which establishes the basis for 
determining the costs of wholesale service. The current contract expired June 30, 2009 and a new agreement has been 
negotiated, commencing on July 1, 2009. 
 
The Wastewater Enterprise (Wastewater) collects, transmits, treats, and discharges sanitary and storm water flows 
generated within the City for the protection of public health and environmental safety. In addition, on a contractual 
basis certain municipal customers located outside of the City limits are served, including the North San Mateo 
County Sanitation District No. 3, Bayshore Sanitary District, and the City of Brisbane. Costs of service are recovered 
through user fees based on the volume and strength of sanitary flow. Approximately 150,000 residential accounts are 
served, which discharge about 19.0 million units of sanitary flow per year (measured in hundreds of cubic feet, or ccf) 
and approximately 22,000 non-residential accounts, which discharge about 9.2 million units of sanitary flow per year. 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power was established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913, which granted water and power 
resource rights-of-way on the Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park and the Stanislaus National Forest to the 
City. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power is engaged in the collection and conveyance of approximately 85% of the City‘s 
water supply and in the generation and transmission of electricity from that resource. Approximately 79% of the 
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electricity generated is used by the City‘s municipal customers (including the San Francisco Municipal Railway, 
Recreation and Parks Department, the Port of San Francisco, San Francisco International Airport Commission, San 
Francisco General Hospital,  City street lights, Moscone Center, Water, and Wastewater). The majority of remaining 
21% of electricity generated is sold to other publicly owned utilities, such as the Turlock and Modesto Irrigation 
Districts. The system includes reservoirs, hydroelectric power plants, aqueducts, pipelines, and transmission lines, 
carrying water and power more than 165 miles from Sierra Nevada to customers in the City and portions of the 
surrounding San Francisco Bay Area. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

Department-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Department‘s financial statements include: 
 
Statements of Net Assets present information on the Department‘s assets and liabilities as of year-end, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a 
useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Department is improving or deteriorating. 
 
While the Statements of Net Assets provide information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at 
year-end, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets present the results of the Department‘s 
operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net assets changed during the year. These 
statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which the Department has successfully recovered its costs 
through user fees and other charges. All changes in net assets are reported during the period in which the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in these statements from some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such 
as delayed collection of operating revenues and the expenses of employee earned but unused vacation leave.  
 
The Statements of Cash Flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, capital, non-
capital, and investing activities. These statements summarize the annual flow of cash receipts and cash payments, 
without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the obligation or receipt and exclude non-cash 
accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of assets. 
 
The Notes to Basic Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial 
statements that is not displayed on the face of the financial statements. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The Department has three enterprise funds (Water, Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power) which are 
individually represented by its proprietary fund. 
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Financial Analysis 

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2009 

Business-Type Activities 

 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $1,917,281. 

 Net assets increased by $50,879 or 2.7% during the fiscal year. 

 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $281,591 or 9.7 % to $3,169,822. 

 During the fiscal year, charges for services, excluding interest and investment income, rental income, other 
operating and non-operating revenues, increased by $37,765 or 7.2% to $562,024. 

 Operating expenses, which exclude interest expense and other non-operating expenses, increased by $16,110 
or 3.2% to $513,843. 

Water 

 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $462,300. 

 Net assets increased by $967 or 0.2% during the fiscal year. 

 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $233,266 or 18.4 % to $1,501,260. 

 During the fiscal year, charges for services, excluding interest and investment income, rental income, other 
operating and non-operating revenues, increased by $30,845 or 14.2% to $247,664. 

 Operating expenses, which exclude interest expense and other non-operating expenses, increased by $25,263 
or 11.3% to $248,315. 

Wastewater 

 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $1,010,604 

 Net assets increased by $26,691 or 2.7%, during the fiscal year. 

 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $34,062 or 2.5%, to $1,394,923. 

 During the fiscal year, charges for services, excluding interest and investment income and other operating 
and non-operating revenues, increased by $11,522 or 6.1%, to $199,332. 

 Operating expenses, which exclude interest and non-operating expenses, increased by $4,055 or 2.5% to 
$169,300. 
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Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

 Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $444,377. 

 Net assets increased by $23,221 or 5.5% during the fiscal year. 

 Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $14,263 or 5.5% to $273,639. 

 During the fiscal year, charges for services, excluding interest and investment income, rental income and 
other non-operating revenues, decreased by $4,602 or 3.8% to $115,028. 

 Operating expenses, which exclude interest expense and other non-operating expenses, decreased by $13,208 
or 12.1% to $96,228. 
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Financial Position 

Table 1

Business-Type Activities

Comparative Condensed Net Assets

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Current and other assets $ 624,517  595,007  791,556  29,510  (196,549) 

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 3,169,822  2,888,231  2,688,545  281,591  199,686  

Total assets 3,794,339  3,483,238  3,480,101  311,101  3,137  

Revenue and capital appreciation bonds 1,234,752  1,289,263  1,342,010  (54,511) (52,747) 

State revolving fund loans 75,339  89,383  102,438  (14,044) (13,055) 

Commercial paper 329,600  50,000  50,000  279,600  —  

Other liabilities 237,367  188,190  151,984  49,177  36,206  

Total liabilities 1,877,058  1,616,836  1,646,432  260,222  (29,596) 

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 1,595,057  1,524,069  1,480,929  70,988  43,140  

Restricted for debt service 29,259  28,750  57,303  509  (28,553) 

Restricted for capital projects 11,967  214  —  11,753  214  

Unrestricted 280,998  313,369  295,437  (32,371) 17,932  

Total net assets $ 1,917,281  1,866,402  1,833,669  50,879  32,733   

 

Business-Type Activities 

A detailed discussion follows for each proprietary fund. 
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Table 1A

Proprietary Fund - Water

Comparative Condensed Net Assets

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Current and other assets $ 269,975  259,432  440,895  10,543  (181,463) 

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 1,501,260  1,267,994  1,074,255  233,266  193,739  

Total assets 1,771,235  1,527,426  1,515,150  243,809  12,276  

Revenue and capital appreciation bonds 936,506  961,790  980,759  (25,284) (18,969) 

Commercial paper 229,600  —  —  229,600  —  

Other liabilities 142,829  104,303  95,817  38,526  8,486  

Total liabilities 1,308,935  1,066,093  1,076,576  242,842  (10,483) 

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 349,629  324,091  300,996  25,538  23,095  

Restricted for debt service 27,899  27,434  56,196  465  (28,762) 

Restricted for capital projects 841  214  —  627  214  

Unrestricted 83,931  109,594  81,382  (25,663) 28,212  

Total net assets $ 462,300  461,333  438,574  967  22,759  

 
Water - Fiscal Year 2009 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, assets exceeded liabilities by $462,300, representing an increase of $967 or 0.2% 
from the prior year (see Table 1A). The growth in net assets is the result of an additional $243,809 in total assets 
offset by a $242,842 increase in total liabilities. Invested in capital assets, net of related debts represents the largest 
portion of net assets ($349,629 or 75.6%). The increase of $25,538 represents the excess of capital asset book values 
over debt-financed construction and acquisition costs. Unrestricted net assets declined $25,663 due to higher planned 
expenses than revenue growth. 
 
Current and other assets is primarily comprised of restricted and unrestricted balances of cash, receivables for water 
deliveries and services, interfund receivables due from other governmental agencies, and inventory. This section also 
includes a receivable which represents cumulative amounts due from the Suburban Purchasers to match revenues 
with costs of providing service (the ―Balancing Account‖) in accordance with the provisions set forth in the Master 
Water Sales Agreement which expired on June 30, 2009. 
 



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Management‘s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

 43   

During the fiscal year 2009, current and other assets increased by $10,543 or 4.1%, as a result of an $11,107 increase 
in current assets, a $234 decrease in restricted cash and investments due to declining interest rates and lower cash 
balances and a $330 decrease in bond issuance costs. Current assets increased mainly due to the increase in accounts 
receivable from the wholesale customers under the Suburban Water Rate Agreement. Wholesale customers are billed 
based on the estimated costs of service and usage, which are adjusted to actual costs and usage at year end. The 
estimates billed for fiscal year 2008 and 2009 were less than actual, resulting in $13,701 additional due at June 30, 
2009. There was also an increase of $4,608 in receivable balances for charges for services mainly from City retail 
ratepayers, net of the current year provision for uncollectible accounts, as a result of an average rate adjustment of 
15% that went into effect at the beginning of the fiscal year. Part of the receivable increase was $205 in receivables 
resulting from an established memorandum of understanding with the San Francisco Zoological Society for water 
consumption at its park facility. The increase of $278 due from other governmental agencies was attributable to an 
increase in grants receivable. In addition, there was a net increase in other current assets including interest, due from 
other funds, advances, and inventory of $247. Cash balances, however, declined by $7,727 due to a decrease in 
interest rates and related earnings, and increases in operating expenses.  
 
Total liabilities increased by $242,842 or 22.8% primarily due to the issuance of $229,600 in commercial paper. 
Excluding the change in commercial paper, other current liabilities increased by $19,956 due to increases in accounts 
payable of $6,384 related to large capital projects such as 525 Golden Gate of $2,600, SCADA System of $950, Noe 
Valley Transmission Line of $589, and Ripley Control Distribution Division of $419. In addition, current liabilities 
increased by $13,281 in restricted assets, largely related to increases in payables for the Water System Improvement 
Program. Long-term liabilities decreased by $6,714 due to scheduled principal payments on revenue and capital 
appreciation bonds outstanding of $26,369, decreases in damage and claims liability of $1,117 and pollution 
remediation obligation of $120, offset by increases in the liability for other postemployment benefits (OPEB) of 
$15,919, arbitrage rebate payable of $4,265, workers‘ compensation of $443, and accrued vacation and sick leave of 
$265. 
 
Restricted cash and investments with and outside City Treasury declined by $234 at the end of the fiscal year 2009, 
due primarily to declining interest rates and lower cash balances held by City Treasury. Additionally, unrestricted cash 
with City Treasury was used to pay down current contractual obligations and other liabilities, thereby resulting in 
$7,727 decline in unrestricted cash balance. 
 
Water - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2008, net assets increased by $22,759 or 5.2% from the prior year (see Table 1A). This 
increase was attributable to: an increase of $193,739 in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, a decrease of 
$18,969 in revenue and capital appreciation bonds, a decrease of $181,463 in current and other assets, and an increase 
in other liabilities of $8,486. The decrease in current and other assets is mainly due to a reduction in restricted cash 
used for capital expenditures and the payment of bond principal and interest. The increase in other liabilities is 
primarily due to a combination of a $15,048 increase in OPEB liability and a $4,815 decrease in due to other City 
department funds. The increase in OPEB liability is a result of the adoption of the Government Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other 
Than Pensions, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. The decrease in due to other City department funds is 
attributed to payment of the balance owed to the City‘s General Fund for the acquisition of 525 Golden Gate 
property. 
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Table 1B

Proprietary Fund - Wastewater

Comparative Condensed Net Assets

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009-2008 2008-2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Current and other assets $ 139,783  134,739  172,585  5,044  (37,846) 

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 1,394,923  1,360,861  1,335,470  34,062  25,391  

Total assets 1,534,706  1,495,600  1,508,055  39,106  (12,455) 

Revenue bonds 292,529  327,473  361,251  (34,944) (33,778) 

State revolving fund loans 75,339  89,101  102,438  (13,762) (13,337) 

Commercial paper 100,000  50,000  50,000  50,000  —  

Other liabilities 56,234  45,113  35,116  11,121  9,997  

Total liabilities 524,102  511,687  548,805  12,415  (37,118) 

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt 971,789  940,602  901,113  31,187  39,489  

Restricted for debt service 1,360  1,316  1,107  44  209  

Restricted for capital projects 11,126  —  —  11,126  —  

Unrestricted 26,329  41,995  57,030  (15,666) (15,035) 

Total net assets $ 1,010,604  983,913  959,250  26,691  24,663  

   

Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2009 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, total net assets increased by $26,691 or 2.7% as a result of increases of $31,187 in 
invested in capital assets, net of related debt, $11,126 in restricted for capital projects, and $44 in restricted for debt 
service, offset by a decrease of $15,666 in unrestricted net assets (see Table 1B). 
 
Current and other assets increased by $5,044 or 3.7%. The increases include $3,586 addition to inventory, $8,642 in 
restricted assets – cash and investments and $409 in receivables primarily from the San Francisco Zoological Society. 
The increases were offset by decreases of $205 in miscellaneous receivables and $7,388 in cash and investments as a 
result of reduction in the accounts payable outstanding balance from prior year. 
 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $34,062 or 2.5%, reflecting an increase in construction 
activities. The largest portion of net assets ($971,789 or 96.2%) represents invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt.  
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Total liabilities increased by $12,415 or 2.4% during the year. The increase in liabilities was due to issuance of $50,000 
in commercial paper, increases in an interfund payable to Hetch Hetchy Water and Power of $556, refund payable to 
Bayshore Sanitary District of $407, pollution remediation obligations of $375, accounts payable and payroll related 
liabilities of $3,459, damage and claim liability of $1,316, and OPEB liability of $5,729. These increases were offset by 
repayments of revenue bonds of $35,665 and State revolving fund loans of $13,762. 

 
Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2008 

For the year ended June 30, 2008, total net assets increased by $24,663 or 2.6%. The liabilities decreased by $37,118 
or 6.8% during the year. The net decrease was primarily due to repayment of bonds of $34,500 and State revolving 
fund loans of $13,337, partially offset by the OPEB liability increase of $5,684 due to the adoption of, Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.  
 
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, increased by $25,391 or 1.9% reflecting an increase in the 
current year‘s construction activities. The largest portion of net assets ($940,602 or 95.6%) represents invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt. Unrestricted net assets decreased by $15,035 due to the use of revenues to fund 
capital projects and operating expenditures. 
 

Table 1C

Proprietary Fund - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Comparative Condensed Net Assets

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 Change Change

Current and other assets $ 214,759  200,836  178,076  13,923  22,760  

Capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation 273,639  259,376  278,820  14,263  (19,444) 

Total assets 488,398  460,212  456,896  28,186  3,316  

Current liabilities 22,881  22,209  14,847  672  7,362  

Long-term liabilities 21,140  16,847  6,204  4,293  10,643  

Total liabilities 44,021  39,056  21,051  4,965  18,005  

Net assets:

Invested in capital assets, net of

related debt 273,639  259,376  278,820  14,263  (19,444) 

Unrestricted 170,738  161,780  157,025  8,958  4,755  

Total net assets $ 444,377  421,156  435,845  23,221  (14,689) 
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Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2009, net assets increased by $23,221 or 5.5% (see Table 1C). Contributing to this net 
increase was an addition of $28,186 in total assets offset by an increase in total liabilities of $4,965. The largest 
portion of net assets ($273,639 or 61.6%) represents invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
Current and other assets increased by $13,923 or 6.9% as a result of increases of $7,484 in current assets and $6,439 
in other assets (see Table 1C). Current assets increased by $7,484 or 4.1% mainly due to increases in unrestricted cash 
of $4,265 or 2.6%, accounts receivable of $1,751 or 18.6%, primarily related to the Modesto Irrigation District, 
deferred charges and other assets of $1,358 or 64.0% due to increased energy banked with PG&E at fiscal year end, 
$215 or 195.5% in current portion due from other governmental agencies (Wastewater and the Port of San Francisco 
for lighting retrofit and other energy conservation projects), and other current assets of $29. The increases are offset 
by a decrease in current loan receivable of $134 or 100%. Increase in unrestricted cash is attributable to net cash 
provided by operating activities of $27,865 and cash provided by interest income of $4,167, offset by cash used in 
capital and related financing activities of $21,672 and noncapital financing activities of $4. Other assets increased by 
$6,439 or 38.7% mainly due to an increase of restricted cash by $6,089 from Clean Renewable Energy Bonds 
(CREBs) issued in November 2008, increases of $496 in non-current portion of the due from other governmental 
agencies, and $40 of bond issuance costs. These increases are offset by a decrease in non-current loan receivable of 
$188 due to repayments received and the expiration of the memorandum of understanding with the San Francisco 
Housing Authority. 
 
Total liabilities increased by $4,965 or 12.7% primarily due to $5,717 in Clean Renewable Energy Bonds issued in 
November 2008, of which $422 relates to the short term principal obligation. Accounts payable increased by $2,127 
or 16.7% due to higher expenditures compared to prior year. Deposits, advances and other liabilities decreased by 
$1,331 or 58.3%, mainly due to the allocation of gas settlement proceeds to City Departments. The OPEB liability 
increased by $3,076 or 113% based on actuarial estimates. Damage and claim liability decreased by $4,990 or 32.6% 
due to settlement of two lawsuits filed by the U.S. Forest Service related to fires in proximity to power lines. 
California Energy Commission‘s loans payable were retired during the fiscal year in the amount of $282 or 100%. 
Other liabilities of accrued payroll, vacation and sick leave, and workers compensation increased by $648 or 11.3%. 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2008, net assets decreased by $14,689 or 3.4% (see Table 1C). Contributing to this net 
decrease was an addition of $3,316 in total assets combined with an increase in total liabilities of $18,005. The largest 
portion of the net assets ($259,376 or 61.6%) represents invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 
 
Current and other assets increased by $22,760 or 12.8% (see Table 1C), the most significant portion of which was an 
increase in cash of $19,674 or 13.5% (see statements of cash flow for details). Interest and other receivables increased 
$2,741 or 77.6%, due to additional billings for the combustion turbine project. Deferred charges and other assets 
increased $2,120, from energy banked with Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) at fiscal year end. Due from 
other governmental agencies decreased by $1,149 or 6.5% due to repayments received for the MECA 
(Mayor‘s Energy Conservation Account) loans. The loan receivable also decreased by $134 or 29.4% due to 
repayments received from the San Francisco Housing Authority. In fiscal year 2008, all of the prior year settlement 
proceeds from PG&E were received, and there was no addition to the receivable in the current year, resulting in a net 
decrease of $515 or 100%, in settlement receivables. 
 



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Management‘s Discussion and Analysis 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated) 

 47   

Total liabilities increased by $18,005 or 85.5%. The increase was primarily due to an increase in estimated damage 
and claim liabilities of $10,519 or 220.0%, as a result of pending litigation cases. Accounts payable increased by 
$2,776 or 27.9%, due to additional expenses in the current year compared to prior year. The OPEB liability increased 
by $2,723 due to the adoption of, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. 
Deposits, advances and other liabilities also increased by $1,917 or 523.8%, mainly for deposits from PG&E of 
$1,842. 
 
Results of Operations 

Table 2

Business-Type Activities

Comparative Condensed Activities

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 562,024  524,259  487,140  37,765  37,119  

Rents and concessions 9,645  9,870  10,144  (225) (274) 

Other operating revenues 18,040  22,491  20,882  (4,451) 1,609  

Interest and investment income 13,240  22,975  36,774  (9,735) (13,799) 

Other nonoperating revenues 10,929  40,862  18,985  (29,933) 21,877  

Total revenues 613,878  620,457  573,925  (6,579) 46,532  

Expenses:

Operating expenses 513,843  497,733  449,118  16,110  48,615  

Interest expense 44,524  47,217  51,680  (2,693) (4,463) 

Nonoperating expenses 3,188  1,100  1,161  2,088  (61) 

Total expenses 561,555  546,050  501,959  15,505  44,091  

Income (loss) before special item 52,323  74,407  71,966  (22,084) 2,441  

Special item:

Impairment loss —  (41,224) —  41,224  (41,224) 

Income (loss) before transfers 52,323  33,183  71,966  19,140  (38,783) 

Transfers to City and County 

of San Francisco (1,444) (450) (9,791) (994) 9,341  

Changes in net assets 50,879  32,733  62,175  18,146  (29,442) 

Net assets at beginning of year 1,866,402  1,833,669  1,771,494  32,733  62,175  

Net assets at end of year $ 1,917,281  1,866,402  1,833,669  50,879  32,733  
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Business-Type Activities 

A detailed discussion follows for each proprietary fund. 
 

Table 2A

Proprietary Fund - Water

Comparative Condensed Activities

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 247,664  216,819  202,787  30,845  14,032  

Rents and concessions 9,399  9,645  9,929  (246) (284) 

Other operating revenues 8,718  7,752  3,815  966  3,937  

Interest and investment income 7,088  12,456  24,547  (5,368) (12,091) 

Other nonoperating revenues 7,202  29,681  11,798  (22,479) 17,883  

Total revenues 280,071  276,353  252,876  3,718  23,477  

Expenses:

Operating expenses 248,315  223,052  202,498  25,263  20,554  

Interest expense 28,847  29,750  34,326  (903) (4,576) 

Nonoperating expenses 799  792  777  7  15  

Total expenses 277,961  253,594  237,601  24,367  15,993  

Income (loss) before transfers 2,110  22,759  15,275  (20,649) 7,484  

Transfers to City and County 

of San Francisco (1,143) —  (9,763) (1,143) 9,763  

Changes in net assets 967  22,759  5,512  (21,792) 17,247  

Net assets at beginning of year 461,333  438,574  433,062  22,759  5,512  

Net assets at end of year $ 462,300  461,333  438,574  967  22,759  

 
Water - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Total revenues for the year of $280,071 increased by $3,718 or 1.3% compared to the prior year (see Table 2A). 
Charges for services increased by $30,845 or 14.2%, other operating revenue increased by $966, offset by decreases 
of $22,479 in non-operating revenues, $5,368 in interest and investment income, and $246 in rents and concessions.  
 
Revenues from the sale of water to retail customers increased $14,564 or 15.6% largely attributable to an average 
15.0% increase in retail rates and a slight increase in consumption. Revenues from the sale of water to wholesale or 
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related customers increased by $15,905 or 13.7%, as revenue collection for wholesale customers increased to 
$131,831 from $115,926 over the prior year. Water sales to suburban non-resale customers increased by $385, and 
water sales to municipal customers decreased by $9. The Balancing Account due from suburban customers increased 
$13,701 from the prior year, based on the difference between revenues billed and costs of service. Interest and 
investment income decreased by $5,368 or 43.1% as a result of lower average daily cash balances and lower interest 
rates. Other non-operating revenue decreased by $22,479 or 75.7% primarily due to the receipt of $24,335 from the 
sale of surplus land in the prior year. 
 
Total expenses increased by $24,367 or 9.6% to $277,961 over prior year (see Table 2A), due to increases of $25,263 
in operating expenses, $7 in non-operating expenses and a decrease of $903 in interest expense. The change in 
operating expenses was mainly due to an increase of $13,727 in other operating expenses such as non-capitalized 
project expenses, capital projects written-off, indirect cost reimbursement to the City‘s general fund, and pollution 
remediation costs. Other increases were due to $5,405 in services provided by other departments related to Hetch 
Hetchy Water and Power assessment fees and fees paid to the City Attorney, $4,636 in personal services, $3,142 in 
depreciation, $2,327 in contractual services, $1,165 in materials and supplies, and $88 in bad debt expense, offset by a 
decrease of $5,227 in general and administrative expenses mainly due to lower judgment and claims. The effect on 
personal services was due to an increase in work hours in fiscal year 2009 by 3,500 hours which resulted in a $2,500 
increase in salaries and an increase in health care costs of $1,400 in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2008.  
The change in non-operating expenses represents larger investments in various community based organizations 
(CBOs) of $299 in support of local water conservation and sustainability programs and interest expense from 
amortized refunding losses relating to the early retirement of bonds issued in 2002 and 2006. 
 
Water - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Total revenues for the year of $276,353 increased by $23,477 or 9.3% compared to the prior year (see Table 2A). The 
increase was largely attributable to a $14,032 increase in retail and wholesale water sales. The revenue from the sale of 
water to retail customers increased $6,553 or 6.9% largely attributable to a 15.0% retail rate increase. Revenue from 
the sale of water to wholesale customers increased $7,479 or 6.9%. The rate charged wholesale customers increased 
6.3% based on an estimate of costs and consumption, with revenue collection increasing to $113,923 from $106,916 
over the prior year. The Balancing Account due from suburban customers increased $2,004 from the prior year, 
based on the difference between revenues received and costs of service. In the prior year, revenue collection of 
$106,916 for wholesale water sale was supplemented by $1,532 added to the Balancing Account to match the 
wholesale cost of service. Interest and investment income decreased by $12,091 or 49.3% due to lower average daily 
cash balances and lower interest earnings. Also, other non-operating revenue increased by $17,883 or 151.6% 
primarily due to net gains of $24,335 from the sale of surplus land to other government agencies. 
 
Total expenses for the year of $253,594 increased by $15,993 or 6.7% over the prior year (see Table 2A). The change 
was attributable to an increase of $20,554 in operating expenses partially offset by a decrease of $4,576 in interest 
expense. The change in operating expenses includes increases in OPEB costs of $15,048, depreciation of $2,063, 
judgments and claims of $3,173, and higher payments to Hetch Hetchy Water and Power for water allocation of 
$1,945. The decrease in interest expense was a result of lower outstanding bond debt throughout fiscal year 2008. 
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Table 2B

Proprietary Fund - Wastewater

Comparative Condensed Activities

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009-2008 2008-2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 199,332  187,810  176,344  11,522  11,466  

Other operating revenues 9,322  14,739  17,067  (5,417) (2,328) 

Interest and investment income 1,992  4,099  5,749  (2,107) (1,650) 

Other nonoperating revenues 1,022  885  2,986  137  (2,101) 

Total revenues 211,668  207,533  202,146  4,135  5,387  

Expenses:

Operating expenses 169,300  165,245  151,600  4,055  13,645  

Interest expense 15,677  17,467  17,354  (1,790) 113  

Nonoperating expenses —  158  291  (158) (133) 

Total expenses 184,977  182,870  169,245  2,107  13,625  

Income (loss) before transfers 26,691  24,663  32,901  2,028  (8,238) 

Transfers to City and County

of San Francisco —  —  (28) —  28  

Changes in net assets 26,691  24,663  32,873  2,028  (8,210) 

Net assets at beginning of year 983,913  959,250  926,377  24,663  32,873  

Net assets at end of year $ 1,010,604  983,913  959,250  26,691  24,663  

 
Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Total revenues for the year of $211,668 increased by $4,135 or 2.0% over the prior year primarily due to a rate 
increase partially offset by reduction in usage (see Table 2B). Sanitary flow of 27,826 ccf (100 cubic feet) for the year 
decreased by 531 ccf or 1.9%. Charges for services increased by $11,522 or 6.1% due to a rate increase of 9.0% 
effective July 1, 2008. Other operating revenues decreased by $5,417 or 36.8% due to reduction of $4,858 in capacity 
fees revenue related to lower building permits, and $559 reduction in charges to other City departments. Interest and 
investment income decreased by $2,107 or 51.4% due to lower cash balances and interest rates. Other non-operating 
revenues increased by $137 or 15.5%. 
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Total expenses increased by $2,107 or 1.2% due to increase of $4,055 in operating expenses, offset by decreases of 
$1,790 in interest and $158 in non-operating expenses. The increase in operating expenses is attributable to: increases 
of $5,613 in services provided by other City departments, $1,855 in contractual services, $583 in general and 
administrative expenses which include growth in actuarially determined claims liability, $576 in bad debt expense, and 
$57 in depreciation expense. Services provided by the City‘s Department of Public Works increased $3,317 for sewer 
repair, street cleaning, and engineering services. Contractual services increased due to a new sewer pipeline project 
and other ongoing repair and replacement projects. These increases were offset by decreases in materials and supplies 
of $3,785, primarily due to an inventory adjustment of $3,586, $602 in other operating expenses, and $242 in 
personal services.  
 
Net assets increased by $26,691 to $1,010,604 due to revenue growth of $4,135 offset by increase in expenses of 
$2,107. 
 

Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Total revenue for the year of $207,533 increased by $5,387 or 2.7%, over the prior year (see Table 2B). Revenue from 
service charges increased by $11,466 or 6.5%, primarily due to a rate increase of 8.0% effective July 14, 2007. Other 
non-operating revenues decreased by $2,101 or 70.4%. Interest and investment income decreased by $1,650 or 
28.7%, due to lower average monthly cash balances and lower interest earnings.  
 
Total operating expenses increased by $13,645 or 9.0% primarily due to a $4,939 increase in other operating 
expenses, $3,646 increase in wages, and $5,684 increase in OPEB costs due to the adoption of GASB 45, as noted 
above. 
 
The increase in revenue of $5,387 combined with an increase in expenses of $13,625 lead to an increase in total net 
assets of $24,663, net of transfers. 
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Table 2C

Proprietary Fund - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Comparative Condensed Activities

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 Change Change

Revenues:

Charges for services $ 115,028  119,630  108,009  (4,602) 11,621  

Rents and concessions 246  225  215  21  10  

Interest and investment income 4,160  6,420  6,478  (2,260) (58) 

Other nonoperating revenues 2,705  10,296  4,201  (7,591) 6,095  

Total revenues 122,139  136,571  118,903  (14,432) 17,668  

Expenses:

Operating expenses 96,228  109,436  95,020  (13,208) 14,416  

Other nonoperating expenses 2,389  150  93  2,239  57  

Total expenses 98,617  109,586  95,113  (10,969) 14,473  

Net income before transfers and

special item 23,522  26,985  23,790  (3,463) 3,195  

Special item:

Impairment loss —  (41,224) —  41,224  (41,224) 

Income (loss) before

transfers 23,522  (14,239) 23,790  37,761  (38,029) 

Transfers to City and County of 

San Francisco (301) (450) —  149  (450) 

Changes in net assets 23,221  (14,689) 23,790  37,910  (38,479) 

Net assets at beginning of year 421,156  435,845  412,055  (14,689) 23,790  

Net assets at end of year $ 444,377  421,156  435,845  23,221  (14,689) 

 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Total revenues for the year of $122,139 decreased by $14,432 or 10.6% over the prior year (see Table 2C). Revenues 
from charges for services decreased by $4,602 or 3.8%, attributable to a decrease in electricity sales of $6,648 to 
Modesto Irrigation District (MID), Turlock Irrigation District (TID), and third party sales to other Municipalities and 
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Governmental Agencies under Western System Power Pool (WSPP) agreements, a decrease of $2,636 in revenue 
from Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) resulting from the reversal of the $2,028 allowance for 
doubtful accounts in fiscal year 2008 per the new agreement, other Treasure Island customers, the San Francisco 
Port power customers and other non-City department power customers. The decreases are offset by an increase in 
power sales of $2,597 to City departments and an increase in water assessment fees of $2,085 to Water and other 
water customers. 
 
Other nonoperating revenues decreased by $7,591 or 73.7%, which is attributed primarily to the absence of one-time 
revenues in prior fiscal year 2008 for combustion turbine reimbursements of $4,866 and PG&E refunds of $3,361. 
Other decreases include services to other governmental agencies of $79, proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, 
overhead charges and other miscellaneous items of $253, and recognition of natural gas proceeds of $968 in fiscal 
year 2009. Investment and interest income decreased by $2,260 or 35.2% mainly due to lower interest rates.  
 
Total operating expenses decreased by $13,208 or 12.1% to $96,228, primarily due to a decrease in purchased power 
and related costs. Power purchases from the Western System Power Pool were lower by $10,082, resulting in lower 
transmission costs from PG&E. In addition, there was a decrease in general and administrative expenses of $13,650 
due to a reduction of estimated liability claims in fiscal year 2009 compared to fiscal year 2008. These decreases are 
offset by a $4,126 increase in expenses attributable to: (i) professional and specialized services of $3,692 and (ii) rents 
and leases services of $402. Other increased expenses included services provided by other departments of $776, other 
operating expenses of $480, personal services of $4,294 due to higher OPEB costs, and depreciation of $848. Non-
operating expenses increased by $2,239 mainly due to the implementation of the new San Francisco Go-Solar 
incentive program, where rebate payments of $2,232 were made in fiscal year 2009. 
 
Overall, these changes resulted in an increase in net assets of $23,522 before transfers. 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Total revenues for the year of $136,571 increased by $17,668 or 14.9% over the prior year (see Table 2C). The 
majority of the increase for the year was primarily due to charges for services revenue of $11,621 or 10.8% 
attributable to: an increase in electricity sales of $3,369 to Modesto Irrigation District (MID), and Turlock Irrigation 
District (TID) and third party sales to other Municipalities and Governmental Agencies under Western System 
Power Pool (WSPP) agreements; increase in sales of $2,785 to City departments; an increase in water assessment fees 
of $2,000 to Water; and an increase of $3,271 in revenue from the Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) 
attributable mainly to a $2,029 reversal of the allowance for doubtful accounts.  
 
Other nonoperating revenue increased by $6,095 or 145.1% primarily due to: a $1,975 increase in incentive rebates 
from PG&E for self-generation; a $1,941 increase in reimbursement for the combustion turbine development costs; 
a $972 increase in license fee from the Trans Bay Cable project; a $215 increase in damage and claims collected; and a 
$134 increase in overhead charges to other City departments for work performed through custom work orders.  
 
Total operating expenses increased by $14,416 or 15.2% to $109,436 primarily due to an increase in general and 
administrative and other operating expenses of $9,310 attributable to estimated claims. Power purchases also 
increased in the current year by $3,656 due to an increase in energy market prices, which were offset by $2,120 in 
costs related to power banked with PG&E. OPEB costs increased by $2,723 due to the adoption of GASB 45, as 
noted previously. 
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During the current fiscal year, $41,224 from the combustion turbine project was written-off and is presented it under 
the special item category (see note 14(d) to the basic financial statements for details).  
 
Overall, these changes resulted in a decrease of net assets of $14,239 before transfers. 
 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 

Table 3

Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Facilities, improvements, machinery,

and equipment $ 2,461,385  2,333,409  2,230,806  127,976  102,603  

Land and rights-of-way 44,849  44,267  44,660  582  (393) 

Construction work in progress 663,588  510,555  413,079  153,033  97,476  

Total $ 3,169,822  2,888,231  2,688,545  281,591  199,686  

 

Business-Type Activities 

A detailed discussion follows for each proprietary fund. 
 

Table 3A

Proprietary Fund - Water

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Facilities, improvements, machinery,

and equipment $ 935,581  827,045  744,880  108,536  82,165  

Land and rights-of-way 18,386  17,886  18,277  500  (391) 

Construction work in progress 547,293  423,063  311,098  124,230  111,965  

Total $ 1,501,260  1,267,994  1,074,255  233,266  193,739  
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Water System Improvement Program (WSIP) 
 
A multi-billion dollar, multi-year program has begun to upgrade the Regional and Local Water Systems, known as the 
Water System Improvement Program (WSIP). The WSIP will deliver capital improvements that enhance the ability 
to provide reliable, affordable, high quality drinking water to twenty-seven wholesale customers and regional retail 
customers in Alameda, Santa Clara and San Mateo Counties, and to 800,000 retail customers in the City and County 
of San Francisco, in an environmentally sustainable manner. The program is structured to cost-effectively meet water 
quality requirements, improve seismic and delivery reliability, and meet water supply objectives for the year 2030. 
 
The program is on target to achieve an overall completion date of December 2015. To date, planning of the WSIP 
Regional Program is approximately 96% complete, whereas environmental review/permitting, design and 
construction efforts are about 67%, 75% and 6% complete, respectively. The transition of the WSIP‘s larger regional 
projects to the construction phase started in early 2009. As of June 30, 2009, there are two regional projects in 
Planning Phase, seventeen in Design Phase, ten in Bids & Award Phase, six in Construction phase, two in Close-Out 
phase, eight regional projects are completed, and one regional project has not yet been initiated. See table below. 

Regional
projects

Q4

Planning 2      
Design 17      
Bid & Award 10      
Construction 6      
Close-Out 2      
Completed 8      

Active phase

 
 
The total estimated cost for the WSIP is $4.6 billion, including $4.1 billion for capital projects and $0.5 billion for net 
financing costs. To date, nearly $2.9 billion has been appropriated for the WSIP, of which approximately 
$743 million has been expended through FY 2009. Over the next six years, SFPUC will require approximately 
$1.7 billion in additional appropriation for the completion of the program. To help meet this funding need, additional 
bonds sales are planned, with the most recent sales occurring in August and September 2009. Both sales were for par 
value amounts of $412 million each. 
 
Additional details regarding the WSIP are available in the Annual Reports published on SFPUC‘s web site at 
www.sfwater.org. 
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Water - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Net capital assets of $1,501,260 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2009 (see Table 
3A). The investment in capital assets includes land, facilities, improvements, water treatment plants, aqueducts, water 
transmission, and distribution mains, water storage facilities, pump stations, water reclamation facilities, machinery 
and equipment. This amount includes an increase of $108,536 or 13.1% over the prior year in structures, buildings 
and equipment, and an increase of $124,230 or 29.4% in construction in progress, consistent with implementation of 
the ten-year capital plan, including the Water System Improvement Program. Net revenue, commercial paper, and 
long-term debt are used to finance capital investments. During the fiscal year 2009, as part of a property transfer, a 
parcel of land was acquired from BART located in the City of San Bruno, California, with a value of $500.  
 
As of June 30, 2009, $12,669 was invested in development costs and $9,900 in site acquisition for an office building 
located at 525 Golden Gate Avenue. The site was acquired by the City from the State of California in 2000, and was 
transferred to the Commission in 2006. The site comprises a 0.5-acre portion of the block bounded by Polk Street, 
McAllister Street, Golden Gate Avenue and Van Ness Avenue, in the Civic Center district of the City. The Civic 
Center is home to City, State and Federal government buildings, including City Hall, Civic Center Courthouse, offices 
of the San Francisco Unified School District, the Philip Burton Federal Building and U.S. Courthouse, the Hiram W. 
Johnson State Office Building, and City cultural facilities, including the San Francisco Main Public Library, Louise M. 
Davies Symphony Hall, Bill Graham Civic Auditorium, the War Memorial Opera House and Veterans Building, and 
the Asian Art Museum of San Francisco. 
 
The principal improvement to the site consists of a new 277,500 square-foot Class A office building containing 
approximately 257,000 square feet of rentable space across 13 floors plus one basement level. The finished building 
has been designed to include a 10,000-square-foot child development center, a café, and public art exhibition space. 
The building design seeks to achieve the Platinum certification standards of the Leadership in Energy and 
Environmental Design (LEED) Green Building Rating System, the nationally accepted benchmark for the design, 
construction and operation of high-performance ―green‖ buildings. 
 
The City has received all environmental approvals necessary for construction of the 525 Golden Gate Avenue 
property, and the design development phase is completed. Demolition of the existing site was completed in June 
2009, while site improvement phases such as shoring, underpinning and excavation are currently underway. 
Construction is expected to start in January 2010 with an expected completion date of February 2012, with an 
expected occupancy date of April 2012. 
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Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2009 included: 

Tesla Treatment Facility $ 22,314   
McLaren Park Pump Station Upgrade 19,244   
New Crystal Springs Bypass Tunnel 17,512   
Local Water Main Replacement Program 16,114   
Harry Tracy Water Treatment Plant (HTWTP) Short Term Improvements Phase 3 11,823   
San Joaquin Pipeline System 10,916   
Stanford Heights Reservoir Rehab/Upgrade 9,738   
Standby Power Facility Various Locations 9,032   
Calaveras Dam Replacement 8,774   
Sunset Reservoir – Upgrade/Rehab North Basin 8,591   
HTWTP Long Term Improvements 8,404   
Sunol Valley Water Treatment Plant (SVWTP) Expansion/Treated Water Reservoir 8,314   
Bay Division Pipeline (BDPL) Reliability Upgrade – Tunnel 8,183   
Crystal Springs Pump Station & Crystal Springs – San Andreas Pipeline 8,051   
New Irvington Tunnel 7,676   
BDPL Reliability – Pipeline Upgrade 6,076   
East/West Transmission Main 5,694   
Other project additions individually below $5,000 96,249   

$ 282,705   

 
Major facilities, improvements, machinery and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects 
from construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2009 included: 

Sunset Reservoir North Basin Seismic Retrofit Structure $ 50,025   
East/West Transmission Main 29,754   
Water Main Replacement - Bernal/Nebraska 6,647   
Other items individually below $5,000 71,171   

$ 157,597   
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Water - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Net capital assets of $1,267,994 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2008 (see Table 
3A). The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, water treatment plants, aqueducts, 
water transmission, and distribution mains, water storage facilities, pump stations, water reclamation facilities, 
machinery and equipment. This amount includes an increase of $82,165 or 11.0% over the prior year in structures, 
buildings and equipment, and an increase of $111,965 or 36.0% over the prior year in construction in progress, 
consistent with implementation of the ten-year Water System Improvement Program. Net revenue, commercial 
paper, and long-term debt are used to finance capital investments. 

As of June 30, 2008, $5,413 was invested in development costs and $9,900 in site acquisition for an office building 
located at 525 Golden Gate Avenue. The building was currently envisioned as a twelve story building encompassing 
approximately 212,000 square feet, and is intended to consolidate divisions of SFPUC that are currently renting space 
at multiple locations throughout the City. The existing structure is expected to be demolished.  

Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2008 included: 

Sunset Reservoir North Basin Rehabilitation and Upgrade $ 29,545  
Stanford Heights Reservoir Rehabilitation and Upgrade 10,886  
East/West Transmission Main 10,668  
Water Main and Feeder Replacement, Citywide 10,665  
Bay Division Pipeline (BDPL) Reliabilty Upgrade – Pipeline 9,846  
Calaveras Dam Replacement 9,369  
Irvington Tunnel Alternatives 8,495  
San Joaquin Pipeline No 4 New 7,940  
525 Golden Gate 6,490  
Existing San Joaquin Pipeline Rehabilitation 6,332  
BDPL Hydraulic Capacity Upgrade 6,292  
Crystal Springs Pump Stations and Pipelines 5,647  
Irvington Tunnel, Phase 2 5,249  
Other project additions individually below $5,000 115,530  

$ 242,954  
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Major facilities, improvements, machinery and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects 
from construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2008 included: 

Underground Concrete $ 17,555  
New Services, Citywide 6,464  
Renew Services, Citywide 5,651  
Water Main Replacement, Avenues 5,417  
University Mound 48 Inch Steel Pipeline 5,196  
Other items individually below $5,000 87,883  

$ 128,166  

 
Table 3B

Proprietary Fund - Wastewater

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009-2008 2008-2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Facilities, improvements, machinery,

and equipment $ 1,295,806     1,276,099  1,270,446  19,707  5,653  

Land and rights-of-way 21,787          21,787  22,168  —  (381) 

Construction work in progress 77,330          62,975  42,856  14,355  20,119  

Total $ 1,394,923     1,360,861  1,335,470  34,062  25,391  

 
 

Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Net capital assets of $1,394,923 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2009 (see Table 
3B). This amount represents an increase of $34,062 or 2.5% over the prior fiscal year. The investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, wastewater treatment plants, sewer pipes and mains, underground 
transport and storage boxes, pump stations, machinery, and equipment. 
 
Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2009 include: 
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Oceanside Heating Ventilation, Air Conditioning Assessment $ 11,994  
Channel Pump Station Improvements Phase 2 8,854  
Southeast Water Pollution Control Program Digester Cover and 

Mixing Improvements 5,030  
Other project additions individually below $5,000 47,660  

$ 73,538  

 
Major facilities, improvements, machinery, and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects 
from construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2009 included: 

Southeast Water Pollution Control Program Digester Cover and
Mixing Improvements $ 10,571  

Oceanside Heating, Ventilation, Air Conditioning Assessment 9,970  
Other items individually below $5,000 37,981  

$ 58,522  

 
Wastewater - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Net capital assets of $1,360,861 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2008. This 
amount represents an increase of $25,391 or 1.9%, over the prior fiscal year. The investment in capital assets includes 
land, buildings, improvements, wastewater treatment plants, sewer pipes and mains, underground transport and 
storage boxes, pump stations, machinery, and equipment. 
 
Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2008 include: 

Mission/Mount Vernon Sewer Improvements $ 9,399  
Other project additions individually below $5,000 53,916  

$ 63,315  

 
Major structures, buildings and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects from 
construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2008 included: 

Mission/Mount Vernon Sewer Improvements $ 10,749  
Other items individually below $5,000 33,668  

$ 44,417  
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Table 3C

Proprietary Fund - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation

Year ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 Change Change

Facilities, improvements, machinery, and

equipment $ 229,998  230,265  215,480  (267) 14,785  

Land and rights-of-way 4,676  4,594  4,215  82  379  

Construction work in progress 38,965  24,517  59,125  14,448  (34,608) 

Total $ 273,639  259,376  278,820  14,263  (19,444) 

  
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2009 
 
Net capital assets of $273,639 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2009 (see Table 
3C). This amount represents an increase of $14,263 or 5.5%, attributable to a $267 decrease in facilities, 
improvements, machinery and equipment, offset by a $14,448 net increase in construction work in progress, and $82 
of additions in land and rights-of-way. 
 
The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, hydropower facilities, dams, transmission 
lines, machinery, and equipment. 
 

Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2009 included: 

Street Light Underground Utilities $ 3,173  
San Joaquin Pipeline Rehabilitation 2,200  
Other project additions individually below $2,000 18,269  

$ 23,642  
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Major facilities, improvements, machinery, and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects 
from construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2009 included: 

Street Lights $ 3,138  
Other items individually below $2,000 8,467  

$ 11,605  

 
 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power - Fiscal Year 2008 
 
Net capital assets of $259,376 were invested in a broad range of utility capital assets as of June 30, 2008. This amount 
represents a decrease of $19,444 or 7.0%, due to a combination of a $14,785 increase in structures, buildings, and 
equipment and a $34,608 net decrease in construction work in progress. The decrease includes the impairment loss of 
the combustion turbine project of $41,224. The investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, 
hydropower facilities, dams, transmission lines, machinery, and equipment. 
 
Major additions to construction work in progress during the year ended June 30, 2008 included: 

San Francisco Electrical Reliability Power Project $ 7,841  
Solar Project at San Francisco International Airport 3,778  
Street Light Underground Utilities 2,317  
Other project additions individually below $2,000 17,322  

$ 31,258  

 
Major structures, buildings and equipment placed in service, including transfers of completed projects from 
construction work in progress, during the year ended June 30, 2008 included: 

Solar Photovoltaic System at San Francisco International Airport $ 6,040  
Street Lights 2,316  
Solar Power Plant at North Point Treatment Plant 2,243  
Other items individually below $2,000 15,218  

$ 25,817  
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Debt Administration 

Table 4

Business-Type Activities

Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenue bonds $ 1,225,415  1,285,883  1,338,855  (60,468) (52,972) 

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds 5,717  —  —  5,717  —  

Capital appreciation bonds 3,620  3,380  3,155  240  225  

Commercial paper 329,600  50,000  50,000  279,600  —  

State revolving fund loans 75,339  89,101  102,438  (13,762) (13,337) 

State of California CEC loan —  282  390  (282) (108) 

Total $ 1,639,691  1,428,646  1,494,838  211,045  (66,192) 

 
Business-Type Activities 

A detailed discussion follows for each proprietary fund. 
 

Table 4A

Proprietary Fund - Water

Outstanding Debt, Net of Amortized Costs

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenue bonds $ 932,886  958,410  977,604  (25,524) (19,194) 

Capital appreciation bonds 3,620  3,380  3,155  240  225  

Commercial paper 229,600  —  —  229,600  —  

Total $ 1,166,106  961,790  980,759  204,316  (18,969) 

 
Water 
 
As of June 30, 2009, there was $1,166,106 in total debt outstanding, an increase of $204,316 over the prior year (see 
Table 4A). There were commercial paper notes outstanding of $229,600 at June 30, 2009 and none in the previous 
year. Total debt outstanding at June 30, 2009 consisted of $932,886 in fixed-rate long-term revenue bonds and $3,620 
in capital appreciation bonds. The change in total debt outstanding was due to the retirement of revenue bond 
principal, and a change in the accreted value of all capital appreciation bonds, amortization of bond discounts, bond 
premium, and refunding loss.  
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As of June 30, 2008, there was $961,790 in total debt outstanding, a decrease of $18,969 over the prior year (see 
Table 4A). Total debt outstanding at June 30, 2008 consisted of $958,410 in fixed-rate long-term revenue bonds and 
$3,380 in capital appreciation bonds. The change in total debt outstanding was due to the retirement of revenue bond 
principal, and a change in the accreted value of all capital appreciation bonds, amortization of bond discounts, bond 
premium, and refunding loss. 
 

Table 4B

Proprietary Fund - Wastewater

Outstanding Debt

(Net of Amortized Costs)

Years ended June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009-2008 2008-2007

2009 2008 2007 change change

Revenue bonds $ 292,529  327,473  361,251  (34,944) (33,778) 

Commercial paper 100,000  50,000  50,000  50,000  —  

State revolving fund loans 75,339  89,101  102,438  (13,762) (13,337) 

Total $ 467,868  466,574  513,689  1,294  (47,115) 

 
Wastewater  

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, there were debt and State Revolving Fund Loans outstanding of $467,868 and 
$466,574 respectively, (see Table 4B).  

Table 4C

Proprietary Fund - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

Outstanding Debt, Net of Unamortized Costs

June 30, 2009, 2008, and 2007

2009 – 2008 2008 – 2007

2009 2008 2007 Change Change

State of California CEC loan $ —  282  390  (282) (108) 

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds 5,717  —  —  5,717  —  

Total $ 5,717  282  390  5,435  (108) 

 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, there was outstanding debt of $5,717 and $282, respectively, (see Table 4C). Clean 
Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs) for $6,325 were issued in accordance with the Energy Tax Incentives Act of 2005 
to fund solar photovoltaic projects in November 2008. The qualified bonds carry no interest costs and have a term of 
fifteen years. Annual payments in the amount of $422 are due on December 15th beginning December 15, 2008. 
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Additionally, the California Energy Commission (CEC) loan was retired early in April 2009. The loan was issued in 
November 2002 to help the San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH) complete the construction phase of its Lighting 
Retrofit Project. SFGH will continue to provide biannual payments of $59 each on June 12 and December 12 until 
2010. This payment schedule coincides with the original loan repayment schedule to the CEC for this project. The 
amounts to be repaid by SFGH are reduced by amounts received under State grant programs. 
 
Water’s Credit Ratings and Bond Insurance – At June 30, 2009, Water carried underlying ratings of ―A1‖ and 
―AA-‖ from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s (S&P), respectively. At June 30, 2008, the underlying ratings were ―A1‖ 
and ―A+‖ from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s (S&P), respectively. In connection with the sale of substantially all 
of Water revenue bonds, municipal bond insurance has been purchased by SFPUC or the underwriters from XL 
Capital (XL), Financial Security Assurance Corporation (FSA), and MBIA Insurance Corporation (MBIA) to 
guarantee the payment of principal and interest when due. XL had been acquired by Syncora Holdings (Syncora) in 
August 2008. In November 2008, Moody‘s had downgraded FSA to ―Aa3,‖ and S&P had put FSA on negative 
outlook, but continued to maintain its ―AAA‖ rating. In February 2009, MBIA provided further reinsurance on its 
public finance bond insurance portfolio through its newly created subsidiary, National Public Finance Guarantee 
Corporation (National). Moody‘s and S&P initially rated National at ―Baal‖ and ―A,‖ respectively. With the 
insurance, Moody‘s and S&P have assigned their municipal bond ratings of ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA,‖ respectively, to Water 
insured revenue bonds. The downgrade of various bond insurance companies by credit rating agencies in 2008 had 
not caused any change in the underlying ratings. In March 2009, Moody‘s downgraded Syncora to ―Ca‖ while S&P 
downgraded Syncora to ―R‖ in April 2009, effectively placing Syncora under regulatory supervision due to its 
financial condition. In June 2009, Moody‘s downgraded MBIA to ―Ba3,‖ while S&P downgraded MBIA to ―BB+‖ in 
September 2009 but affirmed National‘s rating.  
 
Wastewater’s Credit Ratings and Bond Insurance – At June 30, 2009, Wastewater carried underlying ratings of 
―A2‖ and ―A+‖ from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s (S&P), respectively. At June 30, 2008, the underlying ratings 
were ―A2‖ and ―A‖ from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s (S&P), respectively. In connection with the sale of 2003 
Series A Refunding Bonds, municipal bond insurance has been purchased by SFPUC and the underwriters from 
MBIA Insurance (MBIA) to guarantee the payment of principal and interest when due. With the insurance, Moody‘s 
and S&P have assigned their municipal bond ratings of ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖, respectively, to insured revenue bonds. 
The downgrade of various bond insurance companies by credit ratings agencies in 2008 did not cause any change in 
the underlying ratings. In February 2009, MBIA provided further reinsurance on its public finance bond insurance 
portfolio through its newly created subsidiary, National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation (National). Moody‘s 
and S&P initially rated National at ―Baa1‖ and ―A,‖ respectively. By July 2009, Moody‘s and S&P had downgraded 
MBIA to ―Ba3‖ and ―BBB‖, respectively, but affirmed National‘s rating. On September 28, 2009 S&P downgraded 
MBIA to ―BB+‖.  
 
Debt Service Coverage – Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Indenture, the enterprises are required to collect 
sufficient net revenues each fiscal year, together with any funds (except Bond Reserve Funds) which are available for 
payment of debt service and are not budgeted to be expended, at least equal to 1.25 times annual debt service for said 
fiscal year. During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, net revenues, together with fund balances available to pay debt service 
and not budgeted to be expended, were sufficient to meet the rate covenant requirements under the Amended and 
Restated Indenture. 
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Debt Authorization  
 
Pursuant to the Charter, indebtedness can be incurred upon two-thirds vote of the Board of Supervisors, as 
approved by voters in Proposition E in November 2002.  Additionally, indebtedness may be incurred up to 
$1,628,000 for improvements to the water system pursuant to Proposition A that was approved by the voters in 
November 2002.  
 
Water – As of June 30, 2009, $507,800 of the $1,628,000 was issued. Also authorized is the issuance of up to 
$500,000 in commercial paper. As of June 30, 2009, $229,600 was issued and outstanding. 
 
Wastewater – At June 30, 2009, there was a $150,000 authorized under the commercial paper program, with 
$100,000 and $50,000 in commercial paper outstanding as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 respectively. 
 
Cost of Capital  
 
Water – Outstanding long-term debt had interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 7.0% as of June 30, 2009 and 2008. 
Short-term debt had interest rates ranging from 0.25% to 0.75% as of June 30, 2009. In the prior year, there was no 
outstanding short-term debt. 
 
Wastewater – The interest rates on outstanding bonds range from 3.00% to 5.25% at June 30, 2009, unchanged 
from June 30, 2008 with a true interest cost of 3.95%. The outstanding State Revolving Fund Loans carry interest 
rates from 2.8% to 3.5%. Short-term debt had interest rates ranging from 0.30% to 2.20% at June 30, 2009 and from 
1.52% to 3.62% at June 30, 2008. 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water & Power  – $6,325 in Clean Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs) were issued on November 7, 
2008 to finance the installation of solar energy equipment on selected City-owned facilities. Hetch Hetchy Water and 
Power has not previously issued debt and has instead up to this point relied on revenue from ratepayers to fund 
renewable energy projects. CREBs provide the Hetch Hetchy with low-cost access to capital to further its green 
power objectives. Principal payments in the amount of $422 began on December 15, 2008 and annual payments will 
continue for fifteen years until December 15, 2022. Funding for these payments will be guaranteed by net power 
revenues. Interest payments are not required, since the effective equivalent of interest on the bonds is paid in the 
form of federal tax credits in lieu of interest paid by the issuer. 
 
More information about capital assets and debt activities is presented in notes 4, 6, and 7 to the basic financial 
statements. 
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Economic Factors 
 
Rate Setting Process 
 
Proposition E, as approved by the Voters on November 2002, amended the City Charter by adding the new 
Article VIIB, entitled ―Public Utilities,‖ which changed SFPUC‘s ability to issue new revenue bonds and set retail 
rates. SFPUC is required to: 

 Establish rates, fees, and charges based on cost of service; 

 Retain an independent rate consultant to conduct cost of service studies at least every five years; 

 Consider establishing new connection fees; 

 Consider conservation incentives and lifeline rates; 

 Adopt a rolling five-year forecast annually; and 

 Establish a Rate Fairness Board. 

Pursuant to the City and County of San Francisco Charter Section 8B.125, an independent rate study is performed at 
least once every five years. Rate studies were undertaken in the past year to examine the future revenue requirements 
and cost of service. 
 

Water’s Economic Factors 

Next Year’s Rates 

On August 11, 2009, Water sold $412,000 in 2009 Series A Bonds to finance a portion of the WSIP projects and 
refund outstanding commercial paper. 2009 Series B Bonds in the amount of $412,000 were sold on September 1, 
2009. Outstanding revenue bonds for Water total $1,757,000 as of September 30, 2009. 
 
The Master Water Sales Contract was approved by the City and the wholesale customers in 1984 (see note 9 to the 
basic financial statements).  
 
Retail water rate increases of 15%, 15%, 12.5%, 12.5%, and 6.5% have been approved for the next five fiscal years 
2009 through 2014. A wholesale water rate increase of 15.7% has been approved for fiscal year 2009-2010. 
 
Wholesale customer rates were set pursuant to the Master Water Sales Contract, up through June 30, 2009 when the 
contract expired. A new agreement was negotiated between SFPUC and the Wholesale Customers represented by the 
Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA). The term of the new Water Supply Agreement (WSA) 
began on July 1, 2009 and shall end on June 30, 2034, with two 5-year extension options. 
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The following table is Water‘s average rate adjustments since July 1, 2004: 

Retail Wholesale

Effective date:

July 1, 2004 0 % 2.7 %

July 1, 2005 15.0 (9.7) 1

July 1, 2006 15.0 18.8

July 1, 2007 15.0 2 6.3

July 1, 2008 15.0 10.0

July 1, 2009  3 15.0 15.7

July 1, 2010  
4

15.0 17.6

July 1, 2011  
4

12.5 17.2

July 1, 2012  
4

12.5 17.2

July 1, 2013  
4

6.5 13.6

1 Adjustment effective April 1, 2005

2 Adjustment effective July 14, 2007

3 July 1, 2009 was the first year of the new twenty-five year agreement

4 Wholesale rates are adopted annually. Fiscal years beginning July 1, 2010 are projected rates.

Approved average
rate adjustments
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Wastewater’s Economic Factors 

Next Year’s Rates 

A rate study was completed in the Spring of 2009, which includes examination of future revenue requirements and 
cost of service of Wastewater, and was used to set Wastewater rates for the next five years through fiscal year 2014.  
SFPUC adopted a five-year rate proposal that includes a 7.0% average increase in wastewater rates effective July 1, 
2009 to meet projected costs and coverage requirements, followed by average increases of 7.0%, 5.0%, 5.0%, and 
5.0% for fiscal years 2010, 2011, 2012, and 2013, respectively. 
 

The following table is a history of Wastewater‘s approved average rate adjustments since July 1, 2004: 

Effective Date Rate

July 1, 2004 11.0%   
July 1, 2005 13.0%   
July 1, 2006 13.0%   
July 1, 2007* 8.0 %   
July 1, 2008 9.0 %   
July 1, 2009** 7.0 %   
July 1, 2010 7.0 %   
July 1, 2011 5.0 %   
July 1, 2012 5.0 %   
July 1, 2013 5.0 %   

Approved Average Rate Adjustments

 

* Adjustment effective July 14, 2007. 
** Denotes beginning of five-year rate increase. 

 

Master Plan 

The current Master Plan was finalized in 1974 and brought the City into compliance with Federal and State laws and 
reduced the number of combined sewer discharges. It resulted in a 25-year capital improvement and construction 
program that included the construction of the award-winning Oceanside Plant, upgrade of the Southeast Plant to 
secondary treatment, a new 4.5-mile ocean outfall, and the transport/storage boxes around the city. 
 
Since 2005, the Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP) team has collected and analyzed extensive data, 
including input from the public, and has used it to develop a recommended program of improvements to address 
infrastructure challenges facing the wastewater system. The team presented these draft improvements at numerous 
public meetings and has now folded them into a draft Master Plan. Potential costs of the SSIP are estimated at $3.5 
billion. In the short-term, an interim Capital Improvement Plan (Interim CIP) totaling $297 million has been 
implemented. The SSIP will be further reviewed by SFPUC in early 2010. 
 

http://www.epa.gov/watertrain/cwa/
http://sfwater.org/mto_main.cfm/MC_ID/14/MSC_ID/117/MTO_ID/225
http://sfwater.org/mto_main.cfm/MC_ID/14/MSC_ID/117/MTO_ID/225#southeast
http://sfwater.org/mto_main.cfm/MC_ID/14/MSC_ID/117/MTO_ID/658#storage
http://sfwater.org/detail.cfm/MC_ID/14/MSC_ID/120/MTO_ID/677/C_ID/4294/ListID/2
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Environmental review of the SSIP is anticipated to be complete in 2011. This process, led by the San Francisco 
Planning Department‘s Major Environmental Analysis division will identify environmental impacts of proposed 
actions, identify ways to avoid or reduce environmental damage, and enhance public participation in the planning 
process. 
 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power’s Economic Factors  

An electric revenue requirement model was completed in September 2009. The electric rate setting process will occur 
during fiscal year 2010. Under an existing development agreement, Hetch Hetchy will construct, own and operate 
the electric distribution infrastructure required to provide retail electric service to residential and commercial 
customers in Parcel ―A‖ of the former Hunter‘s Point Shipyard. To date, preparation has been made for service 
standards, development of system plans and specifications, acquisition of materials and equipment, and initiation of 
construction of primary distribution facilities. Concurrent with construction activities, an analysis of projected 
operating and development costs along with cost-based retail electric rates is underway. 
 

Request for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of 
SFPUC‘s finances and to demonstrate SFPUC‘s accountability for the money it receives. Questions regarding any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission, Chief Financial Officer, 1155 Market Street, 11th Floor, San Francisco, CA 
94103. 

http://www.sfgov.org/site/planning_index.asp?id=37672
http://www.sfgov.org/site/planning_index.asp?id=37672
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Net Assets

Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

Assets: 2009 2008

Current assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 338,006$    348,861$    

Cash and investments outside City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 51               46               

Receivables:  

Charges for services, (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 

$2,673 in 2009 and $2,382 in 2008, respectively)...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 84,172        77,404        

Suburban water rate agreement.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27,571        13,870        

Due from other funds.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 197             250             

Due from other governmental agencies, current portion.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 768             169             

Due from other City departments.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31               25               

Interest receivables............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2,742          3,166          

Advances and other receivables............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4,875          4,133          

Loan receivable, current portion......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  134             

Total receivables..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 120,356      99,151        

Deferred charges and other assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3,478          2,120          

Inventories............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 5,696          2,168          

Total current assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 467,587      452,346      

Non-current assets:  

Restricted assets - cash and investments with City Treasury.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 83,203        74,548        

Restricted assets - cash and investments outside City Treasury.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 47,065        41,078        

Restricted assets - interest receivable.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 280             512             

Capital assets not being depreciated..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 708,437      554,822      

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2,461,385   2,333,409   

Due from other governmental agencies .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 16,932        16,436        

Bond issuance costs, (net of accumulated amortization of 

$5,810 in 2009 and $5,324 in 2008, respectively)......................................................................................................................................................... 9,450          9,899          

Loan receivable, net of current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................. -                  188             

Total non-current assets...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3,326,752   3,030,892   

Total assets.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3,794,339   3,483,238   

See accompanying notes to financial statements  (Continued)
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Net Assets

Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

2009 2008

Liabilities:  

Current liabilities:  

Accounts payable.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 37,522        28,216        

Accrued payroll........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 11,888        10,528        

Accrued vacation and sick leave, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 10,295        9,748          

Accrued workers‘ compensation, current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2,730          2,714          

Due to other funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 23               -                  

Due to other City departments........................................................................................................................ 556             -                  

Damage and claim liability, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7,627          10,157        

Deposits, advances, and other liabilities................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5,855          9,440          

Bond and loan interest payable....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12,528        13,060        

Pollution remediation obligation, current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 3,077          2,339          

Revenue bonds, current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 63,735        61,185        

Clean renewable energy bonds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 422             -                  

Commercial paper................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 329,600      50,000        

Loans payable, current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14,199        13,875        

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 47,601        31,927        

Total current liabilities.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 547,658      243,189      

Long-term liabilities:  

Arbitrage rebate payable....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4,265          -                  

Other postemployment benefits obligation............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 48,179        23,455        

Accrued vacation and sick leave, less current portion.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 8,777          8,477          

Accrued workers‘ compensation, less current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 12,605        12,243        

Damage and claim liability, less current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 22,685        25,442        

Deferred revenue, refunds and other liabilities........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 544             89               

Pollution remediation obligation, less current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 610             355             

Revenue bonds, less current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,161,680   1,224,698   

Clean renewable energy bonds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5,295          -                  

Capital appreciation bonds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3,620          3,380          

Loans payable, less current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 61,140        75,508        

Total long-term liabilities.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,329,400   1,373,647   

Total liabilities........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 1,877,058   1,616,836   

Net assets:  

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,595,057   1,524,069   

Restricted for debt service..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29,259        28,750        

Restricted for capital projects........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 11,967        214             

Unrestricted....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 280,998      313,369      

Total net assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,917,281$ 1,866,402$ 

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements  
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2009

(In thousands)

Charges Operating Capital Business-

for Grants and Grants and Type

 Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Total

Primary government:

Business-type activities  

Water..............................................................................................................  277,162$       265,781$        -$               1,784$             (9,597)$        (9,597)$        

Sewer......................................................................................................................................................  184,977         208,654          224             -                     23,901         23,901         

Power.......................................................................................................................  96,228           115,274          -                 -                     19,046         19,046         

Total business-type activities.................................................................................................................................  558,367         589,709          224             1,784              33,350         33,350         

Total primary government............................................................................................................................... 558,367$       589,709$        224$           1,784$             33,350$       33,350         

General Revenues:

Interest and investment income.................................................................................... 13,240         13,240         

Other................................................................................................................................ 5,733           5,733           

Transfers to the City and County of San Francisco......................................................... (1,444)          (1,444)          

 Total general revenues, special item and transfers.....................................17,529         17,529         

  Changes in net assets............................................................................. 50,879         50,879         

 Net assets at beginning of year......................................................................................... 1,866,402     1,866,402     

Net assets at end of year.................................................................................................... 1,917,281$   1,917,281$   

  

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Functions/Programs

Primary GovernmentProgram Revenues

 
THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Activities

Year ended June 30, 2008

(In thousands)

Charges Operating Capital Business-

for Grants and Grants and Type

 Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Total

Primary government:

Business-type activities  

Water..............................................................................................................  252,802$     234,216$     1,958$        -$                   (16,628)$      (16,628)$      

Sewer......................................................................................................................................................  182,712       202,549       -                 -                     19,837         19,837         

Power.......................................................................................................................  109,436       119,855       52              -                     10,471         10,471         

Total business-type activities.................................................................................................................................  544,950       556,620       2,010          -                     13,680         13,680         

Total primary government............................................................................................................................... 544,950$     556,620$     2,010$        -$                   13,680$       13,680$       

General Revenues:

Interest and investment income.................................................................................... 22,975         22,975         

Other................................................................................................................................ 37,752         37,752         

Special item.......................................................................................................................... (41,224)        (41,224)        

Transfers to the City and County of San Francisco......................................................... (450)            (450)            

 Total general revenues, special item and transfers.....................................19,053         19,053         

  Changes in net assets............................................................................. 32,733         32,733         

 Net assets at beginning of year......................................................................................... 1,833,669     1,833,669     

Net assets at end of year.................................................................................................... 1,866,402$   1,866,402$   

  

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Functions/Programs

Program Revenues Primary Government
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THE S A N  F R A N C IS C O P UB LIC  UTILITIES  C OM M IS S ION

Sta tements  o f Cas h Flo ws

Bus ines s -Type  Activities

J une  30, 2009 and 2008

(In tho us ands )

2009 2008

Cas h flo ws  fro m o pera ting ac tivities :

Cas h rece ived fro m cus to mers , inc luding cas h depo s its .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 555,347$   547,112$     

Cas h rece ived fro m tenants  fo r rent.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9,315           9,974          

Cas h pa id to  emplo yees  fo r s e rvices .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (183,051)     (175,976)    

Cas h pa id to  s upplie rs  fo r go o ds  and s ervices .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (187,907)    (180,255)    

Cas h pa id fo r judgments  and c la ims .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (6,488)        (5,177)         

Net cas h pro vided by o pera ting ac tivities .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 187,216       195,678      

Cas h flo ws  fro m no ncapita l and re la ted financ ing ac tivities :  

Opera ting grants .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 118               1,951            

Trans fers  o ut.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (1,444)         (450)            

Cas h rece ived fro m s e ttlements ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,246           4,866          

Cas h rece ived fro m reba tes  and incentive  pro grams ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                   3,361           

Cas h rece ived fro m licens e  fees ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,167            972             

Cas h fro m o ther s o urces ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,083           1,589           

Cas h pa id fo r reba tes  and pro gram incentives ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (2,401)         -                   

Net cas h pro vided by (us ed in) no ncapita l financ ing ac tivities ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (231)             12,289        

Cas h flo ws  fro m capita l and re la ted financ ing ac tivities :  

Capita l grants ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,506           -                   

P ro ceeds  fro m s a le  o f capita l as s e ts ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2,626          24,457       

P ro ceeds  fro m co mmerc ia l paper bo rro wings ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,118,000    185,000      

P ro ceeds  fro m bo nd is s uance , ne t o f dis co unt and is s uance  co s ts ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6,089          -                   

Acquis itio ns  and co ns truc tio n o f capita l as s e ts ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (348,657)   (328,995)   

P rinc ipa l pa id o n co mmerc ia l paper............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (838,400)   (185,000)    

P rinc ipa l pa id o n lo ng-te rm debt............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (25,802)      (19,278)       

P rinc ipa l pa id o n revenue  bo nd............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (36,087)      (34,500)      

P rinc ipa l pa id o n s ta te  revo lving fund lo ans ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (13,762)       (13,337)       

Inte res t pa id o n co mmerc ia l paper............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (2,104)         -                   

Inte res t pa id o n lo ng-te rm debt............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (44,072)      (45,023)      

Inte res t pa id o n revenue  bo nds  and s ta te  lo ans ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (17,959)       (20,325)      

Net cas h us ed in capita l and re la ted financ ing ac tivities ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (198,622)    (437,001)    

Cas h flo ws  fro m inves ting ac tivities :  

Inte res t inco me rece ived............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 13,896        25,810        

P ro ceeds  fro m s a le  o f inves tments  o uts ide  City Treas ury............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 70,388       65,317        

P urchas e  o f inves tments  o uts ide  City Treas ury............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (70,311)        (50,153)       

Other inves ting ac tivities ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,533           2,827          

Net cas h pro vided by inves ting ac tivities ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 15,506        43,801        

Increas e  (decreas e) in cas h and cas h equiva lents ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 3,869          (185,233)    

Cas h and cas h equiva lents :  

Beginning o f year............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 423,482     608,715      

End o f year............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 427,351$    423,482$   

Reco ncilia tio n o f cas h and cas h equiva lents  to  the  s ta tement o f ne t as s e ts :  

Cas h and inves tments  with City Treas ury:  

Unres tric ted............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 338,006$   348,861$    

Res tric ted............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 83,203       74,548       

Cas h and inves tments  o uts ide  City Treas ury:  

Unres tric ted............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 51                 46                

Res tric ted............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6,091           27                

Cas h and cas h equiva lents  a t end o f year o n  

  s ta tements  o f cas h flo ws ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 427,351$    423,482$   

 

See  acco mpanying no tes  to  financ ia l s ta tements  (Co ntinued)
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Cash Flows

Business-Type Activities

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

2009 2008

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by

operating activities:  

Operating income................................................................................................................................................................................................ 75,866$      58,887$      

Adjustment to reconcile operating income to net cash  

provided by operating activities:  

Depreciation................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 99,784        95,737        

Provision for uncollectible accounts........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 291            (2,073)        

Write-off of capital assets........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 7,627         11,099        

Gain from sale of capital asset........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ -                (43)            

Amortization of bond discount and issuance................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 10             -                

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  

Receivables:  

Charges for services.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (7,059)        (2,839)        

Suburban water rate agreement.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (13,701)       (2,004)        

Due from other governmental agencies.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (717)           1,150         

Loan.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 322            134            

Interest and other.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (737)           1,013         

Advances.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (3)              -                

Deferred charges and other assets.................................................................................................................... (1,358)        (2,120)        

Inventories................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (3,528)        (334)           

Accounts payable................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 9,724         2,774         

Due to (from) other City departments.................................................................................................................. 632            (4,856)        

Accrued payroll................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,410         1,144         

Accrued other postemployment benefits obligation.................................................................................................................... 24,724        23,455        

Accrued vacation and sick leave.................................................................................................................... 847            9               

Accrued workers' compensation.................................................................................................................... 378            282            

Pollution remediation obligation.................................................................................................................... 993            (3,925)        

Damage and claim liability............................................................................................................................. (5,287)        15,173        

Deferred credits and other liabilities.................................................................................................................... 455            80             

Deposits, advances, other liabilities.................................................................................................................... (3,457)        2,935         

Total adjustments.................................................................................................................... 111,350      136,791      

Net cash provided by operating activities.................................................................................................................... 187,216$    195,678$    

Non-cash transactions:  

Accrued capital asset costs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 53,905$      38,822$      

Land acquired through real property exchange................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 500            -                

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements  
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Statements of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Assets: 2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Current assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 130,927$   138,654    36,968$   44,361      170,111$ 165,846$  

Cash and investments outside City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 36            36           5            -              10          10           

Receivables:  

Charges for services, (net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $1,187, $1,486, and $0 in 2009 and

$1,439, $943, and $0 in 2008, respectively)...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 38,298       33,690      34,699     34,290      11,175     9,424       

Suburban water rate agreement.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27,571       13,870      -             -              -             -             

Due from other funds.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 197           250          -             -              -             -             

Due from other governmental agencies, current portion.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 337           59           106         -              325         110         

Due from other City departments.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -               -              31           25            -             -             

Interest receivables............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 321           666          169         241          2,252      2,259       

Advances and other receivables............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 788           120          3            -              4,084      4,013       

Loan receivable, current portion......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -               -              -             -              -             134         

Total receivables..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 67,512       48,655      35,008     34,556      17,836     15,940     

Deferred charges and other assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -               -              -             -              3,478      2,120       

Inventories............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,849        1,872       3,586       -              261         296         

Total current assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 200,324     189,217    75,567     78,917      191,696   184,212   

Non-current assets:  

Restricted assets - cash and investments with City Treasury.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 21,726       21,740      61,477     52,808      -             -             

Restricted assets - cash and investments outside City Treasury.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 40,974       41,051      -             27            6,091      -             

Restricted assets - interest receivable.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 117           260          163         252          -             -             

Capital assets not being depreciated..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 565,679     440,949    99,117     84,762      43,641     29,111     

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 935,581     827,045    1,295,806 1,276,099  229,998   230,265   

Due from other governmental agencies .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -               -              -             -              16,932     16,436     

Bond issuance costs, (net of accumulated amortization of

of $3,302, $2,506, and $2 in 2009 and $2,976,

$2,348 and $0 in 2008, respectively)......................................................................................................................................................... 6,834        7,164       2,576       2,735        40          -             

Loan receivable, net of current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -               -              -             -              -             188         

Total non-current assets...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,570,911   1,338,209  1,459,139 1,416,683  296,702   276,000   

Total assets.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,771,235   1,527,426  1,534,706 1,495,600  488,398   460,212   

 

See accompanying notes to financial statements  (Continued)
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THE S AN FRANCIS CO P UB LIC UTILITIES  COMMIS S ION

Statements  of Net Assets

P roprietary Funds

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

Bus iness-Type Activities  - Enterprise Funds

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Liabilitie s :  

Current liabilities :  

Accounts  payable.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 14,778         8,394           7,891              7,096         14,853         12,726       

Accrued payroll........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 6,846           6,009           3,498             3,296         1,544           1,223          

Accrued vacation and s ick leave, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 6,071            5,738           2,770             2,680         1,454           1,330          

Accrued workers ’ compensation, current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 1,551             1,512             774                822             405              380            

Due to  other funds ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 23                 -                    -                      -                   -                    -                  

Due to  other City departments ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ -                    -                    556                -                   -                    -                  

Damage and claim liability, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 2,515            3,011             1,861               2,989         3,251           4,157          

Depos its , advances , and other liabilities ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 4,903           7,157            -                      -                   952              2,283         

Bond and loan interes t payable....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7,420           7,434           5,108              5,626         -                    -                  

P ollution remediation obligation, current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 3,077           2,339           -                      -                   -                    -                  

Revenue bonds , current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 26,605        25,520        37,130           35,665       -                    -                  

Clean renewable energy bonds ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -                    -                    -                      -                   422              -                  

Commercial paper................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 229,600      -                    100,000         50,000       -                    -                  

Loans  payable, current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -                    -                    14,199            13,765        -                    110              

Current liabilities  payable from res tricted assets ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 40,603        27,322        6,998             4,605         -                    -                  

Total current liabilities .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 343,992      94,436        180,785         126,544     22,881         22,209      

Long-term liabilities :  

Arbitrage rebate payable....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4,265           -                    -                      -                   -                    -                  

Other pos temployment benefits  obligation............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 30,967        15,048         11,413             5,684         5,799          2,723         

Accrued vacation and s ick leave, less  current portion.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 5,383           5,118             2,308             2,318          1,086           1,041           

Accrued workers ’ compensation, less  current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7,066           6,623           3,639             3,853         1,900           1,767          

Damage and claim liability, less  current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 7,126            8,243           8,499             6,055         7,060          11,144         

Deferred revenue, refunds  and other liabilities ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ -                    -                    544                89               -                    -                  

P ollution remediation obligation, less  current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 235              355              375                -                   -                    -                  

Revenue bonds , less  current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 906,281       932,890      255,399        291,808     -                    -                  

Clean renewable energy bonds ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -                    -                    -                      -                   5,295          -                  

Capital appreciation bonds ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 3,620           3,380           -                      -                   -                    -                  

Loans  payable, less  current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -                    -                    61,140            75,336       -                    172             

Total long-term liabilities .................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 964,943      971,657       343,317         385,143     21,140          16,847       

Total liabilities ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 1,308,935   1,066,093   524,102         511,687      44,021         39,056      

Ne t as s e ts :  

Inves ted in capital assets , net of related debt............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 349,629      324,091       971,789         940,602    273,639     259,376    

Res tricted for debt service..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 27,899        27,434        1,360              1,316           -                    -                  

Res tricted for capital projects ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 841               214               11,126             -                   -                    -                  

Unres tricted....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 83,931         109,594       26,329          41,995        170,738      161,780      

Total net assets ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 462,300$   461,333$    1,010,604$   983,913$  444,377$  421,156$   

 

See accompanying notes  to  financial s tatements  
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THE S A N  F R A N C IS C O P UB LIC  UTILITIES  C OM M IS S ION

Sta tements  o f Revenues , Expens es , and Changes  in Net As s e ts

P ro prie ta ry Funds

J une  30, 2009 and 2008

(In tho us ands )

Business-Type Activities  - Enterprise Funds

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Opera ting revenues :  

Charges  fo r s e rvices .............................................................................................................. 247,664$   216,819$    199,332$      187,810$     115,028$     119,630$   

Rents  and co nces s io ns ........................................................................................................................ 9,399          9,645         -                      -                   246              225            

Other revenues ...................................................................................................................................................... 8,718           7,752         9,322            14,739        -                    -                  

To ta l o pera ting revenues ................................................................................................................................. 265,781      234,216     208,654       202,549     115,274       119,855     

Opera ting expens es :  

P ers o na l s e rvices ..................................................................................................................... 106,869      102,233     69,141            69,383       36,469        32,175       

Co ntrac tua l s e rvices ...................................................................................................................... 13,619          11,292         13,828           11,973         8,098          3,972        

P urchas ed po wer and re la ted co s ts .............................................................................. -                    -                   -                      -                   18,466         28,548      

Materia ls  and s upplies ...................................................................................................................... 12,671          11,506         5,754            9,539          2,243          2,291         

Deprec ia tio n............................................................................................................................................................................................. 49,100         45,958       38,815           38,758       11,869          11,021         

Services  pro vided by o ther departments  ...................................................................................................... 40,103         34,698       31,634           26,021        4,477          3,701         

Bad debt expens e  ............................................................................................................. 92                4                  576                -                   -                    -                  

Genera l and adminis tra tive ............................................................................................ 2,982          8,209         2,302            1,719            7,347          20,997      

Other............................................................................................................................... 22,879        9,152          7,250            7,852          7,259          6,731         

To ta l o pera ting expens es ................................................................................ 248,315      223,052    169,300        165,245      96,228        109,436    

Opera ting inco me................................................................................................... 17,466         11,164          39,354          37,304       19,046         10,419        

No no pera ting revenues  (expens es ):  

Federa l and s ta te  grant..................................................................................................... 1,784           1,958          224                -                   -                    52              

Inte res t and inves tment inco me................................................................................... 7,088          12,456        1,992             4,099          4,160           6,420        

Inte res t expens e ............................................................................................................. (28,847)      (29,750)     (15,677)         (17,467)       -                    -                  

Net ga in fro m s a le  o f land.............................................................................................. 2,587          24,335       -                      -                   -                    -                  

Other no no pera ting revenues ....................................................................................... 2,831           3,388         798                885             2,705          10,244       

Other no no pera ting expens es ..................................................................................... (799)            (792)           -                      (158)             (2,389)         (150)           

Net no no pera ting revenues  (expens es )........................................................ (15,356)       11,595         (12,663)         (12,641)        4,476          16,566       

Net inco me befo re  s pec ia l items  and trans fers .................................................... 2,110            22,759       26,691           24,663       23,522        26,985      

Spec ia l item:  

Impairment lo s s .................................................................................................................. -                    -                   -                      -                   -                    (41,224)     

Inco me befo re  trans fers .................................................................................... 2,110            22,759       26,691           24,663       23,522        (14,239)     

Trans fers  to  the  City and Co unty o f San Franc is co ......................................................... (1,143)           -                   -                      -                   (301)             (450)          

Changes  in ne t as s e ts .......................................................................................... 967              22,759       26,691           24,663       23,221         (14,689)     

Net as s e ts  a t beginning o f year........................................................................................... 461,333      438,574    983,913        959,250     421,156       435,845   

Net as s e ts  a t end o f year................................................................................................. 462,300$   461,333$   1,010,604$    983,913$    444,377$   421,156$   

 

See  acco mpanying no tes  to  financ ia l s ta tements  
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THE S A N  F R A N C IS C O P U B LIC  U TILITIES  C OM M IS S ION

Statements  o f Cash Flows

Prop rietary Funds

June 30 , 2009  and  2008

(In thousands)

Bus iness-Type Activit ies  - Enterp rise Funds

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows  from operat ing  act ivit ies :

Cash received  from cus tomers , includ ing  cash depos its .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 235,841$   222 ,676$  208 ,067$  198 ,895$  111,439$  125,541$   

Cash received  from tenants  fo r rent .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 ,069        9 ,749         -                  -                 246          22 5           

Cash paid  to  emp loyees  fo r services .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (88 ,027)     (85,633 )     (62 ,702 )     (61,696 )    (32 ,322 )  (28 ,647)    

Cash paid  to  supp liers  fo r goods  and  services .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (78 ,888 )     (71,369 )      (59 ,424 )     (51,723 )     (49 ,595)   (57,163 )     

Cash paid  fo r judgments  and  claims .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (4 ,126 )        (2 ,359 )       (459 )           (1,554 )        (1,903 )      (1,264 )       

Net  cash p rovided  by operat ing  act ivit ies .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 73 ,869      73 ,064      85,482      83 ,922     27,865     38 ,692     

Cash flows  from noncap ital and  related  financing  act ivit ies :  

Operat ing  g rants .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  1,899         118              -                 -                52              

Transfers  out .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (1,143 )         -                  -                  -                 (301)         (450 )          

Cash received  from set t lements .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                 1,246       4 ,866       

Cash received  from rebates  and  incentive p rog rams.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                  -                 -                3 ,361        

Cash received  from license fees .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                  -                 1,167         972           

Cash from o ther sources .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  798            885           285          704           

Cash paid  fo r rebates  and  p rog ram incentives .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                  -                 (2 ,401)      -                 

Net  cash p rovided  by (used  in) noncap ital financing  act ivit ies .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (1,143 )         1,899         916             885           (4 )             9 ,505        

Cash flows  from cap ital and  related  financing  act ivit ies :  

Cap ital g rants .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,506          -                  -                  -                 -                -                 

Proceeds  from sale o f cap ital assets .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 2 ,601         24 ,402      -                  -                 25             55              

Proceeds  from commercial paper bo rrowings .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 890 ,500    -                  227,500    185,000    -                -                 

Proceeds  from bond  issuance, net  o f d iscount  and  issuance cos ts .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                  -                 6 ,089      -                 

Acquis it ions  and  cons truct ion o f cap ital assets .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (251,671)     (234 ,624 )  (69 ,911)      (62 ,087)    (27,075)    (32 ,284 )   

Principal paid  on commercial paper.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (660 ,900 )  -                  (177,500 )    (185,000 )  -                -                 

Principal paid  on long -term deb t .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (25,520 )     (19 ,170 )       -                  -                 (282 )        (108 )          

Principal paid  on revenue bond ..................................................................................................................... -                  -                  (35,665)     (34 ,500 )    (422 )        -                 

Principal paid  on s tate revo lving  fund  loans ..................................................................................................................... -                  -                  (13 ,762 )      (13 ,337)     -                -                 

Interes t  paid  on commercial paper.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (2 ,104 )        -                  -                  -                 -                -                 

Interes t  paid  on long -term deb t ..................................................................................................................... (44 ,065)     (45,023 )     -                  -                 (7)              -                 

Interes t  paid  on revenue bonds  and  s tate loans .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  (17,959 )      (20 ,325)    -                -                 

Net  cash used  in cap ital and  related  financing  act ivit ies .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (89 ,653 )     (274 ,415)    (87,297)     (130 ,249 )  (21,672 )    (32 ,337)    

Cash flows  from inves t ing  act ivit ies :  

Interes t  income received .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 7,576          16 ,600       2 ,153          5,396        4 ,167        3 ,814        

Proceeds  from sale o f inves tments  outs ide City Treasury.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 70 ,388      65,317        -                  -                 -                -                 

Purchase o f inves tments  outs ide City Treasury.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (70 ,311)       (50 ,153 )      -                  -                 -                -                 

Other inves t ing  act ivit ies .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 1,533          2 ,827         -                  -                 -                -                 

Net  cash p rovided  by inves t ing  act ivit ies .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 ,186         34 ,591       2 ,153          5,396        4 ,167        3 ,814        

Increase (decrease) in cash and  cash equivalents .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (7,741)         (164 ,861)    1,254          (40 ,046 )   10 ,356     19 ,674      

Cash and  cash equivalents :  

Beg inning  o f year.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 160 ,430    325,291     97,196       137,242    165,856   146 ,182    

End  o f year.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 152 ,689$   160 ,430$  98 ,450$    97,196$    176 ,212$  165,856$  

Reconciliat ion o f cash and  cash equivalents  to  the s tatement o f net  assets :  

Cash and  inves tments  with City Treasury:  

Unres tricted .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 130 ,927$   138 ,654$   36 ,968$    44 ,361$    170 ,111$    165,846$  

Res tricted .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 21,726       21,740       61,477        52 ,808     -                -                 

Cash and  inves tments  outs ide City Treasury:  

Unres tricted .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 36              36              5                 -                 10             10              

Res tricted .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                  -                  -                  27              6 ,091       -                 

Cash and  cash equivalents  at  end  o f year on  

  s tatements  o f cash flows .......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 152 ,689$   160 ,430$  98 ,450$    97,196$    176 ,212$  165,856$  

 

See accompanying  no tes  to  financial s tatements  
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THE S A N  F R A N C IS C O P UB LIC  UTILITIES  C OM M IS S ION

Sta tements  o f Cas h Flo ws

P ro prie ta ry Funds

J une  30, 2009 and 2008

(In tho us ands )

Bus ines s -Type  Activities  - Enterpris e  Funds

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Reco ncilia tio n o f o pera ting inco me to  ne t cas h pro vided by

o pera ting ac tivities :  

Opera ting inco me................................................................................................................................................................................................ 17,466$    11,164$      39,354$   37,304$   19,046$    10,419$     

Adjus tment to  reco nc ile  o pera ting inco me to  ne t cas h  

pro vided by o pera ting ac tivities :  

Deprec ia tio n....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 49,100      45,958     38,815      38,758     11,869       11,021        

P ro vis io n fo r unco llec tible  acco unts ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ (252)         -                 543           120            -                 (2,193)       

Write -o ff o f capita l as s e ts ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 5,207       8,337       2,071        1,517         349           1,245        

Gain fro m s a le  o f capita l as s e t............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 (43)            

Amo rtiza tio n o f bo nd dis co unt and is s uance ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 -                 -                 10              -                 

Changes  in o pera ting as s e ts  and liabilities :  

Rece ivables :  

Charges  fo r s e rvices ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (4,356)      (1,260)       (952)         (3,775)      (1,751)        2,196        

Suburban water ra te  agreement...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (13,701)     (2,004)      -                 -                 -                 -                 

Due  fro m o ther go vernmenta l agenc ies ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 (6)              -                 (711)           1,150         

Lo an...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 -                 -                 322           134            

Inte res t and o ther...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (666)         498           -                 -                 (71)             515            

Advances ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 (3)              -                 -                 -                 

Deferred charges  and o ther as s e ts ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 -                 -                 (1,358)       (2,120)       

Invento ries ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 23             (308)         (3,586)      -                 35             (26)            

Acco unts  payable ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 6,209       (884)         795           2,602       2,720       1,056        

Due  to  (fro m) o ther City departments ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 76             (4,856)      556           -                 -                 -                 

Accrued payro ll..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 837           482           202           500           371            162            

Accrued o ther po s templo yment benefits  o bliga tio n..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 15,919       15,048      5,729       5,684       3,076       2,723       

Accrued vaca tio n and s ick leave ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 598           (315)          80             268           169            56             

Accrued wo rkers ' co mpens a tio n..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 482           (210)          (262)         531            158            (39)            

P o llutio n remedia tio n o bliga tio n..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 618            (3,925)      375           -                 -                 -                 

Damage  and c la im liability..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (1,613)        4,320       1,316         333           (4,990)      10,520      

Deferred c redits  and o ther liabilities ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -                 -                 455           80             -                 -                 

Depo s its , advances , o ther liabilities ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... (2,078)      1,019         -                 -                 (1,379)       1,916         

To ta l adjus tments ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 56,403     61,900      46,128      46,618      8,819        28,273     

Net cas h pro vided by o pera ting ac tivities ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 73,869$   73,064$   85,482$   83,922$   27,865$   38,692$   

No n-cas h trans ac tio ns :  

Accrued capita l as s e t co s ts ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 40,603$   27,322$   6,998$     4,605$     6,304$     6,895$     

Land acquired thro ugh rea l pro perty exchange ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 500           -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

 

See  acco mpanying no tes  to  financ ia l s ta tements  
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(1) Definition of Reporting Entity 

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC) is a department of the City and County of San 
Francisco (CCSF) that is responsible for the maintenance, operation, and development of three utilities 
enterprises, the Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power.  The San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission was established in 1932. 

Until August 1, 2008, the Commission consisted of five members, all appointed by the Mayor. Proposition E, a 
City and County of San Francisco Charter amendment approved by the voters in the June 3, 2008 election, 
terminated the terms of all five existing members of the Commission, changed the process for appointing new 
members, and set qualifications for all members. Under the amended Charter, the Mayor continues to 
nominate candidates to the Commission, but nominees do not take office until the Board of Supervisors votes 
to approve their appointments by a majority (at least six members). The amended Charter requires the 
Commission members meet the following qualifications: 

1.  Seat 1 must have experience in environmental policy and an understanding of environmental justice 
issues. 

2.  Seat 2 must have experience in ratepayer or consumer advocacy. 

3.  Seat 3 must have experience in project finance. 

4.  Seat 4 must have expertise in water systems, power systems, or public utility management. 

5.  Seat 5 would be an at-large member. 

The amended Charter provides for staggered four-year term for members. Initially, the new members for seats 
2 and 4 will serve two years and the new members for seats 1, 3 and 5 will serve for four years. 

SFPUC is a department of the City, and as such, the financial operations of the Water, Wastewater and Hetch 
Hetchy Water and Power are included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City as enterprise 
funds. These financial statements present only the financial operations of SFPUC alone and are not intended 
to present the financial position of the City as a whole or consolidated entity, the changes in its financial 
position, and the cash flows of its proprietary funds in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles. 

Water 

The San Francisco Water Enterprise (Water) was established in 1930 under the provisions of the Charter of 
the City and County of San Francisco. Water acquired the fully developed, mature water works for San 
Francisco on March 3, 1930. Since then, the City and County of San Francisco (the City) has operated and 
maintained the water works. The Board of Supervisors of the City has adopted resolutions (the Water 
Resolutions) providing for the issuance of various water revenue and refunding bond series.  Operations 
consist of a system of reservoirs, storage tanks, water treatment plants, pump stations, and pipelines, 
distributes water to San Francisco and certain suburban areas. In fiscal 2009, there were approximately 
86,986 million gallons of water distributed to nearly 2.5 million people within San Francisco and certain 
suburban areas. 
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Wastewater 

The San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise (Wastewater), formerly known as, the San Francisco Clean Water 
Program was established in 1977 following the transfer of all sewage-system-related assets and liabilities from 
the City. 

In 1976, the electorate of the City approved a proposition authorizing the City to issue $240,000 in revenue 
bonds pursuant to the Revenue Bond Law of 1941 of the State of California for the purpose of acquiring, 
constructing, improving, and financing improvements to the City‘s municipal sewage treatment and disposal 
system. Since then, the City‘s Board of Supervisors has adopted resolutions (Wastewater Resolutions) 
providing for the issuance of various sewer revenue and refunding bond series. The Wastewater Resolutions 
require the City to keep separate books of records and accounts of Wastewater. 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power was established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913, which granted water and 
power resources rights-of-way on the Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park and Stanislaus National 
Forest to the City and County of San Francisco (the City). Hetch Hetchy Water and Power is engaged in the 
collection and conveyance of approximately 85% of the City‘s water supply and in the generation and 
transmission of electricity from that resource. Approximately 79% of the electricity is used by the City‘s 
municipal customers (e.g. the San Francisco Municipal Railway, the Recreation and Parks Department, the Port 
of San Francisco, San Francisco General Hospital, City street lights, Moscone Center, Water and Wastewater). 
As a result of the 1913 Raker Act, energy produced above the City‘s Municipal Load is sold first to Modesto 
and Turlock Irrigation Districts (the Districts) to cover their pumping and municipal load needs and any 
remaining energy either sold to other Municipalities and/or Government Agencies (not for resale) or deposited 
into an account under the City‘s agreement with PG&E. The system consists of reservoirs, hydroelectric power 
plants, aqueducts, pipelines, and transmission lines, which carries water and power more than 165 miles from 
the Sierra Nevada to customers in the City and portions of the surrounding San Francisco Bay Area. 

Wholesale electric power is purchased from various energy providers for use in conjunction with owned hydro 
resources to meet the power requirements of customers. Operations and business decisions can be greatly 
influenced by market conditions, state and federal power matters before the California Public Utilities 
Commission (CPUC), the California Independent System Operator (CAISO), and the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC). Therefore, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power serves as the City‘s 
representative at CPUC, CAISO and FERC forums and continues to monitor regulatory proceedings. 

(2) Significant Accounting Policies 

(a) Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

Department-wide and fund financial statements 

The department-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. 

The accounts of the Water, Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy Water & Power are organized on the basis of 
a proprietary fund type and are included as enterprise funds of the City and County of San Francisco, 
California. The activities are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise 
the funds‘ assets, liabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses. The funds account for activities (i) that 
are financed with debt that is secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and charges of the 
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activity; or (ii) that are required by laws or regulations that the activity‘s costs of providing services, 
including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather 
than with taxes or similar revenues; or (iii) that the pricing policies of the activity establish fees and 
charges designed to recover its costs, including capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service). 

The financial activities of the Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water & Power are accounted for 
on a flow of economic resources measurement focus, using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this 
method, all assets and liabilities associated with operations are included on the statements of net assets; 
revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred. Water and 
Wastewater‘s operating revenues are defined as charges to customers, rental income and capacity fees 
while Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s operating revenues are defined as charges to customers and 
rental income. Operating expenses include the costs of delivering services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. Revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as 
nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The funds do not apply Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations 
issued after November 30, 1989. The funds apply all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) pronouncements, as well as statements and interpretations of the FASB, Accounting 
Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Committee on Accounting 
Procedures issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or 
contradict GASB pronouncements. 

(b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Pooled deposits and investments held with the City Treasury are considered demand deposits and, 
therefore, cash equivalents for financial reporting. The City also holds non-pooled cash and investments 
for the enterprises. Non-pooled restricted deposits and investments held outside the City Treasury with 
maturities of three months or less are also considered to be cash equivalents.  

(c) Investments 

Money market funds are carried at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value based on quoted 
market prices. Changes in fair value are recognized as investment gains or losses. 

(d) Deferred Charges 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s deferred charges consist of costs incurred to generate the power that 
has been placed in the Municipal Deviation (MDA) and Deferred Delivery (DDA) Accounts under the 
provisions of the interconnection agreement with PG&E (see note 14(a) to the basic financial 
statements).  

(e) Inventory 

Inventory consists primarily of construction materials and maintenance supplies, and is valued at 
historical average cost. Inventory is expensed as it is consumed. 

(f) Capital Assets 

Capital assets for Water are stated at cost. Capital assets for Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and 
Power with an original acquisition date prior to July 1, 1977 are recorded in the financial statements at 
estimated cost, as determined by an independent professional appraisal, or at cost, if known. All 
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subsequent acquisitions have been recorded at cost. Depreciation and amortization are computed using 
the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from 3 to 
75 years for equipment and 3 to 175 years for buildings, structures, and improvements. No depreciation 
or amortization is recorded in the year of acquisition, and a full year‘s depreciation is recorded in the 
year of disposal. 

(g) Construction in Progress 

The costs of acquisition and construction of major plant and equipment are recorded as construction in 
progress. Costs of discontinued construction projects are recorded as an expense in the year in which 
the decision is made to discontinue such projects. 

(h) Capitalization of Interest 

When applicable, the portion of the interest cost incurred on capital projects is capitalized for assets that 
require a period of time to construct or to otherwise prepare them for their intended use. Such amounts 
are amortized over the useful lives of the assets. 

(i) Bond Discount, Premium, and Issuance Costs 

Bond discount, premium, and issuance costs are amortized over the term of the related bonds on a 
method which approximates the effective interest method basis. 

(j) Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave 

Accrued vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to ten weeks per employee, is charged to expense 
as earned. Sick leave earned subsequent to December 6, 1978 is non-vesting and may be accumulated up 
to six months per employee. 

(k) Workers’ Compensation 

Workers‘ compensation claims are covered through a City-wide self-insurance pool and the estimated 
cost of claims are accrued based on actuarial estimates, including the estimated cost of incurred but not 
reported claims. 

(l) Damage and Claim Liability 

General liability and uninsurable property damage claims are covered through a City-wide self-insurance 
pool. Commercially uninsurable property includes assets that are underground or provide transmission 
and distribution. Maintained commercial coverage does not cover claims attributed to loss from 
earthquake, contamination, pollution remediation efforts and other specific naturally occurring 
contaminants such as mold. The liability represents an estimate of the cost of all outstanding claims, 
including adverse loss development, and estimated incurred but not reported claims. 

(m) Arbitrage Rebate Payable 

Certain bonds are subject to arbitrage rebate requirements in accordance with regulations issued by the 
U.S. Treasury Department. The requirements generally stipulate that earnings from the investment of 
the tax-exempt bond proceeds that exceed related interest costs on the bonds must be remitted to the 
federal government on every fifth anniversary of each bond issue. Water‘s liability for arbitrage rebate 
was $4,265 and $0 at June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, respectively.  No arbitrage liability is recorded for 
Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy for the years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008. 
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(n) Refunding of Debt 

Gains or losses occurring from advance refunding of debt are deferred and amortized into interest 
expense over the remaining life of the old bonds or the life of the new bonds, whichever is shorter. 

(o) Income Taxes 

As a government agency, the enterprises are exempt from both federal income taxes and California state 
franchise taxes. 

(p) Revenue Recognition 

Charges for water, wastewater and power services are based on usage. Generally, customers are billed on 
a cyclical basis with large commercial and industrial customers billed monthly, and all other customers‘ 
bi-monthly.  Revenues earned but unbilled are accrued as charges for services receivable on the 
statements of net assets.   

(q) Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles 
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(r) Reclassifications 

Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year amounts to conform to current year presentation. 

(s) Eliminations 

Eliminations for internal activities between the Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
Enterprises are made in the consolidated statement of activities.  There were no activities requiring 
elimination during the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008. 

(t) Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 

In June 2004, GASB issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which addresses how state and local governments should 
account for and report their costs and obligations related to postemployment healthcare and other non-
pension benefits. Collectively, these benefits are commonly referred to as other postemployment 
benefits, or OPEB. The statement generally requires that employers account for and report the annual 
cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the 
same manner as they currently do for pensions. The annual OPEB cost for most employers will be 
based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing basis, generally would provide 
sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due. This statement‘s provisions may be applied 
prospectively and do not require governments to fund their OPEB plans. An employer may establish its 
OPEB transition liability at zero as of the beginning of the initial year of implementation; however, the 
unfunded actuarial liability is required to be amortized over future periods. This statement also 
establishes disclosure requirements for information about the plans in which an employer participates, 
the funding policy followed, the actuarial valuation process and assumptions, and, for certain employers, 
the extent to which the plan has been funded over time. As of July 1, 2007, the enterprises implemented 



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands) 

86 

the new reporting requirements in the financial statements and established its OPEB transition liability 
at zero.  

(u) Effects of New Pronouncements 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Pollution Remediation Obligations 

For fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, the enterprises had adopted GASB Statement 49, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations. More detailed information about the enterprises 
environmental pollution remediation obligations are presented in note 14(e) to the financial statements. 

To provide governments with better accounting guidance and consistency, GASB Statement 49, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, identifies the circumstances under 
which a governmental entity would be required to report a liability related to pollution remediation. 
According to the standard, a government would have to estimate its expected outlays for pollution 
remediation if it knows a site is polluted and any of the following recognition triggers occur: 

 Pollution poses an imminent danger to the public or environment and a government has little or no 
discretion to avoid fixing the problem;  

 A government has violated a pollution prevention-related permit or license;  

 A regulator has identified (or evidence indicates it will identify) a government as responsible (or 
potentially responsible) for cleaning up pollution, or for paying all or some of the cost of the clean 
up;  

 A government is named (or evidence indicates that it will be named) in a lawsuit to compel it to 
address the pollution; or  

 A government begins or legally obligates itself to begin cleanup or post-cleanup activities (limited to 
amounts the government is legally required to complete).  

As a part of ongoing operations, situations may occur requiring the removal of pollution or other 
hazardous material. These situations typically arise in the process of acquiring an asset, preparing an 
asset for its intended use, or during the Design Phase of projects under review by the Project Managers. 
Other times, pollution may arise during the implementation and construction of a major or minor capital 
project, such as the Water System Improvement Project (WSIP) or one of the many capital 
improvement projects currently underway in the Infrastructure Bureau. 

Examples of pollution may include, but are not limited to: 

 Asbestos or lead paint removal; 

 Leaking of sewage in underground pipes or neighboring areas; 

 Chemical spills; 

 Removal and disposal of known toxic waste; 
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 Harmful biological and chemical pollution of water; and 

 Contamination from contents in underground storage tanks (UST). 

Water recorded $3,312 and $2,694 in pollution remediation costs as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.  Wastewater recorded $375 and $0 in pollution remediation costs as of June 30, 2009 and 
2008, respectively.  Hetch Hetchy Water and Power reported no pollution remediation obligation costs 
at June 30, 2009 and 2008. 

(3) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments with the City Treasury are invested pursuant to investment policy 
guidelines established by the City Treasurer and are treated as cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes. 
The objectives of the policy guidelines are, in order of priority, preservation of capital, liquidity, and yield. The 
policy addresses soundness of financial institutions in which the City will deposit funds, types of investment 
instruments as permitted by the California Government Code, and the percentage of the portfolio which may 
be invested in certain instruments with longer terms to maturity. The City Treasurer allocates income from the 
investment of pooled cash at month end in proportion to the enterprises average daily cash balances. 

Department-wide cash, cash equivalents and investments are shown on the accompanying statements of net 
assets as follows: 

2009 2008

Current assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury $ 338,006 348,861

Cash and investments outside City Treasury 51 46

Noncurrent assets – restricted assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury 83,203 74,548

Cash and investments outside City Treasury 47,065 41,078

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 468,325 464,533

 

The primary objectives of the SFPUC‘s investment policy are consistent with the City‘s policy. 

The following table shows the percentage distribution of the City‘s pooled investments by maturity as of 
June 30, 2009: 

Investment maturities (in months)

Under 1 1 to less than 6 6 to less than 12 12 to 60

9.9% 27.0% 8.8% 54.3%
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The following table shows the percentage distribution of the City‘s pooled investments by maturity as of 
June 30, 2008: 

Investment maturities (in months)

Under 1 1 to less than 6 6 to less than 12 12 to 60

6.9% 52.7% 11.6% 28.8%

 

Water  

Restricted assets are held by an independent trustee outside the City‘s investment pool. The assets are held for 
the purpose of paying future interest and principal on the bonds and for eligible capital project expenditures. 
Water‘s balances as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $40,974 and $41,051, respectively.  All investments were 
held in either guaranteed investment contracts or in money funds consisting of Treasury Obligations. The 
guaranteed investment contracts mature in 2008 and 2013. The Treasury Obligations have an average maturity 
of 46 days in fiscal year 2009 and 14 days in fiscal year 2008. 

Funds held by the trustee established under the 2002 amended and restated Indentures agreements are 
invested in ―Permitted Investments,‖ as defined in the agreement, which includes money market funds and 
investment agreements. The agreement permits investment in money market funds registered under the 
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and whose shares are also registered under the Federal Securities 
Act of 1933 and having a rating by Standard & Poor‘s of ―AAAm-G,‖ ―AAAm‖ or ―AAm‖ and a rating by 
Moody‘s of ―Aaa,‖ ―Aa1‖ or ―Aa2.‖ Investment agreements must be with a U.S. bank or trust company having 
a rating by Moody‘s and S&P of ―A‖ or higher, or are guaranteed by any entity with a rating of ―A‖ or higher, 
at the time the agreement is entered into. The credit ratings of the guaranteed investment contracts as of 
June 30, 2009 were ―Aa2‖ by Moody‘s and ―A+‖ by Standard & Poor‘s. The credit ratings of the money 
market funds as of June 30, 2009 and June 30, 2008, were ―Aaa‖ by Moody‘s and ―AAAm‖ by Standard & 
Poor‘s. 

Additional cash outside of the investment pool includes $36 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, which is held in a 
commercial bank in non-interest bearing checking accounts which are covered by Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation (FDIC) depository insurance. These accounts were established as provided by the City‘s 
Administrative Code for revolving fund needs. 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are shown on the accompanying statements of net assets as follows: 

2009 2008

Current assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury $ 130,927 138,654

Cash and investments outside City Treasury 36 36

Noncurrent assets – restricted assets:

Cash and investments with City Treasury 21,726 21,740

Cash and investments outside City Treasury 40,974 41,051

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 193,663 201,481
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Wastewater  

The restricted asset for bond reserves is held by an independent trustee outside the City investment pool. The 
balances as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 were $0 and $27, respectively. 

Funds held by the trustee established under the 2003 Indenture are invested in ―Permitted Investments‖ as 
defined in the Indenture. ―Permitted Investments‖ include money market funds registered under the Federal 
Investment Company Act of 1940 and whose shares are registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933 
and having a rating by Standard & Poor‘s of ―AAAm-G,‖ ―AAAm,‖ or ―AAm‖ and a rating by Moody‘s of 
―Aaa,‖ ―Aa1,‖ or ―Aa2.‖ The credit ratings of the money market funds invested in as of June 30, 2009 and 
June 30, 2008 were ―Aaa‖ by Moody‘s and ―AAAm‖ by Standard & Poor‘s. 

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are shown on the accompanying statements of net assets as follows: 

2009 2008

Current assets:
Cash and investments with City Treasury $ 36,968   44,361   
Cash and investments outside City Treasury 5   —   

Noncurrent assets – restricted assets:
Cash and investments with City Treasury 61,477   52,808   
Cash and investments outside City Treasury —   27   

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments $ 98,450   97,196   

 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

Non-pooled cash outside of the investment pool is $6,101 and $10 at June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
Balances include CREBs proceeds of $6,091 deposited into a Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) 
insured money market fund with a weighted average maturity of 44 days, and $10 held at a commercial bank in 
a non-interest bearing checking account that is covered by depository insurance. The account was established 
as provided by the City‘s Administrative Code. The money market fund was rated ―AAAm‖ and ―Aaa‖ by 
Standard & Poor‘s and Moody‘s, respectively, at June 30, 2009.  

Cash, cash equivalents and investments are shown on the accompanying statements of net assets as follows: 

2009 2008

Current and noncurrent assets:

Pooled cash and investments with City Treasury $ 170,111 165,846

Nonpooled cash and investments outside City Treasury 6,101 10

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments $ 176,212 165,856
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(4) Capital Assets 

Department-wide 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following: 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 44,267  582  —  44,849  

Construction in progress 510,555  379,885  (226,852) 663,588  

Total capital assets

not being depreciated 554,822  380,467  (226,852) 708,437  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 3,829,596  195,308  —  4,024,904  

Machinery and equipment 228,842  32,416  (1,295) 259,963  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 4,058,438  227,724  (1,295) 4,284,867  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (1,574,875) (87,368) 51  (1,662,192) 

Machinery and equipment (150,154) (12,416) 1,280  (161,290) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (1,725,029) (99,784) 1,331  (1,823,482) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 2,333,409  127,940  36  2,461,385  

Total capital assets, net $ 2,888,231  508,407  (226,816) 3,169,822  

 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 44,660  379  (772) 44,267  

Construction in progress 413,079  337,527  (240,051) 510,555  

Total capital assets

not being depreciated 457,739  337,906  (240,823) 554,822  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 3,649,672  179,924  —  3,829,596  

Machinery and equipment 211,572  18,476  (1,206) 228,842  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 3,861,244  198,400  (1,206) 4,058,438  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (1,491,022) (83,853) —  (1,574,875) 

Machinery and equipment (139,416) (11,884) 1,146  (150,154) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (1,630,438) (95,737) 1,146  (1,725,029) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 2,230,806  102,663  (60) 2,333,409  

Total capital assets, net $ 2,688,545  440,569  (240,883) 2,888,231  
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Water 

Capital assets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following: 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 17,886  500  —  18,386  

Construction in progress 423,063  282,705  (158,475) 547,293  

Total capital assets

not being depreciated 440,949  283,205  (158,475) 565,679  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 1,287,404  138,776  —  1,426,180  

Machinery and equipment 128,758  18,821  (791) 146,788  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 1,416,162  157,597  (791) 1,572,968  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (496,886) (41,085) 51  (537,920) 

Machinery and equipment (92,231) (8,015) 779  (99,467) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (589,117) (49,100) 830  (637,387) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 827,045  108,497  39  935,581  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,267,994  391,702  (158,436) 1,501,260  

 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 18,277  —  (391) 17,886  

Construction in progress 311,098  242,954  (130,989) 423,063  

Total capital assets

not being depreciated 329,375  242,954  (131,380) 440,949  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 1,166,073  121,331  —  1,287,404  

Machinery and equipment 122,584  6,835  (661) 128,758  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 1,288,657  128,166  (661) 1,416,162  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (458,981) (37,905) —  (496,886) 

Machinery and equipment (84,796) (8,053) 618  (92,231) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (543,777) (45,958) 618  (589,117) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 744,880  82,208  (43) 827,045  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,074,255  325,162  (131,423) 1,267,994  
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Capital assets with a useful life of 50 years or greater include buildings and structures, reservoirs, dams, 
treatment plants, pump stations, certain water mains and pipelines, sewer systems, tunnels, and bridges. 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement 34, Capitalization of Interest Costs, requires that interest 
expense incurred during construction of assets be capitalized.  

Interest included in the Construction in Progress and total interest expense incurred during the years ended 
June 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008

Interest expensed $ 28,847 29,750

Interest included in construction in progress 22,135 15,333

$ 50,982 45,083

 

During fiscal years ending in 2009 and 2008, $5,207 and $7,885 were expensed, respectively, related to 
capitalized design and planning costs on certain projects. The amounts of the write-offs were recognized as 
other operating expenses in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 

During the fiscal year ending June 30 2007, 525 Golden Gate was purchased for $9,900 from the City General 
Fund and as of June 30, 2009 $12,669 has been spent in development costs. The building is intended to 
consolidate divisions of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission that are currently renting space at 
multiple locations in the Civic Center. Demolition of the existing site was completed in June 2009, while site 
improvement phases such as shoring, underpinning and excavation are currently underway. Construction is 
expected to start in January 2010 with an expected completion date of February 2012, followed by an expected 
occupancy date of April 2012. 
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Wastewater  

Capital assets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following: 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 21,787  —  —  21,787  

Construction in progress 62,975  73,538  (59,183) 77,330  

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 84,762  73,538  (59,183) 99,117  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 2,057,625  51,757  —  2,109,382  

Machinery and equipment 51,583  6,765  (335) 58,013  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 2,109,208  58,522  (335) 2,167,395  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (807,038) (36,368) —  (843,406) 

Machinery and equipment (26,071) (2,447) 335  (28,183) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (833,109) (38,815) 335  (871,589) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 1,276,099  19,707  —  1,295,806  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,360,861  93,245  (59,183) 1,394,923  

 

Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights of way $ 22,168  —  (381) 21,787  

Construction in progress 42,856  63,315  (43,196) 62,975  

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 65,024  63,315  (43,577) 84,762  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 2,018,942  38,683  —  2,057,625  

Machinery and equipment 46,224  5,734  (375) 51,583  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 2,065,166  44,417  (375) 2,109,208  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (770,443) (36,595) —  (807,038) 

Machinery and equipment (24,277) (2,163) 369  (26,071) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (794,720) (38,758) 369  (833,109) 

Total capital assets

being depreciated, net 1,270,446  5,659  (6) 1,276,099  

Total capital assets, net $ 1,335,470  68,974  (43,583) 1,360,861  
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Capital assets with a useful life of 50 years or greater include buildings and structures, sewers, waste water 
treatment plants, pump stations, and other pipelines. 

FASB Statement 34, Capitalization of Interest Costs, requires that interest expense incurred during construction of 
assets be capitalized.  

Interest included in the Construction in Progress and total interest expense incurred during the years ended 
June 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008

Interest expensed $ 15,677 17,467

Interest included in construction in progress 2,644 3,064

$ 18,321 20,531

 
During fiscal years ending in 2009 and 2008, $2,071 and $1,517 were expensed, respectively, related to 
capitalized design and planning costs on certain projects. The amounts of the write-offs were recognized as 
other operating expenses in the accompanying statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power  

Capital assets as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 consist of the following: 

Balance Balance

June 30, 2008 Increases Decreases June 30, 2009

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights-of-way $ 4,594  82  —  4,676  

Construction in progress 24,517  23,642  (9,194) 38,965  

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 29,111  23,724  (9,194) 43,641  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 484,567  4,775  —  489,342  

Machinery and equipment 48,501  6,830  (169) 55,162  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 533,068  11,605  (169) 544,504  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (270,951) (9,915) —  (280,866) 

Machinery and equipment (31,852) (1,954) 166  (33,640) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (302,803) (11,869) 166  (314,506) 

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 230,265  (264) (3) 229,998  

Total capital assets, net $ 259,376  23,460  (9,197) 273,639  
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Balance Balance

July 1, 2007 Increases Decreases June 30, 2008

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land and rights-of-way $ 4,215  379  —  4,594  

Construction in progress 59,125  31,258  (65,866) 24,517  

Total capital assets not

being depreciated 63,340  31,637  (65,866) 29,111  

Capital assets being depreciated:

Facilities and improvements 464,657  19,910  —  484,567  

Machinery and equipment 42,764  5,907  (170) 48,501  

Total capital assets

being depreciated 507,421  25,817  (170) 533,068  

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Facilities and improvements (261,598) (9,353) —  (270,951) 

Machinery and equipment (30,343) (1,668) 159  (31,852) 

Total accumulated

depreciation (291,941) (11,021) 159  (302,803) 

Total capital assets being

depreciated, net 215,480  14,796  (11) 230,265  

Total capital assets, net $ 278,820  46,433  (65,877) 259,376  

 

Capital assets with a useful life of 50 years or greater include buildings and structures, dams, reservoirs, pump 
stations, generators, tunnels, and pipelines. 

During fiscal year 2009, capital assets not being depreciated had an increase of $23,724 and a decrease of 
$9,194 resulting in a net increase of $14,530. The net increase was mainly due to additional expenditures in 
construction in progress. In fiscal years 2009 and 2008, construction in progress of $349 and $42,469 was 
written off, respectively. In fiscal year 2008, the combustion turbine project was written down by $41,224 
because the City‘s future power need is expected to be met by the Trans Bay Cable project.  

Capital assets being depreciated had an increase of $11,605 and a decrease of $169 which resulted in a net 
increase of $11,436. 
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(5) Restricted Assets 

Water  

Pursuant to the Indentures, all revenues (except amounts on deposit in the rebate fund) are irrevocably pledged 
to the punctual payment of debt service on the outstanding Revenue and Refunding Bonds. Accordingly, the 
revenues shall not be used for any other purpose while any Revenue and Refunding Bonds are outstanding, 
except as expressly permitted by the Indentures. Further, all revenues shall be deposited by the City Treasurer,  
in special funds designated as the Water Revenue Fund, which must be maintained in the City Treasury. These 
funds, held at the City Treasury, are recorded in the statements of net assets as cash and investments with the 
City Treasury. Deposits in the Water Revenue Fund, including earnings thereon, shall be appropriated, 
transferred, expended, or used for the following purposes pertaining to the financing, maintenance, and 
operations in accordance with the following priority: 

1.  The payment of operation and maintenance expenses for such utility and related facilities; 

2.  The payment of pension charges and proportionate payments to such compensation and other insurance 
or outside reserve funds as the Commission may establish or the Board of Supervisors may require with 
respect to employees; 

3.  The payment of principal, interest, reserve, sinking fund, and other mandatory funds created to secure 
Revenue Bonds issued by Water for the acquisition, construction, or extension of facilities owned, 
operated, or controlled by Water; 

4.  The payment of principal and interest on General Obligation Bonds issued by the City for Water‘s 
purposes; 

5.  Reconstruction and replacement as determined by SFPUC or as required by any of Revenue Bond 
ordinances duly adopted and approved; and 

6.  The acquisition of land, real property, or interest in real property for, and the acquisition, construction, 
enlargement, and improvement of, new and existing buildings, structures, facilities, equipment, appliances, 
and other property necessary or convenient to the development or improvement of such utility owned, 
controlled, or operated by Water; and for any other lawful purpose, including the transfer of surplus funds 
pursuant to Section 6.407(e) of the City‘s Charter. 
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In accordance with the Indenture, the Program maintains certain restricted cash and investment balances in 
trust. Restricted assets held in trust consisted of the following as of June 30, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008

Cash and investments with City Treasury:

Water revenue bond construction fund $ 21,726 21,740

Cash and investments outside City Treasury:

1991 Water revenue bond fund 15 15

2001A Water revenue bond fund 2,611 2,585

2002A Water revenue bond fund 3,363 3,315

2002B Water revenue bond fund 4,647 4,580

2006A Water revenue bond fund 25,564 25,781

2006B Water revenue bond fund 2,869 2,882

2006C Water revenue bond fund 1,905 1,893

Total cash and investments outside

City Treasury 40,974 41,051

Interest receivable:

Water bond construction fund 117 260

Total restricted assets $ 62,817 63,051

 

Restricted cash listed above as cash and investments with City Treasury are held in sub-funds of the Water 
Revenue Fund. 

Wastewater  

The Master Bond Resolution was discharged upon the issuance of the 2003 Refunding Series A Bonds. 
Pursuant to the Indenture, which became effective with the issuance of the 2003 Refunding Series A Bonds, all 
net revenues (except amounts on deposit in the rebate fund) are irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment 
of debt service on the revenue bonds. Accordingly, the net revenues shall not be used for any other purpose 
while any of its revenue bonds are outstanding except as expressly permitted by the Indenture. Further, all net 
revenues shall be deposited by the City Treasurer, by instruction of the Enterprise, in special funds designated 
as the Revenue Fund, which must be maintained in the City Treasury. These funds, held at the City Treasury, 
are recorded in the statements of net assets as deposits and investments with the City Treasury. Deposits in the 
Revenue Fund, including earnings thereon, shall be appropriated, transferred, expended, or used for the 
following purposes and only in accordance with the following priority: 

1. The payment of operation and maintenance costs; 

2. The payment of state loans; 

3. The payment of bonds, parity state loans, policy costs, and amounts due as reimbursement under any 
letter of credit agreement; and  

4. Any other lawful purpose. 
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In accordance with the Indenture, certain restricted cash and investment balances are maintained in trust. 
Restricted assets held in trust consisted of the following as of June 30, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008

Deposits and investments with City Treasury:

Sewer Bond Construction Fund $ 61,477    52,808   

Deposits and investments outside City Treasury:

2003A Clean Water Revenue Refunding Bond Fund —     27   

Interest receivable:

Sewer Bond Construction Fund 163    252   

Total restricted assets $ 61,640    53,087   

 

Restricted cash listed above as deposits and investments with the City Treasury are held in subfunds of the 
Sewer Revenue Fund of the City Treasury. 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power  

Pursuant to the Master Lease/Purchase Agreement (Agreement), net power revenues of Hetch Hetchy Water 
and Power are irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment of debt service on the Clean Renewable Energy 
Bonds (CREBs). Accordingly, net power revenue shall not be used for any other purpose while any of its 
CREBs are outstanding, except as expressly permitted by the Agreement. Further, all revenues shall be 
deposited by the City Treasurer, in special funds designated as the Power Revenue Fund, which must be 
maintained in the City Treasury. These funds are recorded in the statements of net assets of Hetch Hetchy 
Water and Power as deposits and investments with the City Treasury.  

Deposits in the Power Revenue Fund, including earnings thereon, shall be appropriated, transferred, expended, 
or used for the following purposes pertaining the financing, maintenance, and operation of Hetch Hetchy 
Water and Power in accordance with the following priority: 

1.  The payment of operation and maintenance expenses for such utility and related facilities; 

2.  The payment of pension charges and proportionate payments to such compensation and other insurance 
or outside reserve funds as the Commission may establish or the Board of Supervisors may require with 
respect to employees; 

3.  The payment of principal, interest, reserve, sinking fund, or other mandatory funds created to secure long-
term financing for the acquisition, construction, or extension of facilities owned, operated, or controlled by 
Hetch Hetchy Water and Power; 

4.  Reconstruction and replacement as determined by Hetch Hetchy Water and Power or as required by any 
financing ordinances duly adopted and approved; and 

5.  The acquisition of land, real property, or interest in real property for, and the acquisition, construction, 
enlargement, and improvement of, new and existing buildings, structures, facilities, equipment, appliances, 
and other property necessary or convenient to the development or improvement of such utility owned, 
controlled, or operated by Hetch Hetchy Water and Power; and for any other lawful purpose including the 
transfer of surplus funds pursuant to Section 6.407(e) of the City‘s Charter. 
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In accordance with the Agreement, certain restricted cash and investment balances are maintained in trust. 
Restricted assets held in trust consist of the following as of June 30, 2009 and 2008: 

2009 2008

Restricted cash and investments outside City Treasury –

2008 Clean Renewable Energy Bond Fund $ 6,091    —    

 

(6) Short-Term Debt 

Water  

The Commission and Board of Supervisors have authorized the issuance of up to $500,000 in commercial 
paper for the purposes of repairing or replacing capital improvements. Pursuant to the voter-approved 2002 
Proposition A, Water is authorized to issue up to $1,628,000 of indebtedness, of which, $507,815 in long-term 
bonds were previously issued in fiscal year 2006 and $890,500 in short-term commercial paper were issued 
during fiscal year 2009. Short-term commercial paper had an average yield of 1.4% and maximum yield at 2.9% 
during fiscal year 2009. Water had commercial paper notes outstanding at June 30, 2009 as follows: 

2009

Balance, beginning of year $ —    

Additions 890,500   

Reductions (660,900)  

Balance, end of year $ 229,600   

 

Wastewater  

The Commission and Board of Supervisors have authorized the issuance of up to $150,000 in commercial 
paper, under the voter-approved 2002 Proposition E, for the purpose of reconstructing, expanding, repairing 
or improving Wastewater‘s facilities. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, there was $100,000 and $50,000, 
respectively, in commercial paper notes outstanding. The commercial paper program is supported by a letter of 
credit issued by BNP Paribas and is dated as of February 1, 2007 with U.S. Bank Trust N.A. as agent bank. 
The letter of credit will expire on February 13, 2012. For the year ended June 30, 2009, interest rates on the 
commercial paper ranged from 0.30% to 2.20% with due dates ranging from July 8, 2008 to October 8, 2009. 

2009 2008

Balance, beginning of year $ 50,000    50,000   

Additions 227,500    185,000   

Reductions (177,500)   (185,000)  

Balance, end of year $ 100,000    50,000   

 

Maturity dates of the June 30, 2009 outstanding balance ranged from July 16, 2009 to October 8, 2009. 
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(7) Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Department-wide  

Long-term liability activities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

Due

July 1, June 30, within

2008 Additions Reductions 2009 one year

Revenue Bonds:

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding Series A $ 328,325  —  (35,665) 292,660  37,130  

2001A revenue bonds 80,410  —  (2,830) 77,580  2,945  

2002A revenue bonds 150,620  —  (3,100) 147,520  3,260  

2002B revenue refunding bonds 57,580  —  (6,155) 51,425  6,375  

2006A revenue bonds 505,230  —  (8,170) 497,060  8,505  

2006B revenue refunding bonds 107,230  —  (2,985) 104,245  3,145  

2006C revenue refunding bonds 45,840  —  (2,280) 43,560  2,375  

Less deferred amounts:

Less bond discount —  (194) 8  (186) —  

For issuance premiums 43,318  —  (2,029) 41,289  —  

For refunding loss (32,670) —  2,746  (29,924) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 1,285,883  (194) (60,460) 1,225,229  63,735  

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds —  6,325  (422) 5,903  422  

California Energy Commission loan 282  —  (282) —  —  

State of California revolving loans 89,101  —  (13,762) 75,339  14,199  

Capital appreciation bonds 3,380  240  —  3,620  —  

Other postemployment benefits obligation 23,455  24,724  —  48,179  —  

Arbitrage rebate payable —  4,265  —  4,265  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 18,225  13,095  (12,248) 19,072  10,295  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 14,957  3,156  (2,778) 15,335  2,730  

Damage and claim liability 35,599  9,406  (14,693) 30,312  7,627  

Deferred revenue 89  535  (80) 544  —  

Pollution remediation obligation 2,694  2,075  (1,082) 3,687  3,077  

Total $ 1,473,665  63,627  (105,807) 1,431,485  102,085  
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Due

July 1, June 30, within

2007 Additions Reductions 2008 one year

Revenue Bonds:

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding Series A $ 362,825  —  (34,500) 328,325  35,665  

2001A revenue bonds 83,115  —  (2,705) 80,410  2,830  

2002A revenue bonds 153,570  —  (2,950) 150,620  3,100  

2002B revenue refunding bonds 63,495  —  (5,915) 57,580  6,155  

2006A revenue bonds 507,815  —  (2,585) 505,230  8,170  

2006B revenue refunding bonds 110,065  —  (2,835) 107,230  2,985  

2006C revenue refunding bonds 48,020  —  (2,180) 45,840  2,280  

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 45,282  —  (1,964) 43,318  —  

For refunding loss (35,332) (119) 2,781  (32,670) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 1,338,855  (119) (52,853) 1,285,883  61,185  

California Energy Commission loan 390  —  (108) 282  110  

State of California revolving loans 102,438  —  (13,337) 89,101  13,765  

Capital appreciation bonds 3,155  225  —  3,380  —  

Other postemployment benefits obligation —  23,455  —  23,455  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 18,216  11,736  (11,727) 18,225  9,748  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 14,676  3,380  (3,099) 14,957  2,714  

Damage and claim liability 20,427  27,999  (12,827) 35,599  10,157  

Deferred revenue 9  80  —  89  —  

Pollution remediation obligation 6,618  168  (4,092) 2,694  2,339  

Total $ 1,504,784  66,924  (98,043) 1,473,665  100,018  
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Water  
 
Long-term liability activities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

Final Due

Interest maturity July 1, June 30, within

rate date 2008 Additions Reductions 2009 one year

Revenue Bonds:

2001A revenue bonds 4.0 – 5.0% 2031 $ 80,410  —  (2,830) 77,580  2,945  

2002A revenue bonds 2.5 – 5.0   2032 150,620  —  (3,100) 147,520  3,260  

2002B revenue refunding bonds 3.0 – 5.0   2015 57,580  —  (6,155) 51,425  6,375  

2006A revenue bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2036 505,230  —  (8,170) 497,060  8,505  

2006B revenue refunding bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2026 107,230  —  (2,985) 104,245  3,145  

2006C revenue refunding bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2026 45,840  —  (2,280) 43,560  2,375  

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 25,952  —  (1,023) 24,929  —  

For refunding loss (14,452) —  1,019  (13,433) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 958,410  —  (25,524) 932,886  26,605  

Capital appreciation bonds 7.0   2019 3,380  240  —  3,620  —  

Other postemployment benefits

obligation 15,048  15,919  —  30,967  —  

Arbitrage rebate payable —  4,265  —  4,265  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 10,856  8,715  (8,117) 11,454  6,071  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 8,135  2,195  (1,713) 8,617  1,551  

Damage and claim liability 11,254  7,946  (9,559) 9,641  2,515  

Pollution remediation obligation 2,694  1,700  (1,082) 3,312  3,077  

Total $ 1,009,777  40,980  (45,995) 1,004,762  39,819  

 

Final Due

Interest maturity July 1, June 30, within

rate date 2007 Additions Reductions 2008 one year

Revenue Bonds:

2001A revenue bonds 4.0 – 5.0% 2031 $ 83,115  —  (2,705) 80,410  2,830  

2002A revenue bonds 2.5 – 5.0   2032 153,570  —  (2,950) 150,620  3,100  

2002B revenue refunding bonds 3.0 – 5.0   2015 63,495  —  (5,915) 57,580  6,155  

2006A revenue bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2036 507,815  —  (2,585) 505,230  8,170  

2006B revenue refunding bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2026 110,065  —  (2,835) 107,230  2,985  

2006C revenue refunding bonds 4.0 – 5.0   2026 48,020  —  (2,180) 45,840  2,280  

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 26,912  —  (960) 25,952  —  

For refunding loss (15,388) (119) 1,055  (14,452) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 977,604  (119) (19,075) 958,410  25,520  

Capital appreciation bonds 7.0   2019 3,155  225  —  3,380  —  

Other postemployment benefits

obligation —  15,048  —  15,048  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 11,171  7,500  (7,815) 10,856  5,738  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 8,346  1,557  (1,768) 8,135  1,512  

Damage and claims liability 6,934  13,104  (8,784) 11,254  3,011  

Pollution remediation obligation 6,618  168  (4,092) 2,694  2,339  

Total $ 1,013,828  37,483  (41,534) 1,009,777  38,120  
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(a) Capital Appreciation Bonds 

The capital appreciation bonds mature from November 1, 2018 through November 1, 2019. The bonds 
were originally insured by MBIA and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and Standard & 
Poor‘s (S&P), respectively. In February 2009, the municipal bond issuance portfolio was transferred to 
an MBIA subsidiary named National Public Finance Guarantee Corporation (National) and carried 
―Baal‖ and ―A‖ ratings from Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. As of October 2009, MBIA was rated 
―Ba3‖ and ―BB+‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively, while National had affirmed ratings of ―Baa1‖ and 
―A‖ from Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. Interest on the capital appreciation bonds is due upon 
maturity and is recognized as annual interest expense over the life of the bonds using the interest 
method. Water has recognized $3,620 and $3,380 of unpaid principal and interest on the capital 
appreciation bonds as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and has reported it as capital appreciation 
bonds in the accompanying statements of net assets. 

(b) Water Revenue Bonds Series 2001A 

During fiscal year 2002, $140,000 of Water Revenue Bonds 2001 Series A (2001 Series A Bonds) were 
issued. The bonds were insured by FSA and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and 
Standard & Poor‘s, respectively. As of October 2009, FSA was rated ―Aa3‖ and ―AAA‖ by Moody‘s and 
S&P, respectively. The Revenue Bonds include current interest serial and term bonds with interest rates 
varying from 4% to 5%. The current interest serial bonds mature through November 1, 2021 and the 
current interest term bonds mature on November 1, 2024, 2027, and 2031. In March 2006, $45,630 of 
the 2001 A serial and term bonds with maturities of November 2016 to November 2024 were refunded 
by the 2006 Refunding Series B Water Revenue Bonds. 

(c) Water Revenue Bonds Series 2002A 

During fiscal year 2003, $164,000 of Water Revenue Bonds 2002 Series A (2002 Series A Bonds) were 
issued. The bonds were insured by MBIA and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and 
Standard & Poor‘s, respectively. In February 2009, the bonds were further reinsured by National and 
carried ―Baal‖ and ―A‖ ratings from Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. As of October 2009, MBIA was 
rated ―Ba3‖ and ―BB+‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively, while National had affirmed ratings of 
―Baal‖ and ―A‖ from Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. As of October 2009, MBIA was rated ―Ba3‖ and 
―BB+‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. The Revenue Bonds include interest and serial and term 
bonds with interest rates varying from 2.5% to 5.0%. The current interest serial bonds mature through 
November 1, 2026 and the current interest term bonds mature on November 1, 2025 and 2032. 

(d) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2002B 

During fiscal year 2003, 2002 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series B (the 2002B Refunding Bonds) 
were issued in the amount of $85,260 with interest rates ranging from 3% to 5%. The bonds were 
insured by MBIA and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s, 
respectively. In February 2009, the bonds were further reinsured by National and carried ―Baal‖ and ―A‖ 
ratings from Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. As of October 2009, MBIA was rated ―Ba3‖ and ―BB+‖ 
by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively, while National had affirmed ratings of ―Baal‖ and ―A‖ from Moody‘s 
and S&P, respectively. The current interest serial bonds mature through November 1, 2015. 
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(e) Water Revenue Bonds Series 2006A 

During fiscal year 2006, 2006 Water Revenue Bonds, Series A (the 2006 Series A Bonds) were issued in 
the amount of $507,815. The purpose of the bonds is to finance improvements to the City‘s water 
systems pursuant to Proposition A and to retire commercial paper outstanding. The bonds were insured 
by FSA and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s, respectively. As of 
October 2009, FSA was rated ―Aa3‖ and ―AAA‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. The 2006 Series A 
Bonds include current interest and serial and term bonds with interest rates ranging from 4% to 5%. The 
current interest serial bonds mature through November 1, 2027 and the current interest term bonds 
mature on November 1, 2031 and 2033 and 2036. 

(f) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2006B 

During fiscal year 2006, 2006 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series B (the 2006B Refunding Bonds) 
were issued in the amount of $110,065. The purpose of the bonds is to refund a portion of the 1996A 
Series A Bonds and the 2001 Series A Bonds. The bonds were insured by Syncora (formerly XL) and 
carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s, respectively. As of October 
2009, Syncora was rated ―Ca‖ and ―R‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. The 2006B Refunding Bonds 
include serial bonds with interest rates varying from 4% to 5%. The current interest serial bonds mature 
through November 1, 2026. 

(g) Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2006C 

During fiscal year 2007, 2006 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series C (the 2006 Refunding Bonds) 
were issued in the amount of $48,730 for the purpose of refunding the remaining portion of the 
outstanding 1996 Series A Bonds maturing on and after November 1, 2007 (the Refunded 1996 Series A 
Bonds). The bonds were insured by Syncora (formerly XL) and carried ―Aaa‖ and ―AAA‖ ratings from 
Moody‘s and Standard & Poor‘s, respectively. As of October 2009, Syncora was rated ―Ca‖ and ―R‖ by 
Moody‘s and S&P, respectively. The 2006C Refunding Bonds include serial bonds with interest rates 
varying from 4% to 5%. The current interest serial bonds mature through November 1, 2026. 

A portion of the proceeds from sale of the 2006 Refunding Series C Bonds were used to establish an 
irrevocable escrow to refund and legally defease, on a current basis, the Refunded 1996 Series A Bonds. 
Accordingly, the liability for the refunded bonds has been removed from the accompanying statements 
of net assets. 

A portion of the proceeds on the 2006 Refunding Series C Bonds were deposited with the Trustee, 
acting as escrow agent under the irrevocable Refunding Instructions, dated August 1, 2006, given by the 
Water Enterprise to the escrow agent. 

The amounts deposited from the proceeds of the 2006 Refunding Series C Bonds, together with certain 
other available moneys, were held by the escrow agent under the Refunding Instructions and invested in 
non-callable Federal Securities (as described in the Indenture) consisting of United States Treasury 
Securities-State and Local Government Series (SLGS), the principal of and interest on which, when 
received, were sufficient to pay the principal redemption price of, including premium and interest on the 
Refunded 1996 Series A Bonds on November, 2006, by optional redemption on that date. 
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(h) Future Annual Debt Service of Revenue Bonds 

The future annual debt service relating to the Revenue and Refunding Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 
2009 is as follows: 

Principal Interest

Years ending June 30:

2010 $ 26,605    42,991   

2011 27,795    41,784   

2012 29,190    40,401   

2013 30,610    38,984   

2014 32,090    37,510   

2015 – 2019 153,470    164,233   

2020 – 2024 159,705    128,192   

2025 – 2029 184,395    86,839   

2030 – 2034 188,280    41,066   

2035 – 2037 89,250    6,493   

921,390    $ 628,493   

Less current portion (26,605)  

Add unamortized bond premium, net of discount

and refunding loss 11,496   

Long-term portion as of June 30, 2009 $ 906,281   

 

As defined in the Indentures, the principal and interest of Water‘s Revenue and Refunding Bonds are 
payable from its corresponding revenue, as well as monies deposited in certain funds and accounts 
pledged thereto (see note 5 to the basic financial statements). 

(i) Proposition A 

On November 5, 2002, the San Francisco voters passed Proposition A, which provides for the issuance 
of revenue bonds and/or other forms of indebtedness by SFPUC in a principal amount not to exceed 
$1,628,000 to finance the acquisition and construction of improvements to the City‘s Water System. As 
of June 30, 2009, commercial paper of $229,600 was outstanding pursuant to this authorization and 
$507,800 of bonds had been issued in fiscal year 2006 against this authorization. 

(j) Proposition E 

On November 5, 2002, the San Francisco voters passed Proposition E, which authorizes the issuance of 
revenue bonds and/or other forms of indebtedness by SFPUC to finance costs for SFPUC‘s capital 
programs, including WSIP. As of June 30, 2009, no commercial paper was outstanding pursuant to this 
authorization, but SFPUC authorized the issuance of up to $1,322,000 in revenue bonds against this 
authorization. 



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

June 30, 2009 and 2008 

(Dollars in thousands) 

106 

Wastewater 

Long-term liability activities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

Final Due

Interest maturity July 1, June 30, within

rate date 2008 Additions Reductions 2009 one year

Revenue bonds:

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding

Series A 3.00 to 5.25% 2025 $ 328,325  —  (35,665) 292,660  37,130  

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 17,366  —  (1,006) 16,360  —  

For refunding loss (18,218) —  1,727  (16,491) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 327,473  —  (34,944) 292,529  37,130  

State of California revolving

loans 2.80 to 3.50% 2021 89,101  —  (13,762) 75,339  14,199  

Other post employment benefits

obligations 5,684  5,729  —  11,413  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 4,998  2,904  (2,824) 5,078  2,770  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 4,675  428  (690) 4,413  774  

Damage and claims liability 9,044  1,460  (144) 10,360  1,861  

Deferred revenue 89  535  (80) 544  —  

Pollution remediation obligation —  375  —  375  —  

Total $ 441,064  11,431  (52,444) 400,051  56,734  

 

Final Due

Interest maturity July 1, June 30, within

rate date 2007 Additions Reductions 2008 one year

Revenue bonds:

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding

Series A 3.00 to 5.25% 2025 $ 362,825  —  (34,500) 328,325  35,665  

Less deferred amounts:

For issuance premiums 18,370  —  (1,004) 17,366  —  

For refunding loss (19,944) —  1,726  (18,218) —  

Total revenue bonds payable 361,251  —  (33,778) 327,473  35,665  

State of California revolving

loans 2.80 to 3.50% 2021 102,438  —  (13,337) 89,101  13,765  

Other postemployment benefits

obligations —  5,684  —  5,684  —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 4,730  2,829  (2,561) 4,998  2,680  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 4,144  1,236  (705) 4,675  822  

Damage and claim liability 8,711  1,182  (849) 9,044  2,989  

Deferred revenue 9  80  —  89  —  

Total $ 481,283  11,011  (51,230) 441,064  55,921  
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The payments of principal and interest amounts on various bonds are secured by the net revenues. 

(a) Revenue Bonds, 2003 Refunding Series A 

During fiscal year 2003, 2003 Refunding Series A Bonds (Refunding Bonds) was issued in the amount of 
$396,270 with interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.25%. 

During fiscal year 2005, cash and equivalents held in the Bond Reserve Fund were substituted with a 
bond reserve fund policy of $34,199, which was the largest reserve requirement pursuant to the 
Indenture. The surety bond policy was issued by MBIA, which is currently rated ―BB+‖ and ―Ba3‖ by 
S&P and Moody‘s, respectively as of September 25, 2009. This policy is further reinsured by the 
National Public Finance Corporation, which is currently rated ―Baal‖ and ―A‖ by Moody‘s and S&P, 
respectively. The cash released by the substitution will be used for improvements to capital projects in 
accordance with the Indenture. 

Future Annual Debt Service of Refunding Bonds 

The future annual debt service relating to the Refunding Bonds outstanding as of June 30, 2009 is as 
follows: 

Principal Interest

Years ending June 30:
2010 $ 37,130    13,183   
2011 26,320    11,827   
2012 22,010    10,959   
2013 23,095    9,941   
2014 24,395    8,754   
2015 – 2019 90,925    27,001   
2020 – 2024 62,530    8,197   
2025 – 2026 6,255    315   

292,660    $ 90,177   

Less:
Current portion (37,130)  
Unamortized bond premiums and refunding loss (131)  

           Long-term portion as of June 30, 2009 $ 255,399   

 

As defined in the Indenture, the principal and interest are payable from revenue as well as monies 
deposited in certain funds and accounts pledged thereto (see note 5 to the basic financial statements). 
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(b) State Revolving Fund Loans 

Wastewater has entered into several contracts with the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 
under which borrowing up to prescribed maximum amounts is permitted to finance the construction of 
certain facilities. Loans outstanding as of June 30, 2009 and 2008 are summarized as follows: 

June 30

2009 2008

Date of Maturity Interest Loan Amount Amount

Project issuance date rate amount outstanding outstanding

Oceanside 07/25/90 2010 3.4% $ 40,000  5,233  7,723  

Oceanside 06/13/91 2011 3.5 32,376  4,255  6,275  

Oceanside 12/24/93 2013 2.9 14,102  4,345  5,142  

Mariposa 01/28/91 2011 3.5 7,624  1,009  1,488  

Mariposa 06/24/92 2012 3.1 1,936  371  487  

Lake Merced 01/29/92 2012 3.1 21,114  4,038  5,303  

Islais Creek 10/08/92 2012 3.0 5,706  1,416  1,745  

Islais Creek 09/07/93 2013 3.1 26,800  8,251  9,756  

Islais Creek 06/17/94 2014 2.9 15,105  5,543  6,378  

Islais Creek 01/09/96 2016 3.4 21,720  10,118  11,379  

Islais Creek 08/04/00 2020 2.9 18,026  12,020  12,848  

Rankin Pump 12/23/96 2016 2.8 27,000  13,222  14,679  

Rankin Pump 01/23/01 2021 2.9 8,274  5,518  5,898  

$ 239,783  75,339  89,101  

 

Repayment of interest and principal is being made in installments with the final amount due between 15 
and 20 years after the first disbursement by SWRCB. Disbursements are made by SWRCB as funds are 
spent for the projects. Compliance with applicable federal and state regulations is required. The future 
annual debt service relating to the State Revolving Fund Loans outstanding as of June 30, 2009 is as 
follows: 

Principal Interest Total

Years ending June 30:
2010 $ 14,199   2,307   16,506   
2011 14,648   1,855   16,503   
2012 9,594   1,389   10,983   
2013 8,322   1,099   9,421   
2014 8,192   848   9,040   
2015 – 2019 17,028   1,649   18,677   
2020 – 2021 3,356   147   3,503   

75,339   $ 9,294   84,633   

Less current portion (14,199)  

        Long-term portion as of June 30, 2009 $ 61,140   
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Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

Long-term liability activities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 were as follows: 

Due

July 1, June 30, with in

2008 Additions Reductions 2009 one year

California Energy

Commission loan $ 282   —   (282) —   —  

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds —   6,325 (422) 5,903 422  

Less bond discount —   (194) 8 (186)  —  

Other postemployment benefits

obligation 2,723   3,076   —   5,799 —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 2,371   1,476   (1,307) 2,540 1,454  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 2,147   533   (375) 2,305 405  

Damage and claim liability 15,301   —   (4,990) 10,311 3,251  

Total $ 22,824   11,216   (7,368) 26,672 5,532  

 

Due

July 1, June 30, with in

2007 Additions Reductions 2008 one year

California Energy

Commission loan $ 390   —   (108)  282   110  

Other postemployment benefits

obligation —   2,723   —   2,723   —  

Accrued vacation and sick leave 2,315   1,407   (1,351)  2,371   1,330  

Accrued workers‘ compensation 2,186   587   (626)  2,147   380  

Damage and claim liability 4,782   13,713   (3,194)  15,301   4,157  

Total $ 9,673   18,430   (5,279)  22,824   5,977  

 

(a) State of California Energy Commission (CEC) Loan 

In November 2002, a $971 loan from the California Energy Commission was received with an annual 
interest rate of 3% and semiannual repayments of $74 beginning on December 22, 2003. Originally the 
loan had a final maturity date of December 22, 2010; however, the loan was retired early in April 2009. 
Proceeds from the loan were used to provide funding for an energy conservation project undertaking at 
San Francisco General Hospital (SFGH). Under the loan terms, annual energy use reports are required 
to be prepared and submitted to the California Energy Commission for three years following the 
completion of the project. The reports are to demonstrate the cost of energy saved as a result of the 
project. In August 2003, the California Energy Commission loan was renegotiated and Hetch Hetchy 
Water and Power received a $200 grant, which was utilized to pay down the original loan.  

Pursuant to the terms of a memorandum of understanding agreement entered with the San Francisco 
General Hospital, repayments are required for the cost of the project, less any amount received under 
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State grant programs. Payments received from the San Francisco General Hospital subsequent to April 
2009 will accrue to fund balance, as the loan was paid in full. 

(b) Clean Renewable Energy Bonds 

$6,325 in Clean Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs) were issued on November 7, 2008 to finance the 
installation of solar energy equipment on selected City-owned facilities. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
has not previously issued debt and has instead up to this point relied on revenue from ratepayers to fund 
renewable energy projects. CREBs provide SFPUC with low-cost access to capital to further its green 
power objectives. 

Principal payments in the amount of $422 began on December 15, 2008 and annual payments will 
continue for fifteen years until December 15, 2022. Funding for these payments will be guaranteed by 
net power revenues. Interest payments are not required, since the effective equivalent of interest on the 
bonds is paid in the form of federal tax credits in lieu of interest paid by the issuer. 

The future annual debt service relating to the CREBs outstanding as of June 30, 2009 is as follows: 

Year ending June 30:

2010 $ 422   

2011 422   

2012 422   

2013 422   

2014 422   

2015 – 2019 2,110   

2020 – 2023 1,683   

5,903   

Less: current portion (422)  

Less: unamortized discount (186)  

Long-term portion as of June 30, 2009 $ 5,295   

 

(8) Revenue Pledge 

Water 

Future revenues are pledged to repay various revenue bonds. Proceeds from the revenue bonds provided 
financing for various capital construction projects, and to refund previously issued bonds. The bonds are 
payable solely from revenues of Water and are payable through the year ending 2036. Annual principal and 
interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 56% of future revenues through the year 
2036. 
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The original amount of revenue bonds issued, total principal and interest remaining, principal and interest paid 
during 2009, and applicable revenues for 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008

Bonds issued with revenue pledge $ 1,108,500    1,108,500   

Principal and interest remaining due at the end of the year 1,549,883    1,619,467   

Principal and interest paid during the year 69,585    64,193   

Net revenue for the year ended June 30 82,978    143,926   

 

Wastewater 

Future revenues are pledged to repay various revenue bonds. Proceeds from the revenue bonds provided 
financing for various capital construction projects, and to refund previously issued bonds. The bonds are 
payable solely from revenues of Wastewater and are payable through the year 2026. Annual principal and 
interest payments on the bonds are expected to require less than 27% of future revenues through the year 
2026. 

The original amount of revenue bonds issued, total principal and interest remaining, principal and interest paid 
during 2009 and 2008, and applicable revenues for 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

2009 2008

Bonds issued with revenue pledge $ 396,270    396,270   

Principal and interest remaining due at the end of the year 382,837    433,147   

Principal and interest paid during the year 50,311    50,198   

Net revenue for the year ended June 30 71,130    106,692   

 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

Future power revenues are pledged to repay Clean Renewable Energy Bonds which were issued in fiscal year 
2009. Proceeds form the revenue bonds provided financing for various capital construction projects. The 
bonds are payable solely from net power revenues of Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and are payable through 
the year ending 2022. Annual principal on the bonds are expected to require less than 1.0% of future revenues 
through the year 2022. 

The original amount of revenue bonds issued, total principal remaining, principal paid during 2009, and 
applicable revenues for 2009 are as follows: 

Bonds issued with revenue pledge $ 6,325   

Principal and interest remaining due at the end of the year 5,903   

Principal and interest paid during the year 422   

Net revenue for the year ended June 30 53,241   
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(9) Suburban Water Rate Agreement 

During 1984, the City entered into a Settlement Agreement and Master Water Sales Contract (the Suburban 
Water Rate Agreement) with certain suburban customers, which establishes the basis for water rates to be 
charged to those customers (the Suburban Purchasers). Pursuant to the terms of the Suburban Water Rate 
Agreement, the City is required to establish water rates applicable to the Suburban Purchasers at the beginning 
of each fiscal year. The suburban water rates are based on an estimate of the level of revenues necessary to 
recoup the cost of distributing water to the Suburban Purchasers in accordance with the methodology outlined 
in Article IV of the Suburban Water Rate Agreement (the Suburban Revenue Requirement). During fiscal years 
ending in 2009 and 2008, the Suburban Revenue Requirement, net of adjustments, charged to such suburban 
customers was $131,831 and $115,927, respectively. Such amounts are subject to final review by the suburban 
customers, based on the Suburban Revenue Requirement calculation. 

Pursuant to Article V, Section 5.07 of the Suburban Water Rate Agreement, the City is required to re-compute 
the Suburban Revenue Requirement after the close of each fiscal year based on the actual costs incurred in the 
delivery of water to the Suburban Purchasers. The difference between the suburban revenues earned during 
the year and the ―actual‖ Suburban Revenue Requirement is recorded in a separate account (the Balancing 
Account) and represents the cumulative amount that is either owed to the Suburban Purchasers (if the 
suburban revenues exceed the Suburban Revenue Requirement) or owed to the City (if the Suburban Revenue 
Requirement exceeds the suburban revenues paid). In accordance with Article V of the Suburban Water Rate 
Agreement, the amount recorded in the Balancing Account shall earn interest at a rate equal to the average rate 
received by the City during the year on the invested pooled funds of the City Treasurer, and shall be taken into 
consideration in the determination of subsequent suburban water rates. Upon the expiration of the Suburban 
Water Rate Agreement, the remaining balance in the Balancing Account shall be determined and collected 
from the Suburban Purchasers. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Suburban Purchasers owed Water $27,571 
and $13,870, respectively, under the terms of the Suburban Water Rate Agreement. Subsequently, the June 30, 
2008 amount was revised to $20,626, based on the audited final balancing account statement dated May 27, 
2009. 

(10) Other Revenue – Trans Bay Cable Construction and Licensing Fees 

On August 7, 2007, San Francisco Mayor Gavin Newsom and the Board of Supervisors approved and adopted 
Resolution No. 070315, two non-exclusive licenses to the Trans Bay Cable LLC (the ―Licensee‖) for the 
―Trans Bay Cable Project‖. 

The Trans Bay Cable LLC proposes to install, operate and maintain approximately 53 miles of high voltage 
direct current (―HVDC‖) PLUS transmission cable bundle of approximately 10 inches in diameter running 
from the City of Pittsburg to the City and County of San Francisco (the ―City‖). Approximately 9.4 miles of 
the cable are in submerged lands, a small portion of shoreline, and on a portion of a street that are under Port 
Commission jurisdiction (the ―License Area‖). 

The first license is a Construction License, Port Commission License No. 14324, a non-exclusive license to 
install a 400 MW high voltage transmission line, with a four (4) year term. The ―Licensee‖ will pay the Port of 
San Francisco under this license and Hetch Hetchy $3,500 in 36 annual installments of $97 as the ―Renewable 
Energy, Transmission and Grid Reliability Payment‖. Hetch Hetchy received the first annual payment of $97 
in September 2007.  

The second license is an Operational License, Port Commission License No. 14325, a non-exclusive license for 
operation of the transmission line with twenty-five (25) year term with an option to renew for ten (10) years. 
The ―Licensee‖ will pay Hetch Hetchy in excess of $20,000 in 10 separate installments of $2,000 annually with 
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adjustments for inflation, as the ―San Francisco Electric Reliability Payment‖ to implement, advance, promote 
or enhance policies and projects consistent with City Energy Policies. Once the project is on line, which is 
currently scheduled in 2010, Hetch Hetchy will receive the first installment of $2,000. 

For fiscal years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008, $1,069 and $972, respectively, of Construction License revenue 
have been included in revenue related to this project, and are restricted for purposes designated by the San 
Francisco Board of Supervisors under the agreement.  

(11) Employee Benefits 

(a) Retirement Plan 

Plan Description – the enterprises participate in the City‘s single-employer defined benefit retirement plan 
(the Plan) which is administered by the San Francisco City and County Employees‘ Retirement System 
(the Retirement System). The Plan covers substantially all full-time employees of the enterprises along 
with other employees of the City. The Plan provides basic service retirement, disability, and death 
benefits based on specified percentages of final average salary and provides cost-of-living adjustments 
after retirement. The Plan also provides pension continuation benefits to qualified survivors. The San 
Francisco City and County Charter and Administrative Code are the authority which establishes and 
amends the benefit provisions and employer obligations of the Plan.  

Funding Policy – Contributions to the basic plan are made by both the SFPUC and its employees. 
Employee contributions are mandatory. Employee contribution rates for 2009, 2008 and 2007 varied 
from 5.0% to 8.0% as a percentage of covered payrolls. Due to certain bargaining agreements, SFPUC 
contributed from 0.5% to 8.0% of covered payroll on behalf of some employees. In addition, SFPUC is 
required to contribute for 2009, 2008 and 2007 at an actuarially determined rate as a percentage of 
covered payroll of 4.99%, 5.91%, and 6.24%, respectively. Water contributed 100% of its required 
contribution of $6,946 in 2009, $7,694 in 2008, and $7,614 in 2007.  Wastewater contributed 100% of its 
required contributions of $2,320 in 2009, $2,658 in 2008, and $2,605 in 2007.  Hetch Hetchy Water and 
Power contributed 100% of its required contribution of $1,231 in 2009, $1,326 in 2008, and $1,335 in 
2007. 

The Retirement System issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information for the Plan. That report may be obtained by writing to the San 
Francisco City and County Employees‘ Retirement System, 30 Van Ness Avenue, Suite 3000, San 
Francisco, CA 94102, or by calling (415) 487-7020. 

(b) Health Care Benefits 

Health care benefits of the enterprises‘ employees, retired employees and surviving spouses are financed 
by beneficiaries and by the City through the City and County of San Francisco Health Service System 
(the Health Service System). Contributions are determined by a San Francisco Charter provision based 
on similar contributions made by the 10 most populous counties in California.  Water‘s annual 
contribution was approximately $19,982 and $18,660 in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively.  
Wastewater‘s annual contribution was approximately $7,382 and $6,992 in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.  Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s annual contribution was approximately $3,929 and 
$3,424 in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively.   

Included are $5,621 and $5,317 for 2009 and 2008, respectively, to provide postretirement benefits for 
Water‘s retired employees, $1,862 and $1,761 for 2009 and 2008, respectively, for Wastewater‘s retired 
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employees, and $921 and $871 for 2009 and 2008, respectively, for Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s 
retired employees, on a pay-as-you-go basis.  In addition, the City allocated an additional $155 and $201 
to Water‘s, $55 and $73 to Wastewater‘s, and $29 and $36 to Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s 
contribution allocation for payments made from the Health Service System for postretirement health 
benefits in 2009 and 2008, respectively. 

The City has determined a City-wide Annual Required Contribution (ARC), interest on net Other 
postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB) Obligation, ARC adjustment, and OPEB cost 
based upon an actuarial valuation performed in accordance with GASB 45, by the City‘s actuaries. The 
City‘s allocation of the OPEB related costs to Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
for the year ended June 30, 2009 based upon its percentage of City-wide payroll costs is presented 
below.  

The City issues a publicly available financial report that includes the complete note disclosures and 
Required Supplementary Information (RSI) related to the City‘s post retirement health care obligations. 
The report may be obtained by writing to the City and County of San Francisco, Office of the 
Controller, 1 Dr. Carlton B. Goodlett Place, Room 316, San Francisco, CA 94102, or by calling (415) 
554-7500. 

The following tables show the components of the City‘s annual OPEB allocations for the years ended 
June 30, 2009 and 2008, for the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the City‘s net OPEB 
obligation (dollar amount in thousands): 

Department-wide 

Hetch Hetchy 

Water Wastewater Water  & Power Total

Annual required contribution $ 21,522    7,585    3,993    33,100   

Interest on net OPEB Obligation 667    235    125    1,027   

Adjustment to ARC (494)   (174)   (92)   (760)  

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 21,695    7,646    4,026    33,367   

Contribution made (5,776)   (1,917)   (950)   (8,643)  

Increase in net OPEB obligation 15,919    5,729    3,076    24,724   

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year 15,048    5,684    2,723    23,455   

Net OPEB obligation – end of year $ 30,967    11,413    5,799    48,179   

2009
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Hetch Hetchy 

Water Wastewater Water  & Power Total

Annual required contribution $ 20,566    7,518    3,630    31,714   

Interest on net OPEB Obligation —     —     —     —    

Adjustment to ARC —     —     —     —    

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 20,566    7,518    3,630    31,714   

Contribution made (5,518)   (1,834)   (907)   (8,259)  

Increase in net OPEB obligation 15,048    5,684    2,723    23,455   

Net OPEB obligation – beginning of year —     —     —     —    

Net OPEB obligation – end of year $ 15,048    5,684    2,723    23,455   

2008

 

(c) Wellness Incentive Program 

Effective July 1, 2002, the City established a pilot ―Wellness Incentive Program‖ (the Wellness Program) 
to promote workforce attendance. Under the Wellness Program, any full-time employee leaving the 
employment of the City upon service or disability retirement may receive payment of a portion of 
accrued sick leave credits at the time of separation. 

The amount of this payment shall be equal to 2.5% of accrued sick leave credits at the time of separation 
times the number of whole years of continuous employment times an employee‘s salary rate, exclusive of 
premiums or supplements, at the time of separation. Vested sick leave credits, as set forth under Civil 
Service Commission Rules, shall not be included in this computation. 

The Wellness Program shall be discontinued as current bargaining agreements expire on June 30, 2010.  

(12) Related Parties 

The City performs certain administrative services such as maintenance of accounting records and investment 
of cash for all fund groups within the City. The various funds are charged for these services based on the City‘s 
indirect cost allocation plan.  

Water 

The overhead allocation paid to the General Fund of the City was $2,574 and $1,588 for the years ended June 
30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and is included in other operating expenses in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Beginning in fiscal year 2008, all City departments were charged for water with the exception of fire hydrants 
that are under the control of the Fire Department. During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, water was delivered to 
certain City departments which amounted to $71 and $1,072, respectively, based on metered usage and 
applicable water rates, which has been excluded from operating revenues in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

A variety of City departments provide services such as engineering, purchasing, legal, data processing, 
telecommunications and human resources, and charge amounts designed to recover those departments‘ costs. 
These charges totaling $11,599 and $8,213 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, have been 
included in services provided by other departments in the accompanying financial statements. 
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During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009, $1,143 was transferred to other City departments, including $929, 
representing a percentage of construction contracts to the Art Commission and $214 to the Fire Department 
for a water reclamation study. 

During fiscal year ending June 30, 2007 Water took ownership of 525 Golden Gate Avenue property from the 
City‘s General Fund for a total consideration of $9,900 which was reported as a transfer. As of fiscal year 2007, 
$5,085 had been paid and the remaining $4,815 was paid in fiscal year 2008.  
 
Wastewater 

The overhead allocation paid to the General Fund of the City by Wastewater is $2,258 and $1,894 for the years 
ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 respectively, and is included in other operating expenses in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

Wastewater provides sewer services to other City departments at the non-residential rates. Water, through the 
Customer Services Department, bills and collects sewer service charges on behalf of the Wastewater. 

The City‘s Department of Public Works provides certain engineering and other services to Wastewater and 
charges amounts designed to recover its costs. These services are primarily related to street cleaning, 
engineering, building repair, and sewer repair. This amount totaling approximately $16,002 and $12,685 for the 
years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, has been included in services provided by other departments 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

A variety of other City departments provide services such as purchasing, legal, data processing, 
telecommunications and human resources, and charge amounts designed to recover those departments‘ costs. 
These charges totaling approximately $7,019 and $5,663 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, have been included in services provided by other departments in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 

The overhead allocation paid to the General Fund of the City by Hetch Hetchy Water and Power was $933 
and $467 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and is included in other operating expenses 
in the accompanying financial statements. 

During 2009 and 2008, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power delivered power and gas without charge to certain City 
departments, which amounted to $3,764 and $4,227, respectively, based on metered usage and applicable 
power rates. These amounts were excluded from operating revenues in the accompanying financial statements. 

Included in 2009 and 2008 operating revenues are sales of power to departments within the City of $61,067 
and $60,815, respectively. 

A variety of City departments provide services such as engineering, purchasing, legal, data processing, 
telecommunication and human resources, and charge amounts designed to recover those departments‘ costs. 
These charges totaling approximately $4,477 and $3,701 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively, have been included in services provided by other departments in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power facilitates all electric and gas service connections between Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company (PG&E) and City departments, which includes facilitating and coordinating the terms and 
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payment for the service connections that are performed by PG&E. As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, there were 
no outstanding amounts due from City departments related to this work. After project completion, excess 
monies are to be refunded from PG&E and distributed to the City Departments for their respective amounts.  

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power serves as the City‘s agency for energy efficiency projects and maintains the 
Sustainable Energy Account (SEA) (formerly known as the Mayor‘s Energy Conservation Account (MECA) 
fund to sponsor and financially support such projects at various City departments. In this role, low-interest 
financing may be secured to supplement funds available in the SEA fund. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, projects 
completed or underway throughout the City amounted to $14,658 and $13,947, respectively, and are recorded 
as due from other governmental agencies. 

Besides funding the SEA projects, in 2009 a project for the Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) 
was also funded and recorded as due from other governmental agencies. Regarding the Moscone Center, the 
memorandum of understanding is currently being renegotiated to extend the payment terms of the receivable.  

The details of these projects are as follows: 

2009 2008

Moscone Center $ 10,700    10,700   

San Francisco General Hospital 1,645    1,869   

San Francisco Department of Public Health 1,003    1,140   

San Francisco Department of Public Works 18    134   

Port of San Francisco 736    83   

San Francisco International Airport —     21   

Wastewater 556    —    

Total SEA related projects 14,658    13,947   

Treasure Island Development Authority 2,599    2,599   

Total due from other governmental agencies 17,257    16,546   

Less current portion (325)   (110)  

Long-term portion as of June 30 $ 16,932    16,436   
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(13) Risk Management 

Risk management program encompasses both self-insured and insured coverage. Risk assessments and 
coverage are coordinated by the City‘s Office of Risk Management. With certain exceptions, the City and 
SFPUC‘s general policy is to first evaluate self-insurance for the risk of loss to which it is exposed. Based on 
this analysis, mitigating risk through a ‗self-retention‘ mechanism is more economical as it manages risks 
internally and administers, adjusts, settles, defends, and pays claims from budgeted resources (i.e. pay-as-you-go 
fund). When economically more viable or when required by debt financing covenants, SFPUC obtains 
commercial insurance. At least annually, the City actuarially determines general liability and workers‘ 
compensation risk exposures. SFPUC does not maintain commercial earthquake coverage, with certain minor 
exceptions, such as a sub-limit for fire-sprinkler leakage due to earthquake under the Property Insurance 
program. 

Primary risks Typical coverage approach

General liability Self-insure

Property Purchase insurance and self-insure

Workers‘ compensation Self-insure through citywide pool

Other risks Typical coverage approach

Surety bonds Purchased and contractually transferred

Professional liability Combination of self-insure, purchased insurance and contractual

     risk transfer

Errors and omissions Combination of self-insure, purchased insurance and contractual

     risk transfer

Builders risk Purchased insurance and contractual risk transfer

 

(a) Damage and Claim Liability 

Through coordination with the Controller and the City Attorney‘s Office, the general liability risk 
exposure is actuarially determined and is addressed through pay-as-you-go funding as part of the 
budgetary process. Associated costs are also booked as expenses as required under Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) for financial statement purposes for both SFPUC and the City and 
County of San Francisco‘s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). The claim expense 
allocations are determined based on actuarially determined anticipated claim payments and the projected 
timing of disbursement. 
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The changes for damage and claim liabilities for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: 

Department-wide 

Water Wastewater

Hetch 

Hetchy 

Water & 

Power Total

Beginning of year $ 11,254 9,044 15,301 35,599 
Claims and changes in estimates 7,946 1,460 (3,400) 6,006 
Claims paid (9,559) (144) (1,590) (11,293)

End of year $ 9,641 10,360 10,311 30,312 

2009

 

Water Wastewater

Hetch 

Hetchy 

Water & 

Power Total

Beginning of year $ 6,934 8,711 4,782 20,427 
Claims and changes in estimates 13,104 1,182 13,713 27,999 
Claims paid (8,784) (849) (3,194) (12,827)

End of year $ 11,254 9,044 15,301 35,599 

2008

 

(b) Property 

The enterprises‘ property risk management approach varies depending on whether the facility is 
currently under construction, or if the property is part of revenue-generating operations. For new 
construction projects, SFPUC has utilized traditional insurance, or other alternative insurance programs. 
Under the latter approach, the insurance program usually provides coverage for the entire construction 
project, along with multiple risk coverage, such as for general liability, property damage and workers 
compensation, for example. When a traditional insurance program is used for property risks, SFPUC 
requires each contractor to provide its own insurance, while ensuring that the full scope of work be 
covered with satisfactory levels to limit SFPUC‘s risk exposure. The majority of purchased insurance 
program is for either: 1) revenue-generating facilities, 2) debt-financed facilities, and 3) mandated 
coverage to meet statutory requirements for bonding of various public officials. 

(c) Workers’ Compensation 

The City actuarially determines and allocates workers‘ compensation costs to SFPUC according to a 
formula based on the following: (i) the dollar amount of claims; (ii) yearly projections of payments based 
on historical experience; and (iii) the size of SFPUC‘s payroll. The administration of workers‘ 
compensation claims and payouts are handled by the Workers‘ Compensation Division of the City‘s 
Department of Human Resources. Statewide workers‘ compensation reforms have resulted in budgetary 
savings in recent years. The City continues to develop and implement improved programs, such as 
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return-to-work programs, to lower or mitigate the growth of workers‘ compensation costs. Programs 
include: accident prevention, investigation and duty modification for injured employees with medical 
restrictions so return to work can occur as soon as possible. 

The changes in the liabilities for workers‘ compensation for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 are 
as follows: 

Department-wide 

Water Wastewater

Hetch 

Hetchy 

Water & 

Power Total

Beginning of year $ 8,135 4,675 2,147 14,957 
Claims and changes in estimates 2,195 428 533 3,156 
Claims paid (1,713) (690) (375) (2,778)

End of year $ 8,617 4,413 2,305 15,335 

2009

 

Water Wastewater

Hetch 

Hetchy 

Water & 

Power Total

Beginning of year $ 8,346 4,144 2,186 14,676 
Claims and changes in estimates 1,557 1,236 587 3,380 
Claims paid (1,768) (705) (626) (3,099)

End of year $ 8,135 4,675 2,147 14,957 

2008

 

(d) Surety Bonds 

Bonds are required in most phases of the public utilities construction contracting process for such 
phases, as bid, performance, and payment or maintenance. Additionally, bonds may be required in other 
contracts where goods or services are provided to ensure compliance with applicable terms and 
conditions such as warranty. Additionally, all public officials with financial oversight responsibilities are 
provided liability coverage through a commercial Public Official Liability policy; including the 
Commission members, the General Manager and the Chief Financial Officer. SFPUC also maintains a 
commercial crime policy in lieu bonding its employees. 

(e) Professional Liability, Errors, and Omissions 

Professional liability policies are either directly purchased insurance on behalf of SFPUC, transferred 
through contract to the contracted professional, or retained through self-insurance on a case by case 
basis depending on the size, complexity or scope of construction or professional service contracts. 
Examples of contracts providing any form of the coverages described are engineers, architects, design 
professionals and other licensed or certified professional service providers. 
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(f) Builders’ Risk 

Builder‘s risk policies of insurance are required to be provided by the contractor on all construction 
projects for the full value of construction. 

(g) Owner Controlled Insurance Program 

As of June 30, 2009, the OCIP program completed the final close out and no further obligation for 
claims funding will continue into future years. 

For more information about how the enterprises‘ risk management program consolidates into and is 
coordinated with the City‘s, please see the City‘s CAFR. 

(14) Commitments and Litigation 

(a) Commitments 

As of June 30, 2009 and 2008, Water has outstanding commitments with third parties of $303,373 and 
$134,715, respectively for various capital projects and other purchase agreements for materials and 
services. Wastewater has outstanding commitments with third parties of $23,879 and $33,882, 
respectively, for various capital projects and other purchase agreements for materials and services. Hetch 
Hetchy Water and Power had outstanding commitments with third parties of $22,346 and $20,296, 
respectively, for various capital projects and other purchase agreements for materials and services. 

Additionally, with respect to Hetch Hetchy Water and Power, effective September 2007, the City 
renegotiated the Interconnection Agreement (agreement) with PG&E to provide transmission and 
distribution services on PG&E‘s system where needed to deliver power to its customers. In addition, the 
agreement provides supplemental power and energy banking and other support services to Hetch 
Hetchy Water and Power. The agreement provides audit rights to review past billings paid by Hetch 
Hetchy Water and Power and to retroactively (up to two years) adjust these payments as determined 
necessary. During fiscal years 2009 and 2008, $13,264 and $13,579, respectively, of transmission, 
distribution services, and other support services were purchased from PG&E under the terms of the 
agreement. 

The City‘s Interconnection Agreement with PG&E contains a contractual provision allowing it to bank 
excess power produced, with a maximum of 110,000 Megawatt hours (MWh). During fiscal year 2009, 
1,533,190 MWh of power was generated, and 104,663 MWh was banked (deposited) in the Deferred 
Delivery Account (DDA) and 102,927 MWh was used (withdrawn). At June 30, 2009 and 2008, the 
balance in the bank was 104,172 MWh or $2,719 and 102,436 MWh or $2,120, respectively.  

SFPUC may purchase or sell energy with different market entities through the Western System Power 
Pool (WSPP). During fiscal year 2009, there was no power purchased. Sales of excess power, after 
meeting obligations, were 217,792 MWh, or $6,162. 

To meet certain requirements of the Don Pedro Reservoir operating license, the City entered into an 
agreement with the Modesto and Turlock Irrigation Districts (the Districts) in which the Districts would 
be responsible for an increase in water flow releases from the reservoir in exchange for annual payments 
from the City, which are included in Hetch Hetchy Water and Power‘s operating expenses. The payment 
amounts were $4,250 and $4,426 in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively. The payments are to be 
made for the duration of the license, but may be terminated with one year‘s prior written notice after 
2001. The City and the Districts have also agreed to monitor the fisheries in the lower Tuolumne River 
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for the duration of the license. A maximum monitoring expense of $1,400 is to be shared between the 
City and the Districts over the term of the license. The City‘s share of the monitoring costs is 52%, while 
the Districts are responsible for 48% of the costs. 

In April 1988, a long-term power sales agreement (the Agreement) was entered into with the Districts. 
In June 2003, the terms of the Agreement with the Modesto Irrigation District (MID) were amended. 
Under the terms of the amended and restated long-term power sales agreement, which became effective 
on January 1, 2003, the expiration date was shortened to December 31, 2007. The agreement with MID 
was renegotiated and became effective January 1, 2008 which removed its obligation to provide firm 
power and eliminated MID‘s rights to excess energy from the Project. This agreement expires June 30, 
2015. In April 2005, the terms of the Agreement with Turlock Irrigation District (TID) were amended. 
The settlement agreement between SFPUC and TID restates and amends the power sales agreement and 
terminates San Francisco‘s obligation to provide firm power at below market costs to TID to the end of 
the agreements term on June 30, 2015. SFPUC will continue to comply with the Raker Act by making 
water system generated hydropower available at cost to MID and TID for its agricultural pumping and 
municipal loads as energy is available. For fiscal years 2009 and 2008, energy sales to the Districts totaled 
258,268 MWh or $6,450 and 386,568 MWh or $9,940, respectively. 

(b) Grants 

Grants that enterprises receive are subject to audit and final acceptance by the granting agency. Current 
and prior year costs of such grants are subject to adjustment upon audit. 

(c) Energy Risk Management 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power is exposed to risks that could negatively impact its ability to generate 
net revenues to fund operating and capital investment activities. Hydroelectric generation facilities in the 
Sierra Nevada are the primary source of electricity. For this reason, the financial results of Hetch Hetchy 
Water and Power are sensitive to variability in watershed hydrology and market prices for energy. 

(d) Litigation 

Various legal actions and claims arise during the normal course of business. The final disposition of 
those legal actions and claims is not determinable. However, in the opinion of management, the 
outcome of any litigation of these matters will not have a material effect on the financial position or 
changes in net assets. 

On January 21, 2003, the City‘s Board of Supervisors authorized the settlement of a lawsuit filed on 
January 18, 2001 by the City, on behalf of the people of the State of California (the State), against certain 
energy companies. Under the terms of the settlement, the City received (i) four combustion turbine 
generator sets valued at approximately $33,000 for use at two power plants, one within the City and one 
at the San Francisco International Airport (SFIA), (ii) future funding from a State administered fund (the 
Fund) to assist with the costs of siting and developing electric generating equipment in the City, and (iii) 
payment to the City of $500 for attorneys‘ fees and other expenses of litigation. 

Effective January 23, 2003, the City entered into an implementation agreement (the Agreement) with the 
Attorney General of the state of California (the Attorney General), the California Consumer Power and 
Conservation Financing Authority (the Authority), and the California Department of Water Resources 
(the Department). In accordance with the terms of the Agreement: 
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1.  The Attorney General transferred all rights, title, and interest in the four gas turbine generator 
sets to the City. 

2. To the extent received by the Attorney General under the terms of the Settlement Agreement, 
the Attorney General has agreed to make the following deposits into the Fund, as soon as 
practicable after the receipt date for such amounts, to assist with the costs of siting and 
developing electric generating equipment in the City: 

Closing date to January 1, 2007 $ 9,268   

January 1, 2008 1,333   

January 1, 2009 1,333   

January 1, 2010 1,333   

$ 13,267   

 

3. The City and the Authority have reviewed and approved a budget for the development of a 
power generating facility (the Facility), which is based upon key milestones. 

4. The City has agreed that it will only seek monies from the Fund for those reasonable and 
necessary purpose required to meet the key milestones in the development (and not 
construction) of the Facility. 

In the event that the (i) City has not met project milestone according to agreement between the parties, 
(ii) the Attorney General determines that the City has ceased development of the Facility, or (iii) the City 
decides not to develop the Facility pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Authority shall have the 
right (but not the obligation) to purchase any or all of the combustion turbine generator sets from the 
City at a price of $2,500 per unit and terminate the Agreement. Should the Authority elect not to 
exercise its option to acquire the gas turbine generator sets from the City pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement, the City must promptly sell the units by means of a public bidding process. The City is 
entitled to retain (i) the first $2,500 from the sale of each unit plus 5% of any amount in excess of $2,500 
and (ii) any eligible amounts incurred by the City in excess of the amount provided by the Fund. 

Additionally, in the event the Authority does not exercise its option to purchase the combustion turbines 
pursuant to the terms of the King‘s River Conservation District (KRCD) Implementation Agreement, 
the Attorney General shall make deposits of any remaining amounts allocated to KRCD that are not 
used for the development of the KRCD facility to the City‘s account.  

In conjunction with the execution of the Settlement Agreement, the Attorney General has received cash 
up to $10,765 as of June 30, 2008 from the defendants and deposited that amount into the Fund. No 
receipts have been received subsequent to June 30, 2008. The City has actual costs incurred in the 
development of the facility up to $18,172 and $17,897 as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
SFPUC has recognized no revenue from the Fund for this fiscal year and a cumulative total of $14,133 
for reimbursement from the Fund as of June 30, 2009. Under the terms of the Agreement, the City only 
has claim to the proceeds held by the Fund to the extent that eligible costs are incurred and limited to 
reimbursement schedule (see above). As such, the corresponding revenue will be recognized as eligible 
costs are incurred. 
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At the end of fiscal year 2008, SFPUC made a decision to terminate the project, withdrawing project 
approval, and recommending sale of the gas turbine generator sets. 

On July 22, 2008, SFPUC rescinded project approval and recommended to the Mayor and the Board of 
Supervisors to cease development of the two power plants, in-City and at the SFIA, and take any 
necessary steps to initiate the sales of the projects in accordance with the Implementation Agreement. 
Consequently, the project was written down by $41,224 to its net realizable value of approximately 
$10,000 in fiscal year 2008.  

The City has no plans to complete the project and has submitted a proposal to the State for disposal of 
the combustion turbines, which is currently pending approval. Payments are past due from the State, 
pending an auditing of prior expenditures. The State will either approve or disallow expenditures and the 
sales plan to dispose of the combustion turbines.  

Also in preparation of the combustion turbines for sale in fiscal year 2009-2010, some entities have 
shown interest in modifying steam heating plants in San Francisco to cogenerate electricity for local 
consumption. SFPUC is instructed to analyze the feasibility of these local cogeneration projects. If any 
of these projects demonstrate initial feasibility and environmental benefit, and requires purchase from 
the City a combustion turbine unit, SFPUC is instructed to report to the Mayor and Board of 
Supervisors on what actions would allow for consideration of these projects. 

(e) Environmental Issues 

Water 

Approximately 23 acres of land in the city of Menlo Park was formerly subleased to a third party. During 
the life of the lease, the tenant conducted a business on the premises that caused contamination to the 
property and surrounding areas. In July 1999, the staff of the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (CRWQCB) issued an interim directive instructing SFPUC to develop a remedial action plan that 
addresses environmental contamination located at this property. In response to the directive, SFPUC 
completed an interim remedial action plan. During fiscal year 2002, SFPUC received the final directive 
from the CRWQCB instructing SFPUC to execute a remedial action plan with regard to this issue. This 
environmental issue, along with a complete review of compliance with the GASB 49 pronouncement 
resulted in reporting of $3,312 and $2,694 in fiscal years ending June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively. 
$1,082 and $4,101 was paid in fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively, in accordance with the remedial 
action plan. 

Wastewater 

The City and County of San Francisco and Wastewater have been listed as potentially responsible parties 
in the clean-up effort of Yosemite Creek due to Wastewater‘s role in conveying contaminated flows to 
the receiving waters through the sewerage system. Yosemite Creek has been identified as having toxic 
sediments, primarily polychlorinated biphenyls. The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency is moving 
forward with a clean-up plan for these sediments. Contaminated flows emanating from a local industrial 
discharger in the drainage areas to Yosemite Creek is the likely responsible source of the contamination. 
As of June 30, 2009 the pollution remediation obligation reported in the accompanying statements of 
net assets is $375, based on estimated contractual costs. 
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(15) Subsequent Events 

(a) Debt Issuance 

On August 11, 2009, Water sold $412,000 in 2009 Series A Bonds with a true fixed interest cost of 
4.82% to finance a portion of the WSIP projects and refund existing commercial paper. 2009 Series B 
Bonds in the amount of $412,000 were sold on September 1, 2009, with a true fixed interest cost of 
4.54%. Outstanding revenue bonds for Water now total $1,757,000 as of September 30, 2009. 

(b) 525 Golden Gate Avenue 

The City & County of San Francisco issued $167,670 in fixed rate Certificates of Participation Series 
2009 C and D on September 23, 2009 to fund the future headquarters of the San Francisco Public 
Utilities Commission (SFPUC) at 525 Golden Gate Avenue. These series had a true interest cost of 
4.17% after factoring in the impact of the Build America Bonds direct-pay subsidy. The 2009 C series 
were issued for $38,120 on a tax-exempt basis, and the 2009 D series were issued for $129,550 as ―Build 
America Bonds‖ on a taxable basis under the 2009 American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.  

The City conveyed the real property to the Trustee under a property lease in exchange for the proceeds 
of the sale of the Certificates. The Trustee has leased the property back to the City for the City‘s use 
under a Project Lease. The City will be obligated under the Project Lease to pay base rental payments 
and other payments to the Trustee each year during the thirty-two year term of the Project Lease. 
SFPUC is obligated to pay the City the lease costs, with each of its enterprise operations responsible for 
their respective proportional usage share of that cost. It is anticipated that these lease costs will be offset 
with reductions in costs associated with current office rental expense. 

The Trustee created the ―certificates of participation‖ in the Project Lease, representing proportional 
interests in the principal and interest components of Base Rental it receives from the City. The Trustee 
will apply Base Rental it receives to pay principal and interest with respect to each Certificate when due.  

(c) Water Supply Agreement (WSA) 

For the last twenty-five years, water service has been provided to Wholesale Customers pursuant to the 
terms of the 1984 Settlement Agreement and Master Water Sales Contract. The Contract expired on 
June 30, 2009. SFPUC and the Wholesale Customers negotiated and have approved a new Water Supply 
Agreement (―WSA‖). The WSA has a twenty-five year term with two conditional five-year extensions. 
The term of the WSA began on July 1, 2009. The existing 184 millions of gallons per day (mgd) Supply 
Assurance continues under the WSA and no increase in the Supply Assurance will be considered before 
December 31, 2018. During the period from 2009 to 2018, the WSA limits the quantity of water 
delivered to Retail Customers and Wholesale Customers for the watersheds to 265 mgd. Under the 
WSA, annual operating expenses including debt service on bonds sold to finance regional system 
improvements and regional capital projects funded from revenues will be allocated between Retail 
Customers and Wholesale Customers on the basis of proportionate annual water use. The Wholesale 
Customers‘ share of net book value of existing regional assets will be recovered on level annual payment 
over the twenty-five year term of the WSA at an interest rate of 5.13%. The WSA continues much of the 
rate setting, accounting, and dispute resolution provisions contained in the expired Contract, and has 
emergency and drought-pricing adjustment provisions. 
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(d) U.S. Department of Energy – Energy Efficient Block Grant 

In October 2009, Hetch Hetchy Water and Power received a formula grant in the amount of $7,739 
approved from the U.S. Department of Energy under the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 
2009 (ARRA). 

(e) Litigation Settlement 

The Board of Supervisors authorized settlement of the two lawsuits filed by United States of America on 
behalf of the US Forest Service related to fires that occurred in proximity to power lines. By Ordinance 
No. 200-09, adopted August 18, 2009, the Board approved the payment of $7,000, in settlement of both 
actions. The settlement agreement did not concede liability, nor establish legal precedent with respect to 
future incidents. Both of these claims have been included in the same $7,000 amount in the liabilities 
section of the Statement of Net Assets under damage and claim liability, as they will be paid out after 
June 30, 2009. 
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and 

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in 

Accordance With Government Auditing Standards  

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Supervisors 

City and County of San Francisco, California:  

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of the San 
Francisco Public Utilities Commission, California (SFPUC), a department of the City and County of San 

Francisco, California, (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon 
dated December 18, 2009. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 

the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  

Internal Control over Financial Reporting  

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the SFPUC‘s internal control over financial reporting as a 

basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the SFPUC‘s internal 

control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
SFPUC‘s internal control over financial reporting.  

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does 
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 
misstatement of the entity‘s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely 

basis.   

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 

reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above.  

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, is the U.S. 
member firm of KPMG International, a swiss cooperative. 
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December 18, 2009 

 
 

Compliance and Other Matters  

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the SFPUC‘s financial statements are free of material 

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 

financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing 

Standards.  

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the City and County of San Francisco Government 
Audit and Oversight Committee, the Commission and management, and is not intended to be and should not 
be used by anyone other than these specified parties.  

 



 

 

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



 

129 

THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Schedule of Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

2009 - 08 2009 - 08 2009 - 08 2009 - 08 2009 - 08 2009 - 08

Assets:  Change % Change Change % Change Change % Change

Current assets:  

Cash and investments with City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (7,727)$     (5.6)        (7,393)$    (16.7)      4,265$      2.6               

Cash and investments outside City Treasury................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  -               -         5              100.0      -              -              

Receivables:   

Charges for services, (net of allowance for doubtful

accounts of $1,187, $1,486, and $0 in 2009 and

$1,439, $943, and $0 in 2008, respectively)...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4,608        13.7       409          1.2         1,751       18.6             

Suburban water rate agreement.......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 13,701      98.8       -              -         -              -              

Due from other funds.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. (53)           (21.2)      -              -         -              -              

Due from other governmental agencies, current portion..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  278          471.2      106          100.0      215          195.5           

Due from other City departments..........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  -               -         6              24.0       -              -              

Interest receivables...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (345)         (51.8)      (72)           (29.9)      (7)             (0.3)              

Advances and other receivables...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  668          556.7      3              100.0      71            1.8               

Loan receivable, current portion......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -               -         -              -         (134)         (100.0)          

Total receivables.....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  18,857      38.8       452          1.3         1,896       11.9             

Deferred charges and other assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... -               -         -              -         1,358       64.1             

Inventories...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (23)           (1.2)        3,586       100.0      (35)           (11.8)            

Total current assets............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  11,107      5.9         (3,350)      (4.2)        7,484       4.1               

Non-current assets:   

Restricted assets - cash and investments with City Treasury..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (14)           (0.1)        8,669       16.4       -              -              

Restricted assets - cash and investments outside City Treasury..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (77)           (0.2)        (27)           (100.0)    6,091       100.0           

Restricted assets - interest receivable..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (143)         (55.0)      (89)           (35.3)      -              -              

Capital assets not being depreciated.....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  124,730    28.3       14,355     16.9       14,530     49.9             

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation ..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................  108,536    13.1       19,707     1.5         (267)         (0.1)              

Due from other governmental agencies .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -               -         -              -         496          3.0               

Bond issuance costs, (net of accumulated amortization of

of $3,302, $2,506, and $2 in 2009 and $2,976,

$2,348 and $0 in 2008, respectively)......................................................................................................................................................... (330)         (4.6)        (159)         (5.8)        40            100.0           

Loan receivable, net of current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  -               -         -              -         (188)         (100.0)          

Total non-current assets......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  232,702    17.4       42,456     3.0         20,702     7.5               

Total assets....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  243,809    16.0       39,106     2.6         28,186     6.1               

  

See accompanying notes to financial statements   (Continued)

Hetch Hetchy 

Water Water & PowerWastewater
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

Schedule of Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

June 30, 2009 and 2008

(In thousands)

2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08

 Change % Change Change % Change Change % Change

Liabilities:   

Current liabilities:   

Accounts payable..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  6,384$      76.1          795$            11.2             2,127$         16.7             

Accrued payroll........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  837          13.9          202              6.1               321              26.2             

Accrued vacation and sick leave, current portion..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  333          5.8           90                3.4               124              9.3               

Accrued workers‘ compensation, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  39            2.6           (48)               (5.8)              25                6.6               

Due to other funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 23            100.0        -                  -              -                  -              

Due to other City departments........................................................................................................................ -               -           556              100.0           -                  -              

Damage and claim liability, current portion..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (496)         (16.5)        (1,128)          (37.7)            (906)             (21.8)            

Deposits, advances, and other liabilities................................................................................................................................................................................................ (2,254)       (31.5)        -                  -              (1,331)          (58.3)            

Bond and loan interest payable.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (14)           (0.2)          (518)             (9.2)              -                  -              

Pollution remediation obligation, current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 738          31.6          -                  -              -                  -              

Revenue bonds, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  1,085        4.3           1,465           4.1               -                  -              

Clean renewable energy bonds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -               -           -                  -              422              100.0           

Commercial paper...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  229,600    100.0        50,000         100.0           -                  -              

Loans payable, current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  -               -           434              3.2               (110)             (100.0)          

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  13,281      48.6          2,393           52.0             -                  -              
-                  

Total current liabilities..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  249,556    264.3        54,241         42.9             672              3.0               

Long-term liabilities:   

Arbitrage rebate payable....................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 4,265        100.0        -                  -              -                  -              

Other postemployment benefits obligation.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  15,919      105.8        5,729           100.8           3,076           113.0           

Accrued vacation and sick leave, less current portion..............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  265          5.2           (10)               (0.4)              45                4.3               

Accrued workers‘ compensation, less current portion....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  443          6.7           (214)             (5.6)              133              7.5               

Damage and claim liability, less current portion.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (1,117)       (13.6)        2,444           40.4             (4,084)          (36.6)            

Deferred revenue, refunds and other liabilities........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  -               -           455              511.2           -                  -              

Pollution remediation obligation, less current portion............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ (120)         (33.8)        375              -              -                  -              

Revenue bonds, less current portion.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (26,609)     (2.9)          (36,409)        (12.5)            5,295           100.0           

Capital appreciation bonds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 240          7.1           -                  -              -                  -              

Loans payable, less current portion................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. -               -           (14,196)        (18.8)            (172)             (100.0)          
-                  

Total long-term liabilities....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (6,714)       (0.7)          (41,826)        (10.9)            4,293           25.5             
-                  

Total liabilities........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  242,842    22.8          12,415         2.4               4,965           12.7             

Net assets:   

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt...............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  25,538      7.9           31,187         3.3               14,263         5.5               

Restricted for debt service.....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  465          1.7           44                3.3               -                  -              

Restricted for capital projects........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  627          293.0        11,126         -              -                  -              

Unrestricted.......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  (25,663)     (23.4)        (15,666)        (37.3)            8,958           5.5               
-                  

Total net assets.............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................  967$         0.2           26,691$        2.7               23,221$        5.5               

  

See accompanying notes to financial statements   
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THE S A N  F R A N C IS C O P UB LIC  UTILITIES  C OM M IS S ION

Schedule  o f Changes  in Revenues , Expens es , and Net As s e ts

P ro prie ta ry Funds

J une  30, 2009 and 2008

(In tho us ands )

2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08 2009-08

 Change % Change Change % Change Change % Change

Opera ting revenues :   

Charges  fo r s e rvices ..............................................................................................................  30,845$   14.2            11,522$    6.1              (4,602)$  (3.8)            

Rents  and co nces s io ns ........................................................................................................................  (246)         (2.6)            -                -             21             9.3             

Other revenues ......................................................................................................................................................  966           12.5            (5,417)      (36.8)         -               -             

To ta l o pera ting revenues .................................................................................................................................  31,565      13.5            6,105       3.0             (4,581)     (3.8)            

Opera ting expens es :  

P ers o na l s e rvices ..................................................................................................................... 4,636       4.5             (242)        (0.3)            4,294      13.3            

Co ntrac tua l s e rvices ...................................................................................................................... 2,327       20.6           1,855       15.5            4,126       103.9         

P urchas ed po wer and re la ted co s ts ..............................................................................  -                 -             -                -             (10,082)   (35.3)         

Materia ls  and s upplies ......................................................................................................................  1,165         10.1             (3,785)     (39.7)         (48)          (2.1)             

Deprec ia tio n.............................................................................................................................................................................................  3,142        6.8             57            0.1              848         7.7             

Services  pro vided by o ther departments  ......................................................................................................  5,405       15.6            5,613       21.6            776         21.0            

Bad debt expens e  ............................................................................................................. 88             2,200.0     576          100.0         -               -             

Genera l and adminis tra tive ............................................................................................  (5,227)      (63.7)         583          33.9           (13,650)   (65.0)         

Other............................................................................................................................... 13,727      150.0         (602)        (7.7)            528         7.8             

To ta l o pera ting expens es ................................................................................  25,263     11.3             4,055      2.5             (13,208)   (12.1)           

Opera ting inco me...................................................................................................  6,302       56.4           2,050      5.5             8,627      82.8           

No no pera ting revenues  (expens es ):   

Federa l and s ta te  grant.....................................................................................................  (174)          (8.9)            224          100.0         (52)          (100.0)        

Inte res t and inves tment inco me...................................................................................  (5,368)      (43.1)          (2,107)      (51.4)          (2,260)    (35.2)         

Inte res t expens e .............................................................................................................  903           (3.0)            1,790       (10.2)          -               -             

Net ga in fro m s a le  o f land..............................................................................................  (21,748)    (89.4)         -                -             -               -             

Other no no pera ting revenues .......................................................................................  (557)         (16.4)          (87)           (9.8)            (7,539)    (73.6)         

Other no no pera ting expens es ..................................................................................... (7)              0.9             158           (100.0)        (2,239)    1,492.7      

Net no no pera ting revenues  (expens es )........................................................ (26,951)    (232.4)       (22)           0.2             (12,090)   (73.0)         

Net inco me befo re  s pec ia l items  and trans fers .................................................... (20,649)   (90.7)         2,028      8.2             (3,463)    (12.8)          

Spec ia l item:   -             -               -             

Impairment lo s s ..................................................................................................................  -                 -             -                -             41,224    (100.0)        

Inco me befo re  trans fers ....................................................................................  (20,649)   (90.7)         2,028      8.2             37,761    (265.2)       

Trans fers  to  the  City and Co unty o f San Franc is co .........................................................  (1,143)        100.0         -                -             149          (33.1)          

Changes  in ne t as s e ts ..........................................................................................  (21,792)    (95.8)         2,028      8.2             37,910    (258.1)        

Net as s e ts  a t beginning o f year...........................................................................................  22,759     5.2             24,663    2.6             (14,689)   (3.4)            

Net as s e ts  a t end o f year.................................................................................................  967$         0.2             26,691$   2.7             23,221$  5.5             

  

See  acco mpanying no tes  to  financ ia l s ta tements   

Hetch Hetchy 

Water & P owerWater Wastewater

 



 

 
 

 
 

 

Statistical Section 

 

 
Financial Trends  

 

These schedules contain trend information to help understand how SFPUC‘s financial performance 
and well-being have changed over time. 

 
Revenue Capacity  

 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess SFPUC‘s revenues sources and rate 
structures. 

 
Debt Capacity 

 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the SFPUC‘s 
current levels of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

 
Demographic & Economic Information 

 
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the 
environment within which SFPUC‘s financial activities take place. 

 
Operating Information 

 
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to enhance the reader‘s ability to 
understand how the information in the SFPUC financial report relates to the services it provides 
and the activities it performs. 
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A Department of the City and County of San Francisco, California 
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Comparative Highlights of Revenues & Expenses  
 

Summary of Changes in Net Assets  
 

Summary of Net Assets by Component  
 

Investments in Capital Assets 
Summary of Property, Plant & Equipment 
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Revenues: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Charges for services $ 132,551 135,779 135,139 157,727 156,660 173,884 189,603 202,787 216,819 247,664

Rents and concessions 7,881 8,077 8,303 8,611 8,451 7,898 8,763 9,929 9,645 9,399

Other operating revenues 3,788 6,061 3,774 3,915 3,149 3,053 3,467 3,815 7,752 8,718

Interest and investment income 8,632 15,169 12,691 7,576 6,268 5,093 11,665 24,547 12,456 7,088

Other nonoperating revenues 1,427 129,275 4,212 6,133 22,911 2,062 1,741 11,798 29,681 7,202

Total revenues $ 154,279 294,361 164,119 183,962 197,439 191,990 215,239 252,876 276,353 280,071

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                     The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                         

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Water

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Expenses: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Personal services $ 50,523 47,671 49,676 50,859 54,627 53,683 75,941 87,200 102,233 106,869 

Contractual services 6,757 4,237 3,958 5,168 5,438 5,235 10,047 12,437 11,292 13,619 

Materials and supplies 8,055 6,470 5,955 6,842 8,124 8,293 11,176 10,661 11,506 12,671 

Depreciation 22,974 24,338 25,909 31,430 35,110 40,112 41,877 43,895 45,958 49,100 

Services provided by other departments 29,686 29,238 29,307 30,496 31,561 32,146 35,517 33,242 34,698 40,103 

General and administrative 26,995 12,154 21,003 22,685 28,863 28,376 5,037 4,523 8,209 2,982 

Other operating expenses 4,416 27,937 12,622 20,043 23,655 8,608 7,339 10,540 9,156 22,971 

Interest expense 13,040 12,850 16,932 19,056 19,315 21,395 26,650 34,326 29,750 28,847 

Other non-operating expenses 0 443 470 639 172 549 1,608 10,540 792 1,942 

Total expenses $ 162,446 165,338 165,832 187,218 206,865 198,397 215,192 247,364 253,594 279,104

Changes in net assets (8,167) 129,023 (1,713) (3,256) (9,426) (6,407) 47 5,512 22,759 967 

Net assets at beginning of year 332,961 324,794 453,817 452,104 448,848 439,422 433,015 433,062 438,574 461,333 

Net assets at end of year $ 324,794 453,817 452,104 448,848 439,422 433,015 433,062 438,574 461,333 462,300

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                     The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                         

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Water

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Revenues: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Charges for services 140,878$  136,821 129,925 130,013 133,160 144,348 159,281 176,344 187,810 199,332

Other operating revenues 4,617 4,949 4,670 4,732 4,646 4,540 5,851 17,067 14,739 9,322

Interest and investment income 8,674 15,275 8,116 4,123 1,036 3,093 5,385 5,749 4,099 1,992
Other nonoperating revenues 9,186 3,628 3,982 548 1,974 2,487 1,802 2,986 885 1,022

Total revenues 163,355$  160,673 146,693 139,416 140,816 154,468 172,319 202,146 207,533 211,668

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                       The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Wastewater

(Dollars in Thousands)

$0 

$50,000 

$100,000 

$150,000 

$200,000 

$250,000 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

D
o

l
l
a

r
s

 
i
n

 
T

h
o

u
s

a
n

d
s

Revenues

Charges for services Other operating revenues Interest and investment income Other nonoperating revenues

 



 

138 
 

Expenses: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Personal services  $                  30,020 34,439 35,588 37,480 37,221 37,782 53,629 58,789 69,383 69,141 

Contractual services 5,843 5,924 6,801 5,432 5,802 6,227 10,062 11,536 11,973 13,828 

Materials and supplies 6,013 7,140 7,853 7,288 7,142 8,283 9,041 9,526 9,539 5,754 

Depreciation 38,169 37,938 38,306 38,369 38,094 37,800 37,228 36,683 38,758 38,815 

Services provided by other departments 16,142 17,563 17,867 20,656 20,572 23,234 26,344 28,010 26,021 31,634 

General and administrative 9,903 10,020 18,585 11,974 20,294 22,249 0 4,143 1,719 2,302 

Other operating expenses 9,183 4,816 3,948 7,978 791 3,715 4,650 2,913 7,852 7,826 

Interest expense 31,902 31,847 30,948 24,668 22,396 21,360 19,747 17,354 17,467 15,677 

Other non-operating expenses 0 661 1,138 1,136 267 1,803 308 319 158 0 

Total expenses  $                147,175 150,348 161,034 154,981 152,579 162,453 161,009 169,273 182,870 184,977

Changes in net assets 16,180 10,325 (14,341) (15,565) (11,763) (7,985) 11,310 32,873 24,663 26,691

Net assets at beginning of year 938,216 954,396 964,721 950,380 934,815 923,052 915,067 926,377 959,250 983,913

Net assets at end of year 954,396$                 964,721 950,380 934,815 923,052 915,067 926,377 959,250 983,913 1,010,604

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                 The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Wastewater

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Revenues: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Charges for services 109,584$       120,863 125,573 131,963 124,243 121,604 139,627 108,009 119,630 115,028

Rental and concessions 127 137 204 227 231 236 234 215 225 246

Settlement proceeds 0 0 0 0 0 10,463 9,639 0 0 0

Interest and investment income 2,296 3,909 1,739 1,365 438 1,423 3,564 6,478 6,420 4,160
Other nonoperating revenues 7,285 512 2,146 35,052 10,634 5,425 7,735 4,201 10,296 2,705

Total revenues 119,292$       125,421 129,662 168,607 135,546 139,151 160,799 118,903 136,571 122,139

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                    The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                         

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Expenses: 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Personal services  $           12,029 14,243 16,647 19,406 20,217 21,044 26,179 28,992 32,175 36,469 

Contractual services 3,702 4,255 5,426 4,072 4,477 4,905 5,766 5,711 3,972 8,098 

Purchased power & related costs 30,468 54,903 65,337 43,118 59,556 49,283 46,742 24,892 28,548 18,466 

Materials & supplies 1,531 1,293 1,586 1,914 1,535 1,754 2,103 2,339 2,291 2,243 

Depreciation 8,638 9,509 9,614 9,572 9,865 10,759 10,701 10,919 11,021 11,869 

Services provided by other departments 899 2,120 2,772 2,857 2,749 3,099 3,701 3,301 3,701 4,477 

General & administrative 16,525 11,711 8,677 11,941 15,364 19,544 15,295 11,687 20,997 7,347 

Other operating expenses 5,804 8,966 3,695 2,530 7,866 6,295 8,659 7,179 6,731 7,259 

Other non-operating expenses 39,850 29,850 382 17 489 0 0 93 41,824 2,690 

Total expenses 119,446$         136,850 114,136 95,427 122,118 116,683 119,146 95,113 151,260 98,918

Changes in net assets (154)$               (11,429) 15,526 73,180 13,428 22,468 41,653 23,790 (14,689) 23,221

Net assets at beginning of year 257,383 257,229 245,800 261,326 334,506 347,934 370,402 412,055 435,845 421,156

Net assets at end of year 257,229$         245,800 261,326 334,506 347,934 370,402 412,055 435,845 421,156 444,377

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                    The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                         

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 -  2009

Financial Trends

Summary of Changes in Net Assets - Hetch Hetchy Water and Power

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Water Year

Retail          

Rates (%)

Wholesale           

Rates (%)

July 2000 0.0 4.4

July 2001 8.7 2.8

July 2002 8.6 0.0

July 2003 0.0 25.7

July 2004 0.0 2.7

July 2005 15.0 (9.7) 1

July 2006 15.0 18.8

July 2007 15.0 2 6.3

July 2008 15.0 10.0

July 2009 3 15.0 15.7

1
 Adjustment effective April 1, 2005

2
 Adjustment effective July 14, 2007

3
 July 1, 2009 was the first year of the new twenty-five year wholesale water supply agreement.

Wastewater Year Rates (%)

July 2004 11.0

July 2005 13.0

July 2006 13.0

July 2007* 8.0

July 2008 9.0

July 2009** 7.0

*
 Adjustment effective July 14, 2007

**
 Beginning of five-year rate 

Statistical Section                             The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                                                       

Historical Average Rate Adjustments 

Revenue Capacity

Increase/(Decrease)
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Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30

Service Charge 

Rate ($/ccf)¹

Volume 

Charge

% Increase 

/Decrease

Volume 

Charge

% Increase 

/Decrease

2000 3.40 1.26 0.0 0.82 35.0

2001 3.40 1.26 0.0 0.86 4.4

2002 3.70 1.37 8.7 0.88 2.8                             

2003 4.00 1.49 8.6 0.88 0.0

2004 4.00 1.49 0.0 1.10 25.7

2005 4.00 1.49 0.0 1.13 2.7

20062 4.60 1.71 15.0 1.02 (9.4)

2007 5.30 1.97 15.0 1.22 18.8

Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30

Service Charge 

Rate ($/ccf)¹

Volume 

Charge

(0-3 ccf)

Volume 

Charge

(over 3 ccf)

% Increase 

/Decrease

Volume 

Charge

% Increase 

/Decrease

2008 4.60 2.08 2.50 15.0 1.30 6.3

2009 4.70 2.28 2.89 15.0 1.43 9.5

¹ Monthly service charge for 5/8" meter

2 Adjustment effective April 1, 2005 for Wholesale volume charge

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Inf ormation & Billing Sy stem and Summary  of  Annual Water Sales Reports.

Revenue Capacity

Retail

Retail Wholesale

Statistical Section                                                                 The  San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                                                       

Wholesale

Water Rate History

(Per Hundred Cubic Feet of Water Consumption)
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Rate ($/ccf) % Increase Rate ($/ccf) % Increase Rate ($/ccf) % Increase

2000 1.86 0.0 4.83 0.0 5.35 0.0

2001 1.86 0.0 4.83 0.0 5.35 0.0

2002 1.86 0.0 4.83 0.0                            5.35 0.0

2003 1.86 0.0 4.83 0.0 5.35 0.0

2004 1.86 0.0 4.83 0.0 5.35 0.0

2005 2.15 15.6 5.37 11.2 5.82 8.8

Rate ($/ccf) % Increase Rate ($/ccf) % Increase Rate ($/ccf) % Increase Rate ($/ccf) % Increase

2006 2.54 6.3 6.36 6.6 7.27 21.9 7.31 13.0

2007 2.88 13.4 7.19 13.1 8.22 13.1 8.26 13.0

20082 3.14 8.0 7.84 8.0 8.96 8.0 8.80 6.5

2009 3.42 9.0 8.55 9.0 9.77 9.0 9.60 9.0

1
 First 300 cubic feet of water consumption per dwelling unit per month are billed at the lifeline rate and all excess use at the regular resident rate.

2
 Adjustment effective July 14, 2007.

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Disclosure Report

Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30,

First 3 Ccf 6+ Ccf4-5 Ccf

Tier 1:

Non-Residential Rate

Tier 3:Tier 2:

Statistical Section                                                                              The  San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                                                       

Regular Residential Rate Non-Residential Rate

Wastewater Rate History

(Per Hundred Cubic Feet of Water Consumption)

Revenue Capacity

Lifeline Rate1Fiscal Year Ending 

June 30,



 

151 
 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Residential (*)

Residential Services (E-1) 0.11006$  0.11006  0.14182  0.14182  0.14182  0.13232  0.13660  0.15818  0.16342  0.16474   

Master-Metered Multifamily Service (EM) 0.11006   0.11006  0.14182  0.14182  0.14182  0.13232  0.13660  0.15818  0.16342  0.16474   

Multifamily Service (ES) 0.11006   0.11006  0.14182  0.14182  0.14182  0.13232  0.13660  0.15818  0.16342  0.16474   

Commercial

Small General Service (A-1) 0.12111   0.12111  0.17668  0.17668  0.17668  0.15670  0.15483  0.16326  0.16716  0.16528   

Medium General Demand-Metered Service 

(A-10)
0.09904   0.09904  0.15430  0.15430  0.15430  0.14125  0.13707  0.14700  0.14497  0.13764   

Medium General Demand-Metered TOU 

Service (E-19)
0.08825   0.08825  0.13972  0.13972  0.13972  0.12608  0.12328  0.12305  0.11855  0.11353   

Industrial

Service to Customers with Maximum 

Demand of 1,000 Kilowatts or More - 

Secondary Voltage (E-20S)

0.08334   0.08334  0.13479  0.13479  0.13479  0.12332  0.12036  0.12996  0.12624  0.11475   

Service to Customers with Maximum 

Demand of 1,000 Kilowatts or More - 

Primary Voltage (E-20P)

0.07012   0.07012  0.12156  0.12156  0.12156  0.10806  0.10412  0.11209  0.10750  0.10460   

Service to Customers with Maximum 

Demand of 1,000 Kilowatts or More - 

Transmission Voltage (E-20T)

0.05132   0.05132  0.10266  0.10266  0.10266  0.08882  0.08451  0.08996  0.08140  0.08230   

City General Fund Departments 0.03125   0.03125  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750  0.03750   

Street Lights

Customer-Owned Street and Highway 

Lighting Electrolier Meter Rate (LS-3)
0.12648   0.12648  0.12648  0.12648  0.12648  0.09979  0.10140  0.11936  0.12537  0.11279   

City-Owned Street Lights (**) 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000 0.00000

Traffic Signals

Traffic Control Serivce (TC-1) 0.15682   0.15682  0.15682  0.15682  0.15682  0.12169  0.12913  0.14192  0.14702  0.11942   

(*) Residential  rates shown from Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009  are for customers up north in Moccasin.

(**) Power historically provided at no charge.

Note: The rates shown for each year are rates charged in the month of July, and may change during the year.

Source:  Pacific Gas & Electric Rate Schedule 

Hetch Hetchy Electric Rate History

Statistical Section                                                                                                                       The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                            

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

Revenue Capacity

(Per Kilowatt Hours)
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Operating & investment revenue 152,852$     165,086 159,907 177,829 174,528 189,928 213,499 241,078 246,885 272,869

Operating & maintenance expense 149,406       152,045 148,430 167,523 187,378 176,453 186,934 202,498 223,052 248,315

Adjustment to investing activities 
(1)

2,088 (372) (1,506) 3,446 5,709 2,429 (1,272) (212) 6,971 2,021

Depreciation & non-cash expenses 22,974         47,121 29,683 34,945 57,843 48,552 46,286 52,631 54,295 54,055

Changes in working capital 16,322         (1,738) 24,253 (3,599) (2,377) (9,619) (26,441) 2,814 7,605 2,348

Net revenue 44,830$       58,052 63,907 45,098 48,325 54,837 45,138 93,813 92,704 82,978

Other available funds 
(2)

29,897         35,514 176,884 60,082 41,715 92,065 63,888 56,868 65,344 66,779

Funds available for revenue bond debt service 74,727$       93,566 240,791 105,180 90,040 146,902 109,026 150,681 158,048 149,757

Revenue bond debt service 20,073$       20,063 25,164 31,634 37,882 37,994 35,374 65,115 64,193 69,585

Revenue bond debt service coverage 3.72 4.66 9.57 3.32 2.38 3.87 3.08 2.31 2.46 2.15

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Disclosure Reports.

(2)
 As per the Indenture, in addition to current year cash flow, the coverage calculation permits the inclusion of all funds except for Trust and Agency Fund not budgeted to be spent in such 12 months and legally available 

to pay debt service.

(1)
 Adjustment of Investing Activities and Non-operating Revenues to cash basis.

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                       The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Water - Net Revenue and Debt Service Coverage

(Dollars in Thousands)

Revenue Capacity

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 - 2009
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Operating & investment revenue 154,169$   157,045 142,711 138,868 138,842 151,981 170,517 199,160 206,648 210,646

Operating & maintenance expense 115,273     117,840 128,948 129,177 129,916 139,290 140,954 151,600 165,245 169,300

Adjustment to investing activities 
(1)

156 (2,994) (1,836) (1,051) 535 (256) (361) (959) 1,297 161

Depreciation & non-cash expenses 37,669       37,938 38,306 38,977 40,836 39,504 38,643 37,461 40,395 41,429

Changes in working capital 832            4,941 10,134 98 4,538 3,192 (3,859) (2,461) 6,223 4,699

State revolving fund loan payments (16,554)      (18,381) (20,133) (20,132) (20,132) (20,132) (20,132) (20,132) (16,505) (16,505)

Net revenue 60,999$     60,709 40,234 27,583 34,703 34,999 43,854 61,469 72,813 71,130

Other available funds 
(2)

25,996       99,027 71,212 39,334 31,684 14,392 21,497 35,691 34,699 48,016

Funds available for revenue bond debt service 86,995$     159,736 111,446 66,917 66,387 49,391 65,351 97,160 107,512 119,146

Revenue bond debt service 47,685$     48,059 47,283 36,074 20,233 17,219 17,219 50,163 50,198 50,311

Revenue bond debt service coverage 1.82 3.32 2.36 1.85 3.28 2.87 3.80 1.94 2.14 2.37

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Disclosure Reports.

(2)
 As per the Indenture, in addition to current year cash flow, the coverage calculation permits the inclusion of all funds except for Trust and Agency Fund not budgeted to be spent in such 12 months and legally available to pay 

debt service.

(1)
 Adjustment of Investing Activities to cash basis.

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                       The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Wastewater - Net Revenue and Debt Service Coverage

(Dollars in Thousands)

Revenue Capacity

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 - 2009
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Operating & investment revenue 94,966$    

Operating & maintenance expense 49,307      

Adjustment to investing activities 
(1)

2,705        

Depreciation & non-cash expenses 8,279        

Changes in working capital (3,409)       

State revolving fund loan payments

Net revenue 53,234$    

Other available funds 
(2)

-           

Funds available for revenue bond debt service 53,234$    

Revenue bond debt service 422$         

Revenue bond debt service coverage 126.15      

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Disclosure Reports.

(2)
 No Fund Balance assumed available in Debt Service Coverage calculation, as no Indenture provision currently applies.

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 - 2009

No debt service prior to fiscal year 2009

(1)
 Adjustment of Investing Activities and Non-operating Revenues to cash basis.

Statistical Section                                                                                                           The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Hetch Hetchy - Net Revenue and Debt Service Coverage

(Dollars in Thousands)
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 Debt by Type

Moody's 

Investors 

Service

Standard & 

Poor's

Water 

     Revenue bonds A1 AA-

     Commercial paper - $250 million tax-exempt P-1 A-1

     Commercial paper - $250 million tax-exempt and taxable (*) P-1 A-1+

Wastewater 

     Revenue bonds A2 A+

     Commercial paper - $150 million tax-exempt P-1 A-1+

* These ratings became effective on October 30, 2009.

Source: Rating agency reports

Statistical Section                                     The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Rating by

As of June 30, 2009
Debt Ratings

Debt Capacity
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Wastewater 

Revenue Bonds, Commercial Paper & Loans

Revenue bonds

     Series 2003A 292,660$    Refunded 1992, 1994, and 1995 Bonds

Commercial paper 100,000$    $150 million authorization, BNP Letter of Credit

State loans 75,339$      SRF loans issued from 1990 - 2001

Total Wastewater debt outstanding 467,999$    

Hetch Hetchy Water & Power

Revenue bonds

     Clean Renewable Energy Bond (CREB) 5,903$        Installation of Solar energy projects on City facilities

Total Hetch Hetchy debt outstanding 5,903$        

Statistical Section                                                                                                     The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission   

Debt Capacity

Summary of Debt Outstanding

As of June 30, 2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Water 

Number of Debt per

Fiscal Revenue Commercial Customer Customer

Year Ending Bonds (*) Paper Total Accounts  Account

2000 $229,880 $20,000 $249,880 169,318 $1.48

2001 224,525 75,000 299,525 169,735 1.76

2002 358,870 90,000 448,870 170,133 2.64

2003 512,435 -                512,435 170,495 3.01

2004 501,025 25,000 526,025 170,961 3.08

2005 486,970 80,000 566,970 171,281 3.31

2006 981,765 -                981,765 171,808 5.71

2007 966,080 -                966,080 172,236 5.61

2008 946,910 -                946,910 172,528 5.49

2009 921,390 229,600 1,150,990 172,911 6.66

Wastewater 

State Number of Debt per

Fiscal Revenue Loans Commercial Customer Customer

Year Ending Bonds Payable Paper Total Accounts  Account

2000 $491,283 $180,296 -$            $671,579 168,694 $3.98

2001 469,883 193,597 -              663,480 169,097 3.92

2002 418,808 179,591 -              598,399 169,525 3.53

2003 396,270 165,125 -              561,395 169,898 3.30

2004 396,270 150,196 -              546,466 170,339 3.21

2005 396,270 134,783 -              531,053 170,681 3.11

2006 396,270 118,869 -              515,139 171,183 3.01

2007 362,825 102,438 50,000 515,263 171,613 3.00

2008 328,325 89,101 50,000 467,426 171,900 2.72

2009 292,660 75,339 100,000 467,999 172,321 2.72

Hetch Hetchy Water & Power

Number of Debt per

Fiscal Customer Customer

Year Ending Total Accounts  Account

2009 $5,903 $5,903 2,228           $2.65

(*) Exclude Series 1991A Capital Appreciation Bonds

Statistical Section                                            The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                                                       

Fiscal Year Ending June 30 - 2000 to 2009 

(Dollars in Thousands)

Clean 

Renewable 

Energy Bond

Debt Capacity

 History of Outstanding Debt by Type (Principal Payments Only)
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Total

Total Principal &

Payments Due 2001A Series 2002A Series 2002B Series 2006A Series 2006B Series 2006C Series Interest Interest

for FY Ending Bond Issue Bond Issue Bond Issue Bond Issue Bond Issue Bond Issue Total Payments Payments

2010 2,945$          3,260$          6,375$          8,505$          3,145$          2,375$          26,605$    42,990$   69,595$     

2011 3,065 3,425 6,640 8,895 3,300 2,470 27,795 41,784 69,579

2012 3,195 3,605 6,985 9,350 3,465 2,590 29,190 40,401 69,591

2013 3,340 3,785 7,305 9,830 3,645 2,705 30,610 38,984 69,594

2014 3,500 3,980 7,640 10,335 3,825 2,810 32,090 37,510 69,600

2015 3,685 4,185 8,035 10,865 4,015 2,925 33,710 35,934 69,644

2016 3,875 4,400 8,445 11,425 4,215 3,055 35,415 34,261 69,676

2017 -                  4,625 -                  12,010 8,505 3,190 28,330 32,702 61,032

2018 -                  4,865 -                  12,625 8,900 3,325 29,715 31,322 61,037

2019 -                  5,115 -                  13,270 6,540 1,375 26,300 30,014 56,314

2020 -                  5,375 -                  13,955 8,340 2,600 30,270 28,683 58,953

2021 -                  5,650 -                  14,670 9,895 3,640 33,855 27,161 61,016

2022 -                  5,940 -                  15,420 7,410 1,565 30,335 25,625 55,960

2023 -                  6,245 -                  16,210 7,750 1,630 31,835 24,141 55,976

2024 -                  6,565 -                  17,045 8,090 1,710 33,410 22,582 55,992

2025 -                  6,900 -                  17,915 8,460 1,785 35,060 20,941 56,001

2026 6,540 7,255 -                  18,835 2,325 1,865 36,820 19,194 56,014

2027 6,895 7,630 -                  19,775 2,420 1,945 38,665 17,359 56,024

2028 7,270 8,020 -                  20,740 -                  -                  36,030 15,556 51,586

2029 7,670 8,430 -                  21,720 -                  -                  37,820 13,790 51,610

2030 8,085 8,860 -                  22,720 -                  -                  39,665 11,964 51,629

2031 8,525 9,315 -                  23,765 -                  -                  41,605 10,048 51,653

2032 8,990 9,795 -                  24,860 -                  -                  43,645 8,039 51,684

2033 -                  10,295 -                  25,970 -                  -                  36,265 6,200 42,465

2034 -                  -                  -                  27,100 -                  -                  27,100 4,815 31,915

2035 -                  -                  -                  28,350 -                  -                  28,350 3,566 31,916

2036 -                  -                  -                  29,725 -                  -                  29,725 2,187 31,912

2037 -                  -                  -                  31,175 -                  -                  31,175 740 31,915

Total 77,580$        147,520$      51,425$        497,060$      104,245$      43,560$        921,390$  628,493$ 1,549,883$ 

Principal Payments

Statistical Section                                                                                                             The  San Francisco Public Utilities Commission   

Debt Capacity

Water - Principal and Interest Payments for Debt Issues 

(Dollars in Thousands)

(Excludes Commercial Paper and Series 1991A Capital Appreciation Bonds)



 

160 

(Excludes Commercial Paper)

Total State Grand

2003A Series 2003A Series Total 2003A State Revolving State Revolving Revolving Fund Total

Payments Due Bond Issue Bond Issue Principal & Fund Loans Fund Loans Principal & Principal &

for FY Ending Principal Interest Interest Principal Interest Interest Interest

2010 37,130$        13,183$        50,313$      14,199$             2,307$               16,506$             66,819$     

2011 26,320 11,827 38,147        14,648 1,855 16,503              54,650       

2012 22,010 10,959 32,969        9,594 1,389 10,983              43,952       

2013 23,095 9,941 33,036        8,322 1,099 9,421                42,457       

2014 24,395 8,754 33,149        8,192 848 9,040                42,189       

2015 25,790 7,467 33,257        5,686 602 6,288                39,545       

2016 27,325 6,073 33,398        4,837 431 5,268                38,666       

2017 11,920          5,102 17,022        3,335                284 3,619                20,641       

2018 12,575          4,519 17,094        1,562                189 1,751                18,845       

2019 13,315          3,839 17,154        1,608                143 1,751                18,905       

2020 14,120          3,119 17,239        1,654                97 1,751                18,990       

2021 14,960          2,356 17,316        1,702                50 1,752                19,068       

2022 15,835          1,567 17,402        -                       -                       -                       17,402       

2023 15,005          796 15,801        -                       -                       -                       15,801       

2024 2,610           359 2,969         -                       -                       -                       2,969         

2025 2,745           232 2,977         -                       -                       -                       2,977         

2026 3,510 84 3,594         -                       -                       -                       3,594         

Total 292,660$      90,177$        382,837$    75,339$             9,294$               84,633$             467,470$   

(Dollars in Thousands)

Statistical Section                                                                                                            The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission   

Debt Capacity

Wastewater Principal and Interest Payments for Debt Issues
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Payments Due Clean Renewable 

for FY Energy Bond Issue (*)

2010 422$                   

2011 422

2012 422

2013 422

2014 422

2015 422

2016 422

2017 422

2018 422

2019 422

2020 421

2021 421

2022 421

2023 420

Total 5,903$                 

* No interest payments are required.

(Dollars in Thousands)

Statistical Section              The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission   

Debt Capacity

Hetch Hetchy - Principal Payments for Debt Issues 
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Area and Economy  
 
The corporate limits of the City encompass over 93 square miles, of which approximately 49 square miles are 
land, with the balance consisting of tidelands and a portion of the San Francisco Bay (the ―Bay‖).  The City is 
located on a peninsula bounded by the Pacific Ocean to the west, the Bay to the east, the entrance to the Bay 
and the Golden Gate Bridge to the north and San Mateo County to the south. The City is the economic center 
of the nine counties contiguous to the Bay: Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, Napa, San Francisco, San Mateo, 
Santa Clara, Solano and Sonoma Counties (the ―Bay Area‖). The economy of the Bay Area includes a wide 
range of industries, supplying local needs as well as the needs of national and international markets. Major 
business sectors in the Bay Area include retail and entertainment, conventions and tourism, service businesses, 
banking, professional and financial services, corporate headquarters, international and wholesale trade, 
multimedia and advertising, biotechnology, and higher education. 

Taxable Sales  

The following table provides information on taxable sales for the City for calendar years 2003 through 2007.  
Total retail sales increased in calendar year 2007 by approximately $0.4 million compared to calendar year 2006. 
 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

Taxable Sales – Calendar Year 2003-2007 ($000s) 

 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007(1) 

Apparel $760,715 $826,686 $880,718 $941,299 $1,028,602 

General 

Merchandise 1,065,160 1,143,657 1,199,308 1,280,908 1,349,158 

Food Stores 405,673 419,286 439,472 454,970 480,587 

Eating/Drinking 1,879,879 2,067,418 2,237,384 2,367,548 2,589,892 

Household 484,455 527,519 575,985 598,279 608,766 

Building Materials 319,503 353,002 397,218 428,795 459,332 

Automotive 804,964 850,984 956,031 1,031,786 1,068,661 

Other Retail Stores 2,046,339 2,226,229 2,363,672 2,484,935 2,421,574 

Retail Stores Total $7,766,688 $8,414,781 $9,049,788 $9,588,520 $10,006,572 

      

Business & Personal 

Svcs $945,689 $937,411 $939,108 $999,112 $1,001,472 

All Other Outlets 2,784,369 2,855,315 3,037,078 3,304,556 3,606,692 

Total All Outlets $11,496,746 $12,207,507 $13,025,974 $13,892,188 $14,614,736 

(1) Most recent annual data available 

Source: California State Board of Equalization – Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax) Annual Reports 

 
Data for full years after 2007 are not available from the California State Board of Equalization at this time.  
However, the more recent sales tax trend is negative. 
 
Population and Income  
 
The City had a population estimated at 773,674 as of FY 2007-08. The table and chart reflect the population 
and per capita personal income of the City, as estimated by the Controller‘s Office. 
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Conventions and Tourism 
 
According to the San Francisco Convention & Visitors Bureau (the ―Convention & Visitors Bureau‖), a non-profit 
membership organization, during the calendar year 2007 approximately 16.1 million people (124,628 average per day) 
visited the City, generating approximately $8.2 billion for local businesses. On average, these visitors spent about 
$244 per visitor per day and stayed three to four nights in the City. Also, as reported by PKF Consulting, hotel 
occupancy rates in the City averaged 77.9% for calendar year 2007, an increase of 3% over the previous year. 
Average daily room rates in the City during 2007 increased about 7.1% compared to the prior year‘s average of $182. 
Although only 35% of all out-of-town visitors stayed in City hotels, the Convention & Visitors Bureau estimates that 
such visitors generated 65% of total spending by out-of-town visitors. An estimated 40% of City visitors are on 
vacation, 35% are convention and trade show attendees, 22% are individual business travelers and the remaining 3% 
are en route elsewhere. Approximately 25% to 35% of overnight hotel visitors are international visitors. The federal 
government estimates that the majority of international visitors to the City in 2007 were from the United Kingdom, 
Japan, France, Germany, and Australia. In 2006, the City was ranked third in market share for international visitors 
to the U.S. behind New York and Los Angeles. The City was ranked even with Orlando, and ahead of Miami, 
Honolulu, and Las Vegas. The following table illustrates hotel occupancy and related spending from calendar years 
2003 through 2007, as reported by the San Francisco Convention and Visitors Bureau. 

 
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

San Francisco Overnight Hotel Guests 
 

Calendar Year 
Annual Average Hotel 

Occupancy 

Visitors Staying in 
Hotels or Motels 
(In Thousands) 

Estimated Hotel 
Visitor Spending 
(In Thousands) 

2003 68.1% 3,860 $3,680,000 
2004 73.4% 4,200 4,070,000 
2005 76.4% 4,490 4,530,000 
2006 76.4% 4,500 4,780,000 
2007 77.9% 4,590 5,060,000 
2008 79.2% 4,740 5,310,000 

 
Source: San Francisco Convention & Visitors Bureau 

 
According to the Convention & Visitors Bureau, as of June 1, 2007, convention business was almost at full capacity 
at the Moscone Convention Center and was at strong levels at individual hotels providing self-contained convention 
services. Due to an expansion to the Moscone Convention facilities completed spring 2003, the Moscone 
Convention Center offers over 700,000 square feet of exhibit space covering more than 20 acres on three adjacent 
blocks. Data for full years after 2007 are not available from the Convention & Visitors Bureau at this time. However, 
it is likely that the more recent hotel occupancy trend is negative. 
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Employment 

 
The City benefits from a highly skilled, educated and professional labor force. Key industries include tourism, real 
estate, banking and finance, retailing, apparel design and manufacturing. Emerging industries include multimedia and 
bioscience. See Table below for more information on the top employment sectors in the Metropolitan Statistical 
Area (MSA) consisting of San Francisco, Marin and San Mateo counties. Industry employment data are only available 
for the MSA, not the City. According to the California Employment Development Department, the unemployment 
rate for the City was 9.1% for March 2009 compared with an unadjusted unemployment rate of 11.5% for the State. 
See Table below for more information on the civilian labor of employment and unemployment in the MSA.  
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CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

Civilian Labor Force, Employment, and Unemployment(1)(2) 

 as of November 2008 and  2009(3) 

Year Area Labor Force Employment Unemployment 

Unemployment 

Rate 

Nov 2009 San Francisco 444,600 401,500 43,100 9.7% 

 State 18,314,700 16,084,300 2,230,400 12.2% 

Nov 2008(4) San Francisco 450,400 426,700 23,700 5.3% 

 State 18,391,800 17,059,600 1,332,300 7.2% 

(1) Civilian labor force data are by place of residence; include self-employed individuals, unpaid family workers, household domestic 

workers, and workers on strike. 

(2) San Francisco is in a multi-county Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) or Metropolitan Division (MD). Industry employment data 

are only available for the MSA or MD, not the City. The MSA Counties include: San Francisco, Marin, and San Mateo Counties. 

(3) Data not seasonally adjusted. 

(4) Data are annual average. 

Source: Labor Market Information Division of the California Employment Development Department (EDD) 

 
CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

Estimated Average Annual Employment by Sector in 2003-2007(1) 

 

 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 

      

Professional and Business Services 103,400 100,400 105,000 111,000 117,300 

Government 83,700 81,700 82,600 83,800 89,200 

Leisure and Hospitality 69,600 70,700 72,100 74,000 76,400 

Trade, Transportation and Utilities 71,200 70,000 69,600 69,700 69,200 

Financial, Insurance and Real Estate 59,100 57,000 57,300 58,000 58,900 

Educational and Health Service 53,200 54,400 55,100 56,000 57,500 

Other Services 21,700 21,100 21,300 21,400 21,900 

Information 20,500 19,100 17,300 18,100 19,400 

Natural Resources, Mining & Const. 17,300 16,000 16,600 17,500 18,300 

Manufacturing 13,100 12,300 11,400 11,100 11,100 

Total 512,800 502,700 508,300 520,600 539,200 

(1) San Francisco is a multi-county Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA) or Metropolitan Division (MD). 

Source: California Employment Development Department 
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The table below lists the 10 largest employers in the City as of December 2008. More recently, many Bay Area 
employers have announced layoffs, some significant, possibly including some of the employers listed in the following 
table. 
 

CITY AND COUNTY OF SAN FRANCISCO 

Largest Employers in San Francisco as of December 30, 2008 

Employer 

Number of Employees 

in SF Nature of Business 

City and County of San Francisco 26,657 City Government 

University of California, San Francisco 13,237 Education 

Wells Fargo & Co. 9,269 Financial Services 

California Pacific Medical Center 6,782 Health Care 

State of California 5,768 State Government 

San Francisco Unified School District 5,313 Education 

United States Postal Service 4,633 Postal Service 

PG&E Corp. 4,394 Utility 

Charles Schwab & Co. Inc. 4,100 Financial Services 

Gap Inc. 3,930 Specialty Retailer 

Source: San Francisco Business Times, Book of Lists 2008 
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Employer Employees Rank

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employment Employees Rank

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employment(2)

City and County of San Francisco 26,656      1           6.2% 29,610          1 6.6%

University of California, San Francisco 18,200      2           4.3 13,835          2 3.1

Wells Fargo & Co 8,718       3           2.0 6,366            5 1.4

California Pacific Medical Center 6,600       4           1.5 -               - -

State of California 6,021       5           1.4 11,296          3 2.5

Charles Schwab & Co., Inc. 4,600       6           1.1 9,873            4 2.2

United States Postal Service 4,571       7           1.1 4,500            10 1.0

PG&E Corporation 4,350       8           1.0 5,000            8 1.1

GAP, Inc. 4,172       9           1.0 -               -        -

San Francisco State University 3,831       10         0.9 -               -        -

San Francisco Unified School District -           -        - 5,579            6 1.3

AT&T -           -        - 5,200            7 1.2

Pacific Bell/SBC Communications, Inc. -           -        - 4,600            9 1.0

Total 87,719      20.6% (3) 95,859          21.5% (3)

Total City Employment 426,700        445,600         

(1) Information is not available for 1999 or 2000.

(2) Percentages have been restated based on updated employment information, and as a result, may differ from amounts reported in 

      The Comprehensive Financial Report for the City and County of San Francisco.  

(3) May not total due to rounding.

Source: Total City and County of San Francisco employee count is obtained from the California Employment

              Development Department.  All other data is obtained from San Francisco Business Times Book of Lists. 

Year 2008 Year 2001 (1)

Statistical Section                                                                   The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Demographic  & Economic Information

Principal Employers

Current Year and Seven Years Ago
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City and County of San Francisco

Office of the Controller

Monthly Economic Barometer - June 2009

Most Recent 

Month/Quarter Value

Month-to-

Month 

Change

Year-to-

Year 

Change

Five-Year 

Position Trend

Economy-Wide  

San Francisco Unemployment Rate
1

June-09 9.8% 0.5% 4.3% Weak Negative

Number of Unemployed, San Francisco County
1

June-09 44,100 2,600 20,200 Weak Negative

County Adult Assistance Program (CAAP) Caseload
2

June-09 7,473 0.7% 11.1% Neutral Negative

Total Employment, San Francisco MD
1

June-09 955,900 -0.3% -5.0% Neutral Negative

Temporary employment, San Francisco MD
1

June-09 13,100 -0.8% -16.0% Weak Negative

Real Estate   

Median Home Sales Price
3

June-09 $650,750 2.0% -13.7% Weak Neutral

Average 1BR Asking Rent
4

June-09 $1,902 1.5% -11.3% Neutral Neutral

Tourism  

Domestic Air Passengers
5

June-09 2,646,978 6.7% 1.2% Neutral Positive

International Air Passengers
5

June-09 760,102 10.6% -8.0% Neutral Positive

Hotel Average Daily Rate
6

June-09 $145.54 -4.7% -26.1% Weak Negative

Hotel Occupancy Rate
6

June-09 81.2% 7.3% -4.4% Neutral Negative

Retail  

Average Daily Parking Garage Customers
7

June-09 11,124 -2.3% -5.1% Neutral Negative

Powell St. BART Average Saturday Exits
8

June-09 23,490 2.7% -8.0% Neutral Negative

Month-to-month change is the percentage change to the most recent month or quarter from the prior one. 

Temporary employment refers to employment in the "Employment Services" industry.

Year-to-Year change is the percentage change from a given month or quarter to the same one last year.

Five-year position is a relative measure of how strong or weak the indicator is compared to the average over the last five years.

Unemployment and hotel occupancy rate changes are shown as a percentage point difference, not a percentage change.

Parking garages include Union Square, Fifth-Mission, Sutter-Stockton, and Ellis-O'Farrell.
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Discussion 
 
The city's unemployment rate rose to 9.8% in June, continuing its rise in line with state and national trends. San 
Francisco still has the 8th lowest rate among California counties, despite the rapid increase in unemployment over 
the past year. The city's jobless rate was 1.8 points lower than California's unemployment rate in June. 
 
Signs of a leveling-off are beginning to appear in two segments of the City's economy: residential real estate and 
airport travel. June saw the third consecutive month of rises in median home sale prices in San Francisco, providing 
further evidence of a developing bottom in the city's residential real estate market. Rental listings also ticked upwards 
in June, after a large drop in May. The number of one-bedrooms listed in Craigslist has also declined from earlier in 
the year, though the number of listings is still about 50% higher than one year ago. 
 
Airport data continues to be the primary bright spot in the city's economic picture at the moment. Domestic air 
traffic continued to rise in June, posting gains both on a month-to-month and annual basis. While down from last 
year, international travel increased more than 10% between May and June, nearly double the increase between May 
and June in 2008.  
 
However, growth in airport travel has not yet led to a recovery in the hotel sector. Hotel occupancy is up over May 
figures, but average daily rates continue to fall, contributing to a 30% decline in revenue per available room-night 
(revPAR) in June compared to a year ago. Through the first 6 months of the year revPAR is down about 24% 
compared to the same period in 2008. The steep decline in revPAR has contributed to some high-profile hotel 
owners defaulting on their loans, including the Four Seasons and Stanford Court hotels. 
 
More broadly, commercial real estate continued to see major declines in the second quarter of 2009, as reported in 
last month's barometer. Several buildings have been given back to lenders, including 333 Bush Street, which was 
prompted by the bankruptcy of Heller Ehrman. Other notable transactions include 250 Montgomery, which sold for 
about 60% of the previous purchase price. The deep discount on the property was due in part to the building's 50% 
vacancy rate. 
 
Sources: 
[1] – California Employment Development Department. MD refers to the San Francisco Metropolitan Division: San Francisco, 
Marin, and San Mateo counties. 
[2] – San Francisco Human Services Agency 
[3] – DataQuick 
[4] – Craigslist 
[5] – San Francisco International Airport 
[6] – PKF Consulting 
[7] – San Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency 
[8] – Bay Area Rapid Transit 
 

For more information contact Ted Egan, Chief Economist at 415-554-5268, or Kurt Fuchs, Senior Economist, at 
415-554-5369. 
If you would like to receive this report every month, please e-mail your request to Debbie Toy in the Controller's 
Office: debbie.toy@sfgov.org 
 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau 
 

mailto:debbie.toy@sfgov.org
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Fiscal 

Year

Number of 

Consumer 

Accounts

Water 

Consumed

(CCF)*

Water 

Consumed

(MG)**

Service 

Charge Billed 

($)

Water & 

Miscellaneous 

Billed ($)

Total Amount 

Billed ($)

2000 168,100    122,217,446    91,419       135,950       

2001 168,516    122,852,757    91,894       139,719       

2002 168,905    119,982,459    89,747       19,499          124,805          144,304       

2003 169,251    118,669,159    88,765       20,862          127,476          148,338       

2004 169,689    125,529,139    93,896       21,812          153,122          174,934       

2005 169,975    116,953,069    87,481       22,211          142,226          164,437       

2006 170,471    115,297,765    86,243       24,362          143,432          167,794       

2007 170,873    120,597,170    90,207       26,811          174,905          201,716       

2008 172,481    120,755,904    90,325       21,355          198,639          219,994       

2009 172,885    116,254,494    86,958       22,135          214,839          236,974       

* Hundred cubic feet = 748 gallons

** Millions of gallons

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System and summary of Annual Water Sales Reports.

(Dollars in Thousands)

Data is not available

Statistical Section                                       The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Demographic  & Economic Information

Water Accounts and Billings

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009
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2009

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 % of Total

Retail customers

Residential 23,199,940   23,299,078   23,166,044   23,102,746   23,428,537      22,509,970      22,533,134   22,204,792      21,248,938      20,991,172      18.1%

Commercial 10,970,686   10,929,830   9,992,460     10,069,094   10,410,951      9,814,755       9,860,593     9,764,866       10,511,527      10,930,755      9.4%

Suburban Retail 1,563,656     1,534,349     1,614,074     1,402,784     1,703,269       1,469,498       1,310,599     1,517,791       1,618,012        1,444,284       1.2%

Municipal 1,461,269     1,443,415     1,377,365     1,243,664     1,325,765       1,311,299       1,167,914     1,196,316       2,634,791        2,719,235       2.3%

Industrial 325,470       294,892       252,984       172,280       139,901          134,861          129,425       108,874          107,494           100,217          0.1%

Docks & Shipping 21,180         23,800         17,234         24,429         40,419            39,820            40,987         22,463            13,902             32,123            0.0%

   Retail water sales 37,542,201   37,525,364   36,420,161   36,014,997   37,048,842      35,280,203      35,042,652   34,815,102      36,134,664      36,217,786      31.2%

Wholesale customers

California Water Service 17,315,716   17,966,554   17,326,626   17,052,741   18,823,399      16,873,907      16,893,674   18,472,846      18,409,651      17,544,304      15.1%

Hayward Municipal Water 9,133,496     8,959,450     8,592,175     8,631,661     9,587,543       9,030,652       8,761,512     8,901,286       9,434,134        9,256,544       8.0%

City of Palo Alto 6,719,841     6,730,016     6,436,196     6,174,327     6,524,654       5,896,965       5,802,911     6,361,100       6,205,790        5,677,018       4.9%

Alameda County Water 6,163,900     5,733,920     5,853,104     6,074,761     6,023,430       5,270,508       5,192,872     6,667,959       6,294,887        5,528,087       4.8%

City of Sunnyvale 4,807,751     4,785,841     4,858,185     4,327,425     4,816,808       4,276,739       4,580,523     4,575,407       5,133,801        5,200,504       4.5%

City of Redwood City 5,784,279     5,749,916     5,679,249     5,561,922     5,950,319       5,423,431       5,308,460     5,694,374       5,373,572        5,048,309       4.3%

City of Mountain View 4,932,552     5,423,871     5,442,425     5,187,433     5,361,740       5,138,116       4,973,996     5,279,243       5,127,029        4,818,468       4.1%

City of Milpitas 3,528,024     3,444,476     3,404,363     3,290,835     3,476,406       3,255,284       3,195,719     3,378,811       3,393,790        3,353,762       2.9%

Estero Muni Improvement District 2,717,561     2,873,777     2,741,916     2,576,965     2,729,471       2,542,371       2,527,846     2,747,662       2,691,080        2,509,929       2.2%

City of Daly City 2,268,814     2,215,685     2,348,666     3,078,921     3,193,899       3,385,617       3,003,123     3,016,092       2,192,526        2,168,708       1.9%

All Other Wholesale Customers 21,303,311   21,443,887   20,879,393   20,697,171   21,992,628      20,579,276      20,014,477   20,687,288      20,364,980      18,931,075      16.3%

   Wholesale water sales 84,675,245   85,327,393   83,562,298   82,654,162   88,480,297      81,672,866      80,255,113   85,782,068      84,621,240      80,036,708      68.8%

   Total water sales 122,217,446 122,852,757 119,982,459 118,669,159 125,529,139    116,953,069    115,297,765 120,597,170    120,755,904     116,254,494    100%

% Change from prior year 2.1% 0.5% -2.3% -1.1% 5.8% -6.8% -1.4% 4.6% 0.1% -3.7%

Number of accounts 168,100 168,516 168,905 169,251 169,689 169,975 170,471 170,873 172,481 172,885

    Retail 168,023 168,439 168,828 169,174 169,611 169,897 170,392 170,794 172,400 172,804

    Wholesale 77 77 77 77 78 78 79 79 81 81                  

Source: Summary of Annual Water Sales reports and San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System.

Statistical Section                                                                                                                                                                          The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                    

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

Demographic & Economic Information

Historical Water Sales in Hundred Cubic Feet
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2009

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 % of Total

Retail Customers

Residential 17,354 17,428 17,328 17,281 17,525 16,837 16,855 16,609 15,894 15,701   18.1%

Commercial 8,206   8,176   7,474   7,532   7,787   7,341   7,376   7,304   7,863   8,176     9.4%

Suburban Retail 1,170   1,148   1,207   1,049   1,274   1,099   980      1,135   1,210   1,080     1.2%

Municipal 1,093   1,080   1,030   930      992      981      874      895      1,971   2,034     2.3%

Industrial 243      221      189      129      105      101      97       81       80       75         0.1%

Docks & Shipping 16       18       13       18       30       30       31       17       10       24         0.0%

   Retail water sales 28,082 28,069 27,242 26,939 27,713 26,390 26,212 26,042 27,029 27,091   31.2%

Wholesale Customers

California Water Service 12,952 13,439 12,960 12,755 14,080 12,622 12,636 13,818 13,770 13,123   15.1%

Hayward Municipal Water 6,832   6,702   6,427   6,456   7,171   6,755   6,554   6,658   7,057   6,924     8.0%

City of Palo Alto 5,026   5,034   4,814   4,618   4,880   4,411   4,341   4,758   4,642   4,246     4.9%

Alameda County Water 4,611   4,289   4,378   4,544   4,506   3,942   3,884   4,988   4,709   4,135     4.8%

City of Sunnyvale 3,596   3,580   3,634   3,237   3,603   3,199   3,426   3,422   3,840   3,890     4.5%

City of Redwood City 4,327   4,301   4,248   4,160   4,451   4,057   3,971   4,259   4,019   3,776     4.3%

City of Mountain View 3,690   4,057   4,071   3,880   4,011   3,843   3,721   3,949   3,835   3,604     4.1%

City of Milpitas 2,639   2,576   2,546   2,462   2,600   2,435   2,390   2,527   2,539   2,509     2.9%

Estero Muni Improvement District 2,033   2,150   2,051   1,928   2,042   1,902   1,891   2,055   2,013   1,877     2.2%

City of Daly City 1,697   1,657   1,757   2,303   2,389   2,532   2,246   2,256   1,640   1,622     1.9%

All Other Wholesale Customers 15,935 16,040 15,618 15,481 16,450 15,393 14,971 15,474 15,233 14,160   16.3%

   Wholesale water sales 63,337 63,825 62,505 61,825 66,183 61,091 60,031 64,165 63,297 59,867   68.8%

   Total water sales 91,419 91,894 89,747 88,765 93,896 87,481 86,243 90,207 90,325 86,958   100%

% Change from prior year 2.1% 0.5% -2.3% -1.1% 5.8% -6.8% -1.4% 4.6% 0.1% -3.7%

Number of accounts 168,100 168,516 168,905 169,251 169,689 169,975 170,471 170,873 172,481 172,885

    Retail 168,023 168,439 168,828 169,174 169,611 169,897 170,392 170,794 172,400 172,804

    Wholesale 77 77 77 77 78 78 79 79 81 81         

Source: Summary of Annual Water Sales reports and San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System.

Statistical Section                                                                                                  The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                  

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

Demographic & Economic Information

Historical Water Sales in Millions of Gallons
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2009

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 % of Total

Retail customers

Residential 47.5    47.7    47.5    47.3    48.0    46.1    46.2    45.5    43.5    43.0      18.1%

Commercial 22.5    22.4    20.5    20.6    21.3    20.1    20.2    20.0    21.5    22.4      9.4%

Suburban Retail 3.2      3.1      3.3      2.9      3.5      3.0      2.7      3.1      3.3      3.0        1.2%

Municipal 3.0      3.0      2.8      2.5      2.7      2.7      2.4      2.5      5.4      5.6        2.3%

Industrial 0.7      0.6      0.5      0.4      0.3      0.3      0.3      0.2      0.2      0.2        0.1%

Docks & Shipping 0.0      0.0      0.0      0.1      0.1      0.1      0.1      0.0      0.0      0.1        0.0%

   Retail water sales 76.9    76.9    74.6    73.8    75.9    72.3    71.8    71.3    74.1    74.2      31.2%

Wholesale customers

California Water Service 35.5    36.8    35.5    34.9    38.6    34.6    34.6    37.9    37.7    36.0      15.1%

Hayward Municipal Water 18.7    18.4    17.6    17.7    19.6    18.5    18.0    18.2    19.3    19.0      8.0%

City of Palo Alto 13.8    13.8    13.2    12.7    13.4    12.1    11.9    13.0    12.7    11.6      4.9%

Alameda County Water 12.6    11.8    12.0    12.4    12.3    10.8    10.6    13.7    12.9    11.3      4.8%

City of Sunnyvale 9.9      9.8      10.0    8.9      9.9      8.8      9.4      9.4      10.5    10.7      4.5%

City of Redwood City 11.9    11.8    11.6    11.4    12.2    11.1    10.9    11.7    11.0    10.3      4.3%

City of Mountain View 10.1    11.1    11.2    10.6    11.0    10.5    10.2    10.8    10.5    9.9        4.1%

City of Milpitas 7.2      7.1      7.0      6.7      7.1      6.7      6.5      6.9      7.0      6.9        2.9%

Estero Muni Improvement District 5.6      5.9      5.6      5.3      5.6      5.2      5.2      5.6      5.5      5.1        2.2%

City of Daly City 4.6      4.5      4.8      6.3      6.5      6.9      6.2      6.2      4.5      4.4        1.9%

All Other Wholesale Customers 43.7    43.9    42.8    42.4    45.1    42.2    41.0    42.4    41.7    38.8      16.3%

   Wholesale water sales 173.6   174.9   171.2   169.4   181.3   167.4   164.5   175.8   173.4   164.0     68.8%

   Total water sales 250.5   251.8   245.9   243.2   257.2   239.7   236.3   247.1   247.5   238.2     100%

% Change from prior year 2.1% 0.5% -2.3% -1.1% 5.8% -6.8% -1.4% 4.6% 0.1% -3.7%

Number of accounts 168,100 168,516 168,905 169,251 169,689 169,975 170,471 170,873 172,481 172,885

    Retail 168,023 168,439 168,828 169,174 169,611 169,897 170,392 170,794 172,400 172,804

    Wholesale 77 77 77 77 78 78 79 79 81 81         

Statistical Section                                                                                                 The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                            

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

Demographic & Economic Information

Source: Summary of Annual Water Sales reports and San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System.

Historical Water Sales in Millions of Gallons per Day
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Fiscal Year Ending

Customer Type 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Builders & Contractors

   Number of accounts 217         229       203       188       217       201       223       221       226       193         

   Billings 251$       252       353       299       258       240       298       379       450       440         

Commercial

   Number of accounts 21,112     21,064   20,998   20,949   20,931   20,894   20,814   20,788   20,887   20,003     

   Billings 19,749$   19,467   19,518   21,354   21,823   20,315   24,093   27,011   31,660   34,889     

Docks & Ships

   Number of accounts 1             1           1           1           1           1           1           1           1           1             

   Billings 55$         55         49         68         98         99         102       88         79         81           

Industrial

   Number of accounts 117         114       113       110       108       105       107       105       103       97           

   Billings 473$       431       409       325       278       266       278       298       301       327         

Municipal customers

   Number of accounts 416         418       420       422       424       419       423       419       1,732     1,764      

   Billings 1,216$     1,184     1,256     1,274     1,272     1,270     1,286     1,352     4,920     5,906      

Multi family residential

   Number of accounts 37,487     37,730   38,014   38,216   38,477   38,589   38,760   38,943   38,607   39,664     

   Billings 22,209$   22,219   23,979   25,969   26,295   25,950   29,995   34,010   35,411   40,515     

Single family residential

   Number of accounts 108,350   108,546 108,746 108,951 109,121 109,362 109,736 109,990 110,517 110,759   

   Billings 17,317$   17,444   18,916   20,728   21,109   20,308   23,085   26,337   26,919   29,656     

Suburban

   Number of accounts 323         337       333       337       332       326       328       327       327       323         

   Billings 2,540$     2,511     3,436     3,369     3,813     3,543     3,767     4,878     6,095     6,533      

Suburban Resale

   Number of accounts 77           77         77         77         78         78         79         79         81         81           

   Billings 72,140$   76,156   76,388   74,952   99,988   92,446   84,890   107,363 114,159 118,627   

Total

   Number of accounts 168,100   168,516 168,905 169,251 169,689 169,975 170,471 170,873 172,481 172,885   

   Billings - dollars in thousands 135,950$ 139,719 144,304 148,338 174,934 164,437 167,794 201,716 219,994 236,974   

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System.

(Dollars in Thousands)

Statistical Section                                                                        The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Demographic & Economic Information

Water Accounts & Billings by Type of Customer
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Customer Type 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Single family residential

   Number of accounts 108,350 108,546 108,746 108,951 109,121 109,362 109,736 109,990 110,517 110,759

   Billings $ 32,373 32,979 32,959 32,762 33,735 34,881 37,472 41,196 44,944 48,555

Multi family residential

   Number of accounts 37,487 37,730 38,014 38,216 38,477 38,589 38,760 38,943 38,607 39,664

   Billings $ 45,593 45,583 44,970 43,798 44,669 50,392 55,460 60,796 59,682 63,690

Industrial

   Number of accounts 117 114 113 110 108 105 107 105 103 97

   Billings $ 1,164 1,361 1,136 747 681 715 776 836 843 935

Commercial

   Number of accounts 21,112 21,064 20,998 20,949 20,931 20,894 20,814 20,788 20,887 20,003

   Billings $ 53,321 52,001 47,893 48,225 48,335 51,086 58,685 64,927 73,799 78,377

Municipal customers

   Number of accounts 416 418 420 422 424 419 423 419 1,732 1,764

   Billings $ 1,474 1,276 1,296 1,235 1,433 1,282 1,313 1,621 7,005 7,826

Suburban (watershed keepers) (*)

   Number of accounts 0 12 12 12 12 12 12 11 11 11

   Billings $ 0 1 3 3 2 3 2 2 2 2

Total

   Number of accounts 167,482 167,884 168,303 168,660 169,073 169,381 169,852 170,256 171,857 172,298

   Billings - dollars in thousands $ 133,926 133,201 128,257 126,770 128,855 138,359 153,708 169,378 186,275 199,385

(*) In addition to suburban customers, we provide service to three special districts, North San Mateo County Sanitation District, Bayshore Sanitary District, and the City of Brisbane.

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System.

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ending

Statistical Section                                                                        
The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Demographic & Economic Information

Wastewater Sewer Accounts & Billings by Type of Customer
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2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Enterprises and Bureaus

 City Distribution Division & Administration      253       256        252       268       286 279       279       271       272       268 

  Water Quality          95         98          98       100       104 102         87         86         83         80 

  Water Supply & Treatment       219       224        218       226       243 239       248       242       242       235 

  Natural Resources          28         29          31         42         46 42         55         61         66         65 

  Water Resources Management           6           8            5           5           5 5         23         23         23         22 

 Total Water      601       615        604       641       684 667       692       683       686       670 

  Administration          39         38          33         37         41 38         41         41         40         32 

  Maintenance       121       122        126       136       139 133       136       146       144       138 

  Operations       111       101        100       113       114 111       120       122       121       141 

  Environmental Engineering          46         48          45         47         56 55         55         58         58         45 

  Planning & Regulations            5           5            5           4           5 5           3           7           8         10 

  Sewer Operations          36         35          34         35         37 35         35         39         38         39 

  Collection System         59         61          59         58         61 62         64         64         66         63 

 Total Wastewater      417       410        402       430       453 439       454       477       475       468 

  Power Administration          19           5            4           5           8 7           6           8           8           6 

  Energy Services          14         39          47         41         32 32         42         47         61         64 

  Power Long Range Planning           8           8          13         19         24 21         22         19         16         17 

  Water Project Operations & Engineering      139       140        139       146       155 151       153       159       169       174 

 Total Hetch Hetchy      180       192        203       211       219 211       223       233       254       261 

  General Manager          15         14          12         14         18 8           7           8           7           7 

  Infrastructure       224       239        238       252       300 310       309       363       411       414 

  Business Services & Finance         42         47          45         46         56 50         54         56         54         56 

  Information Technology Services          45         61          63         68         76 71         76         75         80         79 

  Human Resource Services         46         49          49         49         53 48         52         50         50         51 

  Customer Services          97         98          95         98         99 95       100       100       107       110 

  Governmental Affairs             9         10         15 19         21         22         21         21 

  Communications, Real Estate & Others         42         41          43         38         44 49         32         16         18         17 

 Total SFPUC annually budgeted positions   1,709   1,766    1,763   1,857   2,017   1,967   2,020   2,083   2,163   2,154 

 Annual Salary Ordinance Positions 1,891 1,939 1,932 1,976 2,118 2,116 2,122 2,210 2,307 2,307

Note: Funded full-time employee counts include the operating and project funded positions net of the attrition savings.

Source: Annual Appropriation Ordinance 

Statistical Section                                                                                     The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Operating Information

Full-time Equivalent (FTEs) Employees by Division

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009
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Water 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Water mains (miles) (excludes Suburban) 1,219 1,219 1,220 1,220 1,220 1,223 1,227 1,227 1,227 1,235

Water main breaks repaired 70 150 124 114 130 118 101 151 159 92

New service installations 767 629 641 597 557 491 544 533 539 437

Meter repairs/replacements 11,037 9,217 8,963 6,419 4,175 5,050 4,610 4,945 3,798 1,115

Responses to fire alarms 61 63 55 43 33 37 39 43 28 18

Water  production (millions of gallons) 100,064 99,244 94,681 98,112 100,321 89,973 84,315 88,732 90,585 85,556

Average daily production (millions of gallons daily) 273 272 259 269 274 247 231 243 248 234

Maximum daily production (millions of gallons daily) 390 390 381 387 394 359 338 352 356 333

Water consumption (millions of gallons) 91,419 91,894 89,747 88,765 93,896 87,481 86,243 90,207 90,325 86,958

Average daily consumption (millions of gallons) 250.5 251.8 245.9 243.2 257.2 239.7 236.3 247.1 247.4 238.2

Watershed acreage (acres)

   Alameda 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895 36,895

   San Mateo 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000 23,000

     Total 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895 59,895

Reservoir storage (millions of gallons) (*)

   Calaveras 27,774 22,730 13,581 10,920 12,094 13,434 14,054 11,970 12,604 12,242

   San Antonio 14,931 13,783 15,763 15,172 12,658 12,414 14,789 14,680 15,076 14,990

   Crystal Springs 14,760 13,962 15,103 15,522 16,124 15,606 15,232 15,513 13,710 15,932

   San Andreas 5,208 5,615 5,804 5,048 5,855 5,549 5,878 5,843 5,836 5,842

   Pilarcitos 755 762 793 788 714 788 736 777 785 726

     Total 63,428 56,852 51,044 47,450 47,445 47,791 50,689 48,783 48,011 49,732

Treatment plant capacity (millions of gallons)

   Harry Tracy 50.1 37.8 44.5 43.1 52.0 45.2 40.4 41.2 36.9 26.9

   Sunol Valley 49.0 34.9 29.0 28.0 36.7 28.5 29.4 17.6 21.1 23.6

     Total 99.1 72.7 73.5 71.1 88.7 73.7 69.8 58.8 58.0 50.5

(*) In addition to these regional reservoirs.  SFPUC has In-City System Storage Capacity of 411.9 million of gallons.

Sources: Water Monthly Operating Report, Hetch Hetchy Capital Outlays Summary, and Treatment Plant Influent Flow  & Sew er Service Charge Calculation Reports.

Statistical Section                                                                           The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Operating Information

Operating & Capacity Indicators

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009
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Wastewater 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Sanitary sewers (miles) 993 993 993 993 993 993 993 993 993 993

Sewer breaks repaired 410 436 444 411 456 432 394 464 419 52

Inspection performed (miles) 43 45 47 49 51 53 53 56 73 111

Sewer replaced (miles) 5.6 5.8 4.8 3.5 9.4 5.2 5.4 6.8 6.6 3.2

Responses to customer calls 859 1,022 1,370 1,522 1,701 1,729 2,093 2,152 2,683 3,309

Treatment plant average daily flow 

  (millions of daily gallons)

     Southeast Plant 76.9 75.3 74.6 70.9 71.4 80.0 79.6 69.4 67.2 67.2

     Oceanside Plant 21.8 20.6 21.1 20.4 20.2 21.8 22.4 19.8 19.3 19.1

     North Point Plant 3.3 2.6 3.0 3.0 2.0 4.9 4.5 1.8 2.2 2.8

        Total 102.0 98.5 98.7 94.3 93.6 106.7 106.5 91.0 88.7 89.1

Hetch Hetchy Water & Power 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Watershed acreage (square miles)

   Hetch Hetchy 459 459 459 459 459 459 459 459 459 459

   Lake Eleanor 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79 79

   Lake Lloyd (Cherry) 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114

     Total 652 652 652 652 652 652 652 652 652 652

Reservoir storage (million of gallons)

   Hetch Hetchy 117,682 113,465 117,295 117,231 116,140 117,682 115,437 114,799 116,525 117,424

   Lake Eleanor 8,866 8,459 8,429 8,247 8,247 7,459 8,929 8,677 7,489 8,677

   Lake Lloyd (Cherry) 87,019 87,478 87,888 89,247 86,790 89,247 88,951 81,305 83,353 87,763

     Total 213,567 209,402 213,612 214,725 211,177 214,388 213,317 204,781 207,367 213,864

Hydro electric generation (megawatt hours)

   Holm 720,500     558,826     717,588       728,447       685,103       726,942     852,411      576,851     563,919     667,191    

   Kirkwood 583,509     481,221     577,357       496,128       548,504       596,567     667,282      428,901     469,416     473,320    

   Moccasin 387,595     378,428     429,680       363,794       373,304       397,647     418,814      344,361     377,327     372,777    

   Moccasin Low-Head 6,538         5,311         4,791           3,638           5,038           6,881         8,272          2,324         2,522         4,106        

     Total 1,698,142  1,423,786  1,729,416    1,592,007    1,611,949    1,728,037  1,946,779   1,352,437  1,413,184  1,517,394 

(*) In addition to these regional reservoirs.  SFPUC has In-City System Storage Capacity of 411.9 million of gallons.

Sources: Water Monthly Operating Report, Hetch Hetchy Capital Outlays Summary, and Treatment Plant Influent Flow  & Sew er Service Charge Calculation Reports.

Statistical Section                                                                           The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

Operating Information

Operating & Capacity Indicators

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009
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Wholesale Customers 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Hayward Muni Water System $7,681 7,906   7,770   7,805   10,809 10,222 9,200   11,123 12,528 13,500 

City of Palo Alto 5,703   5,995   5,874   5,644   7,442   6,770   6,183   8,391   8,332   8,383   

City of Sunnyvale 4,155   4,329   4,488   4,021   5,572   5,010   4,939   5,849   6,898   7,703   

Calif. Water Service Co (S.Mateo) 4,192   4,699   4,616   4,526   5,931   5,788   5,633   6,965   7,065   7,494   

Alameda Co Water District 4,476   4,589   4,645   4,808   6,082   5,234   4,713   6,793   7,138   7,198   

City of Mountain View 4,204   4,824   4,949   4,724   6,104   5,912   5,274   6,641   6,818   7,091   

City of Milpitas 2,994   3,064   3,097   3,019   3,996   3,792   3,414   4,257   4,550   4,964   

City of Redwood City 3,752   4,043   3,982   3,794   5,318   5,015   4,212   5,715   5,419   4,946   

Estero Municipal Improvement District 2,293   2,536   2,478   2,332   3,084   2,889   2,660   3,434   3,580   3,671   

Retail Customers 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Parkmerced Investors Properties, LLC $1,772 1,480   1,630   1,702   1,761   1,761   1,854   2,092   2,452   2,527   

SF International Airport 902      911      1,194   1,154   1,326   1,305   1,345   1,742   2,123   2,314   

University of California San Francisco 1,014   1,100   1,047   1,315   734      837      1,372   1,542   2,183   1,761   

NRG Energy Center SF 459      453      125      765      965      1,023   1,140   1,206   1,218   1,155   

Nasa Shared Services Center (NSSC) 466      425      691      622      667      631      661      773      996      1,070   

SF State University-State of Calif 426      416      418      420      518      480      596      764      917      974      

Treasure Island 216      346      374      449      494      401      476      566      710      856      

Marriott Hotel 509      484      441      427      443      577      634      696      769      806      

Castlewood Country Club 234      233      354      332      395      349      428      541      695      736      

Fairmont Hotel & Tower 429      396      325      365      427      480      564      669      540      655      

American Linen 414      440      345      314      307      420      545      509      468      488      

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System

Statistical Section                                                                                       The  San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                                            

Operating Information

Major Water Wholesale and Retail Customer Accounts by Revenues

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Customer 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Parkmerced Investors Properties, LLC $1,246 1,026 1,111 1,130 1,169 1,272 1,350 1,514 1,704 1,715 

University of California San Francisco 788    854    798    981    561    663    1,034 1,146 1,574 1,270 

NRG Energy Center SF 345    341    83      483    609    666    738    775    845    786    

SF State University-State of Calif 331    315    318    305    374    350    448    577    643    676    

Marriott Hotel 408    388    347    330    342    454    498    543    577    596    

Fairmont Hotel & Tower 343    316    254    281    329    377    441    522    405    484    

Hyatt Corporation 321    321    269    285    287    282    339    392    442    400    

American Linen 340    356    272    246    242    348    450    403    353    372    

Source: San Francisco Public Utilities Commission's Customer Information & Billing System

Statistical Section                                                                        The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                    

Operating Information

Major Sewer Customer Accounts by Revenues

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Retail Customer 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

San Francisco International Airport $19,139 23,998 33,807 33,984 33,205 29,635 29,275 29,161 29,853 31,659

PUC - Wastewater Enterprise 5,459   6,160   8,654   9,028   7,773   7,577   7,211   7,254   7,273   7,567     

PUC - Water Enterprise 3,707   3,802   5,823   6,334   6,199   5,704   5,593   5,758   5,263   5,477     

Municipal Transportation Agency 4,813   5,262   5,500   4,606   4,562   4,323   4,219   4,275   4,420   4,513     

Administrative Services Agency 1,964   2,134   2,656   3,495   2,022   1,713   3,876   4,009   4,232   4,233     

San Francisco Housing Authority 2,432   2,679   3,394   3,169   2,963   3,048   3,210   3,455   3,473   3,672     

City Owned Parking Garages 928      1,136   1,507   1,552   1,615   1,482   1,546   1,548   1,572   1,719     

San Francisco Port 1,475   1,139   1,364   1,562   1,386   1,300   1,246   1,258   1,326   1,435     

Recreation and Parks Department 1,201   1,107   1,340   1,344   1,240   869      1,221   1,308   1,286   1,305     

San Francisco Unified School District 1,228   1,246   1,257   1,295   1,251   1,301   1,262   1,309   1,309   1,292     

Department of Public Health 1,566   1,651   1,788   1,802   1,728   1,704   1,662   221      630      1,179     

Wholesale Customer 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Western Systems Power Pool $4,376 10,340 8,305 3,910 6,021 7,399 23,383 1,911 9,247 6,162

Turlock Irrigation Districts 8,439 7,103 7,117 8,424 6,734 8,049 10,876 5,838 6,085 3,717

Modesto Irrigation Districts 18,969 16,094 14,874 17,777 18,912 16,973 13,651 8,426 4,378 1,322

Sources: Customer Service Retail Billing System and Power Enterprise Scheduling System

Major Electric Retail and  Wholesale Customer Accounts by Revenues

Statistical Section                                                                                           The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission                    

Fiscal Years Ending 2000 to 2009

Operating Information

(Dollars in Thousands)
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Performance Measures

Water Distribution
2006-07 

Actual

2007-08 

Actual

2008-09

Target

2008-09 

Actual

2009-10 

Target

Deliver high quality drinking water to our customers

California Department of Public Health (DPH) 

violations in the Regional Water System

0 0 0 0 0

California Department of Health and Safety 

(DHS) violations in the Local Water System

0 0 0 0 0

Number of unplanned service interruptions to 

wholesale customers and to the retail service 

area (San Francisco)

151 159 0 92 0

Maintain and improve customer service

Percent of customer inquiries or complaints 

responded to within 2 business hours of initial 

contact

100% 100% 99% 100% 100%

Unplanned disruptions of less than 4 hours in 

San Francisco (per 1,000 customer accounts)

1.10 1.06 1.10 0.63 2.20

Unplanned disruptions of greater than 12 hours 

in San Francisco (per 1,000 customer 

accounts)

0.00 0.02 0.01 0.01 0.01

Maintain infrastructure to keep water system in a state of good repair and operation

Percent of wholesale water meters calibrated 46% 67% 50% 33% 50%

Percent of transmission line valves exercised 17% 13% 33% 32% 33%

Number of residential and commercial water 

meters replaced in San Francisco

4,053 3,561 4,200 1,115 500

Miles of water main replaced in San Francisco 6.2 6.0 12.0 8.1 6.0

Miles of water conveyance facilities inspected 

in the Hetch Hetchy system (Hetch Hetchy to 

Tesla Portal)

17 47 16 16 16

Percent of maintenance that is scheduled 

rather than unscheduled in the Hetch Hetchy 

system

46% 52% 45% 48% 45%

Percent of maintenance that is scheduled 

rather than unscheduled in the Regional 

system (Tesla to CDD)

63% 66% 54% 56% 54%
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Wastewater Operations
2006-07 

Actual

2007-08 

Actual

2008-09

Target

2008-09 

Actual

2009-10 

Target

Collect wastewater in an efficient and effective fashion

Number of catch basins inspected and 

cleaned

6,193 7,009 7,500 7,361 7,500

Linear feet of main collection system sewer 

lines inspected

441,081 399,565 528,000 587,928 528,000

Number of dental office inspections 

performed (to control source of mercury 

discharge)

201 130 150 6 25

Number of Fats, Oils, & Grease (FOG) 

inspections (to reduce sewer blockages 

and control odor problems)

706 862 750 767 840

Operate the treatment plants efficiently and effectively

Major National Pollution Discharge 

Elimination System (NPDES) Permit 

violations per year

1 0 2 2 2

Kilowatt-hours of electric power consumed 

per million gallons treated (includes plants 

& pump stations)

1,976 1,981 1,900 2,065 1,800

Percent of solids in dewatered (post-

centrifuge) cake

24% 23% 23% 24% 23%

Maintain the wastewater system in a state of good repair

Percent maintenance work done that is 

planned vs. unplanned

53% 64% 76% 84% 80%

Percent of scheduled maintenance jobs 

completed within 10% of initial estimate for 

staff hours required

28% 29% 40% 38% 80%

Percent of preventive maintenance (PM) 

tasks completed

27% 38% 80% 77% 80%

Foster Constructive Relationships with Neighborhoods and Contribute to the Community

Percent of sewer complaints responded to 

in person within 8 hours

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Number of confirmed treatment plant odor 

complaints made by the public

8 12 13 9 6
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Hetch Hetchy Power
2006-07 

Actual

2007-08 

Actual

2008-09

Target

2008-09 

Actual

2009-10 

Target

Manage the City's power supply effectively and efficiently

Actual municipal power load falls within 90% 

to 110% of forecast load (megawatt hours)

832,963 842,347 848,253 836,060 880,492

Number of days per month the balance of 

Deferred Delivery Account (DDA) accounts 

exceeds 110,000 megawatt hours

0 0 0 0 0

Promote energy conservation

Total number of kilowatt hours reduced 1,500,000 2,339,000 3,000,000 3,035,387 5,500,000

Total number of peak kilowatts reduced 26 87 350 528 610

Develop and implement renewable energy projects

Increase in kilowatts per year of renewable 

capacity and energy (non-Hetch Hetchy 

generated)

245 845 400 0 5,250

Maintain the City's power assets in a state of good repair

Percent of customer-funded projects (work 

orders for other departments) performed within 

cost estimates

88% 83% 100% 50% 100%

Respond to streetlight and pole needs promptly

Percent of SFPUC streetlight malfunctions 

(as reported by customers) repaired within 

two business days

82% 70% 85% 65% 40%

Percent of SFPUC pole 

knockdown/replacements (with concrete 

foundation repairs) completed within twenty-

one business days

86% 39% 70% 85% 70%

Percent of SFPUC pole 

knockdown/replacements (without concrete 

foundation repairs) completed within three 

business days

100% 19% 85% 65% 75%

Manage utilities on Yerba Buena Island / Treasure Island effectively and efficiently

Percent of Treasure Island / Yerba Buena 

Island service (electric, natural gas) requests 

responded to within 48 hours

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Percent of technical and engineering services 

for TIDA operation activities provided on 

schedule

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Percent of technical and engineering services 

for TIDA design activities provided on 

schedule

100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Generate power to help meet the needs of the City and County of San Francisco

Power generated to meet San Francisco's 

needs, in gigawatt hours (annual target set 

assuming average annual hydrology)

1,388 2,046 1,600 1,527 3,200
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Glossary of Terms 
 

Accreted Value 
Accreted value is the theoretical price of a bond if market interest rates were to remain at current levels. 
 

Accrual Basis of Accounting 
The financial activities of the Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water & Power are accounted for using the 
accrual basis of accounting. It is as method of accounting that recognizes the financial effect of transactions, events, 
and interfund activities when they occur, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 
 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Term used in connection with defined benefit pension and other postemployment benefit plans to describe the 
amount an employer must contribute in a given year. 
 

Arbitrage 
The reinvestment of the proceeds of tax-exempt securities in materially higher yielding taxable securities. 
 

Arbitrage Rebate 
A payment made by an issuer to the federal government in connection with an issue of tax-exempt bonds.  The 
payment represents the amount, if any, of arbitrage earnings on bond proceeds and certain other related funds, except 
for earnings that are not required to be rebated under limited exemptions provided under the Internal Revenue Code.  
 

Assurance and Internal Controls (AIC)  
A bureau in Business Services. AIC provides and facilitates quality assurance oversight, risk management, internal 
controls, policies and procedures review and business process improvement programs for operational and financial 
transactions/processes, with the objective to minimize process inefficiencies and control deficiencies to mitigate 
financial risks. 
 

Attrition Savings  
Attrition Savings is the anticipated amount of salaries that will not be expanded due to normal attrition.  
 

Automated Water Meter Reading System  
The SFPUC will implement this System over the next three years, which will collect various water meter data. The 
System will largely eliminate meter reading field visits, improve customers' access to water usage information, facilitate 
the timely detection of tampering, theft, and leaks, and enhance usage or flow profiling.  
 

Auxiliary Water Supply System (AWSS)  
The Auxiliary Water Supply System (AWSS) is a system of mains and 1,889 High Pressure Fire Hydrants, independent 
of the domestic water supply built solely for the purpose of firefighting. The system is supplied with fresh water, by 
gravity, from a reservoir and two tanks located at high elevation in the City. The transition of AWSS to the SFPUC 
would be implemented in a phased approach over a period of time and would include both the high and low pressure 
distribution systems, one reservoir, two tanks, and two pump stations.  
 

Average Cost 
A costing method by which the value of a pool of assets or expenses is assumed to be equal to the average cost of the 
assets or expenses in the pool. 

 
Average Daily Rate (ADR)  
A statistical unit that is often used in the lodging industry. The number represents the average rental income per 
occupied room in a given time period. The ADR can be calculated by dividing the room revenue by the number of 
rooms sold. ADR along with the property's occupancy are the foundations for the property's financial performance. It 
is one of the commonly used financial indicators in hotel industry to measure how well a hotel performs compared to 
its competitors and itself (year over year). 

http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=ISSUER
http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=ISSUEOFBONDS
http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=TAXEXEMPTBOND
http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=ARBITRAGEEARNINGS
http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=BONDPROCEEDS
http://www.msrb.org/MSRB1/glossary/view_def.asp?param=INTERNALREVENUECODE
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Lodging
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Bay Area Water Supply and Conservation Agency (BAWSCA)  
BAWSCA represents the interests of 27 suburban wholesale that purchase water wholesale from the San Francisco 
regional water system. These entities provide water to 1.7 million people, businesses and community organizations in 
Alameda, Santa Clara and San Mateo counties.  
 

Board of Supervisors (BOS)  
The Board of Supervisors is the legislative branch of the City and County of San Francisco. The Board consists of 11 
members. Each member is elected on a non-partisan basis from a district where he or she lives. The Board is 
responsible for amending an approving the SFPUC's proposed budget.  The Board's Budget Analyst also participates 
in reviews of city spending and financial projections.  
 

Bond Discount 
A contra liability account that reports the amount of unamortized discount associated with bonds that are 
outstanding. The discount on bonds payable originates when bonds are issued for less than the bond's face or 
maturity amount. The debit balance in this account will be amortized to bond interest expense over the life of the 
bonds and results in more interest expense than interest paid. 
 

Bond Issuance Cost 
A long-term asset which includes professional fees and registration fees associated with the issuance of bonds. The 
amount in the account will be amortized to expense on the income statement over the life of the bonds. 
 

Bond Premium 
A liability account with a credit balance associated with bonds payable that were issued at more than the face value or 
maturity value of the bonds. The premium on bonds payable is amortized to interest expense over the life of the 
bonds and results in a reduction of interest expense. 
 

Budget and Finance Committee  
The Budget and Finance Committee of the Board of Supervisors is referred appropriation ordinances, and measures 
concerning bond issues, taxes, fees and other revenue measures, redevelopment, and real estate. The Committee is 
also referred the annual appropriation and annual salary ordinances, and holds a public hearing on the Mayor's budget 
instructions to City departments for each annual City budget after the instructions are released.  
 

California Employment Development Department (EDD) 
EDD was established in 1936 to provide an economic line of defense against the effects of unemployment, assisting 
not only the individual but also the community. It is one of the largest state departments with service locations 
throughout the state. EDD offers a wide variety of services to millions of Californians under the Job Service, 
Unemployment Insurance (UI), State Disability Insurance (SDI), Workforce Investment, and Labor Market 
Information programs. As California's largest tax collection agency, EDD also handles the audit and collection of 
payroll taxes and maintains employment records for more than 17 million California workers.  
 

California Energy Commission (CEC) 
The California Energy Commission is the state's primary energy policy and planning agency. Created by the 
Legislature in 1974 and located in Sacramento, the commission has responsibility for activities that include forecasting 
future energy needs, promoting energy efficiency through appliance and building standards, and supporting renewable 
energy technologies. 
 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
A state law passed in 1970 which requires state and local agencies to make decisions with environmental consequences 
in mind by mandating that they: disclose the potential environmental effects of a proposed project to decision makers 
and the public; identify methods to minimize those effects to the environment; identify feasible mitigation measures 
and/or alternatives to the project; and solicit and respond to comments from the public and from other agencies 
concerned with the project. 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Energy_efficiency
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Renewable_energy
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Renewable_energy
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California Independent Systems Operator (ISO)  
The California ISO is a non-profit public benefit corporation charged with operating the majority of California‘s high-
voltage wholesale power grid.  
 

California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC)  
An administrative agency of the State of California that exercises both legislative and judicial powers. The major duties 
of the CPUC are to regulate privately-owned utilities, securing adequate service to the public at rates that are just and 
reasonable both to customers and shareholders of the utilities. The CPUC also provides electricity and natural gas 
forecasting, and analysis and planning of energy supply and resources.  
 

California Regional Water Quality Control Board (CRWQCB) 
CRWQCB consists of nine Regional Boards. Their mission is to develop and enforce water quality objectives and 
implementation plans that will best protect the state's waters, recognizing local differences in climate, topography, 
geology and hydrology. Each Regional Board has nine part-time members appointed by the Governor and confirmed 
by the Senate. Regional Boards develop "basin plans" for their hydrologic areas, issue waste discharge requirements, 
take enforcement action against violators, and monitor water quality.  
 

Capital Asset 
Land, improvements to land, easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, works of 
art and historical treasures, infrastructure, and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations and 
that have initial useful lives extending beyond a single reporting period. Capital assets for Water are stated at cost. 
Capital assets for Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power with an original acquisition date prior to July 1, 
1977 are recorded in the financial statements at estimated cost, as determined by an independent professional 
appraisal, or at cost, if known. All subsequent acquisitions have been recorded at cost. 
 

Capital Improvement Advisory Committee (CIAC) 
The CIAC consists of the Mayor's Finance (or Budget) Director as Chair, President of the Board of Supervisors, City 
Administrator, City Controller, Director of Public Works, Director of Planning and two individuals chosen by the 
Chair of the CIAC to serve two-year terms. Pursuant to the City‘s Administrative Code, Section 3.22, all long-term 
financing proposed transactions for capital improvements shall be reviewed and approved by the CIAC. 
 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  
The Capital Improvement Program is supported by the Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program and Long-Term 
Financial Plan (LTFP). The SFPUC's CIP includes projects for repair and replacement (R&R) to the three Enterprises' 
various facilities, and also includes upgrades to improve water efficiency, power infrastructure, and sewage treatment 
facilities.  The issuance of revenue bonds, other forms of indebtedness, and the execution of governmental loans are 
provided for under the San Francisco City Charter to finance the SFPUC's capital programs.  The repayment of this 
indebtedness is provided for under the annual rates and revenues of the particular Enterprise that incurs the debt, 
categorized as debt service in the budget.  
 

Capital Planning Committee (CPC)  
Legislation certified in Administrative Code Sections 3.20 and 3.21 created the Ten-Year Capital Plan and the Capital 
Planning Committee (CPC). This body is chaired by the City Administrator and consists of the President of the Board 
of Supervisors, the Mayor‘s Finance Director, the Controller, the City Planning Director, the Director of Public 
Works, the Airport Director, the Executive Director of the Municipal Transportation Agency, the General Manager 
of the Public Utilities System, the General Manager of the Recreation and Parks Department, and the Executive 
Director of the Port of San Francisco.  Through a series of meetings, the Capital Planning Committee reviews 
proposals, staff recommendations, and documents toward the development of a City-wide capital plan and capital 
budget. Furthermore, the Committee establishes prioritization and assessment criteria to assist the City Administrator 
and staff in developing the capital plan.  
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Capital Planning Program (CPP)  
The Capital Planning Program is responsible for the development and implementation of the City and County of San 
Francisco's ten-year capital plan and its capital budget. The program reviews and analyzes infrastructure needs and 
facility conditions, evaluates capital project requests, reports on existing capital projects, and establishes financing 
strategies to meet the City‘s long- and short-term capital needs.  The mission of the Capital Planning Program is to 
develop and implement a sustainable plan for the long-term safety, accessibility and modernization of San Francisco‘s 
public infrastructure and facilities.  
 

Capital Projects  
Capital projects must result in the addition of new capital assets and/or improvements to existing assets. Capital 
projects may include associated costs of acquisition or construction of new assets and/or expenditures for activities 
that enhance the function, improve the performance and/or extend the service lives of existing assets.  In general, 
capital projects must meet one of the following requirements: new construction, including additions to an existing 
facility or facilities (or other assets) and with a useful life of at least 5 years; or renewal and replacement includes 
replacement, major rehabilitation and betterments that enhance the function, improves the performance or extends 
the service lives of existing facilities (or other assets).  
 

Ccf  
Ccf (100 cubic feet) is the billing unit for water and wastewater bills, where 1 Ccf=748 gallons.  The average single 
family residence in San Francisco uses 7 Ccf per month, or 5,236 gallons.  This, by way of comparison, is about 57 
gallons per person per day versus the California State-wide average of 155 gallons per day.  
 

Citizens’ Advisory Committee 
Established by Ordinance Number 58-04 to provide recommendations to the San Francisco Public Utilities 
Commission General Manager, the Commission and the Board of Supervisors regarding the agency's long-term 
strategic, financial and capital improvement plans. 
 

City and County of San Francisco (CCSF)  
The City and County of which the SFPUC is an Enterprise Department, governed by the Mayor and Board of 
Supervisors.  
 

City Distribution Division (CDD)  
The City Distribution Division is a division of the Water Enterprise.  It distributes high-quality, treated water to San 
Francisco customers.  The Division maintains the water distribution system within the City, which consists of 13 
reservoirs, 20 pumping stations, a network of approximately 1,300 miles of pipeline and 12,000 water valves.   
 

Clean Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs)  
Bonds used to fund the solar photovoltaic projects, included in the Power Enterprise.  CREBs are a form of tax credit 
bond in which interest on the bonds is paid in the form of federal tax credits by the United States government in lieu 
of interest paid by the issuer.  Created under the Energy Tax Incentives Act of 2005, CREBs can be used, among 
other entities, by local governments, to finance certain renewable energy and clean coal facilities.  
 

Combustion Turbine Project 
Contracting and financial structure proposed by SFPUC to the Board of Supervisors for the development of four 
natural gas-fired combustion turbine generating units (each, a "CT unit") owned by the City and County of San 
Francisco. The purpose of pursuing the development of the CT units is to improve environmental quality while 
maintaining electric system reliability. This proposal leverages the City's tax-exempt borrowing capacity and the 
favorable power purchase agreement with the California Department of Water Resources to allow the project to pay 
for itself within 18 years of commencing operations under conservative financing assumptions.  
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Commercial Paper (CP)  
Used as a financing strategy that utilizes short-term financing to calibrate financing needs with project spending. The 
CP program facilitates short-term financing typically at lower interest rates than longer term debt, which minimizes 
costs.    
 

Community Based Organizations (CBOs) 
CBOs are civil society non-profits that operate within a single local community and are essentially a subset of the 
wider group of nonprofits. They are often run on a voluntary basis and are self funding. CBOs focus on improving 
the general physical characteristics of a community. Although particular programs may be quite specific, these 
organizations tend to view their programs not merely as ends in themselves, but rather to see such programs within a 
broader community perspective. 
 

Community Choice Aggregation (CCA)  
As defined by California Assembly Bill 117, CCA permits any city, county or city and county to aggregate the electric 
loads of residents, businesses and municipal facilities to facilitate the purchase and sale of electrical energy.  
 

Competitive Sale 
A method of bond sale by wherein the bonds are advertised for sale. Any broker dealer or dealer bank may bid on the 
bonds at the designated date and time, and the bonds are awarded to the bidder offering the lowest interest cost. New 
money and refunding fixed-rate revenue bonds should be issued by competitive sale unless (i) there is significant 
deterioration in the SFPUC‘s overall credit rating or outlook, (ii) there are issues specific to a transaction that are 
outside of the SFPUC‘s customary credit profile including market issues such as threat of war or changes in taxation 
or sector risks, (iii) or other factors which militate against the use of the competitive sale process. The bonds shall be 
awarded to the bidder whose conforming bid represents the lowest true interest cost (TIC) to the SFPUC.  
 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
The CAFR is the City‘s official annual financial report. It consists of three major sections: introductory, financial, and 
statistical. The introductory section furnishes general information on the City‘s structure, services, and environment. 
The financial section contains all basic financial statements and required supplementary information, as well as 
information on all individual funds and discretely presented component units not reported separately in the basic 
financial statements. The financial section may also include supplementary information not required by GAAP. The 
statistical section provides trend data and nonfinancial data useful in interpreting the basic financial statements and is 
especially important for evaluating economic condition. 
 

Construction in Progress (CIP) 
This is a long term asset account that accumulates the cost of acquisition and construction of major plant and 
equipment. When the project is finished and placed into the service, the cost is removed from this account and is 
recorded in a plant asset account. Costs of discontinued construction projects are recorded as an expense in the year 
in which the decision is made to discontinue such projects. 
 

County-wide Cost Allocation Plan (COWCAP)  

The SFPUC is responsible for paying for a share of City-wide overhead, calculated as part of the COWCAP.  
COWCAP is developed annually by the City Controller's Office and calculates the overhead rate charged to each 
department for its share of City-wide overhead costs, such as payroll, accounting, and centralized operations support 
services.  
 

Craiglist 
A centralized network of online communities, featuring free online classified advertisements with sections devoted to 
jobs, housing, personals, for sale, services, community, gigs, résumés, and discussion forums. Craig Newmark began 
the service in 1995 as an email distribution list of friends, featuring local events in the San Francisco Bay Area, before 
becoming a web-based service in 1996. After incorporation as a private for-profit company in 1999, Craigslist 
expanded into nine more U.S. cities in 2000, four each in 2001 and 2002, and 14 in 2003. As of November 2009, 
Craigslist has established itself in approximately 700 cities in 70 countries. 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Non-profit_organization
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Customer Information System (CIS)  
The CIS replacement project replaced the mainframe customer billing system with state-of-the-art, web-based 
software for which skilled support professionals are readily available. Implementation of more fully featured customer 
care software that is integrated with other SFPUC systems and enables features such as mobile computing, automated 
meter reading, and web self service.  
 

Debt Service  
Principal and interest payments on revenue bonds, State Revolving Fund loans used to finance system improvements, 
repayments on loans, and financings related to Clean Renewable Energy Bonds.  
 

Derivatives 
Financial instruments whose return profile is linked to, or derived from, the movement of one or more underlying 
index or security, and may include a leveraging factor, or financial contracts based upon notional amounts whose 
value is derived from an underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equities or commodities). 
 

Economic Barometer 
A selective compilation of economic data designed to represent larger trends. Consumer spending, housing starts, and 
interest rates are barometers used in economic forecasting. 
 

Energy Tax Incentives Act of 2005 
The act contains $14.5 billion in tax cuts to promote domestic energy production and conservation. It also encourages 
the use of alternative energy sources and provides significant energy infrastructure incentives to ensure development 
of more robust and reliable power grids.   
 

Enterprise Fund  
Enterprise Funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private businesses. 
Enterprise costs of providing goods or services to the general public are recovered primarily through user charges.  
 

Equipment  
Equipment that has a value greater than $5,000, and a useful life of three years or more, such as vehicles and software, 
or other heavy equipment.   
 

Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG)  
The SFPUC Water Pollution Prevention Program has materials that can assist businesses in properly managing their 
fats, oils and grease wastes. FOG can be a major problem for San Francisco‘s sewers and for the bay and ocean that 
surround San Francisco, because when not disposed of properly, FOG forms thick layers inside sewers and constricts 
flow.  
 

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation 
An independent agency of the United States government that protects against the loss of insured deposits if an FDIC-
insured bank or savings association fails. FDIC preserves and promotes public confidence in the U.S. financial system 
by insuring deposits in banks and thrift institutions for up to $250,000 through December 31, 2013. 
 

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) 
The United States federal agency that regulates the interstate transmission of electricity, natural gas, and oil. FERC 
also reviews proposals to build liquefied natural gas (LNG) terminals and interstate natural gas pipelines as well as 
licensing hydropower projects. 

 
Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 
This Act regulates the organization of companies, including mutual funds, that engage primarily in investing, 
reinvesting, and trading in securities, and whose own securities are offered to the investing public. The Act requires 
these companies to disclose their financial condition and investment policies to investors when stock is initially sold 
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and, subsequently, on a regular basis. However, the act does not permit the SEC to directly supervise the investment 
decisions or activities of these companies or judge the merits of their investments. 
 

Federal Securities Act of 1933 
Often referred to as the "Truth in Securities Act", the Federal Securities Act was enacted by Congress in the aftermath 
of the stock market crash of 1929 and during the ensuing Great Depression. The Act requires investors to receive 
financial and other significant information concerning securities being offered for public sale, and prohibit deceit, 
misrepresentations, and other fraud in the sale of securities.  
 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)  
The FASB is the designated organization in the private sector for establishing standards of financial accounting. 
Those standards govern the preparation of financial statements. They are officially recognized as authoritative by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) (Financial Reporting Release No. 1, Section 101, and reaffirmed in its 
April 2003 Policy Statement) and the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (Rule 203, Rules of 
Professional Conduct, as amended May 1973 and May 1979).  
 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement 34 
FASB Statement 34, Capitalization of Interest Costs, requires that interest expense incurred during construction of assets 
be capitalized. The interest on debt used to finance the asset‘s construction is added to the cost of the project, instead 
of being expensed on the current period. FASB Statement 34 was amended by FASB Statement 62, which requires 
offsetting of interest income against interest cost in circumstances involving acquisition of qualifying assets financed 
with the proceeds of tax-exempt borrowings if those funds are externally restricted to fiancé acquisition of specified 
qualifying assets or to service the related debt. 
 

Fiscal Year (FY)  
The twelve-month budget cycle.  San Francisco's fiscal year is from July 1st to June 30th. 
 

Fixed Rate Bonds 
Long-term securities with serial and term maturities.  Interest rates are determined when the bonds are sold and are 
fixed to maturity. 
 

Fleet Management Operations (FMO)  
FMO is a bureau in Business Services. FMO provides transportation and commute-related services SFPUC-wide with 
a focus on the needs of employees. FMO is responsible for the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of 
policies and procedures governing SFPUC-owned mobile equipment.  
 

Flow of Economic Resources Measurement Focus 
The financial activities of the Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water & Power are accounted for on a flow of 
economic resources measurement focus. Under this focus, all assets and liabilities, both current and long-term, 
associated with operations are included on the statements of net assets, and depreciation is recorded as a charge to 
operations. The fund equity represents the net assets (total assets minus total liabilities) available to the fund rather 
than the fund balance. 
 

Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs)   

One or more employees who cumulatively work 40 hours per week.  
 

Fund Balance  
Amount used to balance total annual sources and uses.  It is budgeted as a source when expenditures exceed revenues. 
When expenditures are less than total sources, a General Reserve is budgeted, which then closes to fund balance at the 
end of the fiscal year.      
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General Fund  
The General Fund is a source of discretionary spending and funds many of the basic municipal services in the City 
and County of San Francisco such as public safety, health and human services and public works. Primary revenue 
sources include local taxes such as property, sales, payroll and other taxes.   
 

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
Conventions, rules and procedures that serve as the norm for the fair presentation of financial statements. 
 

General Obligation Bonds 
A common type of municipal bond in the United States that is secured by a state or local government's pledge to use 
legally available resources, including tax revenues, to repay bond holders. 
 

General Reserves  
Amount budgeted to balance total annual sources and uses. Budgeted when total sources exceed expenditures. At 
fiscal year end, the General Reserves closes to Fund balance. 
 

GoSolarSF Incentive Program  
The GoSolarSF Program was developed by the San Francisco Solar Task Force to encourage the installation of 
photovoltaic systems on residents and businesses within the City. The GoSolarSF solar incentive program was 
approved by the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission in January 2008. The Board of Supervisors passed 
ordinances establishing a long-term Solar Energy Incentive Program and a Solar Energy Incentive Pilot Program in 
June 2008.  The program was launched on July 1, 2008.  
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)  
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the independent organization that establishes and 
improves standards of accounting and financial reporting for U.S. state and local governments.  
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 
GASB Statement 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB), 
requires state and local governmental employers to account for and report the annual cost of OPEB and the 
outstanding obligations and commitments related to OPEB in essentially the same manner as they currently do for 
pensions. The provisions of Statement 45 may be applied prospectively and do not require governments to fund their 
OPEB plans. An employer may establish its OPEB liability at zero as of the beginning of the initial year of 
implementation; however, the unfunded actuarial liability is required to be amortized over future periods. 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 49 
GASB Statement 49, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pollution Remediation Obligations, provides guidance—and sets 
standards—for the accounting and reporting of obligations and costs related to pollution remediation. Once an 
obligating event occurs, governments must estimate the components of expected remediation outlays, and determine 
whether the outlays are accrued as a liability or capitalized when goods and services are acquired. 
 

Government Auditing Standards 
Government Auditing Standards, also referred to as the "Yellow Book," contains standards for audits of government 
organizations, programs, activities, and functions, and of government assistance received by contractors, nonprofit 
organizations, and other nongovernment organizations. These standards are to be followed by auditors and audit 
organizations when required by law, regulation, agreement, contract, or policy. These standards pertain to auditors' 
professional qualifications, the quality of audit effort, and the characteristics of professional and meaningful audit 
reports.  
 

Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 
Association of public finance professionals founded in 1906 as the Municipal Finance Officers Association. The 
GFOA has played a major role in the development and promotion of GAAP for state and local government since its 
inception and has sponsored the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program since 
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1946. It also publishes Governmental Accounting, Auditing, and Financial Reporting, commonly known as the ―Blue 
Book.‖ 
 

Grants 
Contributions of cash or other assets from a government or other entity that are used or expended for a specific 
purpose, activity, or facility. Grants that enterprises receive are subject to audit and final acceptance by the granting 
agency. Current and prior year costs of such grants are subject to adjustment upon audit. 
 

Hetch Hetchy Water and Power 
Established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913, which granted water and power resource rights-of-way on the 
Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park and the Stanislaus National Forest to the City. Hetch Hetchy Water and 
Power is engaged in the collection and conveyance of approximately 85% of the City‘s water supply and in the 
generation and transmission of electricity from that resource. Approximately 79% of the electricity generated by 
Hetch Hetchy is used by the City‘s municipal customers (including the San Francisco Municipal Railway, Recreation 
and Parks Department, the Port of San Francisco, San Francisco International Airport Commission, San Francisco 
General Hospital, City street lights, Moscone Center, and SFPUC‘s Water and Wastewater enterprises). The majority 
of remaining 21% of electricity generated is sold to other publicly owned utilities, such as the Turlock and Modesto 
Irrigation Districts. Hetch Hetchy includes a system of reservoirs, hydroelectric power plants, aqueducts, pipelines, 
and transmission lines, carrying water and power more than 165 miles from the Sierra Nevada to customers in the 
City and portions of the surrounding San Francisco Bay Area. 
 

Human Resource Services (HRS)  
HRS is a bureau in Business Services. HRS recruits, administers timekeeping and payroll, supports and retains a 
diverse and highly qualified workforce, serving the SFPUC Enterprises and Bureaus in an efficient, responsive and 
professional manner.  
 

Hydro Electric Generation 
Hydro electricity, a form of renewable energy which is non-polluting, is generated by hydropower, i.e., the production 
of power through use of the gravitational force of falling or flowing water. Most hydro electric power comes from the 
potential energy of dammed water driving a water turbine and generator. The quantity of electricity generated is 
determined by the volume of water flow and the amount of "head" or the difference in height between the source and 
the water's outflow created by the dam. The greater the flow and head, the more electricity produced. The water 
rotates the turbines, which drive generators that produce electricity. The electricity is then transmitted to a substation 
where transformers increase voltage to allow transmission to homes, businesses and factories. 
 

Indenture 
Legal document that specifically states the conditions under which a bond has been issued, the rights of the bond 
holders, and the duties of the issuer. 
 

Information Technology Services (ITS)  
ITS is a bureau in Business Services. ITS provides high quality, proficient and reliable Information Technology 
Services to all SFPUC Enterprises and Bureaus.  
 

Interim Capital Improvement Program (Interim CIP)  
The SFPUC launched the Wastewater Enterprise Interim Capital Improvement Program (Interim CIP) to address the 
immediate needs of San Francisco‘s wastewater system prior to the adoption of a system-wide Master Plan.  These 
special projects are aimed at reducing flood risk, reducing wastewater odors, and improving treatment facilities.  
Interim CIP projects are funded through your wastewater service charges.  
 

Internal Control 
Plan of organization and all the methods and measures designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as 
to the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition; the reliability of financial records for 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Hydropower
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Potential_energy
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Dam
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Electrical_generator
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preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles; and maintaining 
accountability for assets.   
 

Joint Powers Agreement 
A contract between a city, a county, and/or a special district in which the city or county agrees to perform services, 
cooperate with, or lend its powers to, the special district. 
 

Learning Management System (LMS) 
LMS is a software application for the administration, documentation, tracking, and reporting of training programs, 
classroom and online events, e-learning programs, and training content. 
 

Letter of Credit 
Financial instrument usually issued by a commercial bank or private corporation which provides the primary or 
secondary security for the bond issue. 
 

Long-Term Financial Plan – See Ten-Year Financial Plan 
 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) 
Information provided in the Financial section of the CAFR, presented after the independent auditor‘s report, and 
provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements.   
 

Materials and Supplies  
A part of the operating budget that includes maintenance, safety, fuel, office supplies, and other miscellaneous 
materials and supplies for the maintenance and operations of an Enterprise.   
 

Maximo  
Asset management software that provides information on Enterprise assets. 
 

Mayor’s Office of Public Finance 
The Mayor‘s Office of Public Finance is responsible for providing and managing low-cost debt financing of large-
scale, long-term capital projects and improvements that produce social and economic benefit to the City and its 
citizens while balancing market and credit risk with appropriate benefits, mitigations and controls. 
 

Megawatt Hour (MWh) 
The term ―megawatt‖ is used as a standard measure of electric power plant generating capacity equal to 1,000 
kilowatts, or 1 million watts. It is most commonly used for large systems like wind turbines, biomass plants, and coal, 
natural gas, and nuclear plants. Megawatt hour measures the actual amount of electricity it produces over a certain 
period of time. One MWh is equal to 1,000 kilowatt hours or 1 million watt hours. 
 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)  
A binding agreement between two parties. CCSF labor agreements are adopted as MOUs. 
 

Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA)  
MSA is one or more adjacent counties or county equivalents that have at least one urban core area of at least 50,000 
population, plus adjacent territory that has a high degree of social and economic integration with the core as measured 
by commuting ties. MSAs are used for official purposes, but they are not the only estimates of metro area populations 
available. The City and County of San Francisco belongs to the San Francisco-Oakland-Fremont, CA MSA, which 
encompasses a large portion of the San Francisco Bay Area. It is made up of two metropolitan divisions: the San 
Francisco-San Mateo-Redwood City division, and the Oakland-Fremont, Hayward division. Together these cover 
Alameda, Contra Costa, Marin, San Francisco, and San Mateo counties. 
 
 
 

http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossaryenergymeas.htm#Watt#Watt
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossarytechfuels.htm#bmass
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossarytechfuels.htm#coal
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossarytechfuels.htm#natgas
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossarytechfuels.htm#nuclear
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossaryenergymeas.htm#kWh#kWh
http://www.masstech.org/cleanenergy/energy/glossaryenergymeas.htm#Wh#Wh
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/County_(United_States)
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/County-equivalent
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of_United_States_urban_areas
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Million Gallons per Day (MGD)  
Unit of measurement for gas or liquid flow rates. One MGD is equal to 1,121 acre feet per year or 1.55 cubic feet per 
second. 
 

Modesto Irrigation District (MID)  
One of four irrigation districts in California. MID‘s electric service area includes Modesto, Salida, Empire, Waterford, 
Mountain House and parts of LaGrange, Riverbank, Ripon, Escalon and Oakdale.  
 

Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s (S&P) 
Two of the major independent credit rating agencies. Moody's Corporation is the holding company for Moody's 
Investors Service which performs financial research and analysis on commercial and government entities. S&P is a 
division of McGraw-Hill that publishes financial research and analysis on stocks and bonds. These two agencies 
research the financial health of each bond issuer, including issuers of municipal bonds, and assign ratings to the bonds 
being offered. They append their ratings with an indicator to show a bond's ranking within a category. Moody's uses a 
numerical indicator. For example, A1 is better than A2 but still not as good as Aa. Standard & Poor's use a plus or 
minus indicator. For example, A+ is better than A, and A is better than A-. 
 

Moscone Convention Center 
The largest convention and exhibition complex in San Francisco, California. It comprises three main halls: two 
underground halls underneath Yerba Buena Gardens, known as Moscone North and Moscone South, and a three-
level Moscone West exhibition hall across 4th Street. It was initially built in 1981 as one single hall, Moscone South, 
and named after George Moscone, a former mayor of San Francisco who was assassinated in 1978. Since its 
completion, the City and the Redevelopment Agency have implemented a number of other projects which enhance 
the vicinity of the Moscone Center for convention activity. 
 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)  
A permit program, authorized by the Clean Water Act, that controls water pollution by regulating point sources that 
discharge pollutants into waters of the United States.  
 

Negotiated Sale 
A method of bond sale in which the issuing entity and a selected underwriter negotiate the terms of the issue, as 
opposed to having multiple underwriting groups competitively bidding on the issue to establish its terms. The SFPUC 
may retain more than one dealer or remarketing agent for each issuance of variable rate indebtedness. The SFPUC 
also shall reserve the right to replace a dealer or remarketing agent with notice at any time for any reason in its sole 
discretion. Variable rate bonds, including variable rate demand notes, auction rate securities, commercial paper, etc. 
may be issued by negotiated sale.   
 

Non-Personnel Services  
Services including maintenance of equipment and facilities, travel, training, memberships, professional services, rent, 
and other expenses that support maintenance for the operation of an Enterprise.    
 

Non-Residential Sewer Service Charges  
For non-residential customers, the sewer service charge is calculated based on the volume wastewater discharged and 
the pounds of pollutants contained in that discharge (i.e. a strength loading charge).  The charges for customers with 
sampled discharges are billed on the basis of their specific waste characteristics. Other customers are billed on the 
basis of the standard waste characteristics for their respective business activity.  In addition to the costs shared with 
residential customers, all non-residential customers are responsible for the costs of the Wastewater Enterprise‘s pre-
treatment program.  
 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 
Additional information and details not displayed on the face of the financial statements that are essential to the full 
understanding of the financial statements. 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/McGraw-Hill
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Stock
http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Bond_(finance)
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Oils and Grease (O/G)  
One of the strength charge determinants of wastewater rates for non-residential customers.    
 

Operating Transfers Out (OTO) 
Operating payments between Enterprise funds or other City departments.  
 

Operations and Maintenance (O&M)  
Includes budgets for Personnel, Overhead (or COWCAP), Non-Personnel Services, Materials and Supplies, 
Equipment, Services of Other Departments, and Operating Transfers Out.  
 

Other Nonoperating Revenues  
Revenues from other income, including rent, permit fees, sale of property, custom work, and reimbursements.      
 

Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) 
These are postemployment benefits other than pensions. OPEB generally takes the form of health insurance and 
dental, vision, prescription, or other healthcare benefits provided to eligible retirees, including in some cases their 
beneficiaries. It may also include some types of life insurance, legal services, and other benefits. 
 

Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E)  
Incorporated in California in 1905, is an investor-owned natural gas and electric utilities company, with a California 
service area from Eureka in the north to Bakersfield in the south, and from the Pacific Ocean in the west to the Sierra 
Nevada in the east.  It is based in San Francisco.   
 

Permitted Investments 
The instruments in which moneys held in various funds and accounts may be invested pursuant to the provisions of 
the bond contract.  
 

Personnel Costs 
Labor for SFPUC‘s full-time, temporary, and project-funded employees, and related benefits.    
 

Photovoltaic (PV) Projects/Systems   
Projects that involve the conversion of solar energy into electricity through the use of photovoltaic technologies.  
Design-build photovoltaic projects underway in the Power Enterprise include Ways and Structures, Woods Coach, 
Chinatown Public Health Center, City Hall (part of the Sustainable Energy District), and Davies Symphony Hall.    
 

PKF Consulting 
 A firm headquartered in Atlanta, Georgia which provides advisory services and industry expertise which include real 
estate valuations; resort and recreation studies; conference center and public assembly studies; asset advisory services; 
market positioning; financial feasibility studies; litigation support; market research; and tourism and recreational 
studies.  
 

Power Revenue Fund 
Designated funds in which all revenues of Hetch Hetchy Water and Power shall be deposited and maintained in the 
City Treasury. These funds are recorded in the statements of net assets of Hetch Hetchy Water and Power as deposits 
and investments with the City Treasury. Deposits, including earnings thereon, shall be appropriated, transferred, 
expended, or used for the financing, maintenance, and operation of Hetch Hetchy Water and Power. Pursuant to the 
Master Lease/Purchase Agreement (Agreement), net power revenues of Hetch Hetchy Water and Power are 
irrevocably pledged to the punctual payment of debt service on the Clean Renewable Energy Bonds (CREBs). 
Accordingly, net power revenue shall not be used for any other purpose while any of its CREBs are outstanding, 
except as expressly permitted by the Agreement. 
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Pre-treatment and Pollution Prevention (P2)  
Programs to ensure regulatory compliance in wastewater collection systems. They focus on contaminant reduction 
activities for residential, commercial, and industrial dischargers.  The major P2 programs include: Street Sweeping,  
Fats, Oils & Grease (FOG), Mercury Reduction Program, Pesticides/Integrated Pest Management (IPM), and Storm 
Water P2 Program/Construction Runoff Control.  
 

Proposition A - 2002  
Approved by voters in November 2002, authorizes the SFPUC, subject to BOS approval, to issue up to $1.628 billion 
in revenue bonds or other forms of indebtedness to finance the acquisition and construction of improvements to the 
City‘s water system.  
 

Proposition E - 2002 
Approved by voters in November 2002, authorizes the SFPUC to issue revenue bonds or other forms of 
indebtedness for the purpose of reconstructing, replacing, expanding, repairing or improving water facilities or clean 
water facilities when authorized by ordinance approved by a two-thirds vote of the BOS.  
 

Proposition E - 2008 
Approved by voters in June 2008, terminated the terms of all five existing members of the Commission who were 
appointed by the Mayor under the 2002 Charter, changed the process for appointing new members, and set 
qualifications for all members. Under the amended Charter, the Mayor continues to nominate candidates to the 
Commission, but nominees do not take office until the Board of Supervisors votes to approve their appointments by 
a majority (at least six members). The amended Charter provides for staggered four year terms for members. 
 

Proprietary Fund 
Funds that focus on the determination of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial 
position, and cash flows. There are two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal service 
funds. 
 

Raker Act of 1913 
The Paul Raker Act was an act of the United States Congress that permitted building of the O'Shaughnessy Dam and 
flooding of Hetch Hetchy Valley in Yosemite National Park, California. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power was 
established as a result of the Raker Act of 1913, which granted water and power resources rights-of-way on the 
Tuolumne River in Yosemite National Park and Stanislaus National Forest to the City and County of San Francisco 
(the City). As a result of the 1913 Raker Act, energy produced above the City‘s Municipal Load is sold first to 
Modesto and Turlock Irrigation Districts (the Districts) to cover their pumping and municipal load needs and any 
remaining energy either sold to other Municipalities and/or Government Agencies (not for resale) or deposited into 
an account under the City‘s agreement with PG&E. 

Rate Fairness Board 

Proposition E, approved by San Francisco voters on November 5, 2002, directed the establishment of a Rate Fairness 

Board to advise the Public Utilities Commission on water and sewer rate matters. The board consists of seven 

members: the City Administrator or his or her designee; the Controller or his or her designee; the Director of the 

Mayor's Office of Public Finance or his or her designee; two residential City retail customers, consisting of one 

appointed by the Mayor and one by the Board of Supervisors; and two City retail business customers, consisting of a 

large business customer appointed by the Mayor and a small business customer appointed by the Board of 

Supervisors. Specific duties for the RFB include: (1) annual review of a five-year rate forecast; (2) hold one or more 

public hearings on annual rate recommendations before the Public Utilities Commission adopts rates; (3) provide a 

report and recommendations to the Public Utilities Commission on the rate proposal; and, (4) in connection with 

periodic rate studies, submit to the Public Utilities Commission rate policy recommendations for the Commission's 

consideration, including recommendations to reallocate costs among various retail utility customer classifications, 

subject to any outstanding bond requirements.  
 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/United_States_Congress
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Refunding Bond 
A type of debt that is issued for the purpose of retiring an outstanding bond. Issuers refund bond issues to realize 
debt service savings, or for other debt restructuring purposes. Absent significant non-economic factors, PUC‘s policy 
is that refunding transactions should produce net debt service savings of at least 3% of the par value of the refunded 
bonds, calculated using the refunding issue‘s true interest cost (TIC) as the discount rate. 
 

Request for Proposal (RFP) 
A solicitation document used when award will be made after negotiation with the offeror. Quotations received must 
be discussed and confirmed to determine which one offers the best value to the organization before a contract can be 
awarded. A bidding process is one of the best methods for leveraging a company's negotiating ability and purchasing 
power with suppliers. The RFP process brings structure to the procurement decision and allows the risks and benefits 
to be identified clearly upfront. 
 

Residential Sewer Service Charges  
Includes single-family residential and multiple-family residential customers, allowing rates to be designed to reflect the 
particular usage characteristic of each group of residential customers.  The sewer service charge applicable to 
residential service is an inclining block rate structure.  The first block is applied to first three units of monthly 
discharge per dwelling unit.  All remaining units are billed at a higher rate.  For multiple family residential accounts, 
the billable use in each block is calculated by multiplying the allowed use by the number of dwelling units.  
 

Retail Water Sales  
Consists of rate schedules that include City and Suburban Retail rates.  City Retail Rates include general rates - single-
family residential, multiple-family residential, and commercial (industrial). These rates consist of a monthly service 
charge based on meter size and a two-step commodity charge for single and multiple family residential customers, and 
meter size and a uniform commodity charge for commercial (industrial) customers. Suburban retail rates include rate 
schedules for use outside of San Francisco.  
 

Restricted Assets 
Assets whose use is subject to constraints that are either (a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or 
laws or regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling 
legislation. 
 

Revenue Bond 
Bonds issued by governments, authorities, or public benefit corporations that are guaranteed by the revenue flow of 
the issuing agency. Unlike general obligation bonds, only the revenues specified in the legal contract between the bond 
holder and bond issuer are required to be used for repayment of the principal and interest of the bonds.  

 
Revenue Bond Law of 1941 
The Revenue Bond Law of 1941 is commonly used for the issuance of revenue bonds. It requires approval by a 
majority of voters for the issuance of revenue bonds.  
 

Revenue Bond Oversight Committee (RBOC) 
Pursuant to the City‘s Administrative Code Chapter 5A (Proposition P, passed by the voters in November 2002), the 
RBOC provides oversight to ensure that the proceeds from revenue bonds authorized by the BOS and/or the voters 
after November 2002 are expended in accordance with the authorizing bond resolution and applicable law.  If, after 
conducting all appropriate reviews and independent audit of actual expenditures of revenue bond proceeds, the 
RBOC, after consultation with the City Attorney, determines that proceeds are being or have been expended for 
purposes not authorized by the authorizing bond resolution or otherwise amount to an illegal expenditure of such 
proceeds, the RBOC may, by majority vote of all its members, prohibit the further issuance or sale of authorized 
revenue bonds which have yet to be issued or sold.  Any such determination by the RBOC may be appealed to the 
BOS within 30 days of the RBOC‘s decision. The BOS may overturn the decision of the RBOC by resolution 
approved by two-thirds vote of all its members. 
 

http://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/General_obligation_bond
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Revenue-Funded Capital Project/Repair & Replacement (R&R)  
Projects in the Enterprises, including both minor and major construction projects, maintenance and rehabilitation 
projects, planning studies, and preliminary engineering analysis for major capital improvements.   
 

Sale of Electricity  
Revenues from power sales to City departments for municipal use, wholesale customers, and other retail customers.    
 

Sale of Gas and Steam  
Revenues from gas and steam provided to City departments by Hetch Hetchy Power. These revenues are a pass-
through and have no impact on Hetchy Hetchy‘s fund balance levels.  
 

Sale of Water  
The budget category for revenues from sales of water to retail customers in San Francisco and suburban areas and to 
wholesale customers under the terms of a long-term Water Supply Agreement (WSA).    
 

San Francisco Convention & Visitors Bureau                                                                                          
The bureau is an outgrowth of the San Francisco Convention and Tourist League, a non-profit, local business 
association founded in 1909 to reclaim the City's position as a world-class destination in the wake of the devastating 
1906 earthquake and fire. It is a membership organization headed by a board of directors made up of 45 business 
leaders from various companies, elected by the membership. Its mission is to enhance the local economy by 
marketing San Francisco and the Bay Area as the premier destination for conventions, meetings, events and leisure 
travel. 
 

San Francisco Employees’ Retirement System (SFERS) 
Originally established as a fund to assist families and orphans of firefighters and police, the Retirement System 
currently serves more than 53,000 active and retired employees of the City and County of San Francisco and their 
survivors. SFERS members include employees of the City and County of San Francisco, the San Francisco Unified 
School District, the San Francisco Community College District, as well as Superior Courts. The Retirement Board is 
composed of seven members: three elected by the active and retired members of SFERS; three appointed by the 
Mayor in accordance with §12.100 of the San Francisco City Charter; and one designated by the President of the 
Board of Supervisors or his/her designee from among the other members of the Board of Supervisors. The board 
oversees plan administration, pension fund investment, member benefits, and actuarial funding.  
 

San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC)  
An Enterprise Department of the City and County of San Francisco. The SFPUC provides regional water, local water, 
wastewater (collection, treatment, and disposal), and power.  
 

San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise 
The San Francisco Wastewater Enterprise (Wastewater), formerly known as, the San Francisco Clean Water Program 
(the Program) was established in 1977 following the transfer of all sewage-system-related assets and liabilities of the 
City and County of San Francisco (the City) to the Program. In 1976, the electorate of the City approved a 
proposition authorizing the City to issue $240,000 in revenue bonds pursuant to the Revenue Bond Law of 1941 of 
the State of California for the purpose of acquiring, constructing, improving, and financing improvements to the 
City‘s municipal sewage treatment and disposal system. Since then, the City‘s Board of Supervisors has adopted 
resolutions (Wastewater Resolutions) providing for the issuance of various sewer revenue and refunding bond series. 
The Wastewater Resolutions require the City to keep separate books of records and accounts of Wastewater. 
 

San Francisco Water Enterprise 
The San Francisco Water Enterprise (Water) was established in 1930 under the provisions of the Charter of the City 
and County of San Francisco. Water acquired the fully developed, mature water works for San Francisco on March 3, 
1930. Since then, the City and County of San Francisco (the City) has operated and maintained the water works as 
Water. The Board of Supervisors of the City has adopted resolutions (the Water Resolutions) providing for the 
issuance of various water revenue and refunding bond series.  Water, which consists of a system of reservoirs, storage 
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tanks, water treatment plants, pump stations, and pipelines, is engaged in the distribution of water to San Francisco 
and certain suburban areas. In fiscal 2009, Water delivered approximately 86,986 million gallons of water to nearly 
2.5 million people within San Francisco and certain suburban areas. 
 

Services of Other Departments  
Services performed for the SFPUC by other City Departments.  
 

Sewer Service Charges  
The budget category for residential and non residential sewer service charges to the SFPUC‘s customers.  
 

Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP)  
A major focus of the Wastewater Enterprise, the SSIP is a long-term capital plan that provides strategies and policies 
for the future.  The San Francisco Sewer System Improvement Program objectives are to: develop a long-term vision 
and strategy for the management of the City‘s wastewater and stormwater; provide a detailed capital planning 
roadmap for improvements needed; estimate the funds to implement these improvements; address specific challenges 
facing the system; and maximize system reliability and flexibility.  The Commission will review the SSIP in late 2010.  
 

SFPUC Commission  
The five Commissioners of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission are appointed by the Mayor and confirmed 
by the Board of Supervisors and serve 4-year terms as mandated by voters through the passage of Proposition E in 
June 2008.  The Commission is responsible for determining such matters as the rates and charges for services, 
approval of contract, and organizational policy.  
 

Solar Power Purchase Agreement (PPA)  
An agreement between the SFPUC and Recurrent Energy in which Recurrent will finance, design, build and operate 
the solar energy project and provide all the energy generated to the SFPUC for a period of 25 years. The five 
megawatts generated at the Sunset Reservoir facility will be used to help power other San Francisco public services 
and buildings, including streetlights, San Francisco General Hospital, Muni light rail and city schools. 
 

State Revolving Fund Loan Program (SRF) 
Loan program managed by the State Water Resources Control Board which provides alternative capital financing for 
certain facilities of the Wastewater Enterprise. Existing loans are deemed to be senior in priority of payment and 
future loans may be deemed to be on parity with or senior to outstanding revenue bond indebtedness.  
 

Statements of Cash Flows 
One of the basic financial statements for proprietary funds that present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting 
from operational, capital, non-capital, and investing activities. These statements summarize the annual flow of cash 
receipts and cash payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the obligation or receipt 
and exclude non-cash accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of assets. 
 

Statements of Net Assets 
Financial statement that presents information on the organization‘s assets and liabilities as of year-end, with the 
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the organization is improving or deteriorating. 
 

Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Financial statement that presents the results of the organization‘s operations over the course of the fiscal year and 
information as to how the net assets changed during the year. These statements can be used as an indicator of the 
extent to which the organization has successfully recovered its costs through user fees and other charges. All changes 
in net assets are reported during the period in which the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in these statements from some 
items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as delayed collection of operating revenues and the 
expenses of employee earned but unused vacation leave. 
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Straight-Line Depreciation Method 
A method of computing amortization (depreciation) by dividing the difference between an asset's cost and its 
expected salvage value by the number of years it is expected to be used. In SFPUC, depreciation and amortization are 
computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the related assets, which range from 3 
to 75 years for equipment and 3 to 175 years for buildings, structures, and improvements. No depreciation or 
amortization is recorded in the year of acquisition, and a full year‘s depreciation is recorded in the year of disposal. 
 

Suburban Water Rate Agreement 
During 1984, the City entered into a Settlement Agreement and Master Water Sales Contract (the Suburban Water 
Rate Agreement) with certain suburban customers, which establishes the basis for water rates to be charged to those 
customers (the Suburban Purchasers). Pursuant to the terms of the Suburban Water Rate Agreement, the City is 
required to establish water rates applicable to the Suburban Purchasers at the beginning of each fiscal year. The 
suburban water rates are based on an estimate of the level of revenues necessary to recoup the cost of distributing 
water to the Suburban Purchasers in accordance with the methodology outlined in Article IV of the Suburban Water 
Rate Agreement (the Suburban Revenue Requirement).  
 

Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA)  
A system that collects data from various sensors at a factory, plant or in other remote locations and then sends this 
data to a central computer which then manages and controls the data.  
 

Sustainability Plan 
Consistent with the requirements of San Francisco City Charter, Article VIII B, section 8B.123 (A) (3), the SFPUC 
has completed a comprehensive Sustainability Plan. The Plan was published in December 2008 and is available on the 
SFPUC website. Plan creation was the result of a three-year effort undertaken through a collaborative process 
involving the leadership, staff and stakeholders of the SFPUC.  The Plan provides a baseline assessment that scores 
the SFPUC‘s performance and sets out specific strategies and initiatives, with targets to begin improving sustainability 
performance in priority areas. The Plan sets in motion this integrated, systematic and long-term approach to 
sustainability at the SFPUC, whereby the SFPUC will continue to track and monitor performance, assess results, 
implement a useful reporting protocol, and take needed actions to improve strategic management and decision-
making. 
 

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Program (CIP)  
The City and County of San Francisco requires, through the City's Administrative Code, the annual creation of a Ten-
Year Capital Plan for City-owned facilities and infrastructure.  Under the authority of the City Administrator, the 
Capital Planning Program prepares the plan and presents it to the Capital Planning Committee (CPC) for their review.  
The CPC completes its review of the capital plan by March 1 and presents it to the Board of Supervisors (BOS). The 
BOS must adopt the capital plan by May 1.  
 

Ten-Year Financial Plan 
The Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) is a planning document as required by the Charter of the SFPUC, that includes 
a ten-year financial summary for each Enterprise, describing projected sources and uses, resulting fund balances and 
associated financial reserve ratios.  
 

Total Suspended Solids (TSS)  
A water quality measurement that serves as one of the determinants of wastewater rates for nonresidential customers.  
 

Transbay Cable Project 
An energy transmission infrastructure project approved by San Francisco Mayor Gavin Newsom and the Board of 
Supervisors on August 7, 2007 that will provide additional energy to the City of San Francisco without having to 
install a power generation plant. The project consists of approximately 53 miles of high voltage direct current 
(HVDC) plus transmission cable bundle of approximately 10 inches in diameter running from the City of Pittsburg to 
the City and County of San Francisco (the ―City‖). Approximately 9.4 miles of the cable are in submerged lands, a 
small portion of shoreline, and on a portion of a street that are under Port Commission jurisdiction. 
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Treasure Island (TI)  
The Board of Supervisors adopted on November 1998 Resolution No. 938-98 authorizing Treasure Island 
Development (TIDA) to enter into a Cooperative Agreement with the US Navy. SFPUC performs the duties of utility 
provider under ―Function Annex 6 – Utilities Services‖ which describes the operation and maintenance of the utility 
systems and the delivery of utilities to the occupants and users at Treasure Island and Yerba Buena Island 
(TI/YBI). The Water Enterprise, Wastewater Enterprise, and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power operate and maintain 
the water, wastewater, and power distribution systems, and the purchase and delivery of electricity, natural gas, and 
water to customers at TI/YBI, on behalf of the Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) and in accordance 
with a water supply and quality permit issued by the California Department of Health Services, and the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control 
Board.  
 

Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA)  
The Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) is a non-profit, public benefit agency dedicated to the economic 
redevelopment of former Naval Station Treasure Island. The Authority is vested with the powers of a California 
Redevelopment Agency as well as the rights to administer Tidelands Trust property. TIDA also performs and 
administers vital municipal services for the residential and daytime population during the interim reuse of the former 
military base.  
 

Turlock Irrigation District (TID)  
One of four irrigation districts in California that provides irrigation water as well as electric retail energy directly to 
homes, farms and businesses.  
 

Unrestricted Net Assets 
The portion of net assets that is neither restricted nor invested in capital assets (net of related debt). 
 

Variable Rate Bonds 
Long-term securities that bear interest at variable rates adjusted at agreed upon intervals, such as daily, weekly or 
monthly.  The holder of the variable rate security may be allowed to ―put‖ the security to a liquidity provider retained 
by the SFPUC. 
 

Water Quality Division (WQD)  
The Water Quality Division is a division of the Water Enterprise.  The mission of the Water Quality Division is to 
ensure that the SFPUC complies with all current and future water quality regulations and customer expectations 
through sampling and laboratory analyses, process engineering, applied research, inspections, field service oversight, 
regulatory reporting and support to treatment plant operations.  
 

Water Saving Hero Campaign  
The Water Saving Hero consists of a partnership of Bay Area water agencies and organizations committed to water 
conservation. The Campaign highlights steps Bay Area residents can take to conserve water now and for the future.  
 

Water Supply Agreement (WSA)  
The City and County of San Francisco and the 27 suburban wholesale customers that purchase water from San 
Francisco on a wholesale basis and distribute it to residents, businesses, and community organizations in and 
thousands of community organizations in Alameda, Santa Clara and San Mateo Counties.  The WSA was approved by 
the Commission in April 2009 and has a term of 25 years. The Agreement changes the cost basis by which the 
wholesale rate is determined from a ―utility cost basis‖ to a ―cash basis‖.  Beginning in FY 2009-10, wholesale 
customers will pay a proportionate share of regional system operating expenses, debt service on bonds sold to finance 
regional improvements, and other regional system improvements funded from current revenues. The WSA requires 
the rate be calculated and set annually and include a ―true-up‖ to recover any differences between actual costs and 
revenues collected.    
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Water Supply & Treatment (WS&T)  
A division of the Water Enterprise, WS&T maintains watershed lands and reservoirs, water treatment procedures and 
facilities, and water transmission facilities.    
 

Water System Improvement Program (WSIP)  
The SFPUC, together with its 27 wholesale customers, launched a $4.6 billion Water System Improvement Program 
(WSIP) to repair, replace, and seismically upgrade the San Francisco Regional Water System‘s aging facilities. Built in 
the early to mid-1900s, many parts of the San Francisco Regional Water System, often referred to as the Hetch 
Hetchy System, are nearing the end of their working life, with crucial portions crossing over or near to three of the 
nation‘s most active earthquake faults. The WSIP will reinforce vulnerable portions of the system to withstand an 
earthquake and enhance water treatment processes to ensure a reliable supply of water for SFPUC customers.  
 

Wellness Incentive Program 
Established effective July 1, 2002 to promote workforce attendance. Under the program, any full-time employee 
leaving the employment of the City upon service or disability retirement may receive payment of a portion of accrued 
sick leave earned but unused at the time of separation. 
 

Western Systems Power Pool (WSPP)  
An agreement and an organization that creates power trading opportunities and allows WSPP members to manage 
power delivery and price risk.  
 

Wholesale Water Sales  
The Water Enterprise provides wholesale water service to 27 wholesale customers, which consist of 24 municipalities 
and water districts, one private utility, one private non-profit university and one mutual water association.  Wholesale 
customers are located in Alameda, Santa Clara and San Mateo counties.  The SFPUC and the wholesale customers 
have negotiated a new Water Supply Agreement (WSA) that changes the cost basis by which the wholesale rate is 
determined from a ―utility cost basis‖ to a ―cash basis‖.  Beginning in FY 2009-10, wholesale customers will pay a 
proportionate share of regional system operating expenses, debt service on bonds sold to finance regional 
improvements, and other regional system improvements funded from current revenues. 
 

Workers’ Compensation 
A state-mandated benefit for workers injured on the job. Benefits include medical treatment reasonably required to 
help recover from the effects of the injury, temporary disability payments if an injured worker loses time from work, 
permanent disability payments if an injured worker has a permanent disability as the result of a work injury, 
supplemental job displacement vouchers are available if the injured worker cannot return to the job held at the time of 
injury, and death benefits given to a spouse or dependent upon a work related injury or illness which results in death. 
San Francisco is self-insured for workers' compensation which means that the City does not pay an insurance 
company to cover the costs. The cost of workers' compensation claims are charged back to the annual budget of the 
department where the employee worked at the time of the injury. 
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